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1,559 53.2% 2,849 1,161 48.8% 2,294 34% 34%
381 73.6% 518 384 81.5% 471 @)% %
311 71.8% 433 316 74.1% 427 % @)%
220 62.5% 348 198 57.1% 341 16% 11%
828 85.5% 968 536 86.4% 621 60% 54%
408 41.2% 976 321 32.9% 969 27% 27%
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2017 11 30 2016 11 30
50,131 42,114
) 1,644 1,536
51,775 43,650

IFRS
2017 2016
2017 11 30 2016
50,131 3,512 42,114 2,750
10 50,850 n/a 42,839 n/a
10 49,406 n/a 41,380 n/a
50 50,160 3,693 42,262 2,927
50 49,689 3,262 41,736 2,524
IFRS
IFRS
2017 2016
1,636 1,334 23% 23%
865 768 9% 13%
504 453 12% 11%
272 265 6% 3%
639 469 39% 36%
758 662 13% 15%
@7 30 n/m n/m
4,647 3,981 16% 17%
16 4,647
2016
23
12
39
12
21 13
20 14.2 2017 11 30
6,026 35,658

781642
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2017 2016
9,434 6,873 3% 37%
3,517 3,327 2% 6%
2,421 2,276 % 6%
1,823 1,795 6% 2%
3,092 2,384 33% 30%
5,860 5,478 6% 7%
26,147 22,133 18% 18%
2016 18 26,147 2017 95.6
IFRS
2017 2016
5,440 5,081 % %
1,656 1,343 24% 23%
7,096 6,424 11% 10%
IFRS
11 7,096
2017 2016
1,969 1,752 13% 12%
2016 7.9 7.5
13 1,969
2017 2016
4,647 3,981 16% 17%
1,741 97 n/m n/m
(268) 86 n/m n/m
6,120 4,164 48% 47%
IFRS
IFRS 2016 48 6,120 16
4,647 2016 97 1,741
2016 181
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2017 2016
29,632 26,705
- 259
6,120 4,164
(10) (86)
(1,376) (1,124)
78 50
1,061 (423)
153 87
6,026 2,927
35,658 29,632
IFRS
2017 11 30 35,658 6,026 6,120
1,061 1,376
A. 2017
11 30 36
IFRS
2017 IFRS 16 38.73
2017 IFRS
47 51.00
IFRS  —
« ) « )
2017 2016 2017 2016
6,120 4,164 4,647 3,981
12,000 11,972 12,000 11,972
51.00 34.78 38.73 33.25
IFRS  —
« ) « )
2017 2016 2017 2016
6,120 4,164 4,647 3,981
( 12,037 12,006 12,037 12,006
«
50.84 34.68 38.61 33.16
A. 2017 11 30

38
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2017 11 30
13 4,527
1,376
2017 11 30 3,151
940 1,376
2,521 12,303
2017 2016
9,782 7,528
4,527 4,024
(1,376) (1,374)
940 1,005
(192) (161)
(1,376) (1,124)
@ (116)
12,303 9,782
2017 11 30 9,749
2,106 514
497 1,376
2017 2016
8,416 7,843
@n 30
952 1,034
467 411
238 209
192 186
207 46
50 135
2,106 2,021
AlA - (310)
514 260
(10) (86)
(1,376) (1,124)
126 (218)
9,749 8,416
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IFRS
2017 11 30 [2016 11 30
176,220 150,998 17%
4,365 3,910 12%
2,289 1,642 39%
21,847 18,898 16%
10,970 9,626 14%
215,691 185,074 17%
156,979 135,214 16%
3,958 3,460 14%
12,382 11,090 12%
173,319 149,764 16%
42,372 35,310 20%
378 326 16%
AlA 41,994 34,984 20%
35,658 29,632 20%
2017 2016
34,984 31,119
- 259
6,120 4,164
984 938
10) (86)
(1,376) (1,124)
78 50
1,061 (423)
153 87
7,010 3,865
41,994 34,984
2017 11 30 2016 11 30
160,327 87% 137,479 87%
24,231 13% 20,657 13%
184,558 100% 158,136 100%
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2017 11 30 2016 11 30

4,704 19% 4,456 22%

107 1% 196 1%
18,953 78% 15,498 75%

456 2% 504 2%

11 - 3 -
24,231 100% 20,657 100%

2017 11 30 2016 11 30

9,585 6% 7,830 6%
11,089 % 10,877 8%
2,037 1% 1,830 1%
22,711 14% 20,537 15%
6,822 4% 5,451 4%

468 1% 434 -

249 - 179 -

73 - 17 -
30,323 19% 26,618 19%
46,447 29% 40,013 29%
59,343 3% 50,442 36%
5,829 4% 5,036 4%
111,619 70% 95,491 69%
10,941 % 9,262 7%
5,581 3% 5,062 4%
1,584 1% 959 1%

279 - 87 —
130,004 81% 110,861 81%
160,327 100% 137,479 100%
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2017 11 30

2016 11 30 185,074 30,617
2016 11 30
2017 11 30
24,231
2017 11 30
2016 11 30
2016 11 30

2017 11 30

158,136
184,558

116,028 134,330

2017
17,763

2017

2017
2017

30
2017

2017
2017

2017
3,958

2017

2017 11 30

11 30
3,050
6,822

11 30

497
11 30
5,496
11 30
18,898
11 30
10,970

1,376

6,049

21,847

11 30
11 30

2016 11 30

11 30 2017

500

11 30 2016 11 30

2016 11 30
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215,691

26,422
160,327

1,642

149,764

2016 11 30

184,558

2016 11 30
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2017 11 30

41 42

2016 11 30 53

2016 11 30 14,713

647
2017

2016 11 30

173,319

135,214

497

A. 2017 11 30

28
2018
11,090
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2013

12,382
A. 2017 11 30
41

52

2,289

2016 11 30

2016 11

9,626
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HKIA AlA
2017 11 30 AlIA
8,248 AlA 2016 11 30 404
443
AlA
AlA
2017 11 30 2016 11 30
8,248 6,699
100 1,862 1,659
443% 404%
2017 11 30
GMTN
2017 50 GMTN 60
GMTN 2017 60 GMTN
500 2047 4.47
2022 23 23 2017 11 30
GMTN 3,958
2017 27 AIA Aa3 Very Low Credit Risk Aa2 Very Low
Credit Risk
2017 11 30 AlA Aa2 Very Low
Credit Risk AA Very Strong
AA- Very Strong
2017 27 A3 Low Credit Risk A2 Low Credit Risk
2017 11 23 A+ High Credit Quality AA- Very High
Credit Quality
A2 Low Credit Risk
AA- Very High Credit Quality
A Strong
2018 74.38
2017 2016 17

100.00

AlA
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A. 2017 11 30

15
2017 11 30
)
AIA
30,000
22,
AlA 3 1J900 563,406,324 734
3,609
38,852
102,000
AlIA 1,102,000
68 3,149,388,840 1,349
80,634
867,942
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) AIA
AIA 47,000 505,000
58 298,724,000 463
50,453
543,071
AlA 158,000 1,698,000
28 631,329,661 2,269
66,400
715,000
AIA
41,000
446,000 548,199,068 541
4,055 43,647
AlA 400,748.320 106
178,000 1,918,000
120
AlA
0 2,233
185,000 1,991,340
31
148,000
1,589,000
AIA Bhd. ’ ’36 187,755,052 2,431
64,330
692,440
2018 12 31 15
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2017 11 30
O 12,074,541,456 )
2017 11 30
12,074,541,456
12,074,541,456
2017 11 30

2012 11 30 - 12,044,000,001 - 12,044
2013 11 30 - 12,044,000,001 - 12,044
2014 31 754,850¢ ) 12,044,754,860 1,017¢ 13,961
2014 11 30 362,365¢ 12,045,117,225 1 13,962
2015 31 2.179,991¢ 12,047,297,216 5 13,967
2015 11 30 1,052,103¢ 12,048,349,319 4 13,971
2016 31 1,099,384 * 12,049,448,703 2 13,973
2016 11 30 7,002,323 * 12,056,451,026 25 13,998
2017 31 17,599,066 ° 12,074,050,092 66 14,064
2017 11 30 491,364 ° 12,074,541,456 1 14,065

2014 11 30 1,117,224 754,859 2014 31

2014 31 1,917 a 2014 1,914

2014 b
2015 11 30 2,190,404 1,138,301 2015 31
2015 11 30 1,041,690
2015 31
2016 11 30 7,174,665 172,342 2016 31
2016 11 30 927,042
2016 31
2017 11 30 17,053,136 16,561,772 2017
2017 11 30 1,037,294
2017 31

88/642



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
oOoOooodn

2017 11 30
2017 11 30
29,112,234 27.35 61.55
2017 11 30 1,394,227
740,819
)
A. 2017 11 30
38
2017 11 30 1,365,886
1,037,294 1,037,294
2012 23 2017 11 30
3,006,026 0.02
A. 2017 11 30
38
2017 11 30
20,845 24,068,645 0.199
69 789,002 0.007
3 12,049,683,809 99.794
20,917 12,074,541,456 100.000
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2017 11 30 336
2017 11 30
L L
S S
P P
JP
0017 1,088,254,932(L) 9.01(L)
19,556,741(S) 0.16(S)
270 737,449,866(P) 6.11(P)
00071
984,372,860(L) 8.15(L)
333 55
19801
751,880,605(L) 6.23(L)
1909 709,200,742(P) 5.87(P)
19801
604,419,448(L) 5.01(L)
4,404,600(S) 0.04(S)
1209
» 4,623,648 1,556,000 491,200 6,687,175 1,082,000 10,685,300 1,725,066 5,889,375
- - 3,593,080 - - - - -
- - - 281,400 - - - 3,238,000
2017 11 30 12,074,541,456
JP
100,979,108 19,556,741
249,550,900 -
275,058 -
737,449,866 -
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AlA
2017 31 25.62 2016 21.90
2017 11 30 74.38 2016 63.75
2017 11 30
100.00 2016 85.65
RSU
2017 31 61,542,772
RSU
2018 2018 24
2018
2017 11 30
3,315 2016 2,620
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
11 30 11 30 11 30 11 30 11 30
40.45 45.65 58.20 54.15 69.15
541.22 610.80 778.72 724.53 925.23
29.30 34.65 38.85 36.85 42 .65
392.03 463.62 519.81 493.05 570.66
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
10 11
58.45 61.55 62.15 61.50 62.25 69.15
782.06 823.54 831.57 822.87 832.91 925.23
54.85 54.50 56.95 57.05 57.05 58.60
733.89 729.21 761.99 763.33 763.33 784.07
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2018 27
10 9.09
2017 11 30
1938 3,560,400
1955 25 2,073,425
1945 12 260,000
_ 1950 86,000
1956 50,000
- 1954 13 100,000
1964
1944 12 12
- 1959 16
1945
1960
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AlG
2000 2009
2005

2010

2005
Limited

24
1985

57

2015

1998

63
2010 10

2008

2010 12

2014

2017

AIA
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2010 27

2017 23
AIA

2012 2014
2003

2017

37
2008 12

Great Eastern Holdings Limited

80
2011
AlA
2009
1983 2000
2004
2001
2002
2017
2010
AlA
1989 2008
1980 AlA

Prudential plc
Prudential Corporation Asia

2014

Financial Services Professional Board

1979
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- 72 2010 28
2012 26 2007 2010 AlA
2013 10 2015 12
2011 2017
1985 1992 2007 2015
2002 2015
2015 2016
2007 2013 2008 2018
- 67 2010 28
2012
2017 2013
2016
2017 19 2017 18
2011 2000
2015 2003
2011 2001
2003
1997 2001
2008 2014 1997 2008
2012 2014
61 2011
2013
2017 12
2016 20
2011 20 2017 26
2012 12 2017 26 2013 12 16 2017 26
2008 2010
2003
1977
1987 2012 2015
2017
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2011

1972

1988

1998

63

2016

54

30

2014

Sdn Bhd
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1985
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2014
2014 11 2017 12
2013
2012
1988
1988
2014 24
Sdn Bhd

2017
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- 73 2014 18
2007
2017 12
Our Hong Kong Foundation
2011 2004 2010
2010
2014
2011 2014
2013 2018 12
1964
1966 1969
1966 1976 1992
1992 1996
1997 1999
2006
- 58 2015 14
2017 27
MAS 2017
MAS 27 MAS
MAS 2015 MAS MAS
2002 2010 1981
1982
2012
( «c
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72
AlA

2005 12
2013

2010
2009

57
2010 2016
2005

Monetary Board

2017
d’" Honneur 2016
2001
2004
Andersen Worldwide
Ernst & Young Global Limited
2001
ASEAN
2012

2016 15
2012 11 21
2007 10 2012
2011 11 2014
ABICO
2017
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2016 12

2014 31

MFC

2004

Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas

Land Bank of the Philippines
Chevalier dans I' Ordre national de la Légion
Order of Lakandula, Rank of Grand Cross (Bayani)

Chevalier de I’

SyCip, Gorres, Velayo & Co.

2002

2000

1983
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2018 27
11 8.33
55
AIA AlIA
2011
12
2016
52
2012 12 2015 AlIA 2012
ING Sdn. Bhd.
AlA AlIA 2011
2009 2010
2008 2009 2005 2008
2002 2004 ICICI 2001
50
AlIA AlA
2009 20
2009 AlA
AIA AIA AIA AXA
2003 1989

ChFC
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54
AIA
AIA 29
AlA 2009 AIA
AIA
AlA
FSA MAAA
CIA
54
AlA AlA
2011
Fasken Martineau
54
2014
17
56
AIA
2015
AIA RCM
CEO UK
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49
2016
AlA
10
40
2013
Capgemini
A
A 52 AlA
AlA
2017 AlA
Chubb Insurance
45
2010
AlA

Allianz Group
& Touche

AlIA

2013

)
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2016
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CEO
1996 2009
C00
AIA 10
Deloitte

A. 2017 11 30
39
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2017 11 30 SF0 XV
SFO 352
)
)
((®)
6,364,886(L)¢ 0.05
61,200(L)¢ 0.01 ¢
- 3,560,400(L)¢ 0.03
- 86,000()¢ 0.01
- 260,000(L)¢ 0.01 «
50,000(0)¢ 0.01
- 100,000()¢ 0.01
40,000(0)¢ 0.01
100,000()¢ 0.01 «
2017 11 30 12,074,541,456
2,073,425 3,204,564 RSU 1,084,384
2,513
61,200
260,000 - 100
100,000 -
2017 11 30 SE0 XV
SFO 352
2017
)
2017 11 30
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2017 Report of the Directors Corporate Governance Report
2017 Financial and Operating Review
2017 11 30
2017
Corporate Governance Excellence Awards The Chamber of Hong Kong

Listed Companies Centre for Corporate Governance
and Financial Policy AlA

Category 1 (Hang Seng Index Constituent Companies) Award
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2017 11 30

2017 11 30 2018 27
10 11

)
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90 11 10
3.13
2010 27 2017 22
AIA 2015 22
The Philippine American Life and General Insurance
PHILAM LIFE 3.13
2010 27
3.13
2017
2017
- ¢ 6/6 - 3/3 6/6 4/4 1
) 4/4 - - - 2/2 -
¢ 2/4 - - - 172 1
- 6/6 3/4 3/3 6/6 - 1
- 6/6 - 3/3 - 4/4 1
6/6 4/4 3/3 - 474 1
- 5/6 2/4 2/3 6/6 - 1
6/6 - 3/3 6/6 - 1
5/6 - 3/3 - 3/4 1
- 6/6 - 3/3 - 474 1
6/6 4/4 3/3 - - 1
€ 2/2 - - - - -
2017
2017 2017 11 30
2017 2017
2017 2017 11 30
2017 11 30
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2017

2016 12 2017 31

www.aia.com
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2017 11

)

O O 0O 0O 0O 0O 0 O ©O
O 0O 0O 0O 0O 0O 0 0o ©

2017 2017

2017 11 30
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10

2013

2017 11 30

€))

(b)

2017 11 30
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2017
2017 11 30
2017 11 30
20.0
2016 15.2
2017 2016
13.6 11.9
©) 4.7 0.7
0.9 1.4
0.8 1.2
20.0 15.2
2017 2017 11 30
2016
0.8 2016 0.8
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RMF

RMF

2017 11 30
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15
www.aia.com
2017
2017 2017 12 72
Grand Ballroom, 2/F, New World Millennium
Hong Kong Hotel, 72 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong 2017
2017
2016 11 30
2016 11 30 63.75
2017 10
10
2017 10
2.5 RSU
2018 2018 18 2018
27 2018
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AIA

35/F 35/F, AIA Central, No. 1 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
ir@aia.com

566 568

2.5
50
AlIA 35/F 35/F,
AIA Central, No. 1 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong ir@aia.com
615 616
www.aia.com

2018 27
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2017 11 30

2017

2017
2018
DJTINN
2018

2017
2017

2017

2018 27
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2017

2018
AIA
Dow Jones Insurance Titans 30

11 30 12 31

2018

2017
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www.aia.com

2017 11 30

2017 11 30

2017

2016 2014
2017
2016

AlIA

2018

2018 2018

2017 2018
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2017
2017
IFRS IFRS
60 10 30
2017
2017 2018
2017 11 30
15,442,697
A. 2017 11 30
39

RSU 2010 28 10

A. 2017 11 30

38
AlIA
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RSU

RSU

RSU

2017 11 30 16,003,902 RSU 2010
28 RSU RSU 2017 11 30 RSU 62,809,130

0.521 RSU
AlA Dow Jones
Insurance Titans 30 DJTINN
DJITINN
DJITINN
50

DJTINN

2017 2013 12 2016 11 30

2014 86.53 2014
2017
2015 2018 12 2015
2018
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2014 12 2017 11 30 2015

AIA DJTINN
HSI

DJTINNE UHST L LS L BAIAS =T - U 25w FOB T EnSmoREs)

1 Dec 2074 1 Jun 2015 1 Dec 2015 1 o 2014 1Dec 2014 12017 1 Dee 2017
—AlA  —DJTINN —HSI

2016 2017
2016 2017
2018 11 30 2019 11 30
2018
2018
AlA 2018
Dow Jones Insurance Titans 30 DJTINN
19
2018
2018

117/642



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)

OooooOodd
2017 11 30
016 12 2017 11 30 2017 11 30 2017 11 30
)(3) ( )
a
@)
12/3/2015 127372018 @ - - - 283,490 283,490
® 9/3/2016 97372019 ¥ - - - 320,071 320,071
10/3/2017 107372020 @ - - - 267,659 267,659
31/7/2017 17672020 ¥ - 213,164 - - 213,164
5/3/2014 57372017 ¥ 1,261,874 - (1,091,900) (169,974) -
@ 12/3/2015 127372018 @ 1,061,627 - - (88,468) 973,159
9/3/2016 97372019 @ 1,258,693 - - (524,455), 734,238
10/3/2017 107372020 ¥ - 1,095,330 - (821,497), 273,833
5/3/2014 57372017 @ 1,484,144 - (1,284,233) (199,911), -
14/4/2014 147472017 @ 203,016 - (175,670) (27,346) -
I 12/3/2015 127372018 @ 1,373,882 - - (89,786) 1,284,096
12/3/2015 127372017 © 32,800 - (32,800) - -
1/9/2015 ® 678,753 - (509, 065) - 169,688
9/3/2016 97372019 @ 1,752,530 - - (90,571) 1,661,968
1/8/2016 17872019 ¥ - - - 41,249 41,249
17/10/2016 17872019 P 101,217 - - (101,217), -
17/10/2016 ® 62,812 - (20,937) (41,875), -
10/3/2017 107372020 ¥ - 1,534,806 - (92,931) 1,441,875
31/7/2017 17672020 ¥ - 311,947 - _ 311,947
5/3/2014 57372017 @ 12,458,262 - (10,443,122) (2,015, 140) -
11/9/2014 117972017 @ 48,724 - (42,161) (6,563) -
11/9/2014 57372017 4,193 - (3.629) (564) -
12/3/2015 127372018 @ 11,498,537 - (14,226) (1,540,705) 9,943,606
12/3/2015 127372017 © 1,215,706 - (1,187,219) (28,487) -
1/9/2015 17972018 ¥ 20,316 - - - 20,316
9/3/2016 97372019 @ 14,508,327 - (12,600) (1,902,239) 12,593,488
9/3/2016 ® 156,876 - (156,876) - -
1/8/2016 97372019 @ 79,134 - (14,040) (65,004) -
1/8/2016 17872019 ¥ 75,870 - - (41,249) 34,621
17/10/2016 17872019 P - - - 101,217 101,217
17/10/2016 ® - - - 41,875 41,875
10/3/2017 107372020 @ - 12,820,136 (718) (958,810), 11,860,608
31/7/2017 17672020 ¥ - 28,519 - - 28,519
2017 2016 12
2017
2017
2017 2017 11 30
2014 11 30 2014 2014
14 2014 11 2015 11 30 2015 12 2015
2016 11 30 2016 2016 2016 10 17
2017 11 30 2017 10 2017 31
1FRS2
2017
12
2017 2018
2019
2017 2018 2019
2016 11 30 2017 11 30
10 2017 11 30
2017 11 30
11 RSU 2017 11 30
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2017 11 30 9,460,949
2010 28
2017 11 30 27,535,429
0.229
301,100,000 2018 27 2.5
12
0.25
10
2014 2017 2017 14
2017 2020
A. 2017 11 30
38
2015 2016 2017
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2017
11 30
2017 2017 2017
2016 1 30 11 30 11 30 2017
1 11 30
)
® )
( ) 15)
)
a9
5/3/2017 -
50| @ - - - 602,486 - 37.56 602,486 n/a
4/3/2024
® 12/3/2018 -
waos| @ - - - 541,602 - .73 541,602 n/a
11/3/2025
9/3/2019 -
s | - - - 851,026 - 41.90 851,026 n/a
8/3/2026
10/3/2020 -
w0 | Lo - - - 732,574 - 50.30 732,574 n/a
9/3/2027
1/6/2020 -
SUZET I— - 476,786 - - - 61.55 476,786 n/a
7/2027
17472014 -
veoo | o | 20T - - ~| 2.149,728) 27.35 - 54.50
31/5/2021
@ 1/4/2014 -
1/6/2011 o | 2,418,439 - - | (2,418,439 27.35 - 54.53
31757202149
15/3/2015 -
15/3/2012 | 2,152,263 - - ~| (.152,263) 28.40 - 54.50
14737202249
11/3/2016 -
11/3/2013 | 2,183,144 - - | .183,149) 34.35 - 54.50
10/3/2023¢?
5/3/2017 -
sz | | 219,27 | 2,160,272 - - 37.56 | 2,169,274 n/a
4/3/2024
12/3/2018 -
wos | e | 202808 - | ee,046) - 47.73| 1,859,500 n/a
11/3/2025
9/3/2019 -
vaos| e ST - | @,304,458) - 41.90 | 1,952,243 n/a
8/3/2026
10/3/2020 -
w07 | Lo | 2,007,884 _| (2,248,413) - 50.30 749,471 n/a
9/3/2027
17472014 -
verom | | 1121607 - - 45,467 | (694,328) 27.35 472,746 50.10
31/5/2021
™ 1/4/2014 -
veouf oo | 179457 - - 106,820 | (1,353, 652) 27.35 547,738 50.13
31/5/2021
15/3/2015 -
s | | 1,604,200 - - 45,978 | (1,131,170 28.40 519,012 51.90
14/3/20
11/3/2016 -
weo3| o | 2112908 - - 47,003 | (1,367,319) 34.35 792,680 51.10
10/3/2023
5/3/2017 -
sz | | 255138 | 2,551,368 | (510,002 (1,009,693) 37.56 941,583 50.20
4 4
14/4/2017 -
TZZEEY B 332,282 - 332,282 - - 39.45 332,282 n/a
13/4/2024
12/3/2018 -
12/3/2015 o | 2625207 - | (580,807 - 47.73| 2,035,310 n/a
11/3/2025
9/3/2019 -
a6 | | 465,768 - | (o22,070 - 41.90 | 3,737,608 n/a
8/3/2026
10/3/2020 -
w30 | Lo —| 4,200,707 | (o53.805) - 50.30 | 3,246,812 n/a
9/3/2027
1/6/2020 -
SUZ I— - 697,732 - - - 61.55 607,732 n/a
0/7/2027
17472014 -
N I 889,337 - - 45,467y (175,508) 27.35 668,366 48.55
31/5/2021
1/4/2014 -
VeI | L oy | 202,18 - | wos,820)| (1,284,219) 27.35 631,007 52.72
31/5/2021
15/3/2015 -
/3012 | o | 1,088,875 - - 45,978)  (257,722) 28.40 755,175 52.38
14/3/2022
11/3/2016 -
wsos |z | 1,068,302 - - @7,003)  (348,360) 34.35 672,849 52.91
1
5/3/2017 -
sz | | 10183 - 980,500 | (127,248)|  (420,460) 37.56 467,646 53.79
4/3/2024
12/3/2018 -
12/3/2015 . 862,621 - | (oa3,246) (17,139) .73 602,236 48.30
117372025
9/3/2019 -
e | | 141439 - | e - 41.90 | 1,036,584 n/a
8/3/2026
10/3/2020 -
10/3/2017 . ~| 1,087,840 - (68,213) - 50.30 | 1,019,627 n/a
97372027
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2011 25
117,000
10
2.5
A. 2017 11 30
38
2017 11 30 1,394,227 740,819
2017 11 30 2,638,196
0.022
2017
2017 2017
30
2016 11 30 2017 11 30
« )
2017 992,841 1,500,000 3,000,000 5,492,841
2017 1,608,000 2,412,000 6,834,000 10,854,000
2016 1,545,300 2,318,000 6,567,500 10,430,800
7,752,000
2017 2017
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2017
2017
RSU 2015 2016 2017
RSU
2017 11 30
2017 11 30
A. 2017 11 30
39
2017 11 30
2017 11 30
A. 2017 11 30
39
2017 11 30 52,744,104
A. 2017 11 30
39
2017 11 30 AIA
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5.6 0.3 5.9 0.5
588.00 31.50 619.50 52.50

6.3 3 7.7 5.9
661.50 315.00 808.50 619.50

11.9 3.3 13.6 6.4
1,249.50 346.50 1,428.00 672.00

2017 ( ) 2017 11 30

4.7 () 0.9

0.8
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HKICPA HKFRS
IFRS
38 59
131
2016 11 30 2017 11 30
23 103
23 25 193
134
2018 26

105.00
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@
11 30
2017 2016

26,986 | 2,833,530 21,757 | 2,284,485
1,497 (157,185) (1,313)]  (137,865)
25,489 | 2,676,345 20,444 | 2,146,620
12,622 | 1,325,310 7,555 793,275
219 22,995 197 20,685
38,330 | 4,024,650 28,196 | 2,960,580
26,108 | 2,741,340 19,340 | 2,030,700
1,267)|  (133,035) (1,119)|  (117,495)
24,841 | 2,608,305 18,221 | 1,913,205
3,455 362,775 2,735 287,175
1,969 206,745 1,752 183,960
183 19,215 149 15,645
567 59,535 462 48,510
9 31,015 | 3,256,575 23,319 | 2,448,495
7,315 768,075 4,877 512,085
(5) (525)
7,315 768,075 4,872 511,560
(128) (13,440) (62) (6,510)
7,187 754,635 4,810 505,050
10 (1,128)|  (118,440) (660) (69,300)
128 13,440 62 6,510
(1,000)|  (105,000) (598) (62,790)
6,187 649,635 4,212 442,260
AlA 6,120 642,600 4,164 437,220
67 7,035 48 5,040

11 | o0.51 54 | 0.35 37

11 | 0.51 54 | 0.35 37
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)
11 30
2017 2016
6,187 649,635 4,212 442,260
(
2017 297 (31,185 )
2016 (840 » 1,197 125,685 869 91,245
C )
(
2017 19 (1,995 )
2016 (630 ) (161) (16,905) 2 210
1,028 107,940 (412) (43,260)
(END) (1,155) 1 105
¢ %) (2,520) 43 4,515
2,029 213,045 503 52,815
(
2017 (14) ((1,470) )
2016 (66) ((6,930) » 78 8,190 309 32,445
(
2017
2016 (105 ) 18 1,890 (1) (2,205)
96 10,080 288 30,240
2,125 223,125 791 83,055
8,312 872,760 5,003 525,315
AIA 8,250 866,250 4,968 521,640
62 6,510 35 3,675
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11 30
2017 2016
13 1,864 195,720 1,743 183,015
14 642 67,410 650 68,250
15 1,213 127,365 1,132 118,860
16 4,365 458,325 3,910 410,550
17 2,481 260,505 2,046 214,830
18 21,847 2,293,935 18,898 1,984,290
19,21
7,973 837,165 7,062 741,510
105,466 11,073,930 90,092 9,459,660
25,702 2,698,710 23,526 2,470,230
36,716 3,855,180 30,211 3,172,155
20 363 38,115 107 11,235
176,220 18,503,100 150,998 15,854,790
10 9 945 7 735
131 13,755 59 6,195
22 4,630 486,150 3,989 418,845
24 2,289 240,345 1,642 172,410
215,691 22,647,555 185,074 19,432,770
25 148,897 15,634,185 128,186 13,459,530
26 8,082 848,610 7,028 737,940
28 3,958 415,590 3,460 363,300
29 1,883 197,715 1,984 208,320
20 361 37,905 644 67,620
31 234 24,570 253 26,565
10 3,595 377,475 3,276 343,980
421 44,205 210 22,050
32 5,888 618,240 4,723 495,915
173,319 18,198,495 149,764 15,725,220
33 14,065 1,476,825 13,998 1,469,790
33 (297) (31,185), (351) (36,855)
33 (11,948) (1,254,540) (11,954) (1,255,170)
34,087 3,579,135 29,334 3,080,070
33 6,336 665,280 5,352 561,960
33 (751) (78,855), (1,812) (190, 260)
33 527 55,335 449 47,145
(25) (2,625), (32) (3,360)
6,087 639,135 3,057 415,485
AIA 41,994 4,409,370 34,984 3,673,320
34 378 39,690 326 34,230
42,372 4,449,060 35,310 3,707,550
215,691 22,647,555 185,074 19,432,770

2018 27
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*

2016 12 13,008 | (35| (a1,954) 20,334 | 5,352 (1,812) 449 32) 326 | 35,310
6,120 67 6,187

1,202 ) 1,197

(161) (161)

1,028 1,028
(11) (11)

( 7) 33 @4

78 78

18 18

6,120 984 1,061 78 7 62 8,312
12 (1,376) as|  (@,390)

67 67

79 79
(10) (10)
64 (64)

(©)] 9
2017 11 30 14,065 @o7)|  (11,948)] 34,087 | 6,336 (751) 527 (25) 378 | 42,372
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2015 12 13,971 @20 @1,978) 26,204 [ 4,414 (1,389) 140 12) 303 | 31,422
259 259
4,164 48 4,212
874 ) 869

(404) ®) (412)

62 (19) 43

50 50

(21) (21)

¢ ) 4,164 938 (423) 309 (20) 35 5,003

12 (1,124) 12)| (1,136)

27 27

86 86
(86) (86)
56 (56)

6) (6)
2016 11 30 13,998 (351)]  (11,954)| 29,334 | 5,352 (1,812) 449 (32) 326 [ 35,310
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2016 12 1,469,790 | (36,855)| (1,255,170)[3,080,070 | 561,960 | (190,260)| 47,145 | (3,360)| 34,230 |3,707,550

642,600 7,035 | 649,635

( 126,210 (525)| 125,685

(16,905), (16,905),

107,940 107,940
(1,155), (1,155),

( (5,985)| 3,465 (2,520)

8,190 8,190

1,890 1,890

642,600 | 103,320 | 111,405 | 8,190 735 | 6,510 | 872,760
12 (144,480) @,470)| (145,950)

7,035 7,035

420 420
8,295 8,295
(1,050) (1,050)

6,720 (6,720)|
(945) 945

2017 1130 1,476,825 | (31,185)| (1,254,540)[3,579,135 | 665,280 | (78,855)| 55,335 | (2,625) 39,690 [4,449,060
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2015 12 1,466,955 | (33,705)| (1,257,690)|2,760,870 | 463,470 | (145,845)| 14,700 | (1,260)] 31,815 |3,299,310

27,195 27,195
437,220 5,040 | 442,260

( 91,770 (525)| 91,245

210 210

(42,420) (840)| (43,260)
105 105

6,510 | (1,995) 4,515

5,250 5,250

(2,205), (2,205),

¢ ) 437,220 | 98,400 | (44,415)| 32,445 | (2,100 3,675| 525,315

12 (118,020) (1,260)| (119,280)

2,835 2,835

9,030 9,030
(9,030) (9,030)

5,880 (5,880)
(630) (630)

2016 11 30 1,469,790 | (36,855)| (1,255,170)|3,080,070 | 561,960 [ (190,260) 47,145 | (3,360)| 34,230 [3,707,550
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11 30
2017 2016

7,315 768,075 4,872 511,560

(18,413) (1,933,365)|  (13,438) (1,410,990)

14,312 | 1,502,760 11,794 | 1,238,370

29 19  (22,995) (1,019)|  (106,995)

(7.242)|  (760,410) (6,164)|  (647,220)

5,627 590,835 5,261 552,405

703 73,815 645 67,725

(50) (5,250) (39) (4,095)

G82)|  (61,110) (548) (57,540)

1,451 152,355 1,364 143,220

13 (151)|  (15,855) (64) (6.,720)

14 (6) (630) 2 210
15 20 2,100

15,16 @os)|  (10,920) (181) (19,005)

(310) (32,550)

Q)| (25,305) (553) (58,065)

28 497 52,185 733 76,965

@136)|  (14,280) (108) (11,340)

28 (150) (15,750)

28 @ (105) (323) (33,915)
4 420

(1,390)|  (145,950) (1,136)|  (119,280)

(10) (1,050) (86) (9,030)

67 7,035 27 2,835

(969)|  (101,745) (1,043)  (109,515)

241 25,305 (232) (24,360)

1,482 155,610 1,750 183,750

64 6,720 (36) (3,780)

1,787 187,635 1,482 155,610
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11 30
2017 2016
2,289 240,345 1,642 172,410
G02)|  (52,710) (160)]  (16,800)
1,787 187,635 1,482 155,610
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7.79 7.76
34.15 35.30
1.39 1.38
4.33 4.13
6.78 6.60
2017 11 30 2016 11 30
7.81 7.76
32.62 35.61
1.35 1.43
4.09 4.47
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4,682 4,013
(
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2017 (117) 1,764 97
2016 () )
(
2017 40 (259) 102
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9,434 6,873
3,517 3,327
2,421 2,276
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5,860 5,478
26,147 22,133
2,586 2,065
477 439
277 261
286 276
928 585
925 872
5,479 4,498
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2,417 1,761

194 163

1,433 1,443

187 167

150 194

622 619

5,003 4,347

6,606 4,632

3,021 2,872

2,001 1,871

1,518 1,502

2,149 1,779

4,873 4,544

20,168 17,200

ANP
ANP

2,849 2,294

518 471

433 427

348 341

968 621

976 969

6,092 5,123
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2017 11 30
ANP 2,849 518 433 348 968 976 6,092
TWPI 9,43 3,517 2,421 1,83 3,002 5,860 26,147
( ) 10,828 3,532 2,837 1,610 3,006 3,888 7 25,708
2,148 1,189 1,083 547 734 1,057 338 7,09
12,976 4,721 3,920 2,157 3,740 4,945 345 32,804
9,454 2,659 2,822 1,439 2,406 2,603 4 21,387
1,213 739 347 210 181 752 1 3,443
407 199 181 164 278 552 188 1,969
117 49 27 11 28 42 126 400
11,191 3,646 3,377 1,824 2,893 3,949 319 27,199
1,785 1,075 543 333 847 996 26 5,605
@37 (210) 39) (59) (208) 17) (53) (923)
1,648 865 504 274 639 779 Q@7 4,682
AlA 1,636 865 504 212 639 758 @n 4,647
12 2 21 35
4.3 5.7 7.5 9.0 9.0 9.4 7.5
17.5 24.6 20.8 15.0 20.7 13.3 17.9
23.6 17.5 18.5 19.1 20.4 12.8 14.2
29 6 16 2 104 157
37 10 16 17 17 40 12 149
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2017 11 30
65,485 31,319 35,922 14,347 19,915 37,145 11,558 215,601
54,023 24,358 32,501 12,806 16,789 29,172 3,670 173,319
11,462 6,961 3,421 1,541 3,126 7,973 7,888 42,372
7,909 5,510 2,961 1,524 3,391 6,430 7,933 35,658
« ) (952) (467) (238) 192) (207) (50) 866  (1,240)
1 6 635 642
( )
@
2017 11 30
25,708 25,708
7,096 2,314 3,212 12,622
32,804 2,314 3,212 38,330
21,387 433 3,021 24,841
5,812 362 6,174
27,199 433 3,383 31,015
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42
2016 2015
11 30 11 30
NCI NCI
) )
(@) (@)
AIA
o },151,049,861 100 100
5,962,084,000 )
AlA 3,000,000 100 100
( 1.20 )
AIA 112,068,300 100 100
193,872,800 )
AlA
19,500,000 100 100
( )
767,438,174
AIA Bhd. (6 438, 100 100
)
AlA %,374,000,001 100 100
)
477,711,032
PT. AIA ¢ 1,000 100 100
199,560,671
( 10 100 100
(PHILAM )
439,329
AIA( )
1,264,300,000,000 100 100
AIA
511,921,836 97.16 2.84 97.16 2.84
100 90 10 90 10
( )
BPI-Phi lam 749,993,979
( , 51 49 51 49
6,000
ATA 250,000 100 100
( )
@
@
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2016 25 AlA
26 49

44
2017 24 63.75 (2015 51.00
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( )
2016 11 30 2015 11 30
15,745 15,742
45
1,544 736
2,903 2,945
44 13
4 358
20,240 19,839
3,777 3,070
70 201
3,847 3,271
13,998 13,971
(351) (321)
185 155
2,620 2,785
(59) 22)
16,393 16,568
20,240 19,839
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2015 12

2016 11 30

2014 12

2015 11 30
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( )
13,971 (321) 155 2,785 (22) 16,568
959 959
@ @
(10) (10)
(26) (26)
(1,124) (1,124)
27 27
86 86
(86) (86)
56 (56)
13,998 (351) 185 2,620 (59) 16,393
( )
13,962 (286) 139 2,102 4 15,921
1,497 1,497
5 5
(31) @D
(814) (814)
9 9
79 79
(98) (98)
63 (63)
13,971 (321) 155 2,785 (22) 16,568
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2015
48
@
( )
2015 11 30 IAS 40 2015 11 30
( ) ( )
19,781 19,781
(1,165) (1,165)
18,616 18,616
4,462 73 4,535
196 196
23,274 73 23,347
16,134 2 16,136
(942) (942)
15,192 2 15,194
2,468 2,468
1,658 (20) 1,638
152 152
454 20 (26) 448
19,924 24) 19,900
3,350 97 3,447
3,350 97 3,447
(33) (33)
3,317 97 3,414
(636) (19) (655)
33 33
(603) (19) (622)
2,714 78 2,792
AlA 2,691 74 2,765
23 4 27
0.22 0.01 0.23
0.22 0.01 0.23
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()
)
2014 12 IAS 40 2014 12
( ) ( )
2,152 2,152
131 131
541 57 598
1,384 264 1,991 3,639
1,657 1,657
16,593 16,593
7,654 7,654
77,744 77,744
24,319 24,319
28,827 28,827
265 265
138,809 138,809
10 10
54 54
3,753 (264) 22 3,511
1,835 1,835
166,919 2,070 168,989
113,097 105 113,202
7,937 7,937
2,934 2,934
3,753 3,753
211 211
213 213
3,079 143 3,222
198 198
4,542 4,542
135,964 248 136,212
13,962 13,962
(286) (286)
(11,994) (11,994)
22,831 1,512 24,343
6,076 6,076
227 7 234
142 142
(10) (10)
6,293 149 6,442
AlA 30,806 1,661 32,467
149 161 310
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( )
2015 11 30 IAS 40 2015 11 30
( ) ( )
1,834 1,834
137 137
500 79 579
1,386 244 2,029 3,659
1,652 1,652
17,092 17,092
7,211 7,211
80,940 80,940
23,700 23,700
27,159 27,159
73 73
139,083 139,083
9 9
45 45
3,892 (244) 28 3,676
1,992 1,992
167,622 2,136 169,758
115,870 99 115,969
7,116 7,116
3,195 3,195
3,085 3,085
695 695
245 245
2,954 155 3,109
265 265
4,657 4,657
138,082 254 138,336
13,971 13,971
(321) (321)
(11,978) (11,978)
24,708 1,586 26,294
4,414 4,414
(1,381) () (1,389)
140 140
(12) (12)
3,021 132 3,153
AIA 29,401 1,718 31,119
139 164 303
29,540 1,882 31,422
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)
2015
(
2015 11 30 2015 11 30
( )) ( )
3,884 436 4,320
(655) (80) (735)
3,229 356 3,585
3,209 347 3,556
20 9 29
0.27 0.03 0.30
0.27 0.03 0.30

392/642

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
oOoOooodn

FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended Waat mrded
b 30 My

USim Hicrims 17 18
REVENUE
Promiums and {ea income 26,986 21,757
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 11.497) {1.313)
Net premiums and fee income 25,489 20,444
[rvestment retum (] 12,622 oD
Other operating revenue ] 219 197
Tatal revenus 38,330 28,195
EXPENSES
Insurance and investment contract benefits 26,108 19,340
Irsurance and investmant contract benefits ceded {1,2567) (1,119}
Net insurance and investment contract banefits 24,841 18,321
Commission and other acouisition expenses 3455 2735
Operating expenses 1.969 1,752
Finance costs 183 149
Other sspenses 567 52
Total expenses L] 31,015 23319
Profit bofore share of losses from associatos and joint venture 7318 HETT
share of losses rom associates and joint venture = ()
Profit bolore tax 7,315 4572
Incame tax expense attribitable to policyholders’ raturng (128) {62}
Profit before tax attributable 1o sharcholders’ profits 7,187 4810
Tax expensa 10 {1.128) (6600
Tax atiributable to policyholders’ returns 128 62
Tax expense attriutable 1o shareholders’ profits {1.000) (598)
Nat profit 6,187 4212
Net profit attributable fo;

Shareholders of ALA Group Limited 6,120 LR[00

Hen-controlling interosts &7 48
EARNINGS PER SHARE (USE)
Basic 11 0.51 0.35
Dilurtesd " 0.51 035

2B 1AlA GROUP LIMITER
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FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

z
Year erded Your anded 2
30 Mowember 30 Movembser [
USSm AT 018 E
Het profit 6,187 4212
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that may be reclassified subsequently 1o profit or loss

Fair value gains on available for sale financial assots X

{net of tax of: 2017- US5297m; 2014 USE8m) 1.197 B&69 =
Fair value (gaire)/losses on svailable for sple financial assets tranaferred to income an E

dizposal and impairment (net of tax of: 2017 USE19m: 2016 USSEam) (181} 2 E
Foreign currency transiation adjustrments 1.028 (412} E
Cash flow hedges (1) 1 s
Share of other comprehansive (expensedfincoma from associates and joint venture (24) 43 2
Subtotal 2,029 503 H
ltams that will not be reclassified subseguently to profit or loss ;

Revaluation galms on property hald lor own wuse

{net of tax of: 2017 USS(14)m; 2016; USSE{66Im) 8 309
Effect of remeasurement of net lisbility of defined benefit schemes
(rot of tax of: 2017 nil; 2016 USS1m) 18 (21)
Subtotal b 248
Total ather comprehensive income 2125 791 i
Total comprehensive income 8312 5,003 §
Total comprehensive Income attributable o0 E
Sharchalders of AlA Group Limited 8,250 4,968 E
Non-controlling interests &2 35 E
o
[F)

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN
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FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R As at
30 Hewember 30 Howember
Usgm Hctns 17 218
ASSETS
Intangible assets 13 1.864 1,743
Ivestments in associates and joint venture 14 642 &50
Property, plant and equipment 16 1,213 1,132
Iiwestment property s 4,365 3910
Reinsurance assets 17 24681 2 04b
Delerred acquisition and origination costs 18 21,847 18,698
Financial investmants: [ -3
Loans and depogits 7973 7.062
fwvailable for sale
Detst securities 105,466 90,092
At fair value through profit or less
Debt securities 25,702 23526
Equity securitias 36,716 J0.21
Derivative financial instrumens Fal 363 107
176,220 160,998
Deferred tak assets 10 9 7
Currenl tax recoweralde 11 59
Dther assets 21 4,630 315989
Cash and cash equivalonts T4 2,289 1,642
Total assets 2156 185074
LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities ki 148,897 128,186
[rvestment contract amslities i 808z 7.028
Borrowings 28 3,958 3,460
Dbligations under repurchase agreements L 1,883 1984
Darivative (nancisd instrimaents 0 38 Bl
Prowigiong n 234 253
Deterred tax Liabiities 10 3,595 3176
Current tax llablities 421 210
Dther liabilities a2 5.88E 4723
Tatal liabilities 173,319 149 b4

130 1AlA GROUP LIMITEDR
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COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENT QF FINANCIAL POSITION

z
A at A :
30 Mowember 30 Hiovembser &
UE§m Histan 087 014 z
EQUITY
Share capital 1 14,065 13,998
Emplovee share-based trusts 33 (297) (3513
(et reserves 1n {11.948) (11,954) X
Retained sarnings 34,087 29,334 =
Fair valus reserve 33 6,336 5352 E
Forelan currency trenalation resarve 33 {751} (1.812) 5
Property revaluation rasarva k| 527 a49 E
Others _(25) (32) 2
Amounts reflected in other comprehensive ncome 6,087 3,957 E
Total equity mitrbutable fo; E
Sharsholders of AW Group Limited 41,5994 34,984 E
Mon-controlling interests k1 a8 326
Total oquity 42,372 35310
Total liabilities and equity 215.691 185,074
Approved and suthorised for issue by the Boand of Directors on 27 Febraary 2018 i
3
=
>
2
,.--3,1_3 A —— O W -
z
g
Mg Keng Hooi Edmund Sze-Wing Tse
Director Director

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Crhar comgeiehensive incoms

Emplape Fareign
whare- Fali curmérsy  Proparty Mon-
Shate besed Oihwst  Retalned walue bransladl corinoling Total
USEm Hute capital trusts imseves S@iMiNgs  reserve feserEe  resoive Others  nipresis equly

Balance &l

1 Decambar 2016 13,998 (351) (11,954) 29334 5352 (1.813) L] (3n 32¢ 35310
Mat prodit - - - 6,120 - - - - a7 5187
Fair walus gains/[lceses]

of avadlable for sns

linancial assely =3 - - = 1,202 = - = 5 1197
Falr valus gains on

wynilubile lor sale

fimarcinl assets

translermed to

Incoma on dispesal - - - - {1&1) - - -
Forelgn curnancy

translation ad|ustments - - - - - 1,028 - - . 1028
Caah fbow hedges - = - = - - = (11} - g1}
Sharw of other

comprehenslve

{oxporce)fincoma

from associates and

|eint variture - - - - (5Mm 13 - - - [2a)
Revaluation galns on

preparty hald far

T = - = = = = T8 = = 7B
Ettect of remeasursmand

of net llability of

dedimed benelil

schames - = - - - - = 18 - 18

Total comprehensive
income for the year = - - &Am B4 1,061 78 7 &2 M2

DHvidends {1.374) - - = o (14)  (1.3900
‘Shares lssued under

share cption schame

and agancy share

PurEnase plan &7 - - - - - - - - 67
Capdlal contributions

trom nan-controlling

Interagts - & g - = - x p 4 4
‘Share-besed

Compansation - - 7 - - - = - - ]
Purchase of shanes

hald by employes

share-biased trusts
Transier al vesied

sharos from amployes

ahnra-based trusts - B (174 - - = - - ~ =
Dthars = = 9 g - - - - - -

Balance at
30 Navember 2017 14,065 (297) (11,948) 34,087 £336 (751) B27 (25} e 42372

(161}

(1o - - - - - - - (e

132 | AlA BROUF LIMITER
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COMSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

sl ottt s ooles

BVERVIEW

whain- Fali curiedicy  Proparly Moi-
Sharn bases Oihe: B wahow 1 hati cuitrolling Tatal
UEEm Nole  capital trusls fewsyes  onimirgs  feserve meserwe feseive  Others  indoiesis L

Halance al

1 December 2015 13571 (327 (11,578 26294 6414 (1,389 140 {12} 303 eI
Opening adjusimants

on revaluation gains

on praperty held for

A s - - - - - - 75Q = = 289
Het profit - - - b4 - - - - i 4012
Falr yaluw gainamiosses)

un ovailatle for sale

financial asaets - - - - BT4 - - - {5} BL
Falr value losses on

avillable for sale

linancial assats

transderred to income

on diapesal and

impairment " = = = 2 = = = = 5
Foralgn curmency

transtation adjustments - - - - - (404) - ~ B &1
Caah flow hedgna - = = = - = = 1 2 i
Share of other

cormprahensive

Incam e/ expansa)

fram nssockales and

leirt ventura - - - - 52 (8 L]] - - - &y
Revaluation gains on

property held for own

i - - - - - - 50 - - ED
Elfect of iemeasuremedit

of net tability of

dalined banal |

sehamns - = = = = =
Tetal camprahansive

Ircemal{axpanse) for

the year - - = &lb& 934 (623} 109 {20y 35 5003
Dividends 12 - - = {1,124) - - - - (133 (1,124)
Shaores laswed under

share option schemo

and agency shars

purchase plan T - - =t = = - = 5 27
Share-hasad

compansation - - B - - - = = — B
Purchase of shares

heeld by emplayen

shane-based Fusis
Tranafer of yested

shares lrom employes

share-based trusts - 56 {54) - - - - - o =
Othes - - {81 - - - - - - {143

Balance at
30 November 2016 13998 (3510 {11,954) 29334 B3] (1B1I 445 {32} e ]

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

{21y - 21}

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .
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FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Yiar ended Yoar anded
0] 30 v
Usgm Hctns 17 218
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 7315 4872
Adjustments for:
Financial imestmeants (18.413) (13,438)
Insurance and investment contract liabdlities 14,312 11,794
Diligations under repurchase agreemants ri] {219) (1.019)
Other non-cash operating items, including investment income
and the effect of exchange rate changes on certain oporating items (7.242) (6, 164)
Dperating cagh items:
Interest recaived 5417 5341
Dividends recened 703 a5
Interast paid (50} (39)
Tan paid (582) (548)
et cash provided by operating activities 1,451 1,364
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for intangpible assets 13 (151) (B4)
[Contribution ta)/distribution or dividend from associates and jolnt vanium: 4 (&) 2
Proceeds for sale of property, plant and eguipment 15 20 -
Payments for investment property and property, plant and equipment 15 18 (104) {181}
Paymants for incraase in interest of an associate = (3109
Naot cash used in investing activitios {241) (853)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
I=suance of medium-1esm noles 1 497 133
Imerast paid an modium-torm notos (138) (108}
Repayment of madium-term notes rl | - {150)
Nt repaymant of other borrowings 8 {1 (323}
Capital contributions from non-controlling interests [ -
Divedends paid during the year {1,390) {1.136)
Purchaze of sharas held by amployee share-basad trusts (10 (B6)
Shares issued under shane aption scheme and agency share purchase plan 67 27
Net cash used in financing activities (96%9) 1.043)
Net incréase/{decrease) in cash and cosh equivabents 261 [232)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 1.482 1,750
Etfect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash oguiealonts &4 {36}
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 1,787 1,482

134 1AlA GROUP LIMITER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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FIHAMCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
AlA Growp Limited (1he “Company”) was established az & company with limitad liability incorporated in Hong Kong on 24
August 2009. The address of Its registered office s 35/F, AlA Central. No. 1 Connaught Road Cantral, Hong Hong.

AlA Group Limited iz listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited under the stock code =1299°
‘with American Depositary Receipts (Level 1) being traded on the over-the-counter market (tickar symbal; "AAGIY),

AlA Group Limited and ita subsidisnes (collectively "AIA" or the "Group™) is & lile insurance based financial services provider
operating In 18 markets throughout the Asia-Pacific region. The Group's principal activity i€ the writing of life insurance
business, providing life insurance, accident and health insurance and savings plans throughout Asia, and distributing
related investment and other financial services products to its custema s,

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basgis of proparation and statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statomants have bean prapared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HHFRS), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinence. |FRS is substantially conststent with HEFRS and the accounting policy selectsons that the Group has made in
preparing these consolidated financial statements are such that the Group is able to comply with boith HKFRS and IFRS
References to IFRS, International Accownting S2andands (1AS) and Interpretations developed by the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (IFRS IC) in these consolidated financial statemants should be read as referring to the equivalent HKFRS, Heng
Kong Accounting Standards (HIKAS) and Hong Kemsg (IFRIC) Interpretations  (HK(IFRIC) = [nt) as-the case may be.
Accordingly, there are not any differences of accourting practice between HEFRS and IFRS alfecting these consolidated
financial statements.

Thia consolidated financial statements hawe been approved for issue by the Baard of Directors on 27 February 2018

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared wsing the historical cost corwention, as modified by the
revaluation of available for sale fnancisl assets. corvain financial assers and liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or nss. derivative financial instrumenis. property held for own use and invesiment properties, all of which are carried
at fair value,

Iterns included in the consalidated finangial statemants of each of the Group's entities ane measured in the curmency of the
primary economic environment in which that entity operates {the functional currency ). The Company’s functional currency
and ihe presentation curency of the Company end the Group is the U5 dollar. The consolidated financial statements are
presentad in millions of US dollars (US$m) unless otharwise statad

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except as described as follows.

136 1 A4 GROUP LIMITER
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES icoetinued)

2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance icemtinued)

{a) The following relevant new amendments to standands have bean adopted for the first time for the finangial year anded
30 Nevember 201 F end have no material impact to the Groupe

= Amendmants to IAS 1, Disclosure Initkatve;

+ Amendments to LAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of Acceptatile Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation;

+  Amendments to 1AS 19, Employes Benefits. Discount rate; reglonal market (ssue;

= Amendmenis to LAS 27, Equity Methad in Separate Financial Statements;

= Amendments 10 LAS 34, Inerim Financial Reparting, Disclesure of Infarmation ‘slsewhere in the interim financial

report’;

BVERVIEW

* Amandments to IFRS 5 Non-current Assels Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Changas in mathods of
disposal;

= Amendments 1o IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosure, Serviging Contracts and Applicability of the Amandments
12 IFRS 7 1o Condensid Intersm Finamcial Statements; and

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

+  Amendments to IFRS 11, Acguisitions of Interests in Joint Operations.

(b} The following relevant new standard, interpratation and amendments 1o standards have been issued but are not
effective far the financial year ended 30 November 3017 and have not been early adapted (the financial years for
which this sdoption i$ reguired for the Grobp afe statid in parentheses). The Group has assessed the full impact of these
new standands on is financial position and mesults of operations and they are not expected to have a material impact
onthe fingncial position or results of operations of the Growp but may requine additional disclosures:

s |FRIC 23, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration [2019);

*  |FRIC 23, Uncertajnty Ower Income Tae Treatment (2019);

+  Amandments to LAS 7, Dieelosure initiative (A0 8]

+ Amandments to LAS 12, Recognition of Datarred Tax Assoets for Unrealised Losses (201 8);

*  Amendments to IAS 12, Income Tax Consequences of Payments an Instruments Classified &5 Equity (2019);
*  Amendmenis to 1AS 23, Borrowing Costs Eligible for Capitalisation (2019);

+  Amandmants to LAS 28 Measuring an Azsociate or Jaint Ventung at Faic Value (2019);

*  Amendments to IAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (2019,

+  Amendments to LAS a0, Translers of Investmen Property (2019);

*  |FRS 15 Revenus from Contracts with Customirs and amend mens theresio (2009);

*  Amandmants to IFRS 2. Clessification and Messurement of Share-based Payment Trangactions (3019

=  Amendments to IFRS 3, Business Combinations and IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements — Remeasurement of Previously
Hald Iiterests {2019); and

* Amendments to IFRS 12, Clarfication of the Scope of the Standard {2018).

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS . CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continund)

‘2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance (coninued)

{c) Tha following relevant new standards and requirements have been issued but are not effective for the financial vear
ended 30 Movember 2017 and have not been early adoped:

= IFR3 9, Financaal Instruments, addresses the classification, measurament and recognition of financial assets and
financial liabdlities. IFRS % requires financial assets to be classified into separate measurement categories: those
measured &5 a1 falr value with changes either recognisad [ prodit or loss or in othes com prehendive income and
those measured at amortised cost. The determination is made at mitial recognition depending on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial instruments and the contraciual cash flow characteristics of the
Instrumant. In addition, a revised expected cradit losses model will replace the incurred loss impairment maodel in
A5 39 The Group is yet 1o Tully assess the impact of the standand on its financial position and resulls of operations.

For financial liabitities. the standard retains most of the A5 39 requéiremants. The main change is that. in cases
whare the fair value option is taken for financial isbilities. part of the fair value change due to an entity’'s own crodit
risk i3 rgcorded in other comprehensive income rather than profit or loss, unless this creates an accounting
mismatch, In addition, the new standand revises the hedge accounting mode] to more closaly align with the entity's
rigk managament strategles. The IASE made further changes to two areas of IFRS 9. Financial assats containing
prapayment featunes with negative compensation can be measured at amoriised cost or 81 fair value through other
comprehensive income il the cagh flow represants solsly payments of principal and interest. Non-subsianial
migdifications or exchange of financial liabilities that do not result in derecognition will be required to be recognised
im profit or loss. The Group is vet to ully essess the impact of the abwve new requirements and chenges, but the
impact i% nat expected 1o be material,

The standard i mandatonly affectiva for financial pericds boginning on or aiter 1 fancary 2018 (except for
prepayment fealuras with negative compensation and modifications or exchange of fimancial liabilites tha: do not
result in derecognition which will become effective for financial periods Beginning on or alter 1 January 2019), but
the Group qualifies for a temporary exemption as explained below.

= 0On 12 September 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS & Insurance Contracts. Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instrumants with IFRS 4, which provides twa alternative measures to sddress the differant effective dates of IFRS
9 and IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts. These measuras include a temporary eption for companies whose activities are
pradominantly connected with insurance to defer the effective date ol IFRS 9 until the earlier of the effective date
of IFRS 17 and the financial reparting perinds beginning on or after 1 January 200217, as well as an sppmach that
allows an antity to remave from profit or loss tha effects of certain scoounting mismatches that may cccur bafors
IFRS 17 iz applied. Based on the amendments to IFRS 4 the Group iz eligible for end will edect to apply the temporary
option to defer the effective date of IFRS 9 in order to implement the changes in parallel with IFRS 17, Insurance
Contracis.

= IFRS 17, Insurance Caniracts {previcusly IFRS & Phase |1} will replace the current IFRS &, Insurance Contracts. [FRS
17 includes some fundamental differences to current accounting in both Insurance contract measurement and
profit recognition. The ganeral model & basad on a discounted cash flow model with a risk adjustment and deferral
of uneamead profits. A separate approach applies to insurance contracts that are linked o returns on underlying
iterns’ and meeat cartain requirements. Additionally, IFRS 17 megquires mome granular infermation and 8 naw
prasentation format for the stmement of comprehensive incoma a5 well 83 extensive disclosures. On 12 December
2017, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (*HRICPA®) approved the issuance of HKFRS 17,
Insurance Contracts. The Group 15 In the midst of conducting & detalled assessment of the new standards. The
standards are mandatorily effective for financial periods beginning on or aftar 1 January 2021,
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cocninued)

2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance icemtinued)

{c} The fallowing relevant new standards and requirements have been Issuad but are not effective for the financial year
ended 30 November 2017 and have not bean early adopted: feonteams)

= |FRS 16, Leases, sats out the principles for the recognition; measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases.
The standard introduces a single lessee m_:,munllng model and requires a lessee to recognise assats and liabilites
far all leases with & 1erm of more than 12 months. unless the underlying assat is of low valee A lesses i regulred
o recognise & right-of-use assal represanting its right 1o usa the underlying teased assel and A lease Lability
represanting {is obligation 1o make leaze paymems. [FRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessar accounting
reguirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues 1o classify its laases as oparating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently. The Group is vet 1o assess the full impact of the standard on
its financial position and results of operations. The standard ks mandatorily effective for financial periods beginning
on of alter 1 lanuary 3019

BVERVIEW

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group's consolidated linancial statements ane set out
below. These policies have been applied consistently in all periods presentad.

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

2.2 Operating profit

The long-tarm nature of much of the Group's operations means that, for management’s decision-making and internal
porformance managemant purposes, the Group evaluates its results and s operating segments using a linancial
performance measure referned Lo as “operating profit™. Dperating profit includes among others the expected long-term
investment returns for investments in equities and real estate based on the assumptions applied by the Group in the
Supplemantary Embedded Value Inlormation The Group delings aparating poalit after thx as nit arofil sxcliding the
following non-oparating items:

»  shor-term fluctuaticns betwean expected and actual investment returns related o equities and resl astate;
*  giher investment retum (ncluding short=term fluctuations due to market factors), and

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

« other significant items that management considers to be non-aperating income and axpenses.

The Group considers that the presentation of operating profit enhances the understanding and comparability of its
performance and that of its operating segments. The Group considers that trends can be more clearly identified without
tha fluctuating effects of thesa non-oparating items, many of which ara largely dapendent on market factors.

Operating profit is provided as additiona! information to assist in the compariscn of business trends in different reporting
periods on a consistent basis and enhance overall understanding of financial perfermance.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN

ANMUAL REFORT 2817 1 129

404/642



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
Oooooooa

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [soniinued)

‘2.3 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries areall entitles (including structured entities) over which the Group has eontral. A& structumd entity is anentity
that has been dasigned so that vating or similar rights are nat tha dominant factor in deciding who cantrols the entity, such
% when any voting rights relate to sdministrative tasks onby, and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements. The Group has determined that the investment funds and structured securities. such as collaeralised debt
obligations. mortgage-backed securities and other asset-packed securities thal the Group has interest are structured
entitias.

The Group controls an entity whan the Group is exposed to. or has rights to, variable retums from its invalvement with tha
entity and has the ability 10 affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date an which control is transferred to the Group and &re excluded from consolidation from the date at which the Groun no
langer has control. ImMencompany transactions are eliminated

The Group utilises the acquisition mathod of accounting to account lor the acquasition of subsidiaries, unless the acquesiten
forms part af the Group recrganisation of entities under comman cantrol. Under this method, the cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of conssderation pavable, shares issued or Uabilitfes azsumed at the date of acqulsition. The
arcess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of thi not assets of the subsidiary acquirsd is recorded a3 goodwill (see
210 below). The Group recognises, separately from goodwill, the identifiable assete acguired, the liabilities assumed and
amy non-controlling interest in the subsidiary, Any surplus of the acquirer's interest in the subsidiany's net assots over tha
cost of acguisition is.credited to the consolidated incorme statement.

The consalidated financial statements of the Group include the assats. liabilities and resulis of tha Company and subsidiaries
in which AlA Group Limited has a contralling interst, using sccounts drawn up 10 the reporting dato.

Investment funds

Ivestment funds in which the Group has interests and power (o direct their relavant activities thal affect the return ol the
funds am consolidated in the financial susements. In conducting the assessmant. the Group considers substantive
contraciual nghts as wedl as de facto contrel. De facto control of an entity may arise from circumstances where the Group
does not have mare than 50% of the voting powar But it has the practical ability to direct the rol evant activities of the entity,
If the Group has power to remove or control gver the party having the ability to direct the melevant activities of the fund
based on the facts and circumstances and thet the Group has expoesure to varable returns of the imestmant funds, they
ane consplidated. Variable returns include bath rights to the profits or distrbutions a5 well as the obligation 10 absorh
[msges of the immstoes.

Employse share-based trusts

Trusts are set up 1o acguie shares of the Company for distribution to participants n future paricds trough the share-
based compensation schames. The consolidatson of these trusts iz evaluated in accordancs with IFRS 10 where the Group
is deamed to control the frusts, they are consolidated. Shares acquired by the trusts to the extent not provided to the
partizipents upon vesting ane carried at cost and reporied as "employes share-based irusts” in the consolidated statement
of financial position, and as a deduction from the equity in the consolidated statemant of changes in equity.
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES icoetinued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (zoninuea

Hon-controlling interests

HNan-controlling interests are presentad within equity except when they arise thraugh the minority's interest in putiable
Habilities such as the unit holders intergst in consolidated investmant funds, when thay are recognised as a lability,
refiecting the net assets of the consolidated entity,

BVERVIEW

Acquisitfors and dispasals of non-centrolling Inmeresis, except when they arse through the minority's interest In putable
liahilities. are treated a5 transactions batween equity holders. As a result, any difference between the acquisition cost ar
sale price of the non-controlling interest and the carrying value of the non-controlling interest is recognised a3 anincrease
or decrease in equity,

Associates and joint ventures

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence, but which it does not eentrol. Generally, it is
prosurmed that the Group has significant influence if it has batwaen 20 per cont and 50 per cend of voting rights. Joint
wentures ane erditics wherchy the Group and other parties underteke an cconomic activity which 15 sulbyect 1o joing control
arising from a contractual agresment,

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

Gains on transactions batwaen the Group and Its associates and joint verunes are eliminated 10 the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates and joint ventures. Losses are also eliminated, unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of an asset transferred batwoen antities.

Ireestments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity mothad of accounting. Undaer this mathod,
the costof the Investment n an assoclate or jednt venture, together with the Growp's share of that entity's post-acquisiton
changis o sauity, is inthuded as an azset in the consalidated statemant of financial pasition Ceat includes gondwill arising
on acquigition. Tha Group's share of post-acquisition prafits or iosses (s recognised in the consolidated income slatement
and its share of post-scquisition movement in equity is recognised in other comprohensive income, Equity accounting is
discontinued whan the Group no longer has signilicant influence over the investment. If the Group's share of losses in an
ASESOCIANE OF jeint veniune 8quals or exceeds its intarest in the undertaking. additional losses are provided for, and & Bability
recognised, only to the extent that the Group has incurmed legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or [aint venture. The Group alsa accounts for investmants in joint ventures that are subject to joint control
using the equity method of accounting.

The Company's investments

In the Company's stitemant of financial pasition, subsidisriss, associates and joint vienlures an stated at cost, whloss
impaired. The Company's interests in investiment funds swch as mutual funds and unit trusts are designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS . CORPORATE BOVERNANGE
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continund)

‘2.4 Insurance and investment contracts

Consistent accounting policies for the measwrement and recognition of insurance and investment contracts have been
adopted throughout the Group to subatantially sl of i business.

In-a limited number of cases, the Group measures ingurance contract liabilities with reference 1o statutory requingments in
the applicable jurisdiction, without defarral of acquisition costs

Product classification

The Group classitied s contracts wnitten as either insurance confracts or investment contracts, depending an the |evel of
insurance risk. Insurance contracts am those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk, whila imvestmant contracts
prg thage contracts without significent insurance risk, Soma insurance and investmant comracts. referred 1o &8 participating
business, have discretionary participation features, “DPF7, which may entithe the customear to receive, &s a supplement 1o
guarantesd benefits, additional non-guaranized benefits, such as policvholder dividends or bonuses. The Gioup applies
the same accounting policias for the recognition and measurement af abligations arising rom vestment contracts with
DPF as it does for ingurance coniracts.

In the event that a scenario (other than these lacking commeicial substance) exista in which an insured event would
risquing thix Group 1o pay significant additional benefits 1o its customers. the contract is accountsd for &5 an insurance
contract For investment contracis that do not contain DFF, 1AS 39, Financial Instruments: Measurement and Recognition,
and, if the contractincludes an invastmant managemant element, IAS 18. Revenus Recognition, are appliad. IFRS 4 parmits
the continued use of previously applied accounting policies for insurance contracts and invesimeant CoMracts with DPF,
wd this basis has been adooted by the Group in accounting for such contracts, Once a contract has been classifiod as an
insuwrance or imiestment contract. reclassification (s not subsequently performed unless the terms of the agreement are
{ater amended.

Certain contracts with DPF supplement the amount of guaranteed benefits due to policrhelders. These contracts are
distinct from other insurance and investment condracts as the Group has discretion in the amount andfor timing of the
benefits declansd, and how such benefits ane ailocated betwean groups of poticyholders: Customers may be entitled to
recaive. g5 a supplement to gearantesd benefits, additional benefits or bonuses:

« that are likely to be a skgnificant portion of the total contractual benefita

* whose amownt or timing |5 contractually at the discretion of the Group, and

+ that are contrachually basad om:
= the performance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of cantract;
- malised andfor unrealised investment returns on a specifisd pool of assets held by the izsuer; or
= the profit or |0ss of the Company, fund or other entity that issues the contract.
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES icoetinued)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts icontrued)

Product classification (contnued)

The Group apnlies the same aceounting policies ler the recognition and measurement of obligations and the deferral ol
acquisition cobts arising from investment contracts with DPF as it does to insurance contracis. The Group refers to such
contracts as participating business. In some jurisdictions participating business is written in & participating fund which is
distinct from the other assets of the Company or branch. The allocation of benafits from the assets held in such participating
funds i subject to minimum policyhalder participation mechanisms which are established by regulation. The extent of
such policyholder participation may change over time. The current policyholder participation in declared dividends for
locations with panticipating funds is set out below:

BVERVIEW

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

Couniry Current pelicyhodder partcipation
Singapone 0%
Malaysia 40%
China 0%
Australia B0%
Brunai B0%

Insome jurisdictions participating businass i= not written in a distinct fund and the Group refers to thes as olher participating
business.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS . CORPORATE BOVERNANGE
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continiod)
2.4 Insurance and investment contracts (conwmed)

Product classification (cotinued)

The Group's praducts may be divided indo the following maln eategoriag:
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I thve notes 1o the financial statements, unit-linked contracts are presented together with pension contracts lor disclosure

PUrPOSES
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES icoetinued)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts icontrued)

Product classification (contnued)

The basis of aceounting for insurance and iiwestment contracis is discussed in notes 24,1 and 2 407 below.

BVERVIEW

2.4.% Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF

Premiums

Premiums from life nsurance contracts, including participating policies and annulty policies with [l contingencies, are
recognised as rvenue when due from the policyholder. Berefits and expenses are provided in raspect of such revanue so
as to recognise prafits over the estimated |ife of the policies. For limited pay contracis, pramiums are recognised in profit
or loss when due, with any sxcess profit deferred and recognised in income in a constant rolaticnship to the insurance in-
force or, for annuities, the amount of expected benelit payments.

Amounts collected as premiums from insurance contracts with investment features but with sufficient insurance risk to be
conssdered insurance contracts. such as univarsal life, and cortain unit-linked contracts, are accumulsted as deposits.
Revenue from these contracts consists of policy fees for the cost of insurance, adminkstration, and surrenders during the
period,

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

Upfrant fees are recognised over the estimated life of the contracts to which thay redate. Policy benefits and claims that ane
charged to expenses include benefit claims incurred in the period in excess of related policyholder contract deposits and
interest credited to policyholdar depasits.

Unearned revenue liability

Unearmed revenue liability represents upfront fees and other non-level charges that have been collectad and released to
1hir consalidated incoma statemant owir ths astimatad life of the busmess. A Leparste iahility for secumuolation vali is
established.

Defarred profit Uability

Defermed profit liability arising (rom traditiongl insuranoe conlracls represents gucess profits that have been collected and
refpased to the consolidated income statement over the estimated lite of 1he business. A separate lability for futune polioy
banafits is nstablishod.

Deferred acquisition costs

The costs of acguiring new insurance contracts, including commissions and distribution costs. underwriting and other
palicy issue mxpenses which vary with and are primanily related to the production of new busingss or renawal of exsting
business, are deferred as an asset. Deferred acquisition costs are assessed for recoverability in the vear of policy issue to
ensure that these costs are recoverable out of the estmated future margins ta be serned on the policy. Deferred acquisition
costs are assessad for recoverability at least annually therealter, Future investment income is also taken into account in
assessing recoverabliity, To the extent that acquisition costs are not considerad to be recoverable at inception or thereafter,
these cosis are expensed in the consolidated income siatemant

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

Defarrad acquisition costs for life insurance and annuity policies are amortised over the expected life of the contracts as a
congtant percentage of expecled pramiums Expected premiums are estimated st the date of policy issue and ane
consistently appéied throughout the life of the contract unless a deficiency ocours when performing lability adeguacy
teating (see halow).

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Deferred acquisition costs for universal life and unit-linked contracts are amortised over the gxpected lite ol the contracts
based on a constant percentage of the present value of estimated gross profits expected to be realised aver tha lite of the
contract or on & siralght-line basis. Estimated gross profits inglude expected amounts to be assessed for morialily,
administration, investmant and surmanders, less benefit claims in excess of palicyholder balances, administrative expensas
and interest credited, Estimated gross profits are revised regularly, The interast rate uged to computs the prasent value of
rovisad astimates of oxpected gross profits is the latest revised rate applied 1o the romaining benatit paricd. Deviations of
actual results from estimated axperience are reflected in earnings.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |sortinund)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts (conwmed)

Product classification (cotinued)

2.4.1 Insurance contracts &nd investment contracts with DPF (ceoteued)

Deferrod sales inducements

Delerred sales inducemants, congisting of day one bonuses. persistency bonuses and enhanced crediting rafes are deferred
amd amortised using thie same methodalogy and assumptions used to amortise acquisition costs when:

+  the sales inducements am recagnised as part of insurance contract liabilines;

+  they am explicitly identitied in the contract on inception;

+ they ame incremental to amounts credited on similar contracts without sales inducements; and
+ they are higher than the expected engoing crediting rates for periods after the inducament.

Unbundling
The deposit component of an insurance contract i unbundled when both of the following conditions are met

the deposit campanent (including any ambadded surrendes option) can be messured separately (ie. without taking
inta account the insurance compoenent); and

+ the Geoup's accounting palicies do not otherwise require the recognition of all obligations and rights arizing from the
deposit companant,

Bifureation
To the extord that certain of the Group's ingurance contracts include embedded derivatives thit ane nod clearly and clogaly
redated 1o the host contract, these are bifurcated from the insurance confracts and accounted lor as danvatives.

Benelits and elaims
Ingurance contract benefits reflect the cost of all maturities; surrenders. withdrawals- and claims arising during the year, a5
well as policyholder dividends accrued n antlcipation of dividend declarations.

Accident and health claims incwrrad include all losses occurring during the year, whether reparted or not, related handling
costs o reduction for recoverios. and any adjustmaents to clairms outstanding from provious years.

Claims handling coats include internal and extérnal costs incurmed in connecticn with the negotistion and setilement of
claims, and are includead in operating expensas.

Insurance contract (labilittes fincluding liabilities in respect of investment confracts with DPF)
Irsurance contract labilities represent the estimatod future policyholder benalit iability bor life ingurance policies

Future policy bengfits for file insurance policies are calculated wsing a net level premium valuation method which
represents the present value of estimated future policy benefits to be paid, less the present value of estimated future net
pramiums 10 be colleted fram policyholders.

For comstracts with an explicit account balance, such as universal life and unit-linked contracts, ingurance contract liabilities
ame equal to the accumulation valus, which represants premiums recelved and Investment returns credited to the palicy
|ess deductions for mortality @nd morbidity costs and expense charges

Settlement optlons are accounied for 83 an integral component of the underlying insurance or [estment contract unless
they provide annuitisation banefits. in which case an additional liability is establichad to tha axtent that tha pregant value
of expected anmuitisation payments at the expected annuitisation date exceeds the expected account balance at 1hat date.
Where settlement options have been Issued with guaranteed rates less than market interast rates, the insurance or
Investmant contract Hability does not reflect any provision for subsequent declings i markat (mMerast cates unless A
deficiency is identifiad through liability adequacy testing
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES icocninued)

2.4 Insurance and investment CONracts (contrued)

Product classification (contrwed)

2.4.1 Insurance contracts and invesiment coniracts with DPF (ontinced)

Insurance contract liabilities (including liabilities in respect of investmant contracts with DPF) (cantinusd)

The Group accounts for insurance contract habilities for participating business writtan in paricipating funds by establishing
aliability for the present value of guaranised benefits less estimated future net premiums to be collected from pelicyholders.
In additon an insurance [isbility is recorded for the proportion of the net assets of the participating funds that would be
allocated to policyholders assuming all relavant surplus at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position
were to be declared as a policyholder dividend based upon applicable regulations. The Group accounts for other
participating business by establishing a liability for the present value of guarantesd banefits and non-gearanteed
participation, |ess estimated future net premivwms to be collected from policyholders.

Liability adequacy testing

The adeguacy of linbilities is sstessed by portfelio of contracts, in accordance with the Group's mannar of acguiring,
servicing end measuring the profitability of its insurance contracts. Lisbility adequacy testing is performed lor each
reportable segment

BVERVIEW

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

For traditional [ife insurancs contracts, insurance contract [iabilities meduced by deferred scquasition costs and valus of
business acquired on acquired ingurance confracts, are companed to the gross premium valuation calculated on & best
estimate basls, as of tha valuation date. I there is a deficiency, the unamaortised balance of delorred acquizition cost and
walue of business acguired on acguired Insurance contracts are written down to the extent of the deficiancy. If, after writing
down the ynamartised balance far the specific portfolio of contracts to nil, a deficlency still edsts. the net [Hability is
encreased by the amount of the remalning deficiency.

For universal life and investment contracts. deferred acquisition costs, net of unearned revenue liabilities, are compared to
estimated gross profits. If a deliciency exists, delerved acquisition costs are written down.

Financial guarantess
Financial guarantees are regarded as insurance cantracts. Liebilites in respect of such contracts are recognised as loss is
incurred by a holder.

2.4.2 Investment contracts

Inwestment contracis do not contain sulficient Insurancea risk 10 be considered ingurance contracts and are accounted for
a5 a hinancial Hability, athor than ireestmont contissts with DPF which ade excluded fram the scope of IAS 39 and are
accounted for a8 insurance conracts.

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

Revenua from these contracts consists of varnous charges (policy fees, handling fees. management fees and surrendar
charges) made agaknst the contract for the costof insurance, expenses and early surrender. First vear charges are amortised
aver the lite of the contract as the services are provided

Investment contract foe revenue

Customers are charged feas for palicy administeation, imvestment managemant, surmenders or other contrac? services The
fees may be fiood amounts or vary with the amounts being managed, and will genarally be charged as an adjuestment to the
policyholder’s account bakance, The iees ane récopnised as revenus in the peried in which they are recelved unless thay
relate to services to be provided in fulure pariods, inwhich case they are deferred and recognised &s the service is provided.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Ovigination and ather "upfront™ fees (fees that ame assessed against the account balance as consideration for origination of
i comiract) ané changed on some non-panicipating investment and pension contracts. Where the investmeant contract is
recordad at amortised cost, these fees are amortsed and recognised over the expacted term of the policy as an adjestment
1o the effective yield, Where the investment contract is measuned at feir value, the front-end fees that relate to the provision
of investmant managament garvices ar amartised and recognised as the services arm provided.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continund)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts (conwnidl

Product classification (cotinued)

2.4.2 Investment contracts [consmssd)

Doferrod origination costs

The costs of acguiring investment contracts with investment management services, including commissions and other
incremental expenses directly related 1o the i=sue of each new contract, are deferred and amortised over the period that
services are provided. Defenred origination costs are tested for recoverability at each reporting date.

The costs of acquiring new investment contracts without investment management services are included as part of the
effective interest rate used 1o calculate the amortised cost of the related imestmant contract Babilities.

Inverstment contract liabilities
Deposits received in respect of investment contracts are not accounied for through the consolidated Income statement,
avcapt for tha investment incame and fees attributable 1o those contrazts, but are accounted for dinectly through the

consolidoted statemnent of fingncial position as an adustment o the investment contract liability, which reflects the
account balance,

Thi malority of the Group’s contracts classified as investiment contracts ane unit-linked comracts, with measurament
directly linked to the underlying investment assets. These represent investment portfolios maintained to meet specific
imvestmant absjectives of policyholders who generally bear the credit and market risks on thosa investmaents, Tha liabilities
are carried at {air value determined with reference 1o the accomulation value (current unit value) with changes recognised
in profit or loss, The costs of policy administration, investment managerment, surmender chames and certain policyholder
taxes assessed apainst custoemers’ account balancas are included in revenue, and accounted for as described under
“Irvastment contract fee revenus” above.

Man wnit-linked investmaent cantract liabilites are carmed at amartised cost, being the fair valug of consideration recaived
a1 the date of indtial recognition, less the net effect of principal payments swch as transaction costs and lront-end lees, plus
OF MAnus thi cumulative amortisation using the effective imerest method of any ditference between that initial amoont amnd
the maturity value, and less any write-down for surrender payments. The effective interest rate equates the discounted
cash payments to the inltial ameunt. At each reparting date. the uncamed revance liability & determined as the value of
the future best estimate cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, Any ad|ustmant is immediately recognised as
income or expense in the consolidared income statement.

The amartised cost of the financial iability & fever récorded 1 1652 than the amourt payabli oh surrender, discounted for
the time value of money whene applicable, if the investment contract is subject to a surrender option.

Deferrad foe income lability

Deferred fee income liability represents upfront fees and other non-level changes that have been coliscted and released to

the cansolidated income statement over the estimated lite ot the business. & separate lability for accumulation valee is
established.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES icocninued)

2.4 Insurance and investment CONracts (contrued)

Product classification (contnued)

2.43 Insurance and investment contracis

Reinsurance

The Group cedes reinswrance in the normal course of business, with retentions varying by ine of business. The cost of
refnsurance Is accounted for over the life of the underlying reinsured policies, using assumptions consistent with those
used 1o aceount for such policies.

Premiums ceded and claims reimbursed are presented on a gress besis in the coensalidated Income statement and
statament of financial position.

BVERVIEW

Reinsurance assels consist ol amouns receivable in respect of ceded insurance liabilities. Amounts recaverable from
refnsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the reinsured insurance or Investment contract liabilities or benefits
paid and in accardance with the relevant resnsurance contract.

To the extent that reinsurance contracts principal by transfer financial risk (&3 opposed toinsuranca risk) they are accounted
Tor directly thiouwah the consolidated statemnent of financial position and are rot included in retnsurance assets ar Habilliies.
A deposit asset or liability is recognised, based an the consideration paid or received less any explicitly identified pramiums
or fees to be retained by the relnsured

Il & redrgurance aeset i impalied, the Gaoup reduces the carndng ameunt secordingly and recognisss that impalrment loss
in the consolidated income statement. A reinsurance &sset is impaired if thers is objective evidence, as a result of an gvent
that eccurred after initial recognition of 1he reinsurance asset, that the Group may nat receive all amounts due to |t under
thit tarms of this contract, and thi impact on ths amounts that the Group will meeive fmom the minsurss can be reliably
mgasured.

Value of business acquired (VOBA)

The VOBA in respect of a portfolio of long-term insurance and imestment contrscts. either dirgctly or through the purclhise
of & subsidiary, s recognised &s an asset. H this results from the acquisition of an investiment in a pent venfure or an
associaln, the VOBA s held within the carmying amount of that investmand. In all cases, the VOBA is amartised avar the
astimated life of the contracts in the acquired partfalio an a systematic basis. The rate of amortisation refiects tha profile
of the value of in-force business acquired. The carrying value of VOBA i3 reviewsd annually for impairment and any
reduction Is charged 1o the consolidated income statement.

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

Shadow accounting

Shadow sccounting 15 applicd 10 insurance and certain investment contracts with discretionary participation festune
where financial assats backing Insurance and investment contract llabilities are classified as available for sale. Shadow
accounting is applied 1o deferred acaulsition costs, VOBA, deferred origination costs and the contract [iabilities for
nvestment contracts with DPF to take ino account the effect of uneealised gains or losses on insurance liabdlities or assets
that are recognized in other comprehensive income In the same way as lor a malised gain or [oss meognised in the
consolidated incoma statement Such assets ar liabilities are adjusied with corresponding charges or credits racognised
directly in shareholders’ equity as a companent o the related unrezlised gains and losses.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Other assessments and lewles

The Group is potentially subject fo varkous periodic insurance-related assessments or guarantes fund lavies. Refated
provisions are established where there i & present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of & past event. Such
amounts are nol included in insurance or imvestment contract liabilities but are included under “Provizsions” in the
consolidated satement of lingncisl positon

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continund)

‘2.5 Financial instruments

2.5.1 Classification of and designation of financial instruments

Financlal assets and Wabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprise two categories:

= financial assets or Habilities designated at fadr value through profit or loss upon initial recognition; and
« financial assets or liabitities classified as held for trading.

Management designates financial assets and liabdities at fair value through profit or loss if this eliminates a measurement
ingonsstency or i the related assets and Habilites are actively managed on & fai value Basis, ineluding:

+ financial assets held 1o back unit-linked contracts and participating funds;

+ gther linancial assets managed on a fair value basis; consisting of tha Group's equlty partfolio and srmvestmants held by
the Group's fully consolidated investmant funds: and

+ compoaund instruments containing an embedded derivative, whare the embedded derivative would atherwise require
bifurcation

Financial assets and liabilities classified as hedd for trading include financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of
snlling them in the nears futune and thode that form part of & portfollo of linancial assets in which there is evidence of shar-
term profit taking, s woll as dervative assets and liabilities.

Dividend income lrom equlty instruments designated at fadr value through prolit or loss is recognized ininvestment ncome
in the consalidated income statemaent, generally whin the sécurity becormes ex-dividend. interest income is recognised on
an accrued basis. For all finencial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss, changes in fair value ae recognised
in imvestment axperience.

Transaction costs in respect of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are expensed as they are
Incurred.

Available for zale financial asseis

Financial assets; other than those at fair value through profit or loss. and [oans and recevables, are classified a5 availablo
for sala,

The available for sale category is used whare the relevant investmants backing insurance and Investment contract liabilities
and sharsholders” squity are not managed on & fair value bass. These principally consist of the Group's debt securities
[other than those backing participating funds and unit-linked contracts). Available for sale financial asseis am initially
recognised 8t fair value plus attnbutable transsction costs. For available for sale debt secunties, the difference between
their cost and par value is amortised. Available for sale finencial assets ane subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income from debit securities classilied as available for sale is recognised in investment income in the consolidated income
statemant using the effective intarest method.

Unrealised gains and losses on securities classified as available for sala are analysed between difforences resulting fram
loreign surrenty translation, and other fak value changes. Foreign currency Lranslation differences on monetary available
for 5ala irvastments. such as debt securities are calculated as if they were carried at amortised cost and £0 are recognised
in the consolidated income statement as investment experience. For impairments of avadlable for sale financial assets,
reference is made to tha section “Impairmant of financial assets”.

Changesin the fair value of secunities classified as available for sale, sxcept for impairment losses and relevant foreign
exchange gaing and [osses, are recogniged in other comprehensive income and accumulated in 8 separate fair value
resarve within equity. Impairment losses and relavant lareign exchange gains and losses aré recognised in the income
statemant.

Realised gains and losses on financial assets
Realisad galns and lossas on available for sale financial assets are determined as the difference batwaen tha sale proceeds
and amortized cost, Amartised cost s determined by specific idenification.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES icoeninued)

2.5 Financial instruments. izonteuec)

2.5.1 Classification of and designation of financial instruments {continued)

Reeagnition of financial instrumenis

Purchases and sales of financial instruments ara recognised on the trade date, which ig the date at which the Group
comimits 1o purchase or sell the aasets.

Derecognitton and offset of financisl assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to recaive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the Group has transferred substantially all rigks and rewards of ownerghip. If the Group neither transfers nor retaing
substantially all the risks and mewards of ownership of a financial asset, it derecognises the financial asset if it no longer
has control over the asset, in translers whene control over the asset is retained, the Group continues to recognise the asset
1o the extent of its continuing involvement. The extant of cantinuing invelvemeant is detarmined by the extent to which the
Group Is exposed to changes in the fair value of the assat

BVERVIEW

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the not amount reperied in the consolidated staverment of fimoncial position
only when there Is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intenticn to settle on a net
basis, or realise the asset and sattfe the lability simultanzously.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fined or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs. Subseguently, they are carried at amastised
cost using the effective interest mothad less any impairment |osses, Interest income fram loans and receivables is
recognised in Investmant income in the consolidated incomea statement using the effective intenest method.

Term deposits

Deposits include time deposits with financiplinstitutions which do not maat the definitien of cazh and cash equivalents as
thedr maturily al acquisition exceeds (hree months, Certain of these balances ame sublect to regulatory or other restricibon
a3 digclosed innote 19 Loans and deposits. Deposits ane s1ated at amortised cost uging the effective intarest method.

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits hold at call with banks and other short-term highly lguld
rvEstmants with maturities &t acquisition of three months or bess, which ane hald for cash management purposes, Cash
and cash equivalents also include cash meceived as collateral for derivative transactions, and repo and revarse repo
transactions, as woll 82 cash and eash squivalents held for the benalit of policyholders in comnpction with unit-linked
products. Cash and cazh eguivalents are measured at amartized cost using tha effective interest method.

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

2.5.2 Fair values of non-derivative financial instruments

Thee fadr value of a linancial ingtrument 5 the amount that wauld be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in
an orderly transaction betwean market participants at the measurement date, having regard to the specific charactenstics
of the asset or [iability concerned, assuming that the transfer takes place in the most advantageous market to which the
Group has access. The fair values of financial instromants traded in active markets {such as financial Instruments at fair
walue through profit or loss and available for sale securives) are based on quoted marker prices al the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position, The guoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group (s the
gurrent bid price, whizh = considered to be the price within the bid-ask spread that is most representativg af the fair value
in the circumstances. The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in activa markets are determined using
valuation technigues The Group uses & varlaty of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions st
tha date of each consolidated statemant of financial position. The objective of wsing a valuation technigue 15 o estimate
the price at which an ordarly transaction would take place batween marke! participants af the date of the consolidated
statament of fingncial position.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN

Financial ingtruments carmied at fair value ame measured using a fair value hisrarchy described in note 21,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continund)

‘2.5 Financial instruments (cosinue)

2.5.3 Impairment of financial assets

Ganeral

Financial assats am assessad for impairmant on a regular basis. The Group assessas at each reporting date whathar thera
15 ohiective evidence that a financinl 8536t or group ol financial sssets is impaired. A hnancisl asset. or group of financial
assats, is impaired and (mpairment losses are incurred only [f there |s objective evidence of impalrment as a result of one
of mong gvents that have accurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a |oss event) and that loss event (or events) has
am impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assat or group of financial assots that can be reliably
estimated.

For loans and receivabies. the Group firsl assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assels
that are individualty significant. if the Groun determines that objective evidence of impalrment does not exist for an
Individually assessed financial asset, whether significan: or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial essets with
sirmilar cradit risk characteristics and collectvely assesses them for impairmant. Assets that ana individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impainment |03 13 or continues to be recognisad are not included in & collective assesament
of Impalrmant.

Awailable for sale financial nstruments

‘When a decling in the {air value of an available for sale agget hag been recognised in othes comprehansive intome gnd
there s objective evidenca that the asset i impaired, the cumulative [oss alrsady ecegnised directly in sther comprahengive
income is recognised in current perod profit or loss.

I the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases in a subsequent period, and the increase can
b objectivaly related to an event occurring aftar tha imoairmant loss was recognised in profit or lose, the impairmant loss
i reversed through prefic or loss. Where, lollowing the recognition of an impairment loss in respect of an available for sale
debt security, the asset sulfers further falls in value, such further falls are recognised as an impairment only in the case
when abjective evidence exists of a further iImpairment event to which the lossas can be atributed.

Loans and recelvables

For leans and recaivables. impalrmant is considered to have taken place il it is probable that the Geowp will net ba able to
cotlect principal and/ors interest due acconding to the contractual terms of the instrumant. When impairment is determined
1o have occurred, the carrying amount is decreased through a charge to prafit or 1058 The carrying amouwnt of mortgage
Inans or receivables is reduced through the usa of an allowanca account, and the amount of any sllowance is recognised
as an Wngairment (058 in prafit or loss.

2,5.4 Derhvative financial instruments

Derivative finandal Instrumants primarily include foreign excharngs contracts and Imerast rate swaps that derive thair
vislug mpinly Trom underlying loreagn axchangs rates and interest rates All derivatives ane initially recognised in the
cansolidated statement of financial position at their fair value, which represents thedr cost excluding fransaction costs,
which are expansed, giving rise to & day one loss. They are subsequently remeasured at thair fair vadue, with movements in
this value recognised in profit or loss. Fair values are obtained from guoted market prices or, if these are not availabla, by
using valuation technigues such as discounted cash flow medels or option pricing models. All derivatives are carried a5
assets when the fair values are positive and as fiabilities when the fair values are nagative.

Derivative instrumants for economic hedging

Whilst the Group smters into derhvative transactions to provide economic hedges under the Group's risk management
framework it adopts hedge accounting to these transactions anly in limited circumstances. This is either bacause the
transactions wauld not meet tha spacific IFRS rules to be eligible for hedge accounting or the documantation requirements
to miset hedge accounting critera would be unduly onerous. Where hedge accounting does not apply, these transactions
are treated as held for irading and fair value movements are recognisad immediately In irvestment experience.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES icoeninued)

2.5 Financial instruments izonveues)

.54 Derivative financial Instruments {costmupd)

Embedded derivatives

Embaedded derivatives are derivatives embadded within other non-derivative host financial instruments 1o creata hybrid
mgtrumants. Where the economic characteristics and rishs of the embedded denvatives are not closely related 1o the
economic characteristics and risks of the host instrument, and whare the hybrid instrument |s not measured at falr value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. the embedded derivative is bifurcated and carried ax fair value a5 a
derivative in accordance with |1A5 39,

BVERVIEW

2.6 Segment reporting

An operating segment is & component of the Group that engages in business activity from which it earns revenues and
fncurs expenses and. lor which. discrete financial information s available. and whoss operating resulis are regularly
revinwed by the Group’s chief operating decision-maker. considersd 1o be the Executive Committes of the Group (ExCa),

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

2.7 Foreign currency translation

Income statomants and cash flows of foreign entities are translated into the Groug’s presemation currency ol avorage
exchange rases for the year as this approximates to the exchange rates prevailing 81 the transaction date, Thair statements
of financial position are translated at year or period end exchange rates. Exchange differencas arising fram the translation
af the nat investment in fareign operations. are taken 1o the curreney translation reserve within equity. On disposal of &
foreign operation, such exchange differences are transfened cut of this reserve and are recognised in the consolidated
ncome statement as part of the gain ar loss on sale.

Foregn currancy trangactions ane accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Gaing and
bossos rosulting from the sottlomont of such transactions, and from tha transiation of monetary assots and liabilities
denaminated in foreign currencies into funciional currency, are recognised In the consolideted income statement.

Translation differences on financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are incleded in investment
eiprience For monetary financial assets classified as svailable for sale, translation ditferences are calculated as if they
wera carried at amortised cost and 5o are recognised In the consolidated income statement. Forelgn exchange movemanis
on nen-monetary equities that are acceunted for a3 available for sate ere included in the fair value reserve.

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

2.8 Property, plant and equipmant

Property hald for own use i€ carried at fair value at las) valuation date less sccumulated depreciation Whan an sssel is
adjusted for the latest fair value, any accumulated depreciation at the date of valuation is eliminated against the gross
cerrying amount of the asset, The mavement of fair veluesis generally recognised in other comprehensive income. When
such properties are sold, the amounts accumulistad in gther coemprehensive income are transferred (o retained earmings.

The Group records it nterest in leasehold land and land use rights associated with property held for own use separately
ag oparating leasas or finance leases depending on whathar substantially 6l the risks and rvaards incidental 15 ownarship
of the land are transferred to the Growp, Those interests classified as finance leases are reported as a componant of the
property habd for own use and carried &1 fair value a1 last valuation date. The prepeyments 1o scquire leasehold land
classified a5 oparating leases are recorded at original cost within “Other assels” and amortised over the tarm of the lease
{see note 2.19).

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Plant and equipment sre stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated Impalrment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continund)
‘2.8 Property, plant and equipment i)
Depreciation Is catculated using the straight-line mathod to allocate cost less any residual value over the estimated useful

|, genarally:

Fixtures, fittings and office squpmoent B yonrs
Buildings 20-40 years
Computar hardware and ather asseis I-Byears
Freehold land No depraciation

Subsequent costs arsincluded in the carmying amaunt or recognised a5 3 separate A5t a5 appropriate, when it is probable
that future economic banefits will flow to the Group. Repairs and maintenance ara charged to the consolidated income
statemant during the financial period in which they ane incurmed.

Residual values and vseful lives ame reviewesd and adjusted, i applicable, at each reporting date. An asset is writien down
to it recoverable amaunt i the carrying value (s greater than the estimated racoverable amount.

Any gain and [oss arising on dispesal of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.9 Investment property

Progerty held for long-term rental or capital aporeciation or both that is not eccupied by the Group Is classified &s
investmant property. Investmant property. including land and buildings, is initially recognized at cost with changes in fair
values in subsequent pariods recognised in the consolidated income statement.

IFan imeestment property becames held for own use, it & reclassilied as property, plant and squipment. Whare a property
i5 partly used as an investment property and partly for the use by the Group, these alements are recorded separately within
Investment pmperty and property, plant and equipment respectively, whare the component used as investment property
would be capabile of saparate sale or finance lsase,

2.10 Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents. the excess of the cost of an acquisition ower the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable
assats of the acguined subsidiary, associate or joint venture ak the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions priar ta 1
December 2006 (the dete of iransition to IFRS) i3 carried at book value {original cost less eumulative amortisation) on that
date, less any impairment subsequently incurmed, Goodwill ariging on the Group's investroent in subsidisries since that date
15 shown as a separate asset and is carmied at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, whilst that on asscciates and
Joint ventures is included within the carrying value of those investments. All acquisition-related costs are expansed as
ingurred.

Crher intangible assets

Other intangible assets congist prmanly of acquired computer soltwane and contractial relationshins, Such as Bccess to
distribution networks, and ane amortised over thelr estimated useful lives. The amertisation charge for rights 1o access
distribution natwerks iz mcluded i the consalidated incoma statament wnder “Commission and othor acqussition

BANBNEas”.

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acgulre and bring to use the
specitic soltware. Costs directly associated with the imemal production of identitiable and unigue softbware by the Group
that will genarate economic benefite exceeding those costs over a paniod greater than a year, ane recognised a& intangible
assats. All other costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised: 85 an
expense as incurmed. Costs of acguiring compuler soltware licences and incummed in the intemal produection of computer
software arg amartised using the stralght-line method over the estmated wseful lite of the software. which does not
penerally excead a period of 3 10 15 years. The amartisation charga for the year is included in the consolidated income
statement under "Operating expenses”,
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES icoetinued)

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment. goodwill and other non-financlal assets are neviewed for iImpalrment whenaver events or
changes in circumatances indicate thal tha cairying smoent may not be recoverable. An impalrment |nss is recognised to
tha enctont that the carrying amount of the assat excesads its recovarable amount, which is the highar of the fair value of the
asset less cost 1o sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impainment, assets are grouped into cash-generating
units at tha level of the Group's opevating segments, the lowest level Tor which separately identifiable cash flows ame
repored. The carrying values of gocdwill 2nd intenplble assers with indefinite useful lives are reviewed at least annually
orwhen circumsiances or events indicate that there may be uncertainty over this value,

BVERVIEW

The Group assesses af the and of each reporting period whethar there is any objective ovidence that its investmants in
associates and joint ventures are impaired. Such obective evidence includes whether there has been any significent
adversa changes in the technological market economic or legal emvironment in which the assoclates and joint ventures
operaie of whether thare kas been a significant or prolonged decling in value below their cest. I there is an indscation that
an imtarast in an associate or a foint ventura is impaired, the Group assessas whather the entire carrying amount of the
inyestment (including goodwill) is recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the amount by which
thee carryring amount is lower than thee higher of the invesiment's fals value less costs to sell or value inse, Ay reversal of
such impairment loss in subsequent perigds s reversed through profit or loss.

Inthe statement of financial position of the Company, impairmant testing of the investments in subsidiares. associates and
point vantures is required upon recaiving dividends from these investments if the dividend excosds the tatal comprobonsive
income of the subsidiaries, associates of joint ventures in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the relevant inwestmant in the Company's statement of financial position xceeds its camying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investeas’ net assets including goodwill

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

2.12 Securities lending including repurchase agreements

The Growp has been & party to various securities lending agreements under which securities are loaned 1o third parties on
a short-term bases. The loaned securities ane not derecognised and 8o thiy continua to be recognised within the appropri ate
vestment classification.

Azsats sold under repurchase agroements (repos)

Assets sold under repurchase agresments continue to be moognised end a ability is established for the consideration
recelved. The Group miay be required to provide additional collateral based an the fair value of the undeaelying assets, and
such collateral pssets rdmain on the consolidated statamant of linancial pesition

Assets purchased under agreements fo resell (reverse ropes)

The Growp enters into purchases of assets under agreements to resell (reverse repos). Reverse repos are indtially recorded
at tha cost of the loan or collatersl advanced within the caption “Loens and deposiis” in the congolidated statement of
financial position. In the event of fallure by the counterparty to repay the loan, the Growp has the right to the underlying
assels

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS . CORPORATE BOVERNANGE
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continund)

2.13 Collateral

The Group recalves and pledges collateral in the form of cash or non-cash assets in respect of dervative transactions and
rispe and revierse repo iransactions, inorder to reduce the credit risk of these irensaciions. The amount end type of collatenal
depends on an assessment of the creditrisk of the counterparty. Collateral recaived in the form of cash, which is not legally
segregated fram the Group, is recegnised asan asset in the consolidated staternent of linancial pesition with a cormespanding
liakility for the repayment. Non-cash collateral received is ot recognised on the consolidaled statement of flinancial
positicn undess the Group elther salis or repledpes these assets In the absance of default. at which point the abligation 1o
return this collateral is recognised as a labelity, To turthar minimise credit risk, the financial condition of counterparties is
manitered on a regular basis.

Collatersl pledged in the form of cash which is legaily segregated from the Group is derecognised from the consolidated
statermant of financial position and a cormespond ing receivable established for It return, Non-cash collateral pladged is not
derecogntsed (except in the event of default) and therefare continues to be recognised in the consalidated statement of
financial position within the appropriate financial instrument classification.

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings ane recagnised indtially at thedr issue proceeds Less ransaction costs incurred. Subseguently, bormowings are
stated af amortised cost, and any difference between net proceeds and redemqption value is recognised in the consolidated
incoma statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective intarest mathod, All barmowing costs are expansed
% they are incurred, except for borrawing costs directly attributable to the development of investment properties and cther
qualifying assets, which am capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.

2.15 Income taxes
The current tax oxponse is basaed an the taxable profits for the year, including any adjustmants in respoect of prior yoars. Tax
is alloceted to profit or loss before taxation and amounts charged or credited to equity s appropriste.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabélities and thair
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statemants, excapt as described balow.

The principal temporary differences arise from the basis of recognition of insurance and investmant contract liabelities,
revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities including derivative contracis, deferred acquisition cosis and the
future taxes arlsing on the surplus in life funds where the relevant local tax regime (s distibutions-based. The rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the date ol the conzolidated statement of financial position are usad to detarmine defarred tax.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available ageinst which
the temporary differences can be utilised, In countries where there is 8 history of tax losses, deferred tax assets are only
recognised in excess of deferred tax liabilities if there is evidence thal future profits will be available.

Delerred taxkes are ot provided in respect of tempaorary differences arising from the mitial recognition af goodwill or from
goodwill for which amartization is not deductible for tax purposes, or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction which is not a business combination and which affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or boss at tha time
ol the transaction,

Deferred tax reiated 1o fair value remessurement of avadable for sale investments and other amounts taken dirsctly 1o
equily, is recognised initially within the applicable component of equity, It is subseguently recognised in the consolidated
income stalement, together with the galn or loss ansing on the underlying liem,

In addition 1o paying tax on shareholders’ profits, certain of the Group's [ife insurance businesses pay tax on policyholders’
Imvestment returns (policyholder tax) at policyholder tax rates. Policyholder tax s accounted for as an income tax and s
ineluded in the total tax expense and disclosed separately.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES icoetinued)

2.16 Revenue

Inwestment return

Investmant income consists of dividends, intarest and rents receiveble for the reporiing perod. Invesimant experience
comprises realised gains and losses, impairments and unrealised gains and lossas an inmvestments hald at fair value
through profit or loxs. Interest income is recopnised as it accrues, taking into account the effective vield on the investment,
Rental income on fvestment property is recognised on an accrual basss. nvestment return consists of investment income
and investment experignce,

BVERVIEW

The realised gain or loss en disposal of an investmant is the differance between the proceeds received, net of transaction
costs, and its original cost or amortised cost as eppropriate. Unrealised gains and losses reprosent the difforence betwoon
the carrying valua at the year end and the carrying value at the previous year end or purchase price If purchased during the
year, less the reversal of previcusly recognised unnealised galns and losses In respect of disposals made during the year,

Other fee and commission income

Oiher fee and commission income consigts pomarnily of fund management fees, incoma from any incidental non-insurance
activities, distribution fees from mutual funds, commissions on minsurance ceded and commission revanee from the sale
af mutual fund shares. Reinsurance commissions recelvable are deferred In the same way 85 acouisithon costs. All athar
fon and commission iNcome is meognised as the services ane provided.

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

2.17 Employae benefits

Annual feave and long service leave

Empiloyes entitiements to annual leave and long service leave are recognisad when they accrue 1o employees. A proviskon
i made for the estimated linbility for annual lzave and long service [oave as aresult of senaces rendered by employess up
to the reparting date.

Post-retiremant benafit obligations

The Group operates a nurnber of funded and unfunded post-retirement emploves binefit schames. whose mambers
receive benalits on elther a defined benefit basis (penerally related 1o salary and length of service) or & defined contribulion
basis (gonerally relatod 1o the amount invested, investment returm and annuity rates), thi assots of which am generally
held in separate trustee-administered funds. The defined benefit plans provide lHe and madical banafits for employess
after retiremaent and a lump-sum benafit on cessation of employment, and the defingéd contribution plans provide post-
retirement pension baneafits,

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

For dafined benefit plans, the costs are assessed using the projected unit credil method. Under this method, the cogt of
providing benefits is chorged to the consolidated income statament 50 85 to spread the regular cost over the service [ves
of employees, in accordance with the advice of gualified actuaries. The abligation is measured as tha present value of the
estimated future cash putflows, using a discount rate based on market yields for high-guality corporate bands that are
denaminatad in tha currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating ta the terms
of the related liabilty. The resulting scheme surplus or delicit appears as an assel or lability In the consolidated statement
ol financial pesition.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Remeasurements arising from defined benafit plans comprise actuarial gains and losses, the reten on plan assets
(excluding interesi) and ihe eliect of the azset cafling (f amy. excluding interest). The Group recognises them immediately
in ather comprehensive income and all othar expanses refated to defined benefit plans in stalf costs in the consolidated
nEome stalement,

Whian the banelits of & plan are changed, or when a plan 15 cunailed, the portion of the changed benelit related W past
service by employess, or-the gain or l0ss on curtailment, is recognisad immediately in consolidated income statament
whan the plan amendment or curtad ment occurs.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions te publicly or privately admindstered pension plans. Once the
contributions have bean ped, the Group, as employer, does not have any further payment obligations. The Group's
contributions are charped 1o the consolidated income statement in the reparting perlod to which they relate and ane
includad in staff costs.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |sortinund)

2.17 Employee benelits (cormnusap

Share-based compensation and cash incentive plans

The Group launched & number ol share-hased compensation plans, vnder which the Group recelves sendces from the
employees, directors, officers and agents as considaration for the shares and/or share options of the Company. Thesa
share-based compensation plens comprise the Share Dption Scheme (50 Schemel, the Restricted Share Unit Scheme
(RSU Scheme), the Employee Share Purchase Plan (ESPP) and the Agency Share Purchase Plan (ASPP).

The Group's share-based compensation plans are pradominantly equity-settied plans. Under equity-settled share-based
campensation plan, the fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the award of shares and/or share
options is recognised as an expense in profit or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding amaunt recarded in
aquity.

The total amodnt to be expensed over the vesting pericd ks determined by reference to the falr value of the share and/or
share options awarded. Mon-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of shares and/or
share opticns the arg espected 1o be vested. At cach period end, the Group rovises its estimates of the number of shares
and/or share options that are expected to be vested. Any impact of the revision o original estimates is recognised in profit
of loss with & corresponding edjustment to equity. Where awards of share-besed payment arrangements have graded
vesting lerms. each tranche is rmcognised as a separate award, and tharefors the fair value of each tranche is recognised
over the applicable vesting peniod.

The Group estimates the f(air value of share options using & bingmisl laitice model. This moded requires inputs such as
share price, implied volatility, risk-froe interest rate, expacted dividend rate and the expected [ife of the sham option.

Whare modifieation or cancellation of &n aquity-sattled shadm-hasad eampantation plan occurs, the geant dats fair valis
cantinues to ba recognised, together with any incremental value arigsing on tha date of modification If non-market conditions
e mat.

For cash-setled share-Based compensation plans, the fair value of the emnplovee services in exchange (or the award of
cash-setibed award s recognised as an expense in profit or loss, with a corresponding amount recognised in lability, At the
end of sach reporting pariod, any unsettlod award is remeasured based on the change in fair value of the underlying asset
and the lability and espenss are adjusted accordingly.

2.18 Provisions and contingencies

Prowisions ara recognised when the Group has 4 present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it s
probable that an cuttlow of economic resources will be requined to settls tho obdigation, and a raliable estimate of the
amaunt cf the obligation can be made. Whare the Group expects a provision to' be reimbursed, for esample under an
Inguiance contract higld, the relmbursement i recognised a3 a separateé asset only when the reimburiement i wirtually
cartain,

The Group recognises a provision for onerous cantracts when the expectad benefits to be derived from a contract are less
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract

Contingencies are disclosed il material and If thee is 8 posslble futyre pbligation 8s a result of a past event, or if there is a
present obligation as a résult of a past avent. but gither a paymant is not probable or the amount cannot be reliably
estimated.
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2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES icoeninued)

2,19 Leases

Leases, whare a significant partion of the risks and rewards of ownership |s retained by the Group as a lessor, are classified
as operating lpases. Asssts subject to such leases are included in property, plant and aquipment or vestmant property,
and are depreciated 1o thedr residual values over thair estimated usaful lives. Rantals from such leases are credited (o the
consolideted income statement on 8 stradght-ling basis over the pencd of the nelevant lease,

BVERVIEW

Payments made by the Group 85 lesses under operating leases are classilied sither 35 an operating lease prepayment of
as a componant of investment property dapanding on whether the property interest is used as investment property.
Operating leases held fos long-tarm remtal or capltal appreciation or Both that are not occupied by the Group ane classified
as investmant property. They am initially recognised at cost with changes in fair values in subsequent periods recognisoed
in the consolidated income statement. The Group classifies amounts paid to acquine leasehold land which are held for the
Groupn’s own DCCUPANGY 85 an operating lease prepayment or as a compaenent of property, plant and sgulpment depending
on whather substantially all the risks and rewards kncidental to the ownership of the land are transferred 1o the Group.
Prapayments for land use rights under operating leases that are held for the Group's own occupancy (ned of any incentives
received from the lassor) are included within *Other assa1s” and charged to the consclidated income statement on a
straight-line basks over the period of the relevant lease. There are not any freehold land interests in Heng Kong.

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

2.20 Share capital
Ovdinary shares ama classified in equity whan there is not any obligation to transfar cash or other assets to the holders.

Share issue costs
Incremental external costs directly attributable to the (ssue of new shares are shown In equity as a deduction, net of tax,
fram this procedds af tha isses

Dividends
Interim dividends on ordinary shares are recognised when they have been paid. Final dividends on cedinary shares are
recognized when they b been spproved by shareholders.

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

2.21 Presentation of the consolidated statement of financial position

The Group’s insurance and investmant contract liabilities and related assots are realised and settled cver paricds of sevaral
years, reflecting the long-term napture of the Group's producis. Accordingly, the Group presents the assets and labilives in
s consplidated statement of financial position In approkimate order of liguidity, rather than distingulshing curment and
nan-current assets and liabilities. The Group egands s intangihle assats investmanis in essociates and joint ventures,
property, plant and equipment, imaestment proparty and defored acguisition and onigination costs &5 NON-CUrrent assels
as these are hald for the longer-term use of the Group

2.22 Earnings per share
Basic earnengs per share ks calculated by dividing net profit avallable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted averape
number of ordinary shane (n issun during the year

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Earmings per share has also been calculated on the operating profit belore adjusting items, attributable o ordingry
shareholders, as the Directors belise this figume provides a better Indication of operating performance.

Far diluted sarnings per sharae, the weighted average number of ardinary shares in issee is adjusted 1o assume conversion
of all dilutive potemiel ordinary shanes, such as share options awarded 1o employess.

Potential or contingent share issuances are treated asdilutive wihen therr conversesn 1o shares would decréasa net earnings
per share.

2.23 Fiduclary activities

Assots and income ansing from fiduciary activitios, together with related undertakings te returm such assets to customars.
are ekcluded from these consalidated financiel statements where the Group does not have contractual rights to the assats
and acts ina fiduciary capacity such as nominee, trustos or agent.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES sortinund)

2.24 Consolidated statement of cash flow

The consolidated statemant of cash flow presents movemenis In cash and cash eguivalents and bank overdrafis as shown
i the: consolidated statement of linanclal pasition.

Purchases and sales of financial imvesiments are included in operating cash flows as the purchases are funded from cash
flows associated with the arigination of insurance and investment contracts, net of paymenis of related benelits and
claims. Purchases and sales of investment property ane included within cash Nows frem investing activities.

2.25 Related party transactions
Transactions with relatad parties are recorded st amounts mutually saredd and transacted batween the parties to the
arrangement,

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumpticns that affect the reported amounts of asssts, liabilities, and revenue and
expenses. All estimates are based on management's knowledge of current facts and circumstances. assumptions based on
that knowledge and predictions of future svents and actions, Actual results can aliays differ from those estimates. possibly
significantly.

lieme that are consbdered partieularly sensitve o changes in estimates and assumptions, gnd the relevant secounting
policies are thosa which relate to product classification, insurance contract liabilities {including liabilities in respect of
investment contracts with DFF), deferred acquisition and origination costs, liability adequacy testing, fair value
maasuremant, impairment of linancial assets and Impalrmaent of goodwill and other intangible assets.

3.1 Product classification

The Group issues contracts that transier insurance risk or financial risk or beth. Insurance contracts are those contracts
that transfer significant insurance risk, while investment contracis are those contracts without significant insurance risk.
The Group sxercises significant judgement o determing whathar there is a scenanio (other than those Lacking commencial
subistanca) in which an insured event would require the Group to pay significant additional benefits to its custamers. In the
event the Group has to pay significant additional benefits 1o its customers, the contract is accounted for as an insurance
contract. The judgements exercised in determining the level of insurance risk in product classification affect the amounts
recognised (n the consalidated financial statements as insurance and investment contract llabilities and deferred
acquisition and arigination costs. The accounting palicy on product classification is desanibed in note 2.4

3.2 Insurance contract liabllities (including liabilities in respect of investment contracts with DPF)

The Group calculates the insurance contract labilities for traditional life insurance using & net level pramium valuation
method, whersby the liability represents the present value of estimatad future policy benetits 1o De paid, less the present
value of estimated futura net premiums fo be collected from palicyhalders. This method uses best estimate assumplions
# inception adjusted for & pravizlon for the gk of adeerss diviation fer martality, marbidity, expacted mvestment yialds,
policyholder dividends (for othar participating business), surrenders and expenses set at the policy incaption date. These
assumplions remain locked in therealter, unless a deliciency arises on liability adequacy testing. Intérest rate assumplions
can vary by geographical market, vear of issuance and product Mortality, surrander and expense assumptions are based
on actupl experience: by each geographical market, modified to allow for variations in policy form. The Group exercises
significant judgemant in making appropriate assumptions.

For contracts with an explicit account balance, such as universal life and unit-linked contracts, insurance contract liabélities
represent e accumulation value, which represents premiums recelved and invesiment returns credited 1o the policy less
deductions for martality and morbidity costs and expense charges Significant jud gement is exercisad in making apgropriate
extimates of gross profits which are based on historical and anticipated future exparences, thesa estimates are regularly
reviewed by the Group,
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMEMNTS [-ontiruwed)

3.2 Insurance contract Liabilities (including liabilities in respect of investment contracts with DPF) corceusdy
The Group accounts for Insurance contract liabllities for participating business writtan in participating funds by establishing
aliability for the present value of guaranteed benelits less estimated future net premiums to be collected trom policyholders.
In addition. an insurance liability is recorded for tha proportion of tha nat assets of the participating funds that would be
allocated to policyholders assuming all relevant surplus a1 the date of the consolidated statement of financial position
were o be declared as a policyholder dividend based upon applicable regulations. Establishing these labilities reguines
the exercise of significant jwdgement. In addition. the assumption that all relevant performance is declared as a policyholder
dividend may nat be borne out in practice. The Group accounts for ather participating business by establishing a hability
for the present value of gusranteed bonefits and non-guaranieed participation, less estimated future net premiums to be
collecied from palicyholdars.

BVERVIEW

The judgemanis exarcised in the valuation of insurance contract liabilities (including investmant contracts with, DPF)
affect the amounis recognised in the consolidated financial stalements as insurance confract benefits and insurance
contract liabilities. Furthar details of the related accounting policy, kay risk and varigbles, and tha sensitivities of
assumptions to the key variables in reapect of ingurance contract liabilities sre provided in notes 2.4, 25 and 27,

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

3.3 Deferred acquisition and origination costs

The judgements axercised i the deferral and amortisation of acquisition and orgination costs affect amounts recognised
in the consalidated financial statemants as deferred acguisition and origination costs and nsurance and investment
contract banefits.

Az noted in note 2.4 1, daferred acquisition costs for traditional life insurance and annulty policies are amaortisad over the
expictad lila of the contracts &6 & constant percenthgs ol expectad promiams. Expoctsd premdums ans estiratad at the
date of palicy issue and are applied congistently throughout tha life of the contract unless a deficlency eocurs when
porforming liability adequacy tosting.

As nated innote d.5.1, defermed acquisiten costs for universal [ife and unit-linked contracts are smortised over the expected
lite of the contracis based on a constant percentage of the present value of estimated grass profits expected to be realised
avar the life of the contract or on a straight-line basis. As noted in note 3.2, significant judgement is exarcised in making
appropriate estimates ol gross profits. The expansing of acquisition costs is accelerated following adverse Investment
performance. Likewise, in periods of favourgble investment performance, previously expensad BCquisition costs ang
rewersed, mot exceading the amount initially deferred.

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

Additional details of deferred acquisition and origination costs ane provided in notes 2.4 and 18,

3.4 Liability adequacy testing

The Group evaluatles the adequacy of its insurance and investment contract liahilities with DPF at [east anneally. Significant
judgement is exercised in determining the level of aggregation at which liability adequacy 1esting & performad and in
selecting best estimate assumptions. Liability adequacy |s assessed by partfolio of contracts in accordance with the
Groug's manner of acquiring, secvicing and measuring the profitabslity of its insurance contracts. The Groun performs
liability adequacy testing separately for each reporiable segment.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

The judgements exercisad in liability adequacy testing affect amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements
a5 commission and other acquisition expenses, deferred acquisition costs, insurance contract benefits and insurance and
mvestmant contract Babilities.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (coetinusd)

3.5 Fair value measurement

3.5.1 Fair value of financial assets

The Group determings the fair values of linancial asseis traded in active markets using quoted bid prices as of each
reporting date. Tha fair values of financial assets that are not traded in active markats are typically determinad using a
variety of other valuation techmques. such as prices obaerved in recent transactions and values obtained from current bad
prices of comparable Investments. More judgement is used in measuring the fair value of financial assets for which market
observable prices are not avadlable or are avaiable onty infreauentiy,

The degree of judgement used in measuring the fair value of financial assaiz generally correlates with the level of pricing
ohservability. Pricing obsarvability is affectad by a number of factors, including the type of financial instrumant, whether
thee financial instrument is new 1o the market and not yel established, the charactenistics specific 1o the transaction and
general market conditions:

Changes in the fair value of financial assets held by the Group's participating funds affect nod anly the value of financial
assots, but are also reflected i corresponding movements ininsurance and investment contract Liabilities, This s due to
an insurance liability being recorded for the propartion of the et assets of the participating funds that would be allocated
to palicvholders if all relevant surplus at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position were o be declared
% a policyholder dividend based on curmant local regulations. Both of the foregoing changes are rflected inthe consolidated
incoms statemant.

Changes in the fair value of fingncial assets held to back the Group’s unit-linked contracts result in acorresponding change
in insurance and nvestment contract lakslities, Both of the foregoing changes-are also meflected m the consolidated
incoma stalemeant.

Further detsfls of the falr value of financial assets and the sensitivity analysis ta interest rates and equily prices are
provided in notes 21 and 36,

1.5.2 Fair value of property hald for own use and investment proparty

The Group uses independant professional valuers to determine the fair value of properties an the basis of the highast and
best use of the proporties that is physically pessible, legally permissible and financially feasible. In most cases, curment use
of the proparties is considerad to be the highest and best use lor determining the fair value. Differant valuation technigues
may b adopted to reach the fair value of the properties. Under the Market Data Approach, records of recent sales and
offerings of similar property are analysed and comparisons are made for factors such as size, location, guality and
proapoctive uge. For fvestmant progerties, the discounted cash llow approach may be used by relerdncs b net rental
Iincomsa allowing for reversionary income potential to estimale the fair value of the properties. On some occasions, the cost
spproach is used a5 well to calculate the fair value which reflects the cost that would be reguired to replace the service
capacity of the property.

Further details of the fair value of property held for own usa and investmant property are provided in note 21,
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMEMNTS (-ontirued)

3.6 Impairment of financial assets

Financlal assets, other than those at falr value through profit or loss, are assessed for impairment regularty. This reqguires
the exercise of signilicant judgament. The Group kesesses at each reporting date whether there is obective evidence that
a financial assat or a growp of financial assets is impaired. Objective evidence that a financial asset, or group of assels. is
impaired includes onservable data that cormes to the attention of the Group about the following events

BVERVIEW

= gigruficant financial difficulty of the issuer or debior,

= abreach of contract, such as a default or delinguency in payments

= It bopemas probable that the suer of dabtor will amar bankruptey o athar finaneial resrganismion;
= the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

« phservable data, including market prices, Indicating that thare is & potentlal decrease In the estimated future cash
flows since the initial recagnition of those assets. mcluding:

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

- adverse changes In the payment status of issuers; or
- national or local economic conditions that cormelate with increased defaull risk

For lons and mcesvables, impairmant loss is determined wsing an analytical method based on knowledge of sach loan
group or recenable. The method is usually Bazed on historical statistics, adjusted for trends in tha groug of financial asgets
arindividual accounts.

Fuither ditails of th impairment of linsncial assets during the ywar sg provided i note 2.3

3.7 impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

Far this purpases of impakrment testing, goodwill and other intangible assets ara grouped into cash-ganarating units. These
assels are tested for impairment by comparing the carrying ameunt of the cesh-genarating unit, including goodwill. to the
recoverable amouit of that cesh-generating unlt The determination of the recoverabde amoent requings significent
judgement reganding the selection of appropriate valuation techniques and assumptions, Furthar details of the impalrment
of goadwill during the year ani provided in note 13.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS . CORPORATE BOVERNANGE
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

=
5. OPERATING PROFIT AFTER TAX 2
Operating profit after tax may be reconciled to net proit as follows: &
(=]

Year srded ¥our onded

30 Messsmbiar 0 Mirwambsr

usEm Mty 2007 2016

Operating profit after tax ] 4,682 013
Non-operating items, net of related changeas in insurance and x
Inwestment cantract liab#lities: =
Short-1erm Nuctuations in investment retum related 1o equities and i
real extate (net of taxof 2017: USSH0117hm; 2016: USS(&5)Im) 1.764 a7 i
Other non-operating investment return and other lems =
(net-of tax of 2017: USH40m; 2076: USE16%m) (25%) 102 3
Het profit 6,187 4,212 -]
Operating profit after tax attributabls to §
Sharehalders of AlA Group Limited L, 66T 3981 E
Non-comnelling intereits 35 32 -

Net profit atiribuiable to.
Sharsholders of AlA Group Limited 6,120 1
Non-contrelling interests &7 48

Operating profit is detarmined wsing, among others, expacted long-term myastment return for eguities and real estate.
Short-term fluctuations between expacted long-tarm investmant return and Actual imvestment return for these asset
classes are eucluded from operating profit. The imestment return assumptions used to determine expectad long-term
lmvestment return are besed on the same sssumptions used by the Group In determining its embedded value and are
disclosed in the Supplementary Embedded Value Information.

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

& TOTAL WEIGHTED PREMIUM INCOME AND ANMUALISED MNEW PREMIUMS

For management decision-making and internal performance managament purposes, the Group measures business
welumes during the year using 8 performance measure referred to a3 total wekghted premium income {TWPI), The Group
maasurgs new business activity wsing & performance measurg naferred 1o a5 annualised mow premiums (ANP). Thi
presentation of this note is consistent with our reportable segment presentation innote 7,

TWBI eonzsts of 100 per cend of renewsl pramlums, 100 per cent of firs year premiums and 10 per cant of single premiums,
before reinsurance ceded, and includes deposits and contributions for contracts that are sccounted for 85 deposits in
accongance with the Group's accounting policias.

Managemant considers that TWPI provides an indicative volume maasime of transactions undertaken in the reparting
priod that have the potentisl 1o genarate profits for shareholdaors. The amaunts shown are not intanded 10 be indicative of
premiums and fee income recorded in the consolidated income statement.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .
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FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

6. TOTAL WEIGHTED PREMIUM INCOME AND AMNUALISED NEW PREMIUMS (-cnsnued)

ANP ig & key internal measure of new business activities, which congists of 100 per cent of annualised first year premiums
and 10 per cent of single premiums, before reinsurance ceded. ANP excludes new business of pension business, personal
lines and mator insurance

Wear ended Year andad
TWPI 30 Hvembar 10 Hiveminer
L!S!m Ficiry ! rail] ]
TWPI by gecgraphy
Hang Kong 9438 BAETI
Thailand 517 3327
Singapore 2421 2776
Malaysia 1,823 1,795
China 3092 2384
DOthar Markets 5860 5478
Tatal 26,147 22133
First year premiums by geography
Hong Kang 2,586 2065
Thailand 477 430
Singapon a7 61
Malaysia 86 76
China 928 585
Other Markets 925 872
Tatal 5479 4698
Single pramiums by geography
Hong Kong 2817 1,761
Thailand 196 163
Sinpapone 1.433 1,443
Malayzia 187 167
China 150 194
Other Markets 622 619
Total 5,003 4357
Renewal premiums by geography
Hang Kang 6,606 4,632
Thailand 3021 1872
Slngepore 2,001 1,871
Malaysia 1,518 1,802
China 2149 1,779
Othar Markets %873 & B4k
Total 20,168 17,400

156 1Al GROUP LIMITER
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

&. TOTAL WEIGHTED PREMIUM INCOME AND ANNUALISED NEW PREMIUMS jcontinued E
Yaar sraded Your onded E
ANF 30 Mowember i Wowemnk-er
USSm AT 2076
ANP by geography
Hoeng Kong 2.B4% 2,294
Thailand 518 471 S
Singapars 433 427 E
Malaysia Jag 3a1 z
China L] Bl z
Other Markets 976 969 Y
Total 6,092 5121 -
)
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 3

Thee Group’s operating segments, based on the seports receivid by the ExCo, are each of the géographical markets in which
the Group operates. Each of the reportable segments, other than the “Group Corporate Centre® segment, writes life
bnsurance business, providing life Insurance, accident and health insurance and savings plans (o customers in its local
market, and distributes reieted investment and other financial services products. The reportable segments are Hong Kong
(including Macau), Thailand, Singapore (including Brunei), Malaysia, China, Other Markets and Group Corporate Centre.
iher Markets includes the Group's operations in Australla (including Mew Zealand), Cambodia, Indonesia, Korea, the
Philippines, Sri Lanka, Talwan, Vietnam and Indin The activities of the Graup Corporate Centre segment condist of the
Group's corporate functions; shiared sanices and eliminations of intragroup fransactions.

As each reportable segment other than the Group Corparate Centre segment focuses on serving the life insurance neads
ol its local markel, there are limited transactions batween reportable segments. The key performance indicators repariesd
n respect of gach segment are:

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

* ANP,

= TWPL

»  [fvestmant soluir

*  OpOrating oXpenses;

*  gparating profit after tax attributabla to sharshalders of AIA Group Limited;

= pxpense rabio, messuned s operating expenses divided by TWPL

* BpErating margin measured 85 operating profit after tax axpressed as a percentaga of TWPE and

= oporating return on shareholders’ allocatod squity measured &5 operating profit after tax attributable to shareholders
of AlA Group Limited expressed as 8 percantage of the simple average of opening and clozing shareholders” allocated
segment equity (being the segment assets less segment lisbilities in respect of each reportable: seament less nan-
controlling Interests and fakr value reserve),

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

In presenting net capital in{out) flows to reportable segments, capital outflows consist of dividends and profit distributions
1o the Group Corparate Centre segraent and capitol inflows consis: of capital injections into:reportable segments: by the
Group Corporate Centre segment. For the Group, net capital inf{out) flows reflect the net amount recaived from shareholders
by way of capital contributlons less amounts destributed by way of dividends.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN

Busginess wolumes in respoct of the Group's five largest custamers ane less than 30 per cant of premiums and feo incoma:
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION tzonsrund)

Greup
Otrer  Corporate

USSm Hong Keng  Thailland  Singapors  Malwysia Chins  Markets Cenira Total
Year ended 30 November 2017
ANP 2,849 518 433 348 B4HE 76 - 6,062
TWPI G424 1517 2421 1,823 3092 5,860 - 26147
MNat pramiums, fea incoma and

other oparating revenua

{net of reinsurance ceded) 10,828 3,532 1837 1610 3,006 3,888 7 15708
Investment returm 248 1,189 1,083 547 T34 1,057 338 7096
Tatal revenue 12,976 4,721 3,920 2,157 3,740 4,945 345 JLB0D4
Net insurance and Investment

contract benefits 9,654 2659 2822 1,439 2406 2,603 & 21,3B7
Commission and other acquisition

ENOHNEES 1,213 739 a&7 210 181 752 1 3463
Dperating expenses 407 199 181 164 278 552 188 1,969
Fimance costs and ather expenses 117 43 7 11 2B 42 126 400
Tatal expenses 11,191 .64k 3377 1.824 2,893 3,949 e 27499
Share of profit from associates

and joint ventune - - - - - - - -
Operating profit before tax 1,785 1075 543 333 847 498 26 5.605
Tax on operating profit befors tax {137} (10) (3%) (59)  (208) (117) (53)  (923)
Operating profit after tax 1,648 BAS 504 174 639 779 (27) 4682
Dariting profit after tax

attributable to

Shareholders of AlA Group

Limited 1,636 BA&S S04 72 639 758 (27} &B647

Hen-contralling interasts 12 - - | - kil = as
Hey oporating ratios:
Expense ratio &.3% 57% 7.5% 9.0% 9.0% L XS - 1.5%
Dparating mangin 17.5% 264% 208 150% 20.7%  13.3% - T.9%
Operating return on shareholders’

allocated equity 2346% 17.5% 185%  194% 204%  128% = 143%
Operating profit before tax includes ) ) |
Finance costs 29 & - - 16 2 104 167
Depreciation and amaortisation 3? 1I'.l !-ﬁ 1'.F 17 -ﬂ:ll 1?__ _!4?__

158 1 AlA GROUP LIMITER
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continmd)

iOher r;n:;:ﬁ

ussm Hong Meng  Thailend  Singapore  Malaysia Chans  Markots Canire Total
A0 Movemnber 2017
Total assets 65485 31319 35922 14347 19915 37,145 11,558 2154691
Total liabilities 54023 24358 32501 12806 15789 29,172 3670 173319
Total equity 11,662 6,961 3421 1,541 3,136 7.973 7.888 42372
Shareholders’ allocated equity 7.509 5510 2961 1,524 3,391 6,430 7933 35658
Net capital (out)/in flows (952) (46T} (238} (192} (207) (&0} Bobd  (1.240)
Tetal assats include
Inwestments in associates and

Jolnt venture - - 1 - 615 = 642

Segment Information may be reconciled to the consolidated income statement as shown below:

Short-larm
Iizztustione In
| i
rebuin Felaled Mhar Consalidabed
Segmeni  foeguilesand  non-opemaieg =ty
UEEm information real estmle itemat siatamant
Year ended 30 Nowember 2017
Met premiums,
fee incoma and
other pperating revenue 25,704 - - 25,708
Inwestmant return 7.0%6 2,314 3,212 12,622
Total revenus 32,804 2314 3212 38,330
Het Insurance and investmant
contract benefits 21.387 £33 3021 24,841
Mhar expanses 5812 - 52 6,174
Total expenses 7199 433 3383 31,015
Shere ol profit from associales
and joint venture = i ol i
Operating profit bafore tax 5,605 1,881 {171]) 7315
Mol

{1} Include unit-linked confracts

434/642

Met premiums, fee income
and other operating
eYEnUE

Imvesiment return

Total revenue

Met insurance and investmeant
contract benalits

Other expensas

Total expenses

Shane of profit from
associaes and joint veniurs

Profit before tax

ANMUAL REFORT 2817 1 1564

BVERVIEW
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (zonsrued)

Group
tther Coaporale

USSm Hazng Kang Thailand Singipere Malwysis China Barkess Cantry Tocal
Year ended 30 Movember 2016
ANP 2,294 471 427 341 621 269 = 5123
TWPI [ R 33z 2278 1.795 1384 5478 - 22133
Mzt promiums, b incomie pnd

other operating revenue

(nit of rdinsurancs Codisd) 1172 aan 2659 1621 1267 3655 (G) 20647
Ivestment return 1,788 1.0566 1.024 541 1] 1028 327 B 424
Tatal revenus 8,960 HA2T 3683 21632 2930  46B0 423 27,065
Net insurance and investment

contract banafits 6311 Lh&1 2412 1674 1.537 4588 (11} 12512
Cammission and other acquisition

EXDENEES 790 05 03 183 1ty 655 - 2685
Dperating expanses a0 184 161 163 235 a1k 184 1,752
Finance costs and other expenses 104 38 16 11 12 43 110 334
Tatal expenses 7515 3372 3152 1,831 2,330 3801 283 22284
Share ol |losses [rom associalas

and |oint venture - - - - - (S) = (5}
DOparating profit before tax 1,445 955 531 331 600 B4 &0 & 7Tt
Tax en cparating profit bafore tax {101} {187} (78} {64} {131} {192y {103 {763)
Dperating profit after tax 1,344 768 453 67 469 b87 0 403
Opevating profic after fax

attributable to:

Sharaholdors of AR Group

Limited 1,334 TH8 453 65 L69 G632 40 1981

Hen-contralling interasts 10 - - 2 - 20 - a2
Koy oporating ratios:
Expense ratio £ 5% 55% T1% Q1% 299 Q4% - T9%
Oparating margin 19.6% 231% 19,99 14.9% 19,79 12.48% - 181%
Dperating return on-shareholders’

allocated aquity 229% 19.0¢%¢ 19.1% 19.7% 170% 135% - 14.1%
Oparating profit befons tax includes
Finance costs 28 5 7 2 19 2 25 149
Depreciation and amartization 23 9 13 17 13 a7 15 127

1701 AlA BROUP LIMITER
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continmd)

BVERVIEW

CHFar L‘brpum::

il Poogiong Thatwnd: -Gingapors *Malerls Crime Mirkes— Usiire
A0 Movemnber 2016
Total assets 52916 26800 31087 12409 18472 33011 10479
Total liabilivies 45166 M163 28345 11079 15084 255381 3,066
Total equity T.750 5637 2742 1,330 3608 7130 7113
Shareholders’ allocated equity 5935 4,400 2502 1331 2864 5,369 T8
et capital (out)/in flows (1,034} {411) {207} {186) (467 175 608  (1,103)
Total assats include:
Inwestments in associates and

jolnt venture - - 1 & - b43 -

Segment Information may be reconciled to the consolidated income statement as shown below:

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

Snort:ceem
Nuctualions in
R
Pt relited i Cithai Ciarnalil hisd
Hagmuni eqiiltiag and  men-operatng =]
LEEm ndpimaton sl exlale |Lmims! sntameil
Year anded 30 November 2016
Het pramiums, | Mot premiums, (ee income
fee income and and othef operating
other operating revenue 20,641 = — 0641 MEVENUE
Inwastmant return 6474 42 1,089 7555 | Investment returm
Total revenue 27,065 42 1,089 18196  Total revenue
Netinsurance and invesiment ' Mgt insurance and investment
caontract benelits 17512 {59} T68 1821 contract banefits
Other expanses &.]_'_?1‘ - 326 5058 | Other expenses
Total expenses 22,234 (59) 1,094 13319  Total expenses
Shere of losses from associabes Share of losses from
and joint venture & == S 5 assacintes and jint venture
Operating profit before tax 4,776 101 (5] 44872  Profit before tax
Moie.

{1} include unit-{inked conSrmcts.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .
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Yeor anded
30 Misperdes
2018

52190

654
140

6,084

26
(22)

125
634

i
39

1,007
288
75

]

1,471

FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
B. REVENUE
Invesiment return
Year ended

) Meambar
Lism W17
Intarast incama 5599
Dividend income 695
Rental incame 151
Invastrment incoma b AG5
Avalable for sale
Mt malised gains from debt securities 180
Impairmant of debt securitios -
Met gains of available for sals financial assets reflected in the consolidated

income statement 180

At fair value through profit or loss
Met gains of financial assets designatad at fair value through profit or loss
Nat {losses)/gains of debt securities (&%)
Net gains of equity securities 5,789
Net gains of financial instruments held for trading
Met losses of debt invesiments -
Nat fair valug movernaent on darivatives 5§13
Net gains in respect of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 6,213
Nat tair valus movemant of investmant proparty L7
Net foralgn exchange (losses)/gaing (560)
Dther net realised (losses)gains (23
Invastrment experience 677
Investmaent return 12,622

7,565

Formign curmincy movemans rasulted in the following (losseshigains recogmsed in the consolidated income statamint

[other than gains and losses ansing onitems measured at fair value through profit or loss):

Yoa endied

2 Kovembar

(t5sm 017
Forgign dxchange ((osses)oains (238)

Vaor andai
0 Biowprriher
Fa i

36

Other operating revenua
The balance of other operating revenue largely consists of asset management fees.

172 1 AlA BROUP LIMITER

4371642



EDINETOOOO

000000000000 0O(E24847)

NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

9. EXPENSES
Vanr sesded Foar ended
30 Mowember i Wowemnk-er
HE_SM T ?III1I|
Insurance cantract benelits 11.530 10,501
Change in insurance contract liabilities 13,386 8594
Investment contract benedits 1.212 245
Insurance and investment contract banefits 26,108 19,340
Insurance and investment contract benefits ceded (1.267) (1,119}
Insurance and imvestment contract banefits, net of reinsurance ceded 24.841 18,221
Commission and other acquisition expenses incurmed 5.696 4786
Defarral and amortisation of acquisition costs (2.241) {2.051)
Cammission and other acquisition axpanses 3,455 2735
Employee benefit expenses 1.243 1,168
Depreciation 65 b4
Amorisation 53 iz
Operating lease rentals 147 122
i operating Bxpanses 481 3&1
Operating axpenses 1.969 1,752
Investment managerment sxpanses and olhers 397 340
Depraciation on property held for own uze 22 |
Restriscturing and ather non-operating costs™ 142 82
Change in third-party inferests in consolidated Investment funds ] 19
Oiher exponsas 5467 L1V
Finance costs 183 145
Total 31,015 23319

Ciher operating experses inclede suditors’ remunaration of USE20m (2016 USE15m). an pnalysis of whizh is st out
below:

Yiear erded Tnut anded

10 Messembar 10 Mirearmbsr

UsSm 2047 W14

Audit servicas 14 12
Non-audit services, including:

Audit-related services™ & 1

Tax services 1 1

Other services 1 1

Total 20 15

Molex

i1} Festrachsfing costs repredant costs felabed to restruchunisg programmes dnd are primariy comprised of sedundancy and contract termination
cofts. Ok nen-copmbing costs primany coselet of acquistien-rmiated and imeg ration oxgeases

(2} Aisci-related secvicn Tor 2017 includs the audit ol the Supslamantary Embadded Value Isformation ax o1 and far tha vissr anded 30 Mo mbar
2017 {2008 mily

ANMUAL REFORT 28171 173
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Q. EXPENSES (sonteumi!
Finance costs may be analysed as:

Year ended Wear ended
3 Hewambar 30 Messpendier
Ussm 2017 2016
Repurchasa agroemants (see note 29 for details) 47 35
Medium-term notes 132 i1
Dther lnans & 3
Tatal 183 145
Employes benefit expenses consist of:
Year ended Yoar andad
30 Kovam 30 Howesrt
ol e
Wages and salaries 1,012 936
Share-based compensation 73 19
Pension costs — defined contribution plans T2 &7
Pension costs — defined benefil plans 7 "
DOther amplovee benefil expenses 79 75
Tatal 1,243 1,168
10. INCOME TAX
Year ended Yamr anded
3 Wevembar 10 Mowsendier
Us5m W7 208
Tax charged in the conselidated income statement
Current income tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax 124 ar
Current income tax = overseas 526 %2
Delerred (ncome tax on temporary differences 478 181
Tatal 1,128 660

The tax benefit or expenze attributabile to life insurance palicyholder retherns in Singapone, Brunsi, Malaysia, Australia,
Inienesia, the Philipgines and Sri Lanka i included in the tax charge or credit and s analysed separately in the consalidated
incomé statemant in ordar 10 permit companzan of the underlying affective rate of tax aitributatde 1o sharohalders from
year 1o year, The tex attributable to policyholders’ raturns included above is US$1 28m (2014 USS63m).

174 | AlA BROUP LIMITER
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

10, INCOME TAX i:ceinued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated a1 16.5 per cent. Taxation for oversess subsidiaries and branches is
charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant Jurisdictions of which the most significant
jurisdictions are autlined below

BVERVIEW

Yoar ercied ¥pur onded

A0 Mewveimibor 30 Howvembsr

Fii 016
5
Hong Kong 16.5% 16.5% =
Thailand 20% 2009 E
Singapore: 17% 17% ]
Malaysia 26% 24% g
China 25% 15% 2
Others 12%-30%  12%-30% b
£
The table above reflacts the principal rate of corparate income thx as at the ond of gach year, The rates reflect enacied or E

substantively enacted corporate ta rates throughout the vear in each junsdiction.

The table above does not includs prespective changes in corporate intome tax rates for Korea and Tahwen, which were
enacted after 30 Noverber 2017, For Korea, the corparaie income 1ax rate for the portion of taxable income that exceeds
300 billion Kerean Won will Increase from 24.2% 1o 27.5% for fiscal yvear 2018 and onwards. For Telwan, the corporate
neoma tawe rite will ingreass from 179% 10 20% Tor fiscal year 2018 and onwards Ascordingly, the financial impact of these
changas incorporate income 1ax rate have not been reflected in the consolidated financisl statements

Duering the year of 20164, Thailand enacted a permanent change inthe corporate income tax rata from 30 per cent (o 20 per
cent from assessment vear 2016 omwards, The decreass in tax rate resulted (n 8 reduction (n defarred tax Habilities of
USE314m, of which L5511 81m was recognised in profit or Inss and USS133m was recognised in other comprehensive
incoma for the year ended 30 November 2016,

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS . CORPORATE BOVERNANGE
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

10, INCOME TAX {soesinued)
The movement in net delerred tax liabilities in the period may be analysed s set out below.

Coredited/charged] to ot

M iansmiats  (charow o compestantie income ey
(labdlity] 81 Tha inoome [Fair valus Foregn {lkabdlity)

USEm Al 1 Dezombsr watamani resetve'”  gachange hary &l pean wnd
30 Bovernber 2017
Reyaluation of fingncial instruments (1,387) {52) 36 (33) - (1,158)
Delerred acquisition costs (2,196} {214) - {136) - {2,548)
Insurance and investmant contract liebilities: 1,094 (78) - 70 - 1,086
Withhalding taxes (132} (162 - 1 - (147}
Provision for expanses 110 9 - 7 - 146
Losses available for offset against future

tanable incoime &9 (39 - 1 = n
Life surplus " (536) (100} - (40) - (674&)
Othors. (293) (8) = 11 {14} (328)
Total {3,26%) (&78) ERL: {141) {14) (3,586)
30 Movember 2014
Revaluation of financial instrurmens {1.429) ] 14 2 - (1,387)
Defermed acquisition costs {2409} 1986 - 17 = {2,196)
Insurance and investment contract kabilitos 1477 (392) - 9 - 1,004
Withhalding taxes (148} {1} = 17 - (132}
Provision for expenses 139 (29} & {n 1 110
Lozses available for offsat against future

taxable income 23 LY - {1 - &9
Life surplus (5:25) [24) & 15 ] (534)
Oniers (228) ) - 5 {6} (293)
Total {3,100) (181) 14 63 (a5 (3.265)
HMalex

(1) Lie surplos relases 1o the temponary differance which sises whane tha Tnside pofis are based on acteal disbibutions frem the long-term hend,
This primanfly mtacos to Sengapers and Mulrsia

(2] O tha fair valus resorve dofarmed tas credit of USS31 &m far 301 7 (2018 USE) &m), USEI97m (2016 USS2m] rolatos to falrvatse gaing and lossas
on avalable for sale Ninonclal pssets and LSS 9m (2016 USEem) relates to Talr walug gains and lowses on smilable o sale firancial sssels
transiermad o Income on dispoaal and impakmant.

Dalerred tax essets are recognised 10 the extent that sullicient future taeble profits will be svadlable for realisation, The
Groun has not recognised deferred 1ax assets of USE5Zm (201 6: US259m) on tax losses and the temporary difference on
msurance and investment contract liabilities arsing from different accounting and statutorytax resarving methedology
for cartain branches and subsidiaries on the basis that they have histories of 12x [osses and there i insufficiant evidence
1 future profits will be available.

The Group has not provided deferred tax labilities of USS62m (2016 USE156m) in respect of unremdnted eamings of
operations in two jurisdictions (2016: three jurisdictions) from which a withholding tax charge would be incurred upon
digtribution a3 the Group does not consider it prebable that this portion of socumulated carnings will be remitted in the
foresesable future.

The Group has unused income tak losses carried farward in Hong Kong, Macau, Thalland, Malaysia, China, Karea, New
Zeatand, the Philippines. 5ni Lanka and Talwan. The tax losses of Homg Kong, Malaysia, New Zealand and Sri Lanka can be
carried forward indefinitety, The tax losses of remalning branches and subsidiarias are due to expime within the periods
ending 2020 (Macau and the Philippines), 2022 (Thailand and Ching), 2025 (Tabwan) and 2027 (Korea).
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. EARNINGS SHARE

Basic

Basic eamings per shane s calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders of AlA Group Limited by the
weighted average numbser of ardinary shares in issoe during the veas, The shares held by employes share-based irusts are
not considerad to be outstanding fram the date of the purchase for purposes of computing basic and diluted earnings per

share

Year ended Waar anded
0 Kevembar 30 Moyseriber
1017 201k
Mat profit attributable to sharaholders of AlA Group Limitad (LUSSm) 6,120 & 164
‘Welghted average number of ordinary sharas in issee (million) 12,000 11,972
Basic garmings per share (US cents por shars) 51,00 34,78

Diluted

Diluted garnings per share (s calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 1o
assume conversion of all dilutive potantial ordinary shares. s of 30 Novembar 2017 and 2016, the Group has potentially
ditutive instrurments which are the share ogtions, restricted share units, restricted stock purchase units and restricted
stock subscription units awarded to eligible directors, officers, employees and agents under various share-based
campensation plans 23 described in note 35,

Y ended Your andad

3] Keovimmbar 0 Miswserdisr

W7 06

Nat profit attributable to shareholders of AlA Group Limitad (USSm) 6,120 4,164

Weighted average numbsar of ordinary shares In isswe (milllon) 12,000 11,972

Adjustment lor shar oplicns, restricted sham units, restricted stock purchasa units

and restrictad stock subscription units awarded under share-based compensation

pkans (million) 37 34

Weighted average number of ordinary sharas for dilutad earnings per share (million) 12,037 12,006

Diluted sarnings per share (US cents per share) 50.84 3468

AL 30 Nowernber 2017, 5,340,052 share oplions (2016: 16,937 248) were excluded from the diluted webghted average
number of ordinary shares calculation as their effect would have been anti-dd utive,

Dperating profit after tax per share

Operating profit after tax (see note 5) per share is calculated by dividing the oparating profit after tax atiributable o
sharehalders of AlA Group Limited by the weighted average numbser of ordinary shares in issue during the vear, As of 30
Nowember 2017 and 2016, the Group has patentially dilutive instrumeanis which are the share options, restricted share
unitg, restricted stock purchase units and restricted stock subscription units awarded to oligible directors, officers,
employees and agents under various share-based compensation plans as described in note 38

Ve ended Wear anded
& | 0K i

3
17 2016
Basic (US cents per share) 38.73 J3125
Diluted (US cents por shang) 38,61 3116

178 | AlA BROUF LIMITER
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=
12. DIVIDENDS ]
Dividends to shareholders of the Company attributable to the year. &
(=]
Year srded ¥our onded
30 Messsmbiar 0 Mirwambsr
uEEm 27 2016
Interim dividand declared and paid of 2562 Hong Kong conts per shara
(2076 21.90 Hong Kong cents par share) a9z 338 z
Final dividend propased alier the reporting date of 7438 Hong Kong cants per shane %
(2076 63.75 Heng Hong cents per share) 1" 1,144 945 &
1,537 1323 E
=
Mote E
(1) Based upon shares culztanding at 30 November 2017 and 2076 that ase entitied 1o a dividend, olher than thoss beld by employes shase-based g
L1g]2: 4
E
The above final dividend was proposad by the Board on 27 February 2018 subject to shareholders® aporoval a1 the AGM to E
be held on 18 May 2014 The proposed fingl dividend has not been recognised as a Rability at the reporting date. -

Dividands to shareholders of the Company attributable wo the previous financial vear, approved and paid during the vear:

Yoar snded Yoas anded
10 Mawvembar 30 Blowvarmbser
il My e
Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year, spproved and paid during
the wear of 63.75 Hong Kong cents per share (2016 51.00 Hong Kong cents par shan) 983 786

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS . CORPORATE BOVERNANGE
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Distrigaution
Gomoular and glhar

MisSm Soodudl | et Tigha Tosal

Cost

At 1 Decombor 2015 808 405 870 2083
Additions - &1 3 b
Dispasals - (4] n (5
Forsign exchange movements and others {33} %) (57) (94)

At 30 Novernber 2016 -] &58 815 2,068
Additions - 53 T 130
Disposals - 2y - {2}
Forelgn exchange movements &0 17 15 92

At 30 November 2017 BIG 5246 907 2,268

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 Deeember 2015 4) {199) {45 (349}
Amartisation charge for the year - (35) (27 (&3}
Disposals - 2 1 3
Foreign exchange movements - 1 3 4

A1 30 Noverber 2014 (&) {232) (6%) (305)
Amartisatsoen charga for the yaar - {51) {33) (B}
Foreign exchange movemenis = {14) (1 (15}

At 30 November 2017 (a4} (297 (103) (404)

et book valus

At 30 Novemnber 2016 m 226 Tab 1,743

At 30 November 2017 an 229 B 1,866

The Group holds intanglble assats for its long-term use and the annual amortisation charge of USE84m (2014 USS63m)
approximates the amount that is expacted to be recovered through consumption within 12 months after the end of the
eporting period.

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill arises primarily in respect of the Group's ingurance business in Malaysia Goodwill is tested for impairment by
campareng the carrying amount af the cash-generating unit, including goodwill, to the recoverable amaunt of that cash-
generating urst. Il the recoverable amount of the wnit exceeds the carrying ampunt of the unit, the goodwill allocated o
that unit shall be reganded as not impaingd. Tha recoverable amount is the value in use of the cash-generating unit unless
otherwise stated The value in use iz determined by caloulating the present value of expected future cash flows plus a
masdtiple of the present value of the new business generated.

Value in useis calculated a5 an actuarially determined appraisal value, based on the embedded value of the business and
the value from future new business.

The key assumpiions used in the embedded value calculations include investment returns, mortality, morbidity, persistency,
expenses and inflation. The value fram future new business is calcelated based on a combination of indicators which
Include, among others, a multiple af the projected one-year value ol new businass (VONB), taking into account recent
production mix, business srategy and markel wends. The Group may apply altesnative method 1o esumate the value of
future mew business if the described mathod is not appropriate under the circumstances.
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=
14, INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE 2
[3
Vinr seded Fourended E
30 Mowember i Wowemnk-er
ussm 2017 16
Group
Investmanis in associates 636 650
Inwestment in joint veniture & =
Total 642 650

Inwestmenis in associates and joint ventire ane held for their lang-term contribution te the Group's performence and so all
amounts are expectad to be realised more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

The Group’s interests in its principal aasociates and joint venture are as follows:

Greug'n inbirenl %

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

Auat Bam

Placo of Prancipal Ty ol A0 Mowember A0 Nowernbser

INCEAprEien ln"hurn Ih.!l'ill_rllh‘.l 097 :h:l_'lﬁ

Tata AlA Lie Insurance Company Limited India Insurance  Ovdinary 49% 49%

O 25 April 3016, the Group incroased its sharcholding of Tata AlA Lite Insurance Company Limited from 26 per cent o 49

peer cent. §
3
All associates and joint venture are unlisied. E
(=}
(=]
Aggregated financial information of assoeciates and joint vinture B
The investrents in the essociates and jaint venture are measured using the equity mathod The following table analyses, .4
In aggregate, the corrying amount and share of profit and other comprehensive income of these associates and jaint [
wenture, E
Yoar srched Vo eded
30 Mowember 30 Wowambsr
UEEm T Pkl
Carrying amount in the statament of financial position b4 650
Losses from continidng operations = (5)
il comprehsnsve (s paensss 1incoemi (24} 43
Total comprehensive (oxpenses)/incame (24) 38

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Progerty Fntores snd
hidd dor Compular Hitsings and

A5 Lo Ry bl Tosl

Cost or revaluation

At 1 Decombor 2015 615 207 357 1,179
Additions 3 19 13 153
Disposals {34} LK) {13 (83)
et transfers from invesiment property 19 - - 19
Increase from valuation 312 - - J12
Foreign exchange movements {10} ] (AL} 123)

At 30 Novernber 2014 905 188 At 1557
Additions 1 23 Y. w0
Dispesals 7 (21} (58) (BA&)
Het transfers to investment property (24} - - (24)
Increase from valuation &2 - - 62
Foreign exchange movements &2 11 18 rs!

At 30 November 2017 979 201 490 1.670

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 December 2015 {200} (172) {228) {00}
Depraciation chargae for tha year {15} {19} {45) {79}
Dispogals 11 28 = )
Revaluation adjustment 209 = = a0
Forelgn exchange movements (-] 3 B b

At 30 Movernber 2016 = (160) (265) (%25)
Depreciation charge lor the year {18) {18} (47) (81}
Digpesals ] 19 a7 &1
Rewaluation adjustmant 10 - - 10
Farsign sxchange movemants 1 (6] [14) (22)

At 30 Movernber 2017 E (168) {289} (457}

Net book value

At 30 Novernber 2016 g5 28 199 1,132

At 30 Novemnber 2017 97q 33 201 1.213

Proparties hifld Tor own use are carried at lair valoe at the reporting date less accumulated depreciation. The Fair value at
the reporting date is determined by indepandent professional valuers. Detalls of valuation techniques and process are
disclosed in notes 3 and 21,

During the reporting period; no expenditune (2016 nil) recognised inthe carrying amount of property held for own use was
in the course af its construction. Increases from revaluation en property held for own use of US372m (2016 USS821m)
wie taken 1o other compaehansive [neorms.

IFproparty held for own use wene $tatod ona historical cost basis, the corrying value would be US$373m (2016 USE393m),
The Group hofds property, plant and eqguipment for its long-term wse and, accordingly, the annual depreciation charge
approximates Lo the amaunt expected to be recovered through eongumplion within 12 momhs after the and of the reporting
panod.
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY S

P

Fair value

Al 1 Decamber 2015 3659
Additiong and capitalised subsequent axpend|lures a0
Disposals {3} S
Met transfers to property, plant and equipment (1%} =
Met transiers to other assets (40} E
Falr value gain 288 [
Forelgn exchangs mavomants [35) E

At 30 November 2016 3910 2
Additions and capitalised subsequent expenditures 10 -
Disposals (12) 2
Met transfars from property, plant and equipment 24 E
Falr value gain a7
Forsign exchangs movemants 1

At 30 Navember 2017 4,365

Inwestmant properties are carried at fair value at the reporting datle as determined by independent professional valuers.
Datails of valuation techniques end process are disclosed i notes 3 and 21.

The Group leases out its investment property under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
Iwelve years, with an oplion to renew the lease based on fulure negotiations. Lease payments are usually negoliated avery
on 1o thras years to reflect markat rentals, Thene were not koy material contingent rentals earned as incomea for the year.
Rental income génerated from investment peoperty amountad to US5151m (3014 USS140m). Direct operating expenses
(including repair and maintenance) on investment property thet gencrates rental income amounded 1o USE31m (2016
USEIZm).

The Group owns investment property in the farm of freshald land outside Hong Kong and |aasehold land under finance
bease Leazehold land under operating leases which is held for long-term rental or capital appreciation or both that is not
oocupied by the Group is classified as investment property, They are indtially recognised at cost with changes in fair values
i subsequent periods recognizad in the consolldated Income siatement. The Group does not hald freehold land In Hang
Kong

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

The future minimum operating lease mnial income under nan-cancellable operating Ieases that the Group expects 1o
recalve in fulure pariods may be analysed as follows:

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Hn af LI
30 Mowemiber 30 Mowembser
Uigm INT__ ﬂﬂ&_
Leases of investmant property
Expiring no Later than ane year 135 11
Expiring later than ona year and na laler than five years 261 143
Eupiring after five years or more n ;|
Total 407 272

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN
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17. REINSURAMCE ASSETS

B Hgat
3 hovembar J0 Mioyeeriber
ussm il ClLd
Amaunts recoverable from reingurers 506 335
Coded insuranco and investment contract liaksilities !._H_'E_ .71
Tatal 2481 2045
18. DEFERRED ACQUISITION AND ORIGINATION COSTS
Aa s at
30 Kevembar 30 Movember
USEm JGH_I' —_2_3_1-3_
Carrying amaunt
Delerred peguisition cosis on insurance contracts 21,345 18,351
Deferred origination costs on Investmant contracts. 373 %18
Value of business acquired 129 129
Tatal 21,847 18,558
Yiear endid Your andud
3 Kavembar 30 Mioyermber
7017 2016
Mowemants in the year
At beginning of financial year 16,898 17,092
Delerral and amortization of aoguisition and orginatian coss 2318 2057
Foreign exchange movemanis 833 (172)
Impact of assumption changes (77 {13
Other movements (125) {73}
At end of financial year 21,847 18,808

Delerred acquisition and origination costs are expacted to be racoverable over the mean term of the Group's inzurance and
investment contracts, and liability adeguacy testing s performed a1 least annually o confirm their recoverabsilicy,
Accordingly, the annual amortisation charge, which varies with investment perfarmance far cartain universal life and enit-
limked products, approsmates 1o the amount which is expecied to be realised within 12 months of the end of the reporting
perigd.
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19, FINAMCIAL INVESTMENTS

The following tables analyse the Group's financial investments by type and nature. The Group manages its financial
Imvestments in two distinct categories: Unit-linked Investments and Policyholder and Shareholder Investments. The
erestrment risk in respect of Unit-linked lrvestments s generally wholly borme by our customers, and does not directly
atfect the profit for the year befere tax. Furthermaore, unit-linked contract holders are responsible for ailocation of their
policy values amongst investiment ogtions offered by the Group Although profit for the year before tax i not alfected by
Unit-linked Investments, the investmamt retwrn from such inancial investments & included in the Group®s profil for the
year before tax, 83 the Group has elected tha fair value aption for all Unit-finked Investmants with correspanding changes
in insurance and investment contract liabilities for unit-linked contracts. Policyholder and Shareholder Investments
include all financial investments other than Unit-linked Investments, The investment risk in respect of Polieyholder and
Shareholder Investments is partially or wholly barme by the Group.

BVERVIEW

Policyholder and Sharchalder Investments are further categorised as Participating Funds and Onther Policyhalder and
Shareholder. The Group has elecied o separately analyse financial investments held by Participating Funds within
Policyholder and Shareholder Investments as they are subject 1o local regulations that generally prescribe a minimum
propertion of policyholder participation in declared dividends. The Group has elected the fair value option for debt and
eguity securities of Participating Funds. The Group's accounting pelicy is 10 record an insurance lability for the groportion
of net agsets of the Participating Funds that would be allacated to palicyholders assuming all performance would be
declarad as a dividend based upon local regulations as at the date of the staterment of financial position, As a result the
Group's net profit for the year before tax s Impacted by the proportion of investmant return that wadld be allocated to
shareholders as described above.

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

Othver Palicyholder and Shareholder lmvestments ane distingt from Unit-linked Investments and Participating Funds as
there {s not any direct contraciual or regutatory reguirement governing the amount, if any, for allocation o polleyholdars.
The Group has otocted to apply the fair value option for equity securities in this category and the ovailablo for sale
classification in respect of the majority of debt securities in this category, The investment risk from mvestments in this
cetegory directly impacis the Group's finencial statements. Although 'a proportion of investment return miy be Mlocated 1o
palicyholders through palicyholder dividends, tha Group's accaunting policy for insurancea and certain investmant contract
labilitos utitises a net level pramium methedology that includes bost estimates as at the date of issee for non-guarantesd
participation. To the extent investment return from these investments edther |5 not allocated to participating contracts or
wiries [rom the best estimaes. it will impact the Group's profit before tax.

In the fallowing tables, “FVTPL" indicates financial investments classitied a1 fair value through profit or loss and “AFS”
indicates financial investmeants classified as available for sale.

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

Debt securities

In compiling the tables, extemal ratings have been usad where available. Whers external ratings am oot readily available
an intirnal rating mathodalegy has besn adopted, i applicable. External ratings for govarmmant bonds ane basad on issuers
as will as currencies of lssuances. The following conventions have been adopted to conform the varous ratings.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

. Extoreal ratings R Irteerial rasicegs Finparted mu
= bt s S Mooy,
AlA fan 1 AAA
Bb 4 to AR Anl to And 24 102- Al
A o A Alto A3 Iro3- A
BEB+ 10 BBB- Baal v Baa3 fi# 10 - BEB
BB+ and balow Bal and below Srandbelow  Below investment grade'™

Hote
(1] Wnless atharwisn idenified |ndibdasly
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19. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS icomtinuadi
Debt securities iconnnued)
Debt securities by type comprise the following:

Policykoider and sharehulder

Consolidatnd
Participating  Dthar policyhoider and Investmera
funds sharehaldar Unit-linked funda

Ijs_&ﬂ. lhlng FVTPFL FUTPL AFE Eublotsl FUTPL FVTPL Tatal
30 Nevember 3077
Government bonds

- Issued in local currency
Thaitand A - - 13,161 13,141 - - 13141
China A 1.520 - 6,821 8341 ar - 8,368
Romea AR - - 5439 5,439 72 - 5711
Singapore ABA 2460 - 1,230 3670 Ul - A, 145
Philippines BBE - - 2,346 2346 55 - 2,401
Malaysia A 1.249 - 562 1.811 25 - 1,836
Unitad States AR 168 - 3,100 3.268 1 - 3,269
Indonesia BBB w a5 are %81 55 - 536
Dthar™ ] - Thb 750 2 - 752
Subtotsl 5,440 25 33762 39247 913 = &0,160
Government bonds

~ foreign currency
AR - - - - ] = 8
AR 16 - T B35 25 - B&0
A 90 - 831 1 16 = 9ar
BEE 95 45 1,677 1817 185 - 2002
Below Investment grada - 12 53 &5 - - &5
Subtotal 21 57 3,360 3.638 234 - 3872
Government agency

bonds™
ARA 1.184 - 08 2,092 o0 - 2,182
A 367 - 3517 3,684 63 263 4210
A 2084 3 3,051 5138 3& 56 5232
gER 198 1w 1493 170 5 - 1706
Below Investment grada Fal 1 260 332 1 - dab
Subtotal 3,904 14 9,279 13147 210 319 134676
Hatex:

{1} Of tha Ioial governmant Bands ssued in local curmency listed & “Othee™ &t 30 Novomiss 1017, &4 por oo ane mbed a3 Investmont grade snd
Turther 38 par cart s raied BE- and abeva, The remaining ars mied below BB-

(@} Gowernment agency bonds comprisn bonds ssued by govemmant -sponscred institutions such as national, provincial and municipal suthorties;
povemment-relstod entities mulblateral development banks and supranational ceganésationa.

(3} Coranldated nwestment funds pellect 100 per cart of 2saets and Babidities held by such funds.
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19, FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (csetiused) g

Debt securities (2o &
(=}

Ful.lﬂ:hnlnurmdmm Conscldabed
Participating Oeher policy®obier and AvmEimant
hands shareholder Uinit=linked Funde™

UsEm FUTRL FVTRL RES  Sebmotal FUTRL FVTRL Total

A0 Wovember 2017 5

Corporate bonds 5

B iah - 431 &77 5 - “82 E;

an 475 17 &0m 4,513 1 49 4873 =z

L] 5,185 &3 26150 32T arr 1.13% 32894 E

BEE 4510 106 26461 30,077 598 181 30856 -

Balow investmant grade 679 19 241 3119 19 = 3310 E

ol rated = 2 - 2 177 - 179 E

Subtotal 10,895 187 S5B.484 69566 1,359 1669  715% z

Structured securities'

AAA = - L] 9 - - 9

A - - (73 173 - - 13

A 18 - a1 319 - - 319 #

BBB 165 - 250 415 - - &15 ;

Balow investmant grade - - ] ] - - ] E

Mot rated 11 &1 1 53 = - 53 E

Subtotal 194 &1 631 BES - - CLT 2

Total™ 20,674 324 105466 126464 2,716 1.988 131,168 E
[+}

Moles: =

13} Consolidatad investment funds reliect 100 paf cont of assets and liabilities Febd by iush funds
(&) Struchured secuntes includi collatemlised debt obligatians, morgage-buckng sacuriting ann other swset-backed sacuritie
(5] Dkt securilios of US54.900m am resirictad dus fo local mguiatary mgulnements.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN

ANMUAL REFORT 2017 1 187

4521642



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
Oooooooa

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS icomtinundi

Debt securities (conunued)
Poscyhondes and sharebolder Censolidniod
Panicigating  Othes pobcyhokier and TVRRETIBN
funds sharshaidar Uritlinkod funds®

UStm Ratirg BVTPL | FWTPL | ARG Subdotal FVTRL FTRL Tatal
A0 Mowember 2017 &
Government bonds

- issued in local currency
Thailand A - - 11.313 11,313 - - 11313
Chiria AR 1,635 - 6510 8145 19 - 8164
Konea AR - = 4171 171 280 - & 651
‘Singapore AR 1,552 = 950 2502 kLT - 2889
Philippines BBB - = 1527 2527 (1] = 2595
Malaysia A 1.185 - 414 1.599 n = 1,621
United States AR 16 - 1587 1.603 2 - 1,605
Ingignesia BE 57 10 87 G5 ar - 91
Other'™ b = 639 639 ' = 61
Subtotal iy 45 10 28498 32953 a1r = 33770
Gevernment bonds

= foreign currency
AAA - - - - 3 - k]
AR 5 - 713 138 26 - Tha
A 73 - &7TH H69 7 - b6
BEB 10 28 710 T48 124 = E74
Balow investmant grada il 9 7 823 20 - 873
Subtotsl 185 57 2716 2558 222 - 3180
Government agancy

bonds™
AAR 1.107 - 782 1.889 105 34 2028
AR G945 - 5327 65272 75 182 6,529
i 898 3 1,245 2146 26 15 2187
BER 220 9 1,265 V4745 1 = 1,480
Below investment grads 30 = 121 151 " | - 154
Not rated - - - - & - ]
Subtotal 3,200 12 87200 11932 23 231 12386
Hares:

(1} O tha lctal governmant Bonds issued in local curmncy lsted s "Other” ot 30 Nowambet 7014, 49 por cent ame mied 25 investmant gracde snd a
farsher 35 per cert are ratod BE- and abeve. The remaining are misd below 5B-

{2y Gowwnmanl agency bords comprise bands iesuad by govommant -spentoned instilutions such a2 natignal, provincial and municipal authorities.
govermmant-reated ent ks mulklatenl developmend banke and suprnations] erganisstions.

{3} Corsolidated irvestment funds reflect |00 per cent of assets and Batulses held by such funds
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19, FINAMCIAL INVESTMEMTS (conditmied) E
Debt securities (coneued) &
Policyholder arad gharshoidat o — N
Parcipaling  Cihar pslicyfices and imesimang
furds. starohalder Linit-linked fundr™
UsEm FUTPRL FWTPL WS Subtatal EVTRL FVTPRL Tatal
A0 Wovember 20086 5
Cerporate bonds 3
AAA &8 - 237 2E5 4 Gt 335 -
Ay 573 22 4DB?  4b6B2 o] 351 5054 z
A 4,863 13 21554 26530 478 983 27939 Y
B 4351 125 20382 24768 BAb 270 25594 E
Balow invastmant grada 874 8 ap4é 3928 140 3 4on g
Mot rated - - 1 1 133 14 153 E
Subtotal 10,611 168 &9405  BOJBG 1295 1667 63146 z
Structured securities'
AAA - - 20 20 - - 20
AA 13 - 7 w2 - - 92
A 20 20 381 421 - - 421 s
B8 223 - 270 453 1 - 494 :
Balow investmant grade = 50 = 50 = = 50 E
Hot ratied 10 46 3 59 - - 59 s
Subtotal 66 114 TE3 1,135 1 = 1136 2
Total™ 18,707 363 90092 1091462 21558 1898 113618 E
[+}
Moles: =

(3} Consolidated investment lund rellect 100 pi cont of axsets and liabilities Pedd by sush funds
(&) Struchured secuntes includi collatemlised debt obligatians, morgage-buckng sacuriting ann other swset-backed sacuritie
(5] Dkt securilios of USS33%84m am resirictad dus fo local mguiatary reguiremants.

The Group's debt securities classified at fair value through profit or loss can be analysed as follows:

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Az at aAn

0 Mevembar 30 Noveamesr

UsEm 2047 2014
Debt securities = FVTPL

Designated at fair valee through profit or loss 25,702 23,509

Held for trading - 17

Total 25,702 23,526

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN
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19, FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (cortinund
Equity securities
Equity securities by type comprise the following

Paoteyholder and shasholdar

EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
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Oher
pelisyhalder Sonaclidabed
Farticipating and mwestmant
Tuns wkarehalder Unin: ik fundy™
= FUTPL FY¥TPL Salsiobal FVTPL FWTFL Tatal
10 Movembas 3017
Equity shares & 531 9,247 13,898 4,610 - 18,508
Irerests in investment funds FALL 1.674 3.865 16,3563 = 18,208
Total 6,822 10,941 17,763 18,953 - 36,716
Pollcyheldar and snarsholdie
Bthar
pallevhelder Corpidetited
Participading Bl inwestmant
[P =1 whamheldar Riraz-link nd Humig™
UsSsm FVTPL FWTPL Sulrbetal FVTL FY¥TPL Tatal
10 Mowember 2076
Equity shares 3,705 & 967 10472 3,608 1 14,281
Interests in investment funds 1,744 2295 4,041 11,886 3 15,530
Tatal 5451 9262 14713 154634 1 A0,211
Mol
[1) Corsolicated irveatrment jumds peflect 100 per cont of ssets and Db ses held by such funds.
Debt and equity securities
s Agal
30 Nowember 36 Mewerriber
Usim W17 kIl
Dabt securitios
Ligted 100,647 B&,105
Untizted 30,521 27,513
Tatal 131,168 113,613
Equity securities
Listed 20,205 16,394
Uinkisted™™ 16,511 13.817
Total 36,718 30,211
Hote:

{1} Inchicing LSS51E IT5m (2016 WSS 3067 m] ol investmant hunds which can bo redoomed daly
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

19. FINAMCIAL INVESTMENTS (cordinued)

Interests in structured entities

The Group has determined that the investment funds and structured securities. such as collateralised debi obligations,
mirigage-hacked securities and nther asset-hacked securities that the Group has intemst are straciuned sntitses.

BVERVIEW

The Group has consolidated certain invesiment funds for which the Group provides guarantes on capital or rate of return
o the investors and deemed to have control based on an analysis of the guidance in IFRS 100 For these investment funds,
thi Group has the ability 1o mduce the guaranteed rates of return, subject to obsining aporovals of applicable regulators
The Group has an obligation toabsorb losses in the evant that the returns of the funds are insufficient 1o cover the capital
orrate of retunn guarames provided to the investors.

The followsng table surmmarises the Group’s imerest in unconsolidated structured entities:

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

A il IO November 2017 s 8t 30 Movembe 2016

[Fme— Stetuned Invesmant Struchufed
Ut [N sacurities™ Furds sacuritien’'!
Available lor sale dobt securities 1.250% 631 9306 753
Debt securities at fair value through profit or loss 520 235 4B 383
Equity socuritios at fair valug throwgh profit or loss 18,208 - 16,530 -
Total 19978 Bbs 17,368 1,136
Holex:

{1} Structured securite include coliatorlised debt obligation, morgage-backed socurtios and othar asiet-Eacknd seouries.
{2} Balaree regresents the Group's maneits in debt secisfites maied by real estabs investment trists.

The Group's maximum expodure to 1053 arsing from its interests i these unconsolidated structured entities i3 limited 1o
the carrying amount of the assets. Dividend income and intevest income ate received during the reporting period from
these Interests in unconsolidated structured entites.

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

In additicn, the Group recefves management fees and trustes fees in respect of providing trustee, management and
administrative services to certain retirement schame funds and imvestment funds. These funds are not hold and the
agsocipted investment risks are not barne by the Group, the Group dees not have exposure 10 loss in these funds.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .
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FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

19, FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (continundi

Loans and deposits
As st A at

3 Nevambar 30 Meswprrdyer
Uisim W17 2018
Palicy leans 2,726 2448
Mortgage loans on reskdential real estete 400 ity
Mortgage loans on commercial real estate 51
Dther ipams B89 7ar
Allowance for loan |0s5es (12) {13}
Loans 4,258 3769
Teim deposits 2138 1,847
Promissory notes'™ 1579 1 Gty
Tatal 7.972 1062
Hobe:

[1} The promissory pifes are liusd by o giveinment.

Certain term deposis with financial institutions and promissory notes are restricted due to local regulatory reguirements
or ather pledge restrictions. The restricied balance held within term deposits and promissery noies is USE1,749m (2014;
LISH1,638m).

Other lgans include receivables from reeerse repurchase agreements under which the Group does not take physical
possassion of securitles purchased under the agreements. Sales or translers of gecurities are not parmitied by the
respective clearing house on which they are registared whila the loan is outstanding. In the event of default by tha
counterparty 1o repay the loan, the Group has the right 1o the underlying securities helg by the clearing house. At 30
Mowember 2017, the carrying value of such receivables is USE326m (2014 USE224m),

1#3 | AlA BROUP LIMITER
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS E
The Group's non-hedge denivtive sxposure was a3 follows: &
Fair vaiue N

ussm Watinal ssmaur Ansels Leabillties

30 Novernbior 2017

Foreign exchange contracts =
Cross-currency swaps 7569 249 (164) =
Forwards 5921 47 (142) =
Forelgn exchange fuluras 139 - - [
Curranicy oplions 7 - 2 g

Total foreign exchange contracts 13,636 294 (306) 2

Interest rate contracts -
Imerest rate swaps 3,157 51 (55) 2

COthar £
Warrants and options 161 16 =

Hetting (139) - -

Total 16,815 363 {341}

A0 Novdember 2014 N

Foraign exchange contracts i
Cross-currency sweps 7.660 28 (567) H
Forwards 1,710 as () g
Forelgn exchange futuras 192 - - E
Currency options 13 = = 5

Total foreign exchange contracts 9575 fds (573} a

Interest rate contracts
Interest rate swaps 1,851 a0 [(¥5}

Other
Warrants and options 1520 13 (343

Netting [192) < =

Total 12,754 107 (6]

The colwmen “noticnal amount” in the above table represents the pay leg of dervative transections other than equity index
aplion, For certain eguity-index call and put options with same notional amount that are purchased to nedge the downside
risk of the underlying equities by means of a collar strategy, the notional amount represents the exposure of the hedged
equities.

O the wal derivatives, US38m (2016 U551 2m) are listed in exchange or dealer markets and the rest are over-the-counter
(OTC) derivatives. OTC derivative contracts are individually negotiated between contracting parties and nod cleared through
an exchange. OTC derivatives include forwards, swaps and options. Dertvatives sre subject b varous rsks Including
market, liguidity and credit risks, similar to those relatad to the underlying financial instruments.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Derivative assets and dorivative liabilities are mcognised in the consolidated statameant of financial position as financial
assels at fair value through profit or loss-ang derivative financial liabilities respectively. The Group's derivetiva contracts
are astablished to aconomic hedge financial exposures. The Growp adopts hedge accounting in limited circumstances. The
notienal or contractual amounts associated with derivative financial instruments are not recorded as azsets or llabilives in
the consolidated statement of financial position as they do net represant the fair value of these transactions. The notional
amounts in the previous table reflect the aggregete ol individugl derivative positions on & gross basis and 5o give an
indication of the overall scale of derivative transaclions.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN
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FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued

Foreign exchange contracts

Forelgn exchange forward and futures contracts represent agreements to exchange the currency of one country for the
currency of another country 8 an agreed price and settlement date. Currency options are soresments thal give the buyer
the right to exchange the currency of one country for the currency of another country at agreed pricas and sattlament
dates, Currency Swaps are contraciual agregments that involve the exchange of bath periodic and final amounts in two
diflerent currencies. Exposuns o gains and losses on the forefgn exchange contracts will incresse or decrease ower thair
respective lives s a function of maturity dates, interest and foreign exchange rates. implied volatlities of the underiving
indeces and the timing of payments

Interest rate swaps

Irterest rate swaps are contraciual agreements between two parties (o sxchange periodic payments in the same currency,
each of which is computed on a different Interest rate basis. on a specified notional amount. Most interest rate swaps
involvd the it exchange of payments calculated as the differance between the ficed and fioating rate interest paymaonts.

Dther derivatives
‘Warranis and options are option agreaments that give the owner the right to buy or sell securities at an agreed price dnd
settlement date.

MNotting adjustmaont
The netting adjustmeant is redated to futures contracts executed through clearing house where the settlement arrangement
satisfied the neting criteria under IFRS.

Collateral under derivative transactions

At 30 Novermbaer 2017, the Group had posted cash collateral of USH10m (2016 U551 88m) and pledged debt securities
with carrying value of USS227m (2014 USE440m) for labilities and held cash collateral of USE141m (2014 USHEm),
debt securities collateral with carrying valwe of USS15m (2076: USSEm) for assets in respect of dervative Iransaclions.
The Group did not sell or repledge the collataral received, These transactions are conducted under terms that ane usual and
cugtemarny to collateralsed transactiohs including, whare relevant, standard mpurchite sgresmants.
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Fair value of financial instruments

BVERVIEW

The Group classifies all financlal assets as elther at fair value through profit or boss, or as available for sale, which are
carried at fair value, or as loans and recervables which are carriad 8t amortised cost. Finaneial liabilities are classified as
aither at fair value through profit or loss or at amortised cost, axcept lor investment contracts with DPF which are accounted

for under IFRS 4.

Thee followeng tabiles pregent thie fair values of the Group's linancial assets and financial labdlities:

i

30 Movember 2017
Financial investmants
Loang and deposils
Disbt sacurities
Equity securities
Derivative linancial instrumenis
Relnsurance recelvables
(nihesr recedvables
Accrued investment income
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets

Financial lsabilities
Inwastment contract liabilitias
Borrowings
Obligations undar repurchase agreements.
Derivative financial instruments
Cther liabdlities
Finaneial Labilities

Wains

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

Far value

Fair walun Cast! Tatnl
through Avallable amortised casying Total fair
prafi of laey les aaln Enik walun wlus
- - 7,973 7973 7977
25702 105466 = 131768 131,168
36,716 = = 36,716 36,716
363 - - 363 263
- - 506 506 506
- - 2,150 2,150 2,150
- - 1,541 1561 1,561
= - 2,289 2289 2,289
2781 105466 16,459 182706  18RL710

Fair walun Cantf Total
through amortised carrying Total fair
Holss penli of loas Enis walus walus
] 7,502 580 B.oa2 B.082
L - 3.958 3958 1646
] - 1.882 1883 1.883
i 361 = a1 381
] 1,225 4,663 5,888 5,888
0,088 11,084 20,172 20,358
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21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (rontinund)
Fair value of financial instruments (conseusa)
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Falr walue
Foltvalee Cantf Total
Hraugh Aerailabbn amorimod oarrying Total duir
'I:I‘S&n Moses e er loss Tor gabe cosl walim VAl
30 November 207 &
Financial investments 1%
Loans and deposits - = 7.062 7042 1.068
Dbt securities 23526 B0.05%2 - 113618 1136718
Equity securities 30,211 = = 30,211 30,211
Darivative financial instrumants 20 107 - - 107 107
Refnsurance recelvables: 17 = = 335 335 335
Other receivables ] = - 1,934 1,934 1,534
Accrued investment income Fr E = 1,383 1383 1,383
Cash and cash oquivalents 2 - - 0T 1,647 1,547
Finmneial assets 53844 920,092 12356 156201 156,295
Fair vakss Canty Total
tranugls amart st wrrEing ‘Total Huis
Hites Bl of ke el Vi [T
Financial linbilities
Invastmant contract liabilities =1 6459 529 7028 7.028
Bormowings 28 = 3,460 o0 3479
Obligations under rapurchase agreemants % - 1,584 1,584 1,984
Derivative financial instruments 20 bk - G4 by
Dther Labillitias n 1,239 d46eB4 4723 4,723
Financial linbilities B.3B2 3.4657 17,839 17,868

The carrying emount of 2ssels included [n the above tables represents the maximum eredit exposure.

Forelgn currency exposure. including the net notlonal amount of forelgn currency derivailve positons, is shown in note 36

for the Group's key foreign exchange exposures

The fadr vakue of investment contract Babilitios measunsd at amartised cost isnot considered to bo materially ditferont from

the amortised cost carrying valug.

The carmying value of financial instruments expacied to be sattlad within 12 months {afier taking Into account valuation

allowances, whare apolicable) is not consicered to be materally different from the fair value.
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (cortinued)

Fair value measurements on a recurring basis

The Group measures at fair value property hald for own use, Investment property, financial instruments classified at fair
walue through profit or loss, available lor sale secorities portlolics, derivative assets and liabilities, imvestments held by
mvastmant funds which are consolidated, investments in non-consolidated investmant funds and cerfain investmant
contract abilities on a recurning basis

BVERVIEW

Thee fair valus of & linancial instrement i the amaunt that would be recelved on $ala of an asset oF paid to transler a Lability
in an arderly transaction between market participants at the measunemant date;

The degree of judgement wsed in maasuring the fair value of linencial instruments generally cormalates with the level of
pricing observability. Financial instrumants with quoted prices inactive markets generally have mose pricing observability
and lass judgemant is used in messuring lair value, Comersely, financial instruments traded in other than active markets
or that do not have quoted prices have less obsarvabillty and are measured at fair value using valuation models or other
pricing tochnigues that roquire more judgament. An active markel B one in which transactions for the asset or lability
being valued occur with sufficient irequency and volume 1o provide prcing infior maton on an engoing basis.

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

An other than active market is one i which there are lew iransactions, the prices are nol current, price guotations vary
substantially aither over time or smong market makers, oc in which linle information is released publicly for the asset or
lizbility being valued. Pricing observebility is affected by a number of factors, including the type of financial instrumen,
whaothar thi financial instrument i new to the market and ot yet establishad, the characteristics spacific to the transaction
and general market canditions.

Falr value of properties is based on veluation by independent professional valuers.

The Growp does not have assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis during the vear ended 30
Hovember 2017

The fallowing methods and assumations ware wsed by the Group 1o estimate the fair value of linancial instruments and
prOperties:

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

Datermination of fair value

Loans and roceivables

For loans and advances that ane repriced frequently and have not had any significent changes in credit risk, carrying
amounts rapresent a reasonable estimate of fair valuas. The fair values of gther loans ame estimated by discounting expected
future cash flows using interest rates offered for similar loans 1o borrowers with similar credit ratings.

The fair values of morigape |loans are estimated by discounting futere cash flows using inmerest rates curmently belng
offered in respect of similar loans to borrowers with similar credit ratings. The fair values of fixad rata policy loans are
esumated by discounting cash flows a1 the interest rates charged on policy loans of similar policies currently being issued.
Loans with similar characteristics are aggregated for purposes of the calculations. The carrying valuas of policy loans with
wariabbe riles Epproximats to thair fair values.

Debt securities and equity securities

Thae fair values of equity securities are based on guoted market prices or, if unguoted. on estimated market values generally
bazed on quoted prices for similar securities. Fair values Tor fixed interest securities are Based on quoted markel prices.
whaera available. For thosa securities not actively traded, fair values are estimated using values obtained from beokers.
private prcing services o by discounting expected luture cash flows using a current market rate applicable to the yiold,
cradit quality and maturity of the investment. Priority is given to values from independent sources when available, but
overall he source of pricing andfor valuation technigue is chosen with the objective of arriving &t the price atwhich an
orderly transaction would take place between markel participants on the measurement date The inputs ta determining
falr value that are relevant to fixed inlarest securities include, but not lmited 1o risk-free intetest rates, the obligor's cradit
spreads, foneign exchange rates and credit default rates, For holdings in bedge funds and lirmited partnerships, fair values
are determined based on the netassel values provided by the general partnir or manager of gach investmen, the sccounts
of which are generally audited on an annual basis. The transaction price 15 used as the best astimate of fair valus at
ncegption.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT [continued)

Determination of fair value rconinued)

Darivative financial instruments.

The Greup values {is derlvative financial assets and liabilities using markel transactions and other market evidence
‘whenever possible, including market-basad inputs to models, model calibration to marks clearing transactions, broker or
dealer guotations or altesnative pricing scurces with reasonable levels of price ransparency, When models are used, the
salection of a particular model to value a derivative depends on the contract terms of, and specilic risks inharent in, the
ingtrument a3 well as the availability of pricing infarmation inthe market. Tha Group genarally vses similar models 1o value
similar instrumants. Valuation maodels require a variety of inputs, incleding contractual terms, market prices and rates,
vield curves, credit curves, measures of volatility, prepayment rates and correlations of such inputs. For desivatives that
trade in liguid markets, such as generic forwards, swaps and options, modal inputs can generally ba verified and model
selection does not (nvolve significant management judgement. Exampies of inputs thal ane generally observable include
formign exchange spol and forward rates, benchmark interest rate curves and wolatilities for commonly traded option
produscts Examples of inputs that may be enobaervable ineluds valatlities for less commanly traded aption products and
carelations batween market factors.

‘Wi the Group Halds a group of dervative assets ant derivative labslities entered inio with a particular cosnterparty, the
Group takes- into accaunt the arrangaments that mitigate credit risk exposure in the event of default {e-g. Intermational
Swap.and Derivativas Association (1ISDA] Master Agreemants and Credit Support Annax (C5A) that reguire the sxchange of
eollsteral on the basis of each party's ret enedit risk exposure), The Group measures the fair value of the group of finoneisl
assats and financial labilities on the basis of its net exposune 19 the credit risk of that counterparty or the counterparty’s
net exposure to our credit risk that refiects market partscipants’ expectations about the Hikedihood that such an errangement
woild b legally enforceable in thi event ol defaull

Proparty held for own use and investment proporty

The Group engaged external, independent and qualified valwers to determing the fair value of the Group's properties at
least on an annial basis. The valustion on open marke: value basis by independent professional valuer for certain
investmeant propertias was calculated by reference to net rental income allowing for reversicnary ineome potential. The fair
valuas of sther propertes were denved using the Market Data Approach. In this approach, the values are based on sales
and listing of comparable property registered In the weinity.

The propertias held for own wse and imastmen! properties, in most cases, are valued on the basis of the highest and best
use ol the propertees that is physically possible. legally permissiole and financially feasible. The current wseof the properties
ane conssdered to be its highest and best use; records of recent sales and offerings of similar property are analysed and
comparsson made for guch facters as size, location, quality and prospective use. On limited occasions, potential
redevelopment of the properties in use would be taken into account when they would masimise the fair value of the
properties; the Group is ocoupying these properties for operational purposes.

Cash and cash equivalonts

The carrying amount of cash appmximates i1s fair value.

Reinsurance recoivables

The carrying amount of @mounts receivabie from reinsurers |s not consicered materially gitferent 1o thedr fair value.

Fair value of securities sold under repurchase agreemants and the asseciated pavables

The conmract values-of payables under repurchase agreaments approximate their fair value as these obligations are short-
term i nature,

Other assets

The carrying amount of other financial assets is not materially ditfarent fo their fair value The fair values of dapasits with
banks are generzlly based on quoted market prices or, If unguoted, on estimates based on discounting future cash flows
using svailabls market intorest rates offered for receivables with similar charactenistica
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT icortinued)

Determination of fair value (conirus)

Investment contract liabilites

For invesiment contract liabilities, the fair values have been estimated using a discounted cash flow approach based on
interest rates currently being offered for similar contracts with maturities consistent with thoza ramaining for the contracts
being valued, For myvestment contracts where the investmant risk is borme by the policyholder, the fair value generally
approsimates (o e fair value of the enderlying aszsets.

BVERVIEW

Investmant contracts with DPF enable the contract holder to meceive additional benefits as a supplement to guarantead
benefits. Thase are referred 10 as participating business and are measured and classified accarding to the Group practice
for insurance contract liabilities and hence are disclosed within note 25, Thase am not measwred at fair value as theoe is
currently not an agreed definition of fair value for investment and insgurance contracts with DPF under IFRS. In the sbsence
of any agreed methodology, It i not possible to provide a range of estimates within which fair value i likely to fall, The
LASH is expecting to address this issus in Phase || of lis insurance contracts project.

Barrowings
Thee fakr values of borrowings with stated maturities have been estimated based on discounting future cash flows using the

nterest Fates currently applicable 1o deposits of simfar maturities or pricas obtained from brokers.

Other linbilivies

The fair values of ather unguetad financial liakilities is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using curnent
market rates applicable to their yield, eredit guality and maturity, except for those without stated materity, whers the
carrying value approximates to fr value.

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

Fair value higrarehy for fair value measurement on a recurring bagis

Assots and liabilities recordoed at fair valun in the consolidatod statemant of financial position are moasured and classifiod
in & hieranchy for disclosure purpeses consisting of thnee “levels™ based on the observability of Inputs aveilable in the
marketplace used 1o measure thoir fair values as discossed below,

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

= Lovel 1: Fair valup measwremants that are quated prices (unad|usted) in active markets for idemical assets or liabilities
that the Group has the ability to access as of the measuremani date. Market price data is ganerally obtained from
exchandge of desler markets. The Group does nof adjust the quated price for such instruments. Assets measured at fair
value on @ recurring basis and classilied as Lewel 1 are actively iraded equities. The Group considers that govesnment
dibt securities issued by G7 countries (1he Uinited States, Canada, France, Germany. ltaly, Japan, the United Kingdam}
and traded in a dealer market to be Level 1, until they no lenger trade with sufficient frequency and volume 10 be
considored petively traded

= Level 2 Fair valig measurements based on inputs othes than guoted peices included in Level 1 thil e shservable for
the assat or iability, sither directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived fiom prices). Level 2 inputs include guoted prices
for similar assote and liabilities in sctive mackots, quotad prices for identical or gimiler assets or labilities in markets
that are niot active and inputs other than guoted peices that are abservable for tha asset and liability, such as interest
rates and yiedd curves that sre obgervable 81 commonly quoted intervals. Assets and lisbilities messured at fair value
onarecurning basis and classified as Lovel 2 generally include government securities issued by non-G7 countries, most
Irvestment grade corporate bands, hedge lund Investments and dervative confracis

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

= Lovel 3: Fair valus measuremants based on veluation tachniques thal use significant inputs that are unobservable.
Unobservable inputs are only used 1o measure fair valus 1o the extent that relevant chservable inputs are not available,
allowing for circumstances inwhich there is litle, Il any, market activity for the assel or liabdlity. Assets and labilities
measured at fair value on a recurring basis and classified as Level 3 include properties held for own use, investment
properties, certain classes of structured sacurities, cenain darivative contracts, privale equity end real estate fund
imvestmants, and dirgcd private oquity investmants.
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21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT [continusd)

Fair value hierarchy for fair value measurement on & recurring basis (contnea

In certain cases, the Inputs used to measure fair value may fall into ditferent levels of the fair value hieranchy! In such cases,
the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement inits entirety falls is determined haged on the
|owest level inpul that is significant to the fairvalue measursmant in its antirety, The Group's assessmant of the significanca
of & particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requines judgement in making the assessment, the Group
considers factors specilic to the asset or lability.

Aswmmary af assats and liabilites carned at fair value on a recurning basis accarding to fair value hierarchy is given below:

Fair walue Bisrarchy

UEEm Lowal 1 Lowel 2 Ll 2 Total
10 Movember 1047
Recurring fair value measurements
Mon-financial assets
Property held lor own use - - are 979
lewstment progérty - - 6,345 4,365
Financial assats
Availabbe for sale
Debt securitias - 106,318 1,148 105,465
At fair value through profit or loss
Debt securities
Farticipating lunds - 20,255 &19 20,674
Unit-linked and consolidated investment funds - 6,604 100 &, 704
Orher policyholder and shargholder - 259 65 324
Equity securities
Participating funds 5,034 355 £33 6,822
Unit-linked ard consolidated investment funds 18,803 149 1 18,953
Other policyhelder and shanholder 9625 &90 626 10,9461
Derivative linencial instruments
Foreign exchange contracts - 96 - %46
Interest rate contracts - 51 - 51
Other contracts 1 ] 8 & 15
Total assets on a recurring fair value
measurament basis 34470 130,985 B.136 173,591
% af Toral e 754 4.7 1000
Financial liabilities
Ivvestment contract liabilities - - 7,502 7,502
Darivative financial instrumants
Foreign exchange contracis - 306 = 206
Interest rato contracts - 55 - 55
Other liabiities - 1,225 - 1,225
Tatal liabilities on a recurring fair value
measurament basis - 1.588 T.502 9088
% of Tosal - 17.5 B25 1008
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMEMNT (oo tinued)
Fair value higrarchy for fair value measurement on a recurring bagis jcominuad)
Fair valss hinrarchy
UsSm Lirval 1 Ll 2 Lavel 3 Tatsl

BVERVIEW

30 Movernber 2014
Recurring fair value measuremants

Non-financial assets E
Proparty held for own use - - 905 905 £
Invesiment property = - 3510 3910 E
Financial assats =
Available lor sale E
Debt securities 24 28819 1249 90.092 =
At fair value through profit or Yoss =
Debt securities E
Participating funds - 18366 241 18,707 =
Unit-linked and consalidated investment funds - 4239 M7 L4586
Dther policyhalder and shareholder = 223 140 363
Equity securities
Partcipating funds 4,856 324 in 5.451 w
Unit-linked and consalidated investment funds 15434 (-] = 15,498 ;
Dther palicyhalder and sharehalder B117 728 £17 9,252 E
Darivative financial instruments s
Foreign exchange contracts - bl - il 2
Imerest rate contracts - a0 - a0 £
Other conracts 12 1 - 13 8
Total assets on a recurring fair value
measuremant basis FB.4463 112,858 1450 148,751
% of Total 181 a9 S0 100.0 .
Financial liabilities R
Inwvestmant contract liabilities - - 64T B,499 E
Derivative financisl instruments &
Foreign exchange comracis - 573 - 573 =
Interest rate contracts - 36 - 36 z
Other coniracts - s - a4 E
Diher liabikities = 1,239 - 1,239 IS
Total lisbilities on a recurring fair valus
measuramant basis - 1883 6,499 8,382 -
% of Total - 225 75 100

Thee Group’s palicy is to recognise transfers of assets and liabilites between Lavel 1 and Lavel 2 at their fair values as at
the end of sach reporting period, consistent with the data of the determination of fair value. Assets ane transferred out of
Leval 1 when they are no longer transacied with sufficient frequency and valame in an active market. During the year
ended 30 Movember 2017, the Group transferred USSS0m (2016: US5241m) of assets measured at fair valwe from Lavel
1 to Level 2. Corwersaly. assets are transferred from Level 2 10 Level 1 whan transaction volume and frequency are
indicative of an active market. The Group transferred USE148m (2016: USF463m) of asgets from Lavel 2 ta Level 1 duting
thi yaar andad 30 Novembar 2017

The Groun's Level 3 financial instruments include dabt sacurities. squity securities and derivative ingtruments. The fair

values of Level 2 financial instruments are estimated using values obtained from private pricing sarvices and brokers
cormoborated with imernal review as necessary. Whien the guotes from thind-party pricing services and brokess are not

avallable, internal valuation technigues and inpuls will be used 1o desive the Tair value for the fmancial mstruments.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN
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21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continund

Fair value hierarchy for fair value measurement on & recurring basis (contne

The tables below set out a summary of changes in the Group’s Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis for the year ended 30 Novernber 2017 and 20168, The tahles reflest gains and lasses, ineluding gains and
|psses onassets and liabilities categorisod as Level 3 as at 30 Nevemnber 2017 and 2016,

Lavel 3 azsets and liabilivies
D ivative
Praparty Financial
Pl P Invessment Dbl Equity FEETIET IPmsomeni
LESEm o U proparty sacundien secuntios {labilitias) pemiracks
At 1 December 2016 205 3910 1,947 GEB - (6,499)
MNel movement an inyestmeant
contract liabilities - - - - - (1,003}

Tatl gaing/ (lossas)
Reported under investmen return and
other expanses in the consolidated
incoma statament {1&) 367 {58} k| - -

Reported under fair value resens,
forgign curmency translation reserve
and proporty revaluaticn resarve
in the consolkdated statement of

EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
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COMPREREnNSive incoma 115 1] -] 18 = =
Transfer to investment proparty {24) 24 - = - -
Puichazes 1 10 6 269 = -
Salas (2) {12) {209 {35) -+ -
Settlements - - (4100 = = =
Transfer into Level 3 - = - 2 - -
Transfer out of Level 3 s = - = (13) ™ Er?
At 30 Novemnber 2017 79 4365 1,732 1,060 - {7,502)
Change in unrealised gains or losses

included in the consolidated income

staternent for assets and liabilitiss

held at the end of the reperting period,

under investment return {1a) 367 (61) 1 - -

333 1Al& GROUP LIMITEDR
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (cortinued)
Fair value higrarchy for fair value measurement on a recurring basis jconinued)
Level 3 assets and llabilities (conscue)

BVERVIEW

Darvattia
Progerty Tinancial

R s et Equity JETT TV

LEEm RN Diogafy sacuiles EEEL ABatilities] oishifach
x
At 1 December 2015 415 a659 1,780 674 = (6573} H
Mat movement on investment E
contract liabdlities - - - = = T4 z
Total gains/(losses) =
Reported under investment return and 3
other expenses In the consolidated £
mncome statement (15) 2188 5 [45) - - ;
Reported under lair value resarve, 2
foreign currency translation reservie ]
and proparly rivaluation réserve =

in the consolidated statemant of

comprahangive income 506 (38) &3] [{-1] =t =

Transfar i other assets - (40} - - - -

Transder from investment property 19 {19) - = - -
Purchazes ;| &0 535 119 - - i
Sales (23) @ (e (43) - - z
Settlamants - B (&6 - - - S
Transter into Level 3 - - = 1 . ~ -
Transfer out of Lavel 3 - - (7 (20} - - E
At 30 Movember 2016 905 3910 1,947 BB - (6,490} =
[F)

Chango in unrealised gains or losses
included in the consolidated income
statemant for assets and abilities
hald at tha and of the reporting pariod,
undar investment return {15) 188 (5] (26)

Movements in investmeant contract liabilitios at fair value are offset by movermants in the wndarlying portfolio of matching
assets. Details of the movement in investiment contract liabilities are provided in nate 26

Assets transferred out of Level 3 meinly relate to corporate debt Instruments of which market-observable Inputs became
avidlable during the year and wore used in datarmining the fair valus.

There are not any differences batween the fair values on initial recognition and the amounts determined using valuation
technigues since tha models edopted are calibrated using initial transact:on prices.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT jcontinund)

Significant unobservable inputs for level 3 fair valve measurements

As at 30 Movember 2017 and 2016, the valuation technigues and applicable unobservable inputs used to measure the
Group's Level 3 finanelal instruments ane summarnzed a5 follows:

Fair valun s

Descriplion 30 Revembar 2007 (USSm)  Valuation lechnigues Unotiserwabin inguts Rarrge

Debt securitios 963 Discounted cash flows Discount rate for liquidity  5.29% - 11.89%
Fair usluie at

Description 30 Hovamber 25016 [US%8m)  Valustion techrigue Unohservable inputy Range

Debt securities B61 Discounted cash flows Discount rate for liguidity  4.07% - 17.58%

Fadr value of the Group's properties are determined based on appropelate valuation technigues which may conseder among
others income projection, value of comparable property and adjustments for factors such as size. [ocation, quality and
prospective use. These valuation inpuls are deemed unobservabla.

Valuation processes

The Group has the valuation policies, procedures and analyses in place to gavern the valuation of financial assets required
o financial reporting purposes; including Loved 3 fair values. o determining the fair values of financial assets. th Group
in general uses third-party pricing providers and, enly in rare cases when third-party prices da nat exist, will use prices
dedved from intemal modala. The Chial lnvestment Oficers of each of the business vnits arg regquired ta réview the
reasonablensass of the prices used and report price excepticns, if any. The Group Investment team analyses reporied price
excaptiansand raviews price chislleno res panses from third -party pricing providers and provides the final recommandation
on the approgriate price 1o be used. Any changes in valuation palicies are reviewed and approved by the Group Valuations
Advisory Committes which s part of the Group's wider financial risk governance processes. Changes in Level 2 and 3 fair
values are analysed af each reporiing date.

The main Level 3 input used by the Group pertains to the discount rate for the fixed income securities and [mvestrment
coniracis The unobseneable inputs for detarmining the fair value of these instruments include the obligor's credit spresd
andiar the iguidity spread. & sl'wll'l:inr increasel{decraasal inany of the unobservable input may reswltina signirimnlhl
lewer/(higher) Tair value measurement The Group has subscriptions 1o privite pricing servces for gatherng such
information. if the information from private pricing services is not available, the Group uses the proxy pricing method based
on imernally-developed valuation inpats;

334 1 Al& GROUP LIMITEDR
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT icortinued)

Fair value of financial and insurance assets and liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed at reporting
date

A summary of fair valus hierarchy ol assets and liabilities not carried at fair value But for which the fair value is disclosed
as at 30 November 2017 and 2016 is givan below.

BVERVIEW

Fase valloe hiersrehy
UEEm Lewul 1 Ll 2 Ll 3 Total

30 Novembar 2017
Asgats for which the fair value is disclosed

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

Financial assots

Loans and deposits 1,112 2,680 4,185 1477

Rainsuranca recenables - 506 - 506

Other recoablos - 2,109 41 2,150

Accrued mvestment mcome Fal 1,520 - 1,561

Cash and cash equivalents 2,289 - - 2,289

Total assets for which the fair value is disclosed 346322 6815 b2l 14,463

Liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed

Financial liabilities

Investmant contract liabilities - = 0] 580 %

Barrowings 3,630 514 - i,y -

Obligations under repurchase agreemends - 1,883 - 1,883 §

Oaher lighilities 492 3,938 33 553 W

Total liabilities for which the fair valuve is disclosed 6,322 6,335 613 11,270 %
Fair vedaw hisrarciy S

UsEm Lirvel 1 Lvel 2 Lival 3 Tetal

30 Novembar 2014 [ ]

Aszats for which the fair value is disclosed

Financial assots E

Loans and deposits Tids 2817 3505 7,066 z

Reinsurance receivables = 335 = 335 E

tiher receivables - 1,885 43 1934 ]

Ascrind invsstmont incame 73 1,310 < 1,383 g

Cash and cash eguivalenis 1,662 = = 1.642 %

Total assets for which the fair value is disclosed 26549 b3a7 3564 12,360 -

Liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed
Financial liabilithes

Inwestmant contract liabilities - = 539 529 z
Barrowings 3,478 = 1 4TS E
Obligations under ropurchise agreemants - 1.984 - 1.984 [
Orher liahilities 12 3126 it 3484 %
Total liabilities for which the fair valve is disclosed 3,790 5110 516 9,47 g

AMMUAL REFORT 2817 1 205
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. OTHER ASSETS

B Hgat
30 November 30 November
UsSsm m7 2316
Accrued investmant income: 1,541 1,383

Pension scheme assets
Defined benefit pension schame surpluses ity 24
Irgurance receivables dua from insurance and investment contract holdors 1212 1.004
Prepayments = operating lease of leasehold land 357 345
Dthars 1,465 1433
Tatal 4,630 3987

All amounds other than cartain prepayments are generally expected to be recovered within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period

23. IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
In gecordance with the Group's accounting policies, impairment reviews were performed for avallable for sale securites
and [aans and receivables.

MAuailable for sale debt securities
During tha vear ended 30 November 2017, no impairment loss (2016: USE22m) was recognised in respact of available for
sale detd securities.

The carrying amounds of avallable for sale debt securities that are Individually determined 1o be impaired at 30 Movember
2017 was nil (2015 1S$18m).

Loans and receivables

The Group's primary potential cradit rish exposurg in mspect of loans and recaivables anises in reéspact of policy [oans and
a portfolio of mortgage loans on reskdential and commercial real estate (see note 1% Financial investments for further
details). The Group's crodit exposure an policy boans is mitigated bacause, if and when the total indabtedness on any palicy,
ineluding interast due and accrued, exceeds the cash surrender value, the palicy terminates and becomes vald. The Group
hirs & first lien on dl policies which ame subject 1o policy [oans.

This earrying amounts af loans and recaivables that are individually determingd 1a be impaiced at 30 Novamber 3017 was
USS12m (2016: USS18m).

The Group has a porifolis of residential and commercial morgage |loans which it ariginates. Ta the extent that any such
|oans are past their due dates specific allewance i made, together with a collective allowance. based on historical
delimquency. Insurance receivables are short-term in nature and cover {5 not provided if consideration is not received. An
ageing of accounts receivablae is not provided as all amounts are due within one year and cover is cancalled if consideration
15 Mot recaived,

38 1Al GROUP LIMITEDR
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

24, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

UsEm

Cash
Cash equivalents
Total'™

il

i all A

10 Movember i Wovemnbser
T 2016

1.735 1,120

554 522

2,289 1642

(1] O cash aref cash equbmlents, USE385m (2018 LSE4T3m) ane held o back uni-Snked confracts and WSETIm (201% LSE93m) ane hald by
comolidated irvmsimart funds

Cash comprisis cash st bank and cash in hand. Cash equivalents comprize bank deposits and highly liguld shert-term
Imvestments with maturities at acguisition of three months or less and monay market funds. Accordingly, all such amounts
are gxpected 1o be realised within 12 months after the end of the reparting period

25, INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES
The movement of insurance contract labilhies (including Rabillties in respect of Investment contracis with DPF) is shown

as follows:
Yaar araded Fear anced
10 Movember 30 Howember
Ussm 7 014
At beginning of financial year 128,186 11596%
Valuation premiums and deposits 25586 23952

Liabilities released for policy termination or other policy bansfits pald and relatsd

expenses (14,929 (13,647}
Fees from ptcount balinces (1.B1T) {1,491}
Accretion of interest L4617 3a10
Foreign exchange moverments 5,232 (1,733}
Change in net asset values attributable 1o pelicyholders 17862 1,434
Other movemnents {5400 {118)
At end of financial year 148,897 128,184

Insurance contract liabilities (including liabiflities in respect of Wwestrment contracts with DPF) can also be anatysed as

follows:
Yoar ended Wt anged
30 Mossoemibar 30 Nowamkbssr
ussm 057 2016
Dataimad prafit T.046 5761
Uneamed mevonue 674 2,908
Palicyholders' share of participating surplus 7.935 &7
Liabilities for future policyholder banefits 131,242 112,788

Total

148,897 128,186
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25, INSURAMNCE COMTRACT LIABILITIES (ceedinued)
Business description
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The table below summarises the key variables on which insurance and investment contract cash flows depend.

Tirpe of conirmcy Hlaserind weirra andd conditions

Mt of ol by and
cufnpantaban i claims

Factors alleciing
contctcash Koy repertabls
Maws BT

Traditiensl Parlicipating Participating products inchude

nartcipaling  Kinds nratection ard saings slemards The
life assiprance basic sum assismd, payable on death or
with DFF mburity, miy be enhanced by

dividards of banusea, the agaregale
amount of which i detarmined by the
parfesmance of & distinet fund of ausets
ani banilites, Tha Ueniing o Sividend
ni Bones declararions i at ihe
dizcration of ibe insurer. Local
regulatians generally pimscribe &

mirimusn propertion ol pelicybolder

partichpation in declasnd dividends
Othar Participaking products include
parlicipating  protection ard eaviegs slemards. The
businpgs basic sum assomd, payable on death ar

maturity, may be enhanced by

dividerds of banuses, the Biming of
amoumt of which are at the discretion of
1ha kngures taking imo accownt faciom
sch e inestmont axperience

Tradtionasl non-Earticipating Banefil pald an diath, maturity,

e assurance sickress af disatllity that are fioed and
guarantead and not al the discration o
ke bnsuret

Reeident and healib Thede peaduicts provide marbidity or

wickreas benelits and Include heabth
isability, crinical fiiness and nccidant
(R

‘Unit=linked Unit-tinked conlracts combine savings
with proection, the cash value of the
jpalicy depending on the value of
unitised lunds

Unlversal It The custamer paya llaaible premi
suhject 1o specilied limits accumulated
iin an nccaisn Balsnce which ans
credited with inlerest ol & rale set by
Ak imsares, wngd i deaih benelit which
may be waried by the cusiomer

Hale:
{1} Diber thisn he Group Corpodaie Canire segmset.

208 1 AIA BROUP LIMITED

Minimum guarantsed benulils
miay b anhanced based an
IFreirmanT Expariancs and
elhe considemlions

Minimum guaranteed benafhs
may ba enhanced based an
Irrmstmant exparianca and
odher considaations

Benplie, delined in tha
imswrance contract, e
dotarmined by the contract and
ade it allected by investment
periormance o the
periormance of the conlract &2
a wrhole

Baralite, dafined in the
Imsgrance coniract, am
detasmined by the contract and
wr ol aliected by investment
perlormance or o
periormance of 1he conlract a1
8 whals

Benelis zre based on the valus
o the uritised funds and death
benafits

Benelie aie based oh The
account balunce and death
benefit
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

25. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES i-ontiwes)

Methodology and assumptions

The most significant items ta which profit for the vear and sharehabders’ equity are sensitive are market, Insurance and
Eapse rsks which are shown in the table below, Indirect exposure incicates that there is 2 second order impact. For example.
whilst the profit for the vear attributable to shareholders is not directly affected by inwestment income eamed whare the
ivestment righ is borne by policybolders (for example, in respect of unit-linked contracts), there is a second-order effect
through the investiment management fees which the Group earms by managing such investments. The distincticn betwsen
direct and indirect exposurs is not imended to indicate the relative sensitivity 1o each of these items. Where the direct
ouposure is hown as being “net neutral”, this is becauss the exposune to market and credit risk is offses by a corresponding
mavement in insurance contract [iakdlities

ek g crodt Tisk
irect mgasune
Irsurarce and bremsbmend  Aliks aasociated with Signilicand Irsurafce and
ﬁﬂu_fmz canilrme (g bil o related irwiilmerd paitiale Sadind expopsn lapsa rithe
Traditionad Participnting  « Net neutral micapt for = Ned neutral aceapt Tor  « [nvesimant = lmipact of passistancy
participating  Tunds the insurar's sham of tha insurer's shane of porformance subject on fulure dividonds
il sxsurance participating participating tesmoathing through = Moralily
with DPF Invasbment Irrenstment dlvidand declarations
performango performance
+ Guarantoes = Guarantens
Ohor + Mot neutral except for = Ned neutrad excopt for  + Investment * |mpact of paralsioncy
pariicl pating the insarer's share ol the insuror's share of  porformance subject on future dividends
business participating participaking to smoothing ihrough = Mortality
Invastment Imerstment dividend doclarations  » Marbidity
porfarmance parfarmance
+ Guarantoos = Guarntons
Traditional non-participating  + Guarantess * |muestment + Het npplicable = Mortality
lite assurance + Assot-liability porformance = Parshstoncy
mismatch sk =« Assat-|iahifity « Morhidity
mismatch risk
= Crodil risk
Accidont and haalth = Aogai-liability = Irrenstmant = Mot applicabla = Morbidity
mismatch ik perfarmance = Parsisiency
= Credit sk
+ Assol-liahiliy
mismatch risk
Panaion = Nt nautral = Nt poutral = Parloamance-relsled = Parsstency
« Asset-liability = Assat-liabiliny Irveshmamt
mismatch risk mismatch risk management feas
Uind-Ninked * Met neutral = Met neutral « Perlpimance-related  « Parsistency
IPvestmant = Morialty
managemant fees
Undvereal e = Guaraniees = |FdesEmant = Spread belween = Moraliy
= Ansat=liabilily perfarmance earfied rals and = Pamntency
mismatesh rigk = Crodit risk craditing rate te = Withdrawala
= fggel-liabilily palieyhalders
mismateh sk

The Growp i5 #lso exposed to fersign echange rate rigk in resgect of it cparations. and to interest rate sk, credit risk and
equity price risk on assets representing net sharehalders’ equity, and 1o expense risk 1o the extent that actusl expenses
exceed those that can be charged to insurance and imestment contract holders en non-participating business. Expense
assumptions applied in the Group's actuanzl valuation models assume a continumg level of business volumes.
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FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

25. INSURAMCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES (costinued)
Methodology and assumptions (conisus)
‘Valuation Interest rates

A= a1 30 November 2017 and 2016, the ranges of applicable valuation interest rates for traditional insurance contracts,

which vary by operating segment, year af issuance and products, within the first 20 vears are as follows:
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Asal s at
30 Noversber 20 Neerrtier
017 2018
Hang Kaong A50°% - 7.50%  A50% - 750%
Thailand 2.13% - 9.00% 325% - 9.00°
Singapore 2.00% = 7.00% 2.00% - 7.00%
Malaysia 3.70% = 5.43% 370% - 543%
China 2.75% - 7.00% 275% - 1.00%
Australin 297% -T.11% 29T -T1%
Indonesia 3.01% - 9.00% 302% - 9.00%
Kores 2B85% - 6.50% 285% - b.50%
Philippines 2.200% = 9,200 200% =9 20%
Sri Lanka 7.0%-10.78% 700 - 10.78%
Talwan 1.75% = 6.50% 1.75% — b.50%
Vietnam 553% - 1148% 507N -1225%
26. INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Year ended Yeur anded
0 Mewmimibear I3 Migieerding
US3m w17 2016
At boginning of financial year 7,028 7116
Effect of foreign exchange movements 123 (56}
Irvestmient contract benelits 1,212 245
Fees charged {145) {138}
Mat withdrawals and other movemants 1136) (139
At and of financial year™" B.082 7.028

Hurte

(1} Of imvestmant conbract linbilites, USTLEIm (2014 USES58m) mpmasnls delerred fee income:.
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

27.EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES

Thee table below se1s out the sensitivities of the sssumgtions in respect of ingurance and inestiment contracts with DPF to
key varlables. This disclosure only allows for the Impact on labilitles and related assets. such as reinsurance, and defemed
aequisition costs and does not allow for offsstiing movements i the fairvalue of linancial assets backing those Habitities.

BVERVIEW

iz al LI

30 Mewembar H Wovambser

UEEm T 016
— X
(Increass)/decrease in insurance contract linbilities, increase/ ([decreasa) in equity §
and profit before tax -
0.5 pps increasa m investment returm a0 0 é
0.5 pps decrease in investment return 3% (27) g
10% Increase in expenses {7 {7 E
10% increasa in martality rates (42) {36} -
10% increass in lapse/discontinuance rates (3Z) (22) §
]

Future policy benafiis for traditipnal life insurance policies (including investment contracts with DPF) are calculated using
a net level premium valuation method with reference to best estimate assumptions set &t policy incaption date unless a
daficrency ariges on Liability adequacy testing, There i not any impact of the above assumption Sansitivities on the carrying
amount of traditional life insurance liabilities as the sensitivities presentad would not have triggered a liability adeguacy
adjustment. During the vears presented there wese not any ellect of changes in assumptions and estimates an the Group's
traditional life products.

Faorinterest sansitve insurance contracts, such as universal life products and wnit-linked contracts, assumptions are made
at each reporting dete including mortality, persistency. expenses, futune investment earnings and future crediting rates:

The impact of changes in assumptions on the valuation of inswrance and investment contracts with DPF wes USS1ém
{201 &: USS20m) increase in profit.

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS . CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN

AMMUAL REFORT 2017 1 211

476/642



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
Oooooooa

FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
28. BORROWINGS

Aa wl #gat

20

w17 2018
Other lnans = !
Medium-term nates i 4o
Total 3958 34660

Interest expense on barrowings is shown in note 9. Further information relating to interest rates and the maturity profile of
borrowings is presented in note 3.

The following takble summarises the Company™s outsianding medium-term nates a1 30 November 2017

e date Nomingl amount ldminal fnla Tehor
13 March 20131 LUSES00m 1.750% Syaars
13 March 2013 LSES00m 3175% 10 years
11 March 2014 LISSS500m 2.250% Syoms
11 March 2014 LISHS00m 4875% 30 years
11 March 20151 USE750m 3.200% 10 years
16 March 2016 LIS$750m 4.500% 30 years
23 May 21 7% LISEE00m A470% 30 years
HNomws:

(1} Thigst mdiim-baitn noies ars lsind on The Sinck Exchamgn of Hong Kong Limdind

2} Thess mediumn-term noles s lisied on The Taipsl Exchange, Tatwan The Company bas (be right to redeem these rotes ot par on 23 May of cach
year beginning on 23 May 2072

The net proceeds from issusnce during the year ended 30 November 2017 and 2014 are used for general corporate
QUrpOEEs

The Group has access 10 an aggregate of US$2 224m unsecured committed credit facilities, which includes a USS300m
revalving three-year cradit facility expiring in 2020 and & USE1,926m fve-year credit lacility expiring in 2022 The coedit
facilities will be used for general corporate purposes, Thare were nil outstanding bomrowings under these credit facilities
2 of 30 November 2017 (2016; nil),

29. DBLIGATIONS UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS
The Group has entered into repurchase agreaments wheneby securities are sold tothird parties with 8 concurment agreement
o repurchase the securities at a spocified date.

The securities related o these agreements are nat de-recognised from the Group's consolidated statemant of financial
position, but are retained within the appropriate financial asset classilication. During theterm of the repurchase agreaments,
the Group is restricted fram selling or pledging the transferred dabt securities: The Tollowing table specifies the amounts
ingluded within financial investments subject to repurchase agreements which do not qualify for de-recognition at each
ymar and:

Az st b at

0 : 20 Howern
W55m 017 20t
Dbt securities = AFS 1,854 2045
Dedyt securities — FVTPL 12 98
Total 1,866 2143
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

29, OBLIGATIONS UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMEMNTS (continued]

Collateral

At 30 Movember 2017, the Group had pledged deb: securitles with carrying vatue of US51m (2014 US$6m), Cashoollateral
of USS1m (2076 USE1m) were held based on the market valus af the securitias iransierred. In the absence ol dafaull, the
Group does nat sall or repladge tha debt securities coliateral received and thay ane not recognised in the consolidated
statement of fingncial position.

A1 30 Hovember 2017, the ohligations under repurchass agresments were USS1 883m (2016: USE1 98&m).

BVERVIEW

30. OFFSETTING OF FINAMCIAL ASSETS AND FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES

Offsetting, enforceable masier netting agreements and similar agreements

The lollowing table shows the sssets that ane subject to offsetting, enforceable master neiting agreements and similar
arrangemenis at each year end:

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

Gross
el ol et amos
ncaghised al fmarcial Retazed arroards
tinancial nusols not et off in the
Groes sat off In the : i the of financisl position
r il Peeioige
e ua e —ry lm L'.llh
rinbigr ) of i " oo TR ey o
LiEEm Basris sl o pasdion R TS received @
i
30 Hovernbar 2017 ;
Financial assets: E
Derivative assets 363 - 83 {15) (141} 207 2
Reverse repurchase agreements 326 = 326 {326) s M E
Total 1] - 889 {341} (141} 07 4
g
Grea
amourd aof Kt amscsl
recognised o linancial
financial assets Aelated amourds
abilllins presood read wart o i b .
Gross sl off in e i ihe cerialidsted snlemant
amauriol  consofidaled  conaolidsied ol [inancad pottion &
rocagred wlalament pateTend ol E
Tireancisl of financial tinancial Financisl  Cash collaierl tiit [}
usEm anEolE posltion posllion  Instrumants recuivid A =
=
30 Novombar 2016 pr
Financial assets: g
Derivative assels 107 = 107 )] ()] 3 %
Raverss repurchase agreements 224 - 224 {224} - -
Tatal a3t B an (229) () [ ]
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30. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (cantinuad)
Offsetting, enforceable master netting agreements and similar agreements (cont ruea)
The following table shows the: llabilities that are sulbject to offsatting, enforceabls master netting agreements and similar

ArrangemiEnts at each year g,
]
amount of et mmount
necognised of financial HAeistod amounty
Tinancis! limbiiion na gt off in the
assely preseniod corsolidaied statoment
G st ol In e In e ol firaneial peayition
e 45 P
[ et ] sintamant  skatement o Cashy
Frarcial el i finnnekal R lal collataral Mt
5Em Eakbilithes [ paliion Instrumants edgped mmount
10 Movember 2017
Financial linbilities:
Derivative liabilities 361 - 361 (227) (10 124
Repurchase agreements 1,883 = 1,883 {1,883} = =
Tatal 2,244 - 2244 {2,910} (100 124
Lo
amaoun of Mot amounl
rorngrised &1 Nipancial Fslalog Eenownly
firancial liahiliting nalsat off in the
nzsaly B el lilaid 1
Laress st ol b the Ini Ihe of Bnancial pasitinn
wmcnlal consoldatied licda ad
ecagnaed whalermen wimlermanl of Cash
finprial al firancis) tfinanezal Fanmrcial coilararsl Har
USEm lisbAfies pastian posibon intrumants phdged mmount
30 November 2076
Financial lisbilitles
Darivative liabilities L - ey {4a0) [188) 16
Repurchase agreements 1,984 - 1,984 {1,984) - E
Tatal 2628 - 1628 (2.634) (185) 16

The Group entered into enferocoable master netting agreemants for derivative transactions, as well as the repurchase
agreemants for debt instruments with various counterparties, Except for certain futures comracts executed theowgh
clearing house mechanisrm where the settlement arrangument satisfied the IFRS noetling oritena, the transactions under
the enforceable master netting agreements and similar agreements involving the exchange of financial instrumenis or
cash #s collateral do not satisfy the IFRS notting enteria. The provision in the master netting agreemant and similar
agresmants enables & party to terminate trensactions early and settle at a net amount if a default or termination event
DCEUrs.

214 1Al& GROUP LIMITER
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

31. PROVISIONS S
LSSy Employes benedits Dithar Tois| g
At 1 December 2015 17 128 245

Charged o the consolidated income statement 11 52 &3

Charged ta other comprehensive incoma 22 - 22

Relsasad during the year s &) (18) E
Utllised during the year (1] (540 (57) B
Diher movements (2} - 4] E
At 30 November 2016 145 108 253 =
Charged fo the consolidsted income statemant 7 94 101 E
Charged to other comprehensive income (23) - 23 £
Exchange differences ¥ - 9 ;
Released during the year - (29 29 -
Urilised during the year (12) (83) (95) 2
Dibher movements 17 1 18

At 30 November 2017 143 91 234

Other provisions

Oiher provisions camprise provisions in respect of regulatary mattars, litigation, resrganisation and restructuring. I view
of the diverse natura of the matters provided for and the contingent nature of the matters 1o which they relate, the Group
s umable to provide an accurate assessment of the term over which prowisions ane cepected 1o be utilised.

32, OTHER LIABILITIES

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

s at Ayl

30 Mewembar 30 Howambser

UEEm Fl Fibl

Trade and other pavables 3,958 2.980

Third-party interests in consalidated investment funds 1.225 1,239
Reinsurance payables 705 504

Total 5,888 w723

Third-party interests in consclidated inwestment funds consist of third-party unit holders” interesis in consolidated
mrestment funds which are reflected as a lability since they can be put back to the Growp for cash

Trade and other pavabdes are generally expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reparting perlod. The
realisation of third-party intérests m investment funds cannot be predicied with accuracy since these repeasent the
rterests of third-party unit holders in consolidated vestment funds beld 1o back insurance and investment contract
lisbilities and are subject to market risk and the actions of third-party irvestars.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Az 81 30 November 2017 s ot 30 Movesrber 2018
Million sharet usEm Million shares  USdm
At beginning of the financial year 12,056 13,998 12048 1397
Shares issued undar share option scheme
and agancy share purchasa plan 18 &7 8 27
At and of the financial year 12,074 14,065 12056 13.998

The Company lssued 17,053,136 shares under share optlon schame (2016 7,174,865 shares) and 1,037,294 shares under
bgency Shara purchase plan (2014 927 042 shames) during tha year endad 30 November 2017

The Company and its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or redeamed any of the Company's shares during the year
ended 30 Novembar 2017 with tha excaption of 1,395.132 shares (2014 14,849,376 shares) of the Company purchased
by and mil shares (2016 276,501 shares) of the Company soid by the employes shane-based trusts. These purchases were
made by the relevant scheme trustees on the Hong Kong Stock Exchangs. These shares are held on trust for participants
of tha relivant seharmis and theralars wire not cancalled.

During the year anded 30 November 2017, 16,730,944 shares (2016 13,664,506 shores) were transferred 1o efigible
directors, olficers and employess ol the Group from the employee share-based irusts under share-based compensation
plans a5 & result of vesting. As at 30 Novermber 2017, 63,720,207 shares (2016 78056013 shares) of the Company wara
neld by the employee share-based trusts,

Reserves

Fair value resarve

The tair value resere comprises thie cumulative net change in the fair value of svailable for sale securities held at the énd
of the reparting periad.

Faroign currancy translation resarve
The lereign currency tranalation reserve comprises all foveign currency exchange differences arising from the ranslation
of the financial staterments of foreign oparations.

Employee share-based trusts

Trusts have been establishod to sequire shares of the Company for distribution to particlpans in future pariods thiewah thi
share-based compansation plans. Those shares acquired by the trusts, b0 the extant not transfermad to the participants
upen vesting, ane reporied 835 “Employee share-basad trusts”.

Proparty revaluation reserva

Progorty revaluation reserve comprisas tha cumulative net change in the revalued amount of proporty held for own use at
the end ol the reparting perod. Praperty revaluation surplus is not considered to be a reslised profit available for distribution
0 sharaholders.

Dthor resarves
Other raserves mainly include the Impact of merger accounting for business combinations under common contral and
shara-based compensation.
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

34, NOM-CONTROLLING INTERESTS E

[3

s af Az E
30 Mowember i Wowemnk-er
usSm 2017 2016
Equity shares in subsidianes hdy 59
Share of earnings 310 257
Share of other reserves & 10
Total 378 326

35. GROUP CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Capital Management Approach

The Group’s capital management objectives focus on maintaining a strong capital base to support the developmant of its
busingss, maintaining 1he ability to mova capital freoly and satisfying regulatory capital requiraments ot all times.

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

The Group's capital management funciion oversees all capital-ralated activives of the Group &nd as5isissenion managemant
in making capital dacizions. The capital maragement function participates in decisions concerning asset-lability
management, strateqic ecget allocation and angaing salvency managemant. This includes ansuring capital considerations
are paramount in the strategy and business planning processes and when determining the AIA’s capacity 1o pay dividends
1o shareholders,

Regulatory Solvency

The Group is in compliance with the solvency and capltal adequacy requirements applied by i regulators. The Group's
primary insurance ragulator at the AlA Company Limitad (AlA Col) and AlA Intarnational Limited (AlA International) levels
is the Hong Kong Insurance Authority (HEIA), which requires that AlA Co, and ALA Imernational meet the solvency margin
requiraments of the Hong Kong Insurance Ordinance (HKID). The HKIO {amang other malters) sets minimum solvency
margin reguiraments that sn insuner must meet in order 1o be authorized to carry on insurancs bussness in o fnom Hong
Hong. Al& has given an undaortaking to the HKIA to maintain en excess of assets over liabilites for branches other than
Heng Hong &t no less than 100% of the Hong Kang statutory minimam solvency mangin requiremant in each of ALA Co. and
AlA [ernational.

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

The capital positions of the Group's two principa] operating companies as of 30 November 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

30 Mewwambar 2017 30 Mevombor 1016
Tatal Ragulatory Total Reguaiary
avmdabis minimum Balwoncy avaiabln T Solvincy
USSEm capital capital rabic capital capiial ratia
AlA Ca, 8,263 1862 GL1% 6,69% 1.659 a0a%
AlA International 7826 2431 b b 6,237 2072 301%

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

For 1hese puerposes, the Group delines total svallable capital &5 the amount of asses in excess of labilities measured in
accordance with the HEIO and “regulatory minimum capital” as the required minimum margin of solvency caloulated in
accordance with the HEIOL The solvency ratio is the ratio of total available capital to regulatory minimum capital

The Group's individual branches and subsidianes are also subject 10 the supervision of governmen regulators in the
jurisdictions in which those branches and subsidianes and thair parent entity oparate and, In relation 1o subsidiarias, n
whith thay are incorparated, The vancis regulatons susrsaeing thi Group sctively moniter our lacal solvency positions. ALA
Co. and AlA International submit annual filings to the HKIA of their sehvancy margin position based on thair annual audited
financial statements.
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35. GROUP CAPITAL STRUCTURE [sontinuad)

Regulatory Solvency (cooirued)

The ability of the Campany to pay dividends 1o shareholders and to meet other obligations depends ultimately on dividends
and other payments baing received from 2 aperating subsidiaries and branches, which are subject to eontractisl,
regulatory and other limitations. The varicus regulators ovarseeing the individual branches and subsidiaries of tha Group
have the discretion to impase additional restrictions on the abality of those regulated subsidiaries and branches to make
payment of dividends or other distributions and payments to AlA Co., including increasing the required miargin of solvency
that Bn ogerating unit must maintain, For example, capdital may not be remitted without the consent from regulatars for
cartain individual branches or subsidiaries of the Group. The payment of dividends. distributions and other payments to
sharehalders is subject to the oversight of the HKIA

Capital and Regulatory Orders Specific to the Group
As ol 30 November 2017, the requirements and restrictions summansed below may be considerad material to the Group
and ramain in effect unloss otharwise stated.

Hong Kong Insurance Authority
AlA Group Limited has given 10 the Insurance Authority an undertaking that AlA Group Limited will

(i¥ ensure that () each of AlA Co.and AlA International will at all times maintain an exscess of assets over liabilities of not
less than the aggregate of 15034 of tha Hong Kang statutary minimum solvency margin requiremant in respect of the
Harg Hong branch and no lesa than 100% of the Hong Hong stalutery. minimom salvency margin requirement for
branches other than Homg Kong (“minimum amount™); (b) it will not withdraw capital or transfer any funds or assets
out of AlA Color AlA Internaticnal that will cause the sotvency ratio to fall below the minimum amounts specified in (a),
deenpt with, in esther case, the prior writhien consent ol the Indorancs Autharty: snd () shauld the salvency ratio of
either AlA Co or ALY International fall below the respective minimum amownts, AlA Group Limited will take steps 25
500n a3 possible to restore It 10 at least the respective minimum amounts in 8 menner acceptable to the Insurance
Authorily,

(1) natity the Insurance Authorty in writing as soon as the Company becomes aware of any person {(al becaming a
cantrodler (within the meaning of Section 901} {a)iiii(B) of the HKID) of AlA Co. and AlA International through the
mcquisition of our shares traded on the HKSE; or (b) ceasing to be a controller (within the meaning of Section 9{1)1a)
(i }B) of the HKIO) of AlA Co. gnd ALA Inmernational through the disposal of our shares sraded on the HKSE,

[Is}be subject to the supenvision of the Insurance Autharity and A& Group Limited will be required to continuglly comply
with the Insurance Authority's guidance on the “fit and proper” standards of a controller pursuant to Section 8(2) of the
HEIQ, The Insurance Authority is empowered by the HKIO to raise ebjsction if it sppedrs to it that any person is nat fit
and proper 10 be a controller or director of an autharisad insurer. Thesa standards include the sulficiency af a helding
company’s financial resources: the wisbility of a holding company's business plan for 118 insurance subsidiaries which
are regulated by the Insurance Authority; the clarity of the Group’s legal, managerial and operational structures; the
identities of any sther holding companies or major regulated subsidiasies; whether the holding company, s directors
or controllers is subject to receivership, administration, liguidation or other simitar proceedings or failed to satishy any
judgement debt under a court order or the subject of any criminal convictions or in breach of any statutery or regulatory
reguirements, the soundness of the Group's corporate governance, the soundness of the Group's rish management
framewark: the recelpt of information fram 18 insurencs subaidianes which are regulated by the Insuranse Autharity to
ensuna that they are managed in compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulation; and its role in oversesing and
menaging the operations of it insurance subsidiaries which are regulated by the Insurance Authority, and

{1 fulfit l enhancements or improvemens to the guidance rederred to in subparagraph (il above. as well as adminisirative
measures issued from fime to ime by the Insurance Authoriy or reguirements that may be prescribed by the Insurance
Authority in accordance with the HKID, regulations under the HKID or guidelines issued by the Insurance Authorliy
from time 1o time.
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management framework

AlA recognises the importance of sound risk management in every aspect of our business and for all our stakeholders. The
Risk Managemeant Framewark (HMF) provides the structure for identifving, quantifying and mitigating risk across the
Group. An affective RMF is the kay 1o avoiding the financial and reputational damage that arisas from inadequate or
ingtfective control of the righs in the business,

BVERVIEW

Insurance risk

Insurance risk s the risk arising trom changes in clams experience as well as monre general exposune relating o the
acquisition and persistancy of insurance business. This alse includes changes to assumptions regarding futura esperience
for thess risks,

Lapse
Lapsa rek is thi risk that the rate of polioy tarmination deviates fram th Group's sxpactation,

Ensuring customess buy products that mest their needs is cantral 1o the Group's Operating Philosophy, Through effective
mmplementation of the Business Quality Framewark, comprehensive sales tralning programmes and active monlioring of
sales Betivities and persistency, the Group seeks to ensure that appropriste products are sold by qualitied sales
representatives and that standards of service consistently mest our customers’ nesds.

Expense
Expanse risk is the risk that the cost of selling new business and of administering the in-force boak axcesds the assumptions
made in pricing andfor reserving.

Dally oparations follow & disciplined budgeting and control process that allows for the management of expenses based an
the Group's very substantial experance within the markets in which we oparate.

Morbidity and Martality
Morbidity and mortality risk is the risk that the occurrence and/or amounis of medicalideath claims are highes than the
BESUMALions made in pricing &nd/or reserving.

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

Thi Group adhares 16 well-defingd market-oriemted underwrting and claims gurdelings and practices that have bion
developad based on extensive historical experience and with the assistance of professional reinsurers.

Thee Growp’s actuarial teams conduct regular experience studies of all the insurance risk factors In its in-force book. These
internal stedies together with extermal data are vsed to idantify emerging trends which can then be used to infarm product
design, pricing, underwriting. claims management and reinsurance needs,

Through monitoring the development of boih local and global trends in medical technology, health and wellness, the
impact of |egislation and genaral social, political and economic conditions the Group seeks to anticipate and respond
promptly te patentlal adverse experiance impacts on Its products.

Reinsurance is used o reduce concentration and volatility risk. especially with lange policies or naw risks. and as protection
against catastrophic evens such s pandemics or natural disastors.
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued]

Investment and financial risks.

Credit risk

Crecit risk 5 the dak that third parties (8l 1o mest their obligations to the Group whan they fall due. Although the primary
source of credit risk is tha Group's investment portfolio, such risk can alsa arise through meinswrance, procurament, and
treasury activities.

The Group's credit risk management aversight process is governed centrally, But provides for decentralised management
amd accountability by aur lines of business. A key to ALA's credit sk managament is adherance to a well-cantralled
underweiting process. The Group's credit rik management starts with the assignment of an internal rating to all
counterparties. A detailed analysis of each counterparty s performed and a rating recommended by the first lines of
business. The Group's Risk Management function manages the Groups internal retings lramewark and reviews thess
recammendations and make final deciskon on the assigned ratings. Measuring and mondtoring of credit risk s an ongoing
process and is designed to enable early identification of emerging risk

[nterest rate risk

The Group's exposure 1o interest rabe risk predominantly arises from any differences between the duration of the Group's
liabilities and assets. Since most markets do not have assers of sulficient tenor to match life inswrance Labilitias, an
uncertainty arises around the remvestment of matunng assets o match the Group's insurance lisbilites.

AlA manages interest rate risk primarily on an economic basis to determing the durations of both assets and liabélities,
Imerest rate risk on lecal solvency basis is alsp taken into consideration for business units where local solvency regimes
deviate from econemic basts, Funthermane, for products with discrationary benefits, additional modelling of interest rate
risk is performed to guide determination of appropriate managament actions, Management also takes into consideration
the asymmatrical impact of infovest rate movemaents whan evaluating products with options and quarantaes.

20 1AlA GROUP LIMITEDR
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36. RISK MAMAGEMENT icetinuea)
Investment and financial rigks (coatemue)
Enposure 1o interest rate risk

BVERVIEW

The tahle below summartises the nalure of the intereal rate risk associated with {inanceal asseis and fnancial linbilitees In
preparing this analysis, fiked rate interest bearing instruments that mature or reprice within 12 months of the reporting

date have been disclesed as variable rate nstrumants.

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

Variable Flwed
LEEm islrest rain Interes rabs
30 November 2017
Financial assets
Loans and deposits 1,045 6,819
Other receivables 1 -
Debt securities Ba%2 122,776
Equily securitics - -
Reinsusanca receivanles. - -
Accrued investment income - -
Cash and cash eguivalents 2,001 -
Derivative nancinl instrumants - -
Total financial assats. 11,439 129,695
Financial liabdlities
Investment contract liabilities - -
Borrowings - 3958
Dbligations under repurchase agresments 1883 =
Dthar liabilities 92 -
Derivative financial msiruments = it
Total financial lakilivies 1,975 3,958

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

486/642
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT [continuedi
Investment and financial risks (connmea;
Exposure to Interest rate risk (coroues)

LS,

30 Nowembar 2074

Financial assets
Loans and depasits
Other receivables
Dbt securitios
Equity securities
Reinsurance recanvables
Acoreed Investment Income
Cash and cash eguivalents
Derivative Tinancial instruments

Tatal financial assets

Financial linbilities
Investment contract liabilities
Bartosings
Obligations under repurchase agreaments
O linksilivies
Derwvative financlal instruments
Total financial liabilities

Equity price risk

Warabds

Fiigped

Ron=minned

EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
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lrlnres) mis intaresl rate boaring Total
1,108 5929 5 T.062
14 - 1,569 1,733
7,342 106,276 - 113618
= = 30211 I

= - 335 345

- - 1,383 1,383
1,456 - 186 1,642
- - 107 107
10,070 112205 31818 156,091
- - T.028 7.028

- 3459 1 3,460
1,984 1.984
= = 5733 4,723

- - Gl [
1,984 3.459 12,396 17,839

Equity prica risk asizes from changes in the market value of equity securitiss. Investments in equity securities on a long-
term bagis are expectad 1o pravide diversification benefits and enhange returns. The extent of exposure to equities at any
lime is subject 1o the terms of the Group's strategic assel allocations.

Enuity prica risk is managed in the first instance thoowgh the individual investmant mandates which define benchmarks
and any tracking ermor targets. Equity Limits are aleo applied to contain individual expogsures. Equity expogures are included
in the aggregate oxpesura reports on each individual counterparty to ensure concontrations aro evoided.
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

36. RISK MANAGEMENT {ceeuinunal

Investment and financial risks (coatwue)

Equity price risk icotinued)

Sengitivity nnalysis

Sensitivity analysis to tha key variablas affecting financial assets and liabilities is set out in the table balow. Information
relgting to sengitivity of insurance and investment contracts with DPF & provided in note 27, The carrying values of other
linancial assets ame not subject to changes in response Lo movements in interest rates or equity prices, In calculating the
sengithvity of delst and equity instruments to changes in interest retes and equity prices, the Group has made assumptions
about the correspanding impact of asset valuations on liabilities to policyholders. Assets held to support unit-linked
contragts have been excluded on the basis that changes In falr value are whally borme by policyholders. Sersitivity analysis
for assaets held in participating funds has bean calculsted after allocaticn of retwrns to policyholders using the applicable
minimum palicyholders’ participaton ratios described innote 2.

BVERVIEW

Information ks presented (0 Hlustrate the estimated Impact on profits and tatel equily ansing from a change in a single
wariable befora taking into account the effacts of taxation.

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

The impact of any impairments of financial assets has been ignored for the purpose ol illustrating the sensitivity of profit
before tax and 1otal equity before the affects of taxation to changes in interest rates and equlty prices on tha grownds that
default svents roflect the characteristics of indvidual issuers. As the Group’s accounting policies tock in intarest rate
assumptions on polity inception and the Group's assumptions incorparale @ provision for adverse deviations, the level of
moverment illustrated in this sensitivity anblysis does Aot result in [oss recegnition and sa there is not any cemesponding

effect on lizbilitles. u
T
0 Howarmbar 3017 30 Howamies 2016 z
Impact Iimpact impact impact S
aninlal  onsliscaled anioml on sllsesied &
Bquity Bty #quity aauity B
Impact it {Esbbodn 1 F Impact {ftor {Eseledn 1hia -
on podit ihe ultects elfects on jpodi tren mifects mlfeck =]
USSm before taw of lamatien]  of taxatien) baferatan  ofdamaton]  of insationd E
Equity price risk
10 par cent increase Ineqguity prices 1,182 1,182 1,182 [95 995 995
10 per cent decrease in equity prices (1.182)  (1182)  (1982) (995) (995) (9%95)
Interest rate risk
+ 50 basis points ehilt in yield curves (167} (5.678) (157} {204} {4.699) (204)
=50 basis points shift in weld curves 169 6,272 169 2% 5179 219
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued]

Investment and financial risks (conmed)

Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group's foraign exchanpe rate rsk arisas mainly from the Group's operations in multiple geographical markets in the
Asgia-Pacific region and tha trantlation of multiple currencies to US daliar for financial reporting purposes. The balanca
sheet values of our operating wnits and subsidiories are ot hecaed to the Group's presentation currency, the LS dollar.

However, assets, llabilitles and local regulstory and stress capital in each bisiness unit are generally curmency matched
with the exception of holdings of equities denominated in currencies other than the functional curmency, or any expected
capital movements dus within ane year which mey be hadged. Bonds denominated in currencizs other than the functional
currency ane commonly hedged with cross-curmancy swaps or foreign exchange forward contracts:

Foroign exchange rate net oxposurs
Unitsd Stwtes  Hang Hong Thai  Singapote  Malwpsian China

ssm Dodlar Dichlar Hah [ Ringait Henminki
10 Novembar 2077
Equity anatysed by original curmency 26,497 2772 3768 (2,358) 2,157 3,527
Met notignal amounts of currency

derivative positions __{9.225) 597 2,535 3.005 - 8
Currancy exposure 15272 3,369 6,303 669 2,157 3,535
5% strongthaning of original currency
Imgact on prolit before tax 164 3 8} 21 4 1%
Impact on othar comprehensive income (188) 133 323 12 104 158
Impact on total equity [2&) 136 315 33 108 177
5% strengthening of the US dollar
Impact on profit bafore tax 164 30 9 (5) (3 {16)
Impact on other comprehensive income (188) (166) (328) (28) (105} (161}
Impact on total equity (2&) (136) (315) (33) (108} (177

Urised Statos Hang Hang That  Singapone  Maliysian Chira

US3m Dollar Dollar Bahi Dol Hinggit FRenmink
30 Howvember 2076
Equity analysed by original currency 20429 2208 2902 (2.788) 1.93% 4,008
Net notional amounts of curnsncy

darivative positions {7,104} 601 2,010 2.861 (187} (122)
Currency exposure 13325 2B09 4,912 75 1,752 3976
5% strengthening of original currency
Impact on profit befors tax 169 n 7 a5 L] 14
|mpact an othar comprehensive iIncome [184) 99 252 {31} 24 185
Impact on total equity (15) 110 245 1 ga 159
5% strongthening of the US dollar
Impact an profit belore tax 169 21 (&) {200 7 10y
Impact on other comprehensive income (184) {131) (229} 18 {75} {189)
Impact on total equity {15) {1100 {245) (5} (88} (199)
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

36. RISK MANAGEMENT {coruinunal

Investment and financial risks icootnesd)

Liguidity risk

ALR identifies quidity risk as occurring in two ways, financial quidity rish and investmant liquidity risk. Financial liquidity
risk [s the risk that insufficient cash is available to meet payment obligations 1o countarparties as they fall due. One area of
particular focus in the management of linancial iguidity is coltaersl. ALA manages this exposure by determining lmils for
its activities in the derivatives and repurchase agreement markets based on the collateral available within the relavant
fund or subsidiary 1o withstand extrems madkat suents. Mose broadly ALA suppors its liquidity thraugh committed bank
lacilities. wse of tha band repurchase markets and maintaining access to debt markets via the Company's Global Medium-
igrm Note and Securlties programme.

Inwestment liquidity ik occurs in reletion to the Group's abdlity to buy and sell investments. This is a function of the size of
this Group's haldings relative to the availablity of counterparties willing 1o buy ar Sell thase haldings al any gvan time. bn
times of stress, market losses will generally be compounded by forced sellers seeking unwilling buyers.

Whilg life insurance companias ame charactersed by a relatvely low naed far Uguidity to cover thase of ther Liabilites
which are directly linked to mortality and marbidity, this risk is nevertheless carefully managed by continuously assessing
the relative liguidity of the Group's assets and managing the size of individual holdings through limits.

D aftmr Usur aftor
Dus in T WEAr v years

BVERVIEW

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

oo pear  thiough thisugh  Due afer M Fisid
UESm Total o bess Hive years {ETn yEars D e msiurily
30 Neovernber 2017 H
Financial assets (Pelicyholder and ;
shareholder investments) E
Loans and deposits T.B66 1427 19 399 2392 2719 g
Other recaivaliles 1,727 1617 59 & = 45 E
Debt securities 126466 3836 17553 31334 73743 - 5
Eqeity secirities 17,763 - - - - 17763 a
Reinsurance receivables 506 506 - - - -
Accrued iNVeSTMEnt INCoME 1,494 1486 1 = = 7
Cash and cash equivalents 1,833 1,833 - - - - .
Dervative financial instruments 352 T4 162 122 12 - a
Subtotal 158,005 10779 18676 3861 THN4T 20544 =
Financial zsets (Unit-linked contracts and .":
consolkiated Investment funds) 24,450 = = = - 24450 2
Total 182,455 10,779 18,4674 31,861 T6,147 456,994 =
Fr]
Financial and insurancea contract labilities E
{Policyhalder and shareholder investmsnts) M
Insurance and investment conlract labdities
(net of defarred acqusition and arigination -
€0515, and reinsurance) 109,900 2609 10,420 11,404 85,467 -
Bormowings 3958 500 L9 1,242 1,717 -
Obligatinns under repurchase agresments 1,883 1,883 - = - - 2
Cthar liabilities & A5 1314 47 2 - 1.082 E
Derivative financial instruments 381 170 57 86 3] - 8
Subtotal 120,547 8478 11,023 13734 87,232 1,062 f
Financial and insurance contract lisbilities g
[Unit-linked contracts and consolidated E
investment funds) 24,450 - - - - 24450 =
Total &k, 957 BATHE 11,023 12,734 §7.232 25,532

Hole:
11} Mo bormewings ars due after 3 yesrs theough 5 yean
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT [continuedi
Investment and financial risks (commued)
Liquidity risk (comtinued)
Dueatter e wlter
Dis cna year lrew yomry
o0 T ihrsgh Ihesgh Do et No Nasd
1SS Todad o len Foan pomin len wiai Imfi vanra aluiity
10 November 2018

Financial aszets (Policyholders-and
shareholder investments)

Loans and deposits bbb B18 1.095 198 2,204 2451
Oher raceivables 1.676 1,558 78 <] = 36
Dok socuritias 109,162 3,098 16,351 28,29 61,432 -
Equity securities 14713 - - - - 14,713
Reinsurance receivables 335 335 - - - -
Accrued investrment incame 1.341 1,332 1 - - 7
Cash and cash equivalents 1,137 1,137 - - - =
Derivative financial instrumeants. 104 53 12 26 13 =
Subtotal 136,334 8332 17,527 28,61 63,649 17,205
Financial aszets (Unit-linked contracts and
consolidated investment funds) 20,757 - - - = 20,757
Total 156,091 8,332 17,537 28,621 63,649 37,962

Financial and insurance contract liabilities
(Palicyholders and shareholder Investmoms)
Insurance and investment contract kebilities

(et of deferred acquisition and arigination

costs; and reinswranca) F5,007 2,725 95,799 10,529 T1.954 -
Borrowings Z460 = Fag 1,261 1,231 =
Obligations under rapurchase agreements 1,984 1.984 - - - -
Other linbilities 3379 2,354 47 2 13 G563
Derivative financial instrumeants 642 23 208 313 28 -
Subtotal 104,672 71.164 11.052 12,085 A ] G963

Financial and insurance contract liabilities
{Unit-linked contracts and consolidated

fnvestiment furds) 20,743 - = = - 20,743
Total 125215 1.154 11,052 12,085 13,2186 21,706
Hule:

[1} Inchuces senouris of USS496en Lalling dus afor 7 ymars 1hrough 5 years
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

37. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined benefit plans

The Group operates funded and unfunded defined benefit plans that provide life and medical benefits for participating
employees after retirement and a lumgp sum benellt on cessation of employment. The locations covered by these plans
include Hong Kong, Singapare, Malaysia, Thailand, Indenesia, Korea, the Philipgines, Sri Lanka, Taiwan and Vietnam. The
larest independem actuarial valuations of the plang were st 30 Movember 2017 and were prepared by credentialed
actuaries. All the actearies are gualilied mernbers of professional aciuarial organisations to remder the actuarial opinions.
The aetuaral valuations indicate that the Group's sbligations under these defined benefit retirement plans are 44 per cent
(2016: 33 per cent) covered by the plan assets hatd by the trustees. The fair value of plan assets as at year end at the date
of valuation was USE39m (201& USE63m). The total expenses relating to these plans recognised In the consolidated
incoma statament was USE7m (201& USE1 1m).

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension plans: The total expense relating to these plans in the
current year was US$72m (2016 US$67m). Employess and the emplover are required to make monthly contributions
equal 1o 1 per cent to 22 per cent af the employess’ monthly basic salaries. depending on years of service and subject to
any applicable caps of monthly relevant noome in ditferent gerisdictions. For defined condribution pension plans with
vesting conditions. any forfeited contributions by employvers on behalf of emplovees who leave the scheme prior 1o vesting
{ully in such contributions are used by the employer to reduce any future contributions. The amownt of forfaites contributions
used to reduce the existing level of contributions ia not material.

BVERVIEW

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

38. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Share-based compensation plans

Drwring the year ended 30 Novembear 2017, the Group made further awands of share options, restricted share units (RSUs)
and restricted stock purchase units (RSPLS) to certain directors, officers and employees of the Group under the Shang
Opticn Scheme (S0 Scheme), the Restricted Share Unit Scheme (RSU Scheme) and the Emplayee Share Purchase Plan
(ESPR). In addition, the Group made further awards of restricted stock subscription units (R55Us) to eligible agents undar
the Agency Share Purchase Plan (A5PP).

R5U Schema

Under the RSU Schema, the wasting of the awarded RSUs & conditional upan the eligible participants remaining in
amployment with the Group during the respective vasting perieds. RSU awards are vested either antirely after a specific
period of time or in tranches over the vesting period. For RSU awards that are vested in tranches, each vesting tranche is
accounted for as a separate award for the purposes of recogniging the expanse gver the vesting period. For certain RSUs,
parformancs conditions ary also attached which include both markel and noa-markel conditiens. RS5Us subyect to
performance conditions are released to the participants at the end of the vesting period depending on the actual
achievement of the perfermance conditions. During the veating period, the participants are nol entitled to dividends of the
underlying shares. Except in jurisdictions whiene restrictions apply, the awarded R5Us are expected to be settled in egquity;
awards that 1he Group has the legal or constructive obligation to setle in cash ane insignificant to the Group. The masimam
number of shares that can be awarded under this schemais 301,100,000 {2014 301,100,000}, representing approximately
2.5 per cent (2016 2.5 per cent) of the number of shares in izsue at 30 November 2017,

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS . CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN

ANMUAL REFORT 2017 1 227

492/642



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
Oooooooa

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. SHARE-BASED COMPEMNSATION (continusd)
Share-based compensation plans jcominusa)
RSU Schame jconiinued)

Vil enidid Yaor anded
30 ! 6 B
017 2016
Numbar of shares
Restricted Shane Units
Dutsianding at beginning of financial year 49337302  53660,773
Aweardid 16,003,902 18964022
Forfeited (7.751,321) (10,150,721}
Vested {14,989.196) (13126777}

e

Dutstanding at and of financial year 42600687 49337302

50 Schama

The objectives of the SO Scheme &re to align eligible participanss’ interests with those of the shareholders of the Company
by allowing eligible participants to share in the value created at the point they exercise their options: Share opticn (50)
awards are vested either entirely after a specific period of time or In tranches over the vasting peflod approximately three
o five years, during which, the eligibie panticipants are required to remain in employment with the Group, For 50 awards
vested in tranches. each vesting tranche is accountad lor 83 o separate award for the purposes of recegnising the expense
over the vesting period. The awarded shame options expire 10 years from the date of grant and each share option entitles
the eligitle pericipan 1o subscribe for pne ordinary share, Except in jurisdictions where restrictiens apply. the swarded
sharg aptions ame sxpected to be settied in equity; awards that the Group bas the legal or constructive obligation fo settle
In cash ame Insignificant to the Group The total number of shares under options that can be awarded under the scheme is
301,100,000 (2014 307 100.000), representing approsimately 2.5 per cent (2016: 2.5 per cant) of tha numbaer of shares
in issue at 30 Novernber 2017,

Indarmation about share options sutstanding and share options exercisable by the Group's employees and directors as at
the end of the reparting period is as follows:

Your sndad Yeur wredect
30 Mevamber 2017 30 Novembse 2015

Wessr1sd T eightes
average vorage
Bambor of BREFCIER fiflCa Humzer ol ST CrICE
vhuss ptinns L] sharn npfaiee HHE}

Share options
Dutstanding at beginning of financial yoar 41,581,033 35.88 40,658,104 3329
Awarded 2460949 51.70 9,550,232 4190
Enercised {17.053,134) 30.10 17.176,665) 2853
Forfeited or expired “_!:_l;i_.;gl'b._gz}‘ 46,79 {1,262.638) a9
Dutstanding at and of financial year 29.112,234 4258 41,581,033 3588
Share optiens exercisable at and of financial yoar 14,136,157 37.38 20,692,608 2944

At the date the share option was exercised. the weighted average share price of the Compary was HEES5241 far tha year
ended 30 November 2017 (20016 HEKE49.43),
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

=
38. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (condinund) 2
Share-based compensation plans (conmmuea u
50 Schame (cootued) a
The range of svercise prices for the share options outstanding as of 30 November 2017 and 2015 &s summarised & the
1abde below.
Yeur ended Foar anded
0 Mt a1 MR x
Witlghted Weighlod H
oEerEgn adoage w
[ T mmaining :
Hurmber ol coetractusl K © i z
share optbans lide shars oplions tifa -]
-_-y'ls_‘l-lrrd_lni hl-_?i suistardung fvears) E
o
Range of exercise price E
HES24 - HKE35 5,059,863 &1 20,676,507 B14& :'.'
HES36 - HKB45 12,090,822 7.58 16489143 B.48 E
HK$46 - HKSSS 10,787,231 836 5516383 B.28 -
HK$5 - HK$A5 1,174,518 %67 - -
Outstanding at end of financial vear 29,112,234 7.36 41.581.033 6,80
ESPP

Under the plan, eligible employess of the Group can purchase ordinary shares of the Company with quallfied employee
contributions and the Company will award one matching restricted stock purchaze unit 1o them at the and of the vesting
period for each two shares purchased through the gualified employes contributions (coantribution shares). Contribution
shares are purchased from the apen market. During the vesting period, the eligible amployees must hold the contribution
ghiares purchasad during tha plan cyele and remnin employod by the Geoug Th livel of qualified omployes contribution is
limited to not more than 8 per cent of the annual basic salary subject to-a maximum of HKS117,000 per annum. The
awarded matching restricted stock purchase unils are expectad 1o be settbed in equity, For the year snded 30 Novernber
2017, eligible employees paid UISE20m (201 & USE14m) 1o purchiase 2,739 D64 ordinary shares (2014 2436, 497 ordinary
shares) of the Company.

ASPP

The structura of the ASPP genarally Tollows that of the ESPF, the key difference being thal the eligible agants are required
10 pay @ subscrigrion price of LSS to subscribe for each new share in the Company at the end of the vesting period. Under
the plan, eligible agents of the Group ean purchasa ordinary shanes of the Company with gualified agent contributions and
thi Cormpany will award one matching restrictad stock subscription unit te tham at the end of the vesting period Tor each
two shares purchased through the gualified agent contributions (agent contribution shares) Each restricted stock
subseription unit entitbes ellgible apents 1o subscribe for one new share of the Company. Agent contribution shares are
purchased fim tha apen market. During the westing periad, the sligible agents must hold the comtribution shares purchased
during the plan cycle and makntain their agent contracts with the Group. The awarded matching restricied stock subscription
units are expected to be settled in equity, The level of qualified sgont contribution s subjoct to a maximum of USS15,000
per annum, For the vear ended 30 November 2017, eligible agents pakd USE20m (2016: USE17m) to purchase 2708018
ardinary shiares (2016: 2,792.545 ondinary shares) of the Company.

CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Valuation methodology

Thet Group utilises a binomial lattice model to calculate the fair valus of the share option awards. a Monte-Carlo simulation
model andfor discounted cash llow technigue (o calculate the fair value of the RSU, ESPP and ASPF awards, taking into
account the terms &nd conditions upon which the awards were made. The price volatility is estimated on the basis of
implied volatility of the Company s shares which is based on Bn analysis of historical data since thay ara traded in the Hong
Hong Stock Exchange. The oxpected life of the share options iz derived from the output of the valuation model and is
caleulated based on an analysis ol expecied esercise behavtour of the Company's employess. The estimate ol market
condition for performance-based R5US is based on one-year historical deta preceding the grant date, &n allowsnce Tar
forfeiture prior to vesting is not included in the valuation of the awards.
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38. SHARE-BASED COMPEMNSATION (continusd)
Valuation methodology (cominue)
The fair value calculated for share options is inherently subjective due to the assumgptions made and the limitations of the

madel utillsed.
Year envled 30 Wovember 2007
ESPP ASPP
Elestricted Pestricted
wock Mtk
Share Restricted i o wubscription
optinng ehane units wnila units
Assumptions
Risk-froe interest rate 145% - 1.90% 083% - 1.20%" D.68% -1.29% 1.25%
Velatitity 0% 20% 20% 20%
Dividand yiald 1.8% 1.8% 1.8% 1.8%
Exercist price (HK3) 50.30 - 51.55 nfa nia nfa
Shara option life [in years) 10 nfa nfa nia
Expected life {in years) 7.95 - B.0D nfa nia nia
Walghted average fair value per optson/usnit
at measurament date (HKE) 10,47 39.95 58,25 45.81
Year ervded 3 Howember 2016
T T e e
Resliicied Reanticled
ainck winek
Share Eesiricied przhase subacmiplian
oations share units units oy
Assumptions
Rigk-free interest rate 1.25% 0:50%% —074%" 047% - 0.858% 091%
Wolatility 0% 0% 0% 20%
Dividend wiald 1.8% 1.8% 1.2%—1.6% 18%
Exercize price (HH$‘} 4150 nfa na na
Share opticn life {in years) 10 nia n/a n'a
Expeated life (in years) BO3 nfa nie nia
Weightod average fair value per oplien/umnit
at measurament date (HKE) 174 3535 £4.30 3592

* Apohicabie bo FESU With markst conditions.

The weighted average share price for share option valustion for awards madae during the yoar ended 30 November 2017 &s
HIEST, 70 (2014 HKS41.40). The total fair value of share options awarded during the year ended 30 Movember 2017 I
USS13m (2016: USS10m).

Recegnised compensation cost
The total recognised compensation cost (net of expecied forfeitures) related to various share-based compensation awands

made under the R5U Scheme, 50 Scheme, ESPF and ASPP by the Growp for the year ended 30 Movember 20017 is USST9m
(2016 USE84m)
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39. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONMNEL

Directors’ remuneration

The Executive Directors recelve compensation in the form of salares, benuses, contributions 1o pension schemes, long-
ierm ineentives, hausing and other sllowances, and benalits in Kind subject o applicable laws, rules and regulations.
Bonuses and long-term incantives reprasent the variable companants in the Exacutive Director's compensation and ane
firked to the performance of the Group and the Exacutive Director. Details of share-based payment schemes are describad

BVERVIEW

b nate 38, -
salarien, =
Allswantes Pifriion :
Cirector's  and benedits Share-based wehame Othar  Indicemnen =
us§ Tees Inkind" B T gt bermlils ™ fara Tatal H
[ 4
Wear andoe 30 Novermber 2017 a
Expeutive Dinechovs E
M, Mark Edward Tucher™ - 1,135,952 4834000 8335772 70,94F 1,154,704 - 15522379 E
Mr. Ng Heng Hoo™ - 749333 1504110 1,3755E7 44,788 = -  LETLEIE E
Total - 1,885,285 4328110 9712369 115737 11547046 = 19.196,197 E
Swanes
sirmarces Panion
Dirmctory  wnd beoadits Shase-bssad T Cebar  Ingeman

U5E LT In ke Barwse pawEREr T comiribul lom Esrality gy Tokal
Vet anded 30 Navernbe 2016 =
Execufive Direcior E
Mr. Mark Edword Tucher™ = RI12482 A6I6000 BA0TETY 137417 . - 15093570 E
Tatal = TAIXAB2 AEI6000 BA10767T1 137417 - = 15093570 w
o
=
Molex E
i1} Encludes non-cash benedits far Fousing, medical and life insurance, childeen's education, dlub and peolessional bershi car and B

pempnsiles

(2} Inclutes 50% snd R3Us awsided basad upon the Tair value st grant date.
(3 inchides post -aemplmyemant Bened it necelved dalieng garces lease and ferminaten banalits.
(] M, Mlarh. Echwaird Tuckes necatves his remuneration exclushely fof his mie-as Group Chiel Esocuth and Presidant snd receives no separaie Teas

for R ol as Diwctor ol the Compasry or for Beting as & dimestor of ary subsidary of the Compari, Mr. Mark Edward Tuckar miired s Group Chiof
Exmcutive nnd President wilh eflact lrom 1 Juse 2017,
&) H.mmﬂmmanwmduﬁmwﬁmwmmmutﬁnmmi Jurm 3017, He recabvs nis nemunoration exclusesely
i s Group Chinf Espcutben and Presicent and recofves no sapamis fens tar his min as [imdlor of 1 ke Compary or for aoling as mdinector
ud-rrluhuﬂlmnrmtmr
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39. REMUMERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONMNEL (continund)

Directors’ remuneration (cominued

The remuneration of Non-executive Director and Independent Man-executive Directors of the Company at 30 Movember
201 7 and 201 & are included in the tables helow:

Ealarien,
Hlomances Panaion
Dipctars  afd barslits Shars-baked schims Ciher  Inducsmsnl
ust o' muind™  Banuses  paymanis  gomraion berafit it Toish
Yoar encied J0 Nesermbes 00T
Man-pwpcutive (Rrechor
Mr. Mark [dward Tuckes™ - - - - - - - -
Independl Mon-grecufive
Direcfors
Mr, Edmund Sze-Wing Tae™ 570,000 109,383 - * = ks g 479,383
Mr. lack Chak-Hwong 5o 260,000 - = - - = - ‘260,000
My, Chung-Kang Chow 220,000 - - - - - - 220,000
M, johin Earrss Harrson 260,000 - - - - - - 260,000
M, Georga Yang-Boon Yeo 245,000 - - - - - - 245,000
My, Mokamad Azman Yahva 205000 - = = = = = 205,000
Professar Linwrence Jusn-YesLau 205,000 - = - - = = 205,000
s Bpee-Lisn Tes 208,000 - - - - - - 208,000
Ifir Harongohal Akrasanee™ 285,000 - - - - - - P45 000
Wr, Ceadr Velaegue? Pursiima™ 43,630 = = = = = = 43,630
Tetal TATAE0 108,383 - - - - - L58A013
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

39. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSOMNMEL foontrued)
Directors’ remuneration ey

BVERVIEW

2017 Hi:ldmmm-ﬂm:mf-dmmmdﬂlhnu Mion-awec L v Dimsctor of tha Company
(&) M. Edmund Sre-Wiag Tee wnn re-desigrated as indspendont Mon-eecuthm Direcior af t5e Company on 23 March 2017
(6] Dv Maioegchal Alrassnes was nppaimed i Indepandesl Men-evecullva Direclar ol the Company on 15 lanuary 2016 USSS0.000 whick

Smaitm,
sliowirces Pension
Dirsclors  wnd bevalita Shapw el et Dt Inclucesent

LIEE drmy i gt E ) Blad ]
Veal mided 30 Nowmbar 2018 z
Non-axsentive Director g
Mr. Ecrmund Sro-Wing Tan &T1.230 97,284 - - - - - HeAE1S =
Direcinrs =
M, Jck Chak-Mwong So 260,000 - - - - - - 760,000 Y
Mt Ching-Heng Chaw 270,000 - - - = 220,000 ]
M. Jahn Earie Harrsan 260,000 = = - = = — 260000 ;
e, Genipe Yeng-Boon Yeo 245000 - - ~ - - - 48,0040 2
M, Mahamed Azman ¥akya 206 0080 - - - - - - 205,000 H
Professor Lawreace Juen-¥os Lin 205000 - - = = - - 205000 .

Ha. Swos-Llan Teo 206 50 - - - - - - 05,0040

Or. Marongchal Alousanes™ 188 Sidh - - - - - - 184,56

Total 2389796 91289 - - - - = RAST.0ES
Mot i
(1) Savied n cimchznnd bivlow, sl Directon recniv (he foas for thair rois mn s Dissctor of the Company and sot Sor aclirg 54 3 dimciarol any subsidiary 3
o 1ha Compary. =
mmwmmhmdwmmmmmmwmn E
£3) M Mk Edwnrd Tocker wus fas M Cirecior of e Company on T ke 201 7 wnd reSited (rom the position or 1 Seplembor E
H
g

Fepreients aboe bo v M achil Al In mspect af his sefvices ag Chalman ol Advisory Board of ALA Thalland for 1he vear ended
20 Movambser 2017 ls inclisted in his lees.

() M. Cesar velniauer Furiima wes sppoinoed 1 Indegendand Hon-gecutive Dawcoor of the Company on 1 Sepiambar 2017,

Remuneration of five highest-paid individuals
The aggregate remuneration of the five highest-pald individuals employed by the Group In each of the years ended 30
Hovember 2017 and 2016 is presented in the table below,

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS .

Salarien,
allpwance: Porian
fugciary anad Bscned 2z Shatn head ‘schefra Other InJutorern
LSE drer i and™ Blortuey PETRANE™ - coninbeticn benelny'” el 4]
Year ended
30 Novembaer 2017 - BO0%E.J%3 10,523,042 15462857 247032 2458727 = 32790051
30 Novernber 2016 -  A148230 10114000 15870948 299,748 - - 33432922
Holes
urmﬂwnl&mhmmrdmdthm:rq.nmﬁnl-dhf:mnundh-ﬂ—:hw.dﬂmﬁ d . dub and professional

anr and pong
2} mmmnmumummmm nakd individunls based upon the falr valus o grant date.
{3} Inchides post-smployment benelits neceived during gande leave and farmination benalits.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN
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FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

39. REMUMNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONMEL (continund)
Remuneration of five highest-paid individuals oo
The emoluments of the five individuals with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

Vet endod Yaor anded

) kovambar 10 Mt

HHE w7 2018

28,500,001 10 29.000.000 1 =
30,000,001 10 30.500.000 -
32,000,001 1o 32,500,000 :

33,000,001 10 33 500,000 - 1
34,500,001 1o 35,000,000 1
35,000,001 10 35,500,000
36,000,001 o 36,500,000
45,500,007 1o 46,000,000
117,000,001 to 117,500,000
120,500,007 1o 127,000,000

i | o= ok
|

Key management persennel remuneration
Kay management personnel have baan identified as the members of the Group's Executive Committee.

Yeae endod Wear anded
3 # b 1 it

sE 217 ik
Koy management campansation and other expenses
Salaries and other short-term employes benafits 27,287,043 16974421
Post-emplaymeant benelits 3,731,580 568,687
Share-based paymants "' 18666971 21144540
Termination benefits 3078510 =
Tatal 52,744,104 48,708,048
Mnte
{1} Inchuce 50s and R mearded to the ey marsgemant pereonnel basesd upon this Dair vakue ot gran dsle
The emoluments of the key managemeant persannel are within the following bands:

o wnded ‘vam andeid

E L b 0 B +

Uss w17 2018
Below 1,000,000 & 2
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 5 1
2,000,001 to 3,000,000 1 3
3,000,001 to 4,000,000 3 3
5,000,001 105,000,000 2 3
5,000,001 to 6,000,000 1 _
Over 7,000,000 1 1

234 1 AlA GROUP LIMITEDR
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Remuneration of Dirgctors and key mansgement personned is discloged in note 39,

41, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commiitments under operating leases
Total future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases ara as follows:

Asat Asm
30 Mowembor 30 Havembser
UsEm a7 s
Properties and others explring
Mt 1atEF tRAD SRR YRR 128 120
Later than one and not later than five wears 219 178
Larer than five vears 48 iy
Total 395 392

The Group s the lessee in respect of a number of proparties and items of office equipment beld under operating leases.
The leases tvpically run for an initial period of one 10 1en years, with an oplion to rengw 1he lease when abl 1erms are
ranegatiated. Lease payments are usually reviewed at the and of the lease term to refiect market rates. Mone of the laases
nclude contingant rantals.

Investment and capital commitments

Az af As o
A0 Movembar 30 Hovembssr
ussm 07 016
Mot later than one year 1.231 682
Later than one and not later than five vears & 10
Total 1.237 692

Inwestmend and capital commitments consist of commitments to invest in private equity parinerships and olher assets.

Contingencies

The Group Is subject to regulation in each of the gecgraphical markets in which it operates from insurance, securities,
cepital markets, pension, date privacy and other requlnters and i exposed to the risk of reguletery sctions in responss o
perceived or aclual non-compliance with regulations relating to suitabibity, sales or underwriting practices, claims
payments and procedures, product design. disclasure, administration, denisl or delay of benefits end breaches of fiduciary
ar cther duties. The Group believes that these matters have been adequately provided for in these financial statements.

The Group is exposed to legal procesdings. complaints and other actions from its: activities including those arising from
commercial activithes, sales practices, suitability of products, policies and claims. The Group beliéves that these matters
ars adequataly provided for in these nancial stataments

The Group is the reinsurar in a residential morigage credit reinsurance agresment covering residential morigages in
Australia. The Group is exposed 1o the rizk of losses in the event ol the failure of the retroceasionalre, & subsidiary of
American Infermational Group. Inc., to honour its outstanding obligations which is mitigated by a trust sgresmant. The
principal balance putstanding of moertgage logns to wihich the reinsurance agreement ralates were approximately LUS5561m
at 30 November 2017 (2016 USS616m) The labilities and rmlated meinsurance assets, which totalled USS2m (2016
USEZm), respectivaly, arising from these agreements are reflected and presented on & gross basis in these financial
statements in accordance with the Group's accounting policies. The Group expects to fully necovar amounts outstanding at
the reporting date under the terms of this agreement from the retrocessionalne.

ANMUAL REFORT 2017 1 335
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42. SUBSIDIARIES

EDINETOOOO
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The principal subsidiary companies which materially comribute 1o the net income of the Group or hold & material element

of Its assets and lkabilities are:

Pace st
T
i ol iy and aparanan  Procipad sty laed s papity
A Company Limdtes™ HongHorg  Inoamance 4,169,045 847 ordinary shares
lof USE5962,084 000 uoed
sham cepial
A bevtarnatkonal Limited Barminta Inaurancs 3,000,000 asdinary thare
of USE1.20 each
Abg Auyntralia s Aautralin Inapunce 111068300 endinary thaws
of AT93872 800 issued
ahanm Cagartal
AN Pension and Trestes Co LEd Britsh Vign  Trusteeship 19 500,000 sedinary shares
Iulmnds of US§ nach
AlsEra. Mataysia Induance T&T.AZR TS ordinary thaem
of M mack
Al& Singapcre Privaie Limiind Singapore  Insurance 1374000001 ordinaty shanes
of &1 sach
T ALA Finaticdal Indloimsia Irsasi mindiy 1,91 0844 A shdinaty whabe
ol Fiz1 B30 mach
T Philypnine Amafican Lits Pralippines  Imiasance 199500 &71 erdinary shares of
and Gereral BLuranoo P10 omch and 439339
[PHELAM LIFE} Cameany IFbaRiiy BRanE
AW i | Vi inmuraree CaninBaind cap/tal of
Carmpery Limiled VMDA 264 000000000
AIS Ensurgnce Lanks PLC Srl Lankn Inranco SEnted capitalal
LHHEY .91 635
Bayshore Development Gioup Limited  Britsh Virges  irssstmart 100 cedinary shares o
|almndn heddirg LS sach
Cuimpany
HA1-Philsm Le Atsamance Prlippines  Inswiance 743 PFASTY ordinary shees
THPLAD) Coanpaation al FHF1 sach and G000
reasEUry BNares
A8 Reinsurance Limited Bermisia Reirautarcs  T50.000 commen shatm of
USED nach

Holes:
(1) The Company's subiigan

(24 Aldof the above subridiaries arn sidited by PricewaterhoussCoopers.

3 Hepmenbaty THT

LT

100%

a0

Rl

100%

100%

Rl

1%

100%

MR

Wl W

M P

L I L ]

%

5%

2Bu%

Al subsidiaries are unlisted axcent AN Insurance Lanka PLE which is listed on tha Main Board of the Calomba Stock

Exchange.

236 1 AIA BROUP LIMITED
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

43, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 1 January 2018, AlA International compbeted the transhen of its indurance business in Korea from a branch to & wholly-
owned subsidiary, AlA Life Insurance Co. Ltd, This transfer was not expected 1o have any material financlal Impact on the
Grawp eansolidated financial statements.

BVERVIEW

In September 2017, the Group reached an agresmant, subject 10 securing all necessary regulatory and governmental
approvals, to acquire Commonwealth Bank of Australia’s (CBA) life insurance business in Australia and |ife and health
nsurance businesses in New Zealand. The transaction inclisdes 20-year strategic bancassurance partnerships with CBA
n Australia and ASE Bank Limited in Mew Zealand, The transaction will expand the Geoun's distribution capabilities and
customer reach in Australia and Mew Zealand markets. As announced on 21 Septembear 2017, the gross consideration to
be paid with respect to the proposed transaction is expected to be approximately USE30 billisn pavable in cash on
completion of the propesed trangacton and subject to certain adjustments a1 completion. Alter taking into account the
expected proceeds from reinsurance agreaments and the expected free surolus of the acquired businosses, the final net
cesh outlay by AlA is axpected to be approemataly US$1.5 billion.

In Becomber 2017, the Group entered into 8 15-yoar extension of the existing exclusive regional DANCASSURMNCE Agrecment
with Public Bank Berhad, a leading Malaysian banking group, extending the partnership from 2023 1o 2037.

FIMANCIAL AND QPERATING REWIEW

Ther Board hias rasolved to changs the Company’s linancial yaar-end date from 30 Movembor to 31 Decemikor, Accordingly,
the next financial year-end date of the Company will be 31 December 2018 and the next sudited financial statements of
tha Group will cover a 13-month pericod from 1 Decembar 2017 10 31 Decembar 2018,

On 27 February 2018, a Committee appointed by the Board of Directors proposed & final dividend of 74.38 Hong Kong
cents per share (2014: 63.75 Hong Keng cents per share).

. FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS . CORPORATE BOVERNANGE

ADDITIONAL INFORMATIOMN
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FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

4&, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Ba Bsat
stm e

Assets

Irwestrment in subdidiaries 15,750 16,745

Awailabbe for sale = debl securilies 2442 1,544

At fair value through profit or loss = derivative financial instruments ar -

Laans tofamounts due from subsidiaries 3,554 503

Other assets 17 dudy

Cash and cash eguivalenis 5 &

Total assets 21,805 20,240

Liabilitios

Borrowings 4,420 777

Derivative fnencial nstrumants 125 -

Other liabilities 463 10

Tatal labilities &, 588 J.847

Equity

Share capital 14,065 13.9%98

Emplovee shars-based trusts 1297) (351}
DOther resarves 199 185

Rotained eamings 35 2420

Amounts reflected in other comprehensive income: [(65) (59)
Total equity 17,217 16,393

Total liabilities and aquity 21,805 20,240

Hob

{1} The hasncil infsamation of the Comaarny should be road i eergunction with th coraolidated tinancial stasements ol the Group
Approved and autharised lor issue by tha Board of Directors on 27 February 7018,

o 7 Wy
Mg Keng Hool Edmund Sze-Wing Tse
Direcior Direchor

238 1AlA GROUP LIMITEDR
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMEMTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTING POLICIES

45, STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE COMPANY

usEm

Balance at 1 December 2016
Met profit
Cash llow hedges

Fair viliue losses on availdable lor sale
financial ass1s

Falr value losses on avadlable for
sale financlal assets transferred
to Income on disposal

Dividinds

Shares issued under share option scheme
and agancy share purchase plan

Share-based compensation

Purchase of shares held by employes
share-based trusts

Tranafer of vested shares from emploves
share-based trusts

Balance at 30 November 2017

UsEm

Balanee at 1 December 2015
Hat profit
Cash fiow hadges

Fair value losses on avadlabie for sale
Tinancial a55e1s

Fair value geins on available for
sala financial assets transfermed
1o income on disposal
Dividends
Shares imsued under share option schame
and agency share purchase plan
Share-bassd compensation
Purchase af shares held by employes
share-based trusts

Translor of vasted shares from employes
share-based trusts

Balance st 30 November 2016

BVERVIEW

Amournia
rediected
Entgitims in othar
Share  shane-bassd 2iher Retaired  compeohansive Total
capitsl irusin ERErRE sarninga incoma Uity
13,598 {351) 185 2,620 (55 16,393
- - - 2071 - 207 5
- - - - (11) (1) g
z
- - - - (&) (4 =
i
4 H = = 8 B =
= - - (1318 - (1.378) g
i
&7 - i 4 5 &7 £
= # 79 = = 79
- (10} - - - 1oy
i &4 (84 - - - i
14,065 {297) 200 3318 (66)  17.217 z
Amaounty E
rollacied w
Employas Iy e ;
Share  share-baded Bttt Bedeied compiehamshe Total =]
cighvl stk wavel edingd iecgmsa ottty E
[¥]
12971 (321 155 2785 (22 16568
= = = 959 — 959
R - - . m m N
]
- . — - (o) (10 E
i
g
- - - - 126) (26) =
- - - (1134) - 00248 g
.
27 - - - - a7 “
: ) ! ' : i [
- (88 - - - (as)
= 56 {54 - - -
13998 {351) 185 2620 {55 16,393
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11
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

OVERVIEW

Other comprehentive rcsme

Emplryan :
whare FakF  curmency  Property Han-
Ehare taszed Diher  Aefained [L1E ] L wail I Tetal

Liskm Mate capial Eusiy  MESErvEs  Eanings rEsenve Lt mserve  (Ehers  imievests  equily

Balarca al )

1 December 2015,

na praviously reported 13971 (327) {11.978) 26708  &&14 (1,381)
Retrospective adjustments

fer 1AS 40 - - = 1588 - [L:1] 140 - 164 1881
Balance al

1 Docembaer 2015,

o5 adjpunted 139M (327 (1.978) 26294 &&14 (1,38%9) 180 123 03 31,432
Opendng ndjusiments an

revaiualion gaine an

preperty hadd for own use - - - - = = 259 - = 358
et profit = = - 4164 - - - - 8 4212
Falr value gains/{insses)

on availabda for sale

financial psssts - - - - BT 5 - - 51 B9
Fair valua laves on

mvailatdn for sals

financial sasatn

transterred o

income an disposal

and Fmpadrmant - - - 2 2 - - " " 2
Foreign curmency

transdation adjustmepts - - - - - (%04} - LI ]
Cash flow hedgas - - = = = = - 1 - 1

Sharn of ather comorehinsle

Iincame f{gapensa}

from nssocinies and

foirt verture - - - - 62 (19 - - = &3
Tevaluation gains an

property hald lor own uss = - - - - - 1] - - 50
Effect of remeasurement of

sk lability of defined

benalit schemes - = - = = =

Total comprehensive

for the yoar - - - & ib4 o8 (&23) ang (203 35 E0Da
Dividords 1 - - - (1128 - - - (12} [1,138)
Shares isswed under

shane option schama

ond sgency share

purchase plan b1 - - - - - - - - 27
Share-hased competizalion - - Ba - - - - - - Bs

Purchiaag of shares

Peld iy esniplayee

s frare-paned irisis - {26) - - - i = =
Transfor of vestod

whares from employes

shane-based frusts - 54 154} = - - - - - -
Otheta - - (&) - - - = - = ()

Ealanee al
30 Nevember 2018 11,9%8 {3510 (11,954} 29334 5352 {1,512} Liq 31} 326 35310

{12} 139 29,540

FINAHCIAL ARD OFENMATING WEVIDW

C

L]
CORFOHATE GOVERWAN

(21} 21

FINANCIAL STRATUMINTS

ADDITIOMAL INFORMATIDN
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FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
=
;
Yaar srded far onoed =
30 Mowember My Nismmibeer
200E G
uEEm Pagien (k1 saplad]
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES -
Profit before tax 4,872 45T -
Adjustrments for: -
Financial imestmants {13.438) {9,429) z
Insurance and investment contract liabiities 11,794 B33 E
Obligations undar securities lending and repurchase agresments " {1.07%) (462) .
Cther non-cash operating items, Including investment income (6. 164) {6572} f
Cperating cash 1ems: ;
Intarest raceived 5.281 L9404 z
Drividenis received 545 a4 =
Irterest paid (37 (76}
Tax paid (G4E) (B48)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES E
Payments for intangible assots 12 (64) (103} E
Distribution or dividend from/{contrbution to) assoclates and joint venture 14 z {9 B
Payments for investment property and oroperty, plant and squipmint =18 {181) {139) z
Payrmnts lor increass in interast of an aEsociale {310) - E
Disposal of & subsidiary, net of cesh disposed - 21 g
Not cash used in investing activities (553) (230)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
{ssuance of madium lerm notes m 733 745
Interest pasd an medium term nales (108) (7o)
Proceeds from othar borrowings el 13 3
Repayment ol medium term notes L (150} = 12
Repaymant of ather barmowings 1 {334) {4530} E
Dividends paid during the year {1.138) (832} =
Purchase of shares held by employee share-based trusts (B6) (FE) ;
Shares issued under share option scheme and agency share o
purchasa plan 27 o z
Net cash used in financing activities (1.063) (739) B
Het (decrease)/incraase in cash and cash equivalens {232) 268
Cash and cash aguivalents a1 beginning of the finsncial year 1.750 1.631
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalenis (36 (148}
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 1.482 1,750
£
-
5
z
2
g

AMMUAL REFOAT 28141 121
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— FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AVERIEW

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
AL Group Limlted (the *Company™) was established &5 a cornpany with limited Bability incorporated in Hong Kong on 24
BAugust 2009. The address of its registered office is 35/F. AlA Central, Mo 1 Connaught Road Central. Hang Kong.

Al Group Limited is listed on the Main Board of The Stack Exchange of Hong Kong Limited under the stock cade *123%9°
with American Dapositary Receipis (Level 1) baing traded on the aver-the-countar masot (tieker symbal: *AAGIY).

AlAGroup Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively “AIA” or the “Group®) & a life insurance besed financial services provider
operaiing in 18 markets throughout the Asis-Pacilic reglon. The Group's principal activity 1s the writing of e insurance
business; providing life insurance, accident and health insurance and savngs plang throughout Asia, and distributing
ridited invostmant and other Bnancial services products 1o its customers.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

Thit consoldated financis! stmements have been prepansd in sccordance with all spplicatile Hong Kong Financial Regarting
Standards (HKFRS) Infernatienal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Hang Kong Companies Ordinance. IFRS
s gubstantially consistent with HKFRS and the accounting policy selections thad tha Group has made in preparing these
consalidated financial statements are such that the Group is able to comply with both HKFRS and IFRS. References to IFRS,
International Accounting Standards (IAS) and Interpretations deveboped by the IFRS Interpretations Committes (IFRS 5}
in these conselidated financial statements should be read as referring to the eguivalent HKFRS, Hang Kong Accounting
Standards (HKAS) and Hong Kong (IFRICY Inlerpratations (HKIFRIC) - Int) as the case may be. Accordingly, there am not
any ditfarences of accounting practice batween HKFRS and IF RS affecting these consolidated financial statements.

FINSHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

C

The consolicated financial statements have bean approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2017

CORFOHETH GOV ITNARN

The consolidated financial stalements have been prepared using the histerical cost conventicn, as modilied by the
revMuation of available for sale financial assets, cenain financial assets and liabilities designated &1 fair valug through
pratit or loss, dervative financial instrumeants, property held for own usa and investment properties, all of which are carried
ot fair valop

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of gach of the Group's entities are messured in the currency af the
primary economic envirenmaent in which that entity operates (the functional currency). The Company's functional currency
and the presentation currancy of the Company ang the Group is the: U5 doller. The consolidatad financial statéments goe
presented in millions of LS dollars (USSm) unless otharwise stated,

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previows financial vear, except as dascribed below in
notes &7 and &8 There are no new standards interpretation pnd amandments to standards that gre mandatory for the
Group to adopt for the financial year ended 30 November 2016,

FINANCIAL STRATUMINTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES omwusg

2.1 Basis ol preparation and statement of compliance iccoteusa)

() The following retevant new standards and requirsments have been issuad but ara not effective for tha financial year
ended 30 November 2016 and have not bean early adopted:

= |FRE 9, Financial Instrumenis, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial asseis
and financial liabilities. IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two measuremant categonies: Those
measuned as &l fale velue and those meesured o1 amortised cost The determingtion ks made at indtial recognitin,
Tha clessilication depends on the entity's business model Iofr managing s finsncial instrumants and the
condractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. In addition, a revised expected credit losses moded will
replace the incurred |ass impairment mode| in 145 39. For financial Habilities, the standard retaing most of the 143
39 requirements. The maln change is that, in cases whare the fair value option I3 taken for linancial Habilities, part of
this fadr value change due 1oan entity's own credit risk s recorded in other compretensive income rathar than profit
or luss. unlzss this creates an accounting mismaich. In additlon, the new standand revises the hedge accounting
madel bo mam clasaly &lugn with this antity's risk mensgemant strabsgies. The Group s yet to fully assess the impact
of the standard on its finaneial positen and results of operations. The standard ks mandatorily effective for annual
perods beginning an or aflter 1 January 2018

= ' 0n 12 September 2014, the IASE issued pmendiments 1o IFRS 4 Ingurance Cantracts, Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS &, which provides two allarmative measures 1o address the different effective dates of IFRS
S and the tarthcoming nsurance contracts standard. These maasuras inchude a temporacy opion for companies
whose activities are predominantly connectad with insurance to defer the effective date of IFRS 9 until the sarlier
of the effective date of the forthcoming insurance contracis standard and the annual reporting periods beginning
onor after 1 Januvary 2021, as well as an approach that allows an entity to remove from profit or loss the effects of
certain pecounting mismatches that may occur belore the forthcoming insurance contracts standard is applied, The
Group will evaluate available altesnatives in determining the adoption date of the relevant standard. Based on the
amendments 1o IFRS & the Group is eligible for electing the temporary option 1o defer the effective date ol IFRS9.

= (IFRS 16 Leases; sats aut the prnciples for the recognition, measurement, presentatian and diselosure of lpases
The standasd introduces a single lessee accounting model and reguires a lesses o recognise assets and liabilities
far all leases with & term of maore than 12 monthe unless the undeying assat is of low valie. A lesses iy reguined
10 recognise a righl-of-use asssl represanting its rght 16 use the underkying leased asset and a lease liahility
repregenting s obligation to make leage payments. [FRS 16 substantially cernies forward 1he legssor accounting
requiromants in AS 17, Accordingly, 8 lessor continues to classify its leases a5 oparafing leases or financa leases,
end to aecount for those two ivpes of lzases differently. The Group is yer to assess the lull impact of the atandard on
it financial position and mesults of operations. The standand is mandatorily effective for anmeal periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019,

In additian, for this financial year ended 30 November 2014, the Group revised certain accounting policies and basks of
presentation and assessed the impact 10 the consolidated financial statemants (sea notes 47 and 48).

CORPONETE GOVENANCE FINAHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

FINANCIAL STATEMINTS

The signiflcant accounting policies adooted [n the preparation ef the Geoup's consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been applied consistently in all periods presantad.

ADDITIOMAL INFORMATIDN

AMMUAL REFOAT 28141 125

515/642



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
Oooooooa

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foaniimusd)

2.2 Operating profit

The leng-term nature of much of the Group's operations means that. for management’s decision-making and internal
performance menagemant purposes. the Group evaluates s resulls and its operating segments using & finencial
perfarmance mazsurs refarred Lo ak “operating profit”. Operating profit includes among othars the axpacted long-tarm
investment returmns lar investments in equities and real estate Based on the assumptions applied by the Group in the
Supplementary Embedded Value Information. The Group defines operating profit after tax as net profit excluding the
Totlawing non-operating items:

= shari-term fluctuations between expected and actusl investimant returns related 1o equities and real estate;
+«  ather imesiment retun (incluging shori-term fiuctuations due 1o market faciors). and
+ othersignificant itams that management considers to be non-operating income and expenses.

The Group considers that the preservation of operating profit enhances the understanding and comparability of jis
pierfarmance and that of 1s sporating segments. The Group eonsiders that trands can be more clearly identifiod without
the fluctuating effects of thase nen-operating tame, many of which are [ergely dependent on market fectors.

Operating profit Is provided as additional information to assist in the comparison of business trends in different reporting
perinds on a consisient basis and enhance overall undersianding of financial performance.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structuned entities) cver which the Group has control. A structured entity is an
entity that has bean designed =o thal voting or similar rights sre not the dominant factor in deciding whao controls the
trtity; such as whan any voling rights relate to administrative tasks only, and thi relevant activities are dinscied by means
of contractual arrangements. The Group has determined that the (rvestment funds and structured securities. such as
collaterslmed dabt abligations, mongaps-hacked securities and other rsset-hacked speurities that tha Group has interest
A struciured entities.

The Group controls an entity when the Group s skposed to, or has rights 1o, variable returns from its invalvement with the
winlity and hes (e ability (o allect those returng through it power over Uhe entily. Subsidiaries are consolidated lrom the
date on which control is transferred to the Group and are sxcluded from consolidation from the date at which the Group no
langer has control. Inercompany transactions are elminated

Thie Group utilises the acquisition method of accounting to account for the scquisition of subgidiaries, unless the acquinition
forms part of the Group recrganisation of entities under comman cantral, Under this method, the cast of an acquésition is
measured &s the Tair value ol consideration payabile, shares (ssued or Habilities essumed at ihe date of scgulsitlon, The
eacese of the cost of acquisition over tha fair value of the el aszets of the subsidisry acquired is recorded as goodwill (sae
note 210 bedow) The Group recognises, separataly from goodwill, the identitiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed
and any non-controlling intarest inthe subsidiary, Any surplus of tha acqubrer's interest in the subsidiary's ret assets over
the eost of acquisition is credited to the consolidated income statement.

The consalidated financial stalements of the Group include the assets, liabilities and results of the Comipany and subsidiaries
in which AlA Group Limited has a controlling intarest using accounts drawn up 10 the reporting dats.
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2. SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES omeusn

2.3 Basis ol consolidation jcenimes)

Investmant funds

Investment funds in which the Group hes interests and pawer 10 direct their relevant activities that aifect the return of
the funds am consolidated in the financial statemants. In conducting the assessment, the Group considers substantive
contractusl rights &s well as de facta coptrol. De facto control af an entity moy arice from circumstances where the Group
does not have more than 50% of tha voting power but it has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
entity. If the Group has power 1o remove or control over the party having the abillty 1o direct the relevant activities of the
{und bBated on the facts and circumstances and that ihe Group has oxposurs to vanable returms of the imastment funds,
thay are consolideted. Variable returns include bath rights to the profits or distributions as well as the ooligaton to absorb
bosses of the investees.

Employee share-based trusts:

Trusts ane 8t up to-acquire shares of the Company for distribution to participents in future periods through the share-based
comprnsation schemes.  The consolidation of these trusts & evaluated in accomdance with 1ERS 10; whe the Group
iz deemed to connod the trugis, they are consolidated. Shares acauired by the trusts to the extent not provided to the
participanis upon vesting ane cermied at cost and reported as “employes sharg-based trusts” in the consalidated stalement
offinancial pesition, and as & deduction from the equity in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Non-controlling interests

Hen-contralling interests are prosontad within squity except when thay anses through the minority's interest in puttable
Habilittes such as the wnit bolders' interest in consolidated investment funds, when they are recognised as a liability,
reflecting the net assets of the consolicated entity.

FINAHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

Acguisifors and disposals of non-controlling Interests, except when they arsé through the minority™s Inenest in puttable
Habilitkes, are treatad a5 transactions batweean equlty holders. As a result, any difference batween the acquisition cost or
sale price of the nan-controlling infarest and tha carmying value of the non-controlling intarest S recognised as anincrease
or decrease in equity,

Associates and joint ventures

Associnies arg entities over which the Group has significant mfluence, but which it dogs not control. Generally, 1t is
presumed that the Group has signiticant influsnce If it has berwsen 20 per cent and 50 per cent of voling rights. Jobnt
wETLures ane entities whersby the Group and other parties undertake. an gconamic activity whizh is sublect 1o joint control
arising from a contractual agresment.

CORPONETE GOVENANCE

Gains on transactions betwaen the Group and iis associates and jolnt ventunes are sliminatad 10 the extont of the Group's
enterest in the associsles and joint ventures. Losses are also eliminated, unless the transaction provides evidence of an
mpairment of an asset transferred botween antities.

FINANCIAL STATEMINTS

Inverstmanis in assotintes and joint vantures an accounted for uging the aquity mathod of necounting. Undar this mathod.
the cost of the investmant in an associate or pint venture, together with 1he Growp's share of that enkity's post-acquisition
changes 1o equity, is included as an assetin the consolidated statement of financial position. Cost includes goodwill arising
an acquisition. The Group's share of post-acguisition pralits or losses is recognised in the consclidated incarme statement
and s share of post-acquisition mMoveman in squity is recogmised in other compeehensive income. Equity sccounting s
digcontinued whan the Group no lenger has signilicant influence over the investment, |f the Group's share of losses inan
BESOCIMG OF iRt veriune equsls or ecesds s intarest in the undertaking, additional losses are provided for, and a Bability
recopnised, anly to the extont that the Growp hes incurned legal or constructive obligations or made payments on bahalf
of the associate or jeint vemure, The Group &lso accounts for investments fn jaint vertures that ane subject 1o joint control
using the equity method of scesuntig.

The Company's investments

In the Company's statement of financial pasition, subsidiaries, associates and joint venlures ane stated at cost, unless
impaired. The Company's interests in investment funds sweh as muteal funds and unit trests are designated at fair value
through profit ar loss.
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2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES jwoniimn;

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts

Consistent accounting policies for the measurement and recognition of insurance and investment contracts have baen
adopted throughout the Group 1o substantially gl of its business.

I & limited number of cazes, the Group messures insurnnce contract labilitias with reference 1o stalutory regulremants in
the applicable jurisdiction, without dedarral of scauksition costs

Product classification

The Group clessified its confracts written as either Insurance contracts or investment contracis, depending an the level
of insurance rigk. Ingurance contracts are those contracts that transfer signiticant ingurance rigs, while imastment
contracts sne those cantracts without significant insurance risk. Some Insurance and Investment contracts, referred to as
participsting business, have discrotionary participation foatures, “DPF, which may antitle the customar to receive. a5 a
supplement 1o guaranieed benefits, addiional non-guarantesd benslits, such as policyholder dividends or benuses. The
Group applies the same accounting policies for the recognition and measurement of obligations arsing from (vestment
confracts with [PF as it does for insurance contracts.

In the event that & scenario (other than those lacking commercial substance) exists in which an innired event would
requing the Group to pay significant sdditional benefits 1o its customers. the contract s accounted for &s on insurance
contract. For investment contracts that do not comain DPF, 1AS 3%, Financial instruments: Messurement and Recogiiiion,
and, if the contract includes an investmant maragemaent dloment, 1AS 18, Reveviue Recogniion ane appliod. IFRS & permits
the continued use of previnusly applied accounting policies for insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF,
and this basis hes boan adopted by the Group in accounting for such contracts. Once a contract has baen classifiad as an
insurance of investment contract, reclassification 1= not subseguantly performed unless the torms of the agrecment are
later amended,

Certain contracts with DPF supplement the amount of guarantéed benafits dua to policyhelders. Thess coniracts are
distinct from other insurance and investment contracts as the Group has discretion in the amowunt and/or timing of the
benelils declared. and how such bepelits are allocated betwesn groups of pollcyholders. Customers may be entitled o
mecaive, as a supplement 1o guarartecd benefits, additionol bonofits or bonuses:

* that are likely 1o be a significant portion of the 1otal contractual benefits;

*  whosa ampunt ar timing is contractually at the discration of the Group; and

+  that are contractually based on:
= tha parfermanca of a specified peol of eontracts or a specified typa of contract;
= realised and/or unrealised investment retums on a specified pool of assets held by the issuer; o
= the prolitor lass of the Company, fund or offur entity that issuos the contract
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES womeust

2.4 Insurance and Invesiment contracts jceaimued)

Product classification (ccescet)

The besis of accounting for insurance and investment contracts is discussed in notes 2.4.1 and 2.4.7 below,

2.4.1 Inzurance contracts and investmant contracts with DPF

Premiums.

Premiums from lifa insurance contracts, including participeting palicles and annulty policies with life contingencies, e
retognised & revenus whan doe fram the policyholdee. Benelits and txpensss A provided in respect of such rvanue 56
as to recognise profits owver the estimated life of the policies. For limited pay contracts. premiums are recognised in profit
or logs whan due, with any excess profit deferred and recognised in ncome in a congtant ralationship to the ingurance
in-force o, for ennuities, the amobnt of expected benefit payments.

Amounts collegted as premiums from Insurance contracts with invesiment fealures bul with suflicient insurencs risk o
b considered insurance contracts such s undvirsal (ile, and certaln unit-linked contracis, are accumulated as deposis.
Revenue from thase contracts consists ot policy fees for the cost of insurance, adminkstration. and surrenders during the
pariod,

Upfrent fees are recognised over the essimated life of the contracts to which they relate. Policy benelits and claims that e
charged o expenses include benddit claims incumed in the period in ekcess of related policyholder contract deposits and
interest credited to policyholder deposils.

Usparnmad revenve lability

Unezmed revanua liability represants upfront fees and other non-level charges that have been collectad and relezsed to
the consalidated income statement over the estimated life of the business. A separste liability for sccumulstion value ix
esiablishid.

Defarred profit liability

Deferred prafit lability arising from traditional insurance contracts represents excess profits that have been collecizd and
released to tha coneolidated income statemant over the estimated lifa of the businese. A saparata Lisbility for future policy
benefits i established.

Deferred sequisition costs

The costs of acquiring new insurance contracts. including commissions and distribution costs, underwriting and oihar
policy Issue expenses which vary with and are primarily related to the production of new business or renewal of existing
business, am defarred as an assat. Deferred acquisition costs ara azsassed fer recovarability in the vaar ol palicy issue to
ensure that these costs are recoverabbe out of the estimated future marging 1o be earned on the palicy. Deferred acquisition
costs are assessad for recoverability 8t least annually thereafter, Future investment income is also taken into account in
assessing recoverability. To the extent that acquisition costs are not considered to be recoverable at inception or thereaftar,
thete costs ame akpensed in tha consolidated income statament

CORPONETE GOVENANCE FINAHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

FINANCIAL STATEMINTS

Doferrad acquisition costs for lite inswrance and annuity policies are amortised over the expected life of the contracts
a5 a constant percentage of expected premiums. Expected premlums are estimated at the date of pollcy tssus and are
consistently appiied throughout the life of the contract unless a deficiency occurs when performing liability adequacy
1esting {see below),

Deferred acquisition costa lor universal life and unst-linked contracts are amortized aver the expacted life of the contracis
based on & constant percentaga of the present value of estimated gross profits expected to bo realised over tho lifo of
the contract-or on a straight-ling basis. Estimated gross profits include expected amounts 1y be assessed for martality,
administration, investment and surrendess, less bonefit claims in extess of policyholder balances, administrainve expensas
and interest credited, Estimeated gross profits ane revised regularly. The interast rate usad o compute the present value of
rowisad astimates of expocted gross profits is tha latest revised rte applied to the remaining banaefit pariod, Deviations of
actual results from estimated axperience are reflected in earnings.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (senimen)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts ostoud)

24,1 Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF icomnusd)

Deferred sales inducemeants

Defarrad sales inducernants, cansisting of day ene bonuses. persistancy bonuses and enhanced crediting rates arm deferred
and amortised using the same mathadology and assumptions veed 1o amortise acgulsition costs when:

+  the sales inducements are recognised as part of Insurance contract (labilives;

+  they ame gxplicitly identified in the contract on inception;

+ they are incremental to amounts credited on similar contracts without sales indwcements; and
+  they ame higher than the sxpected sngoing crediting rates for periods after the inducament,

Unbondling
Thi deposit compenint of an insurance contract i unbundbsd whan Bath ol the following conditions ara mst:

+ the deposit component (including any embedded surrender option) can e measured soparately (e without taking
Into account the Insurance component); and

= the Group's accounting palicies do not otherwise require the recognition of all obligations and rights arising from the
deposit compansnt

Bifurcation
To the extent that certain of tha Group's insurance contracts include embedded derivatives that are not clearly and closely
redated to the host contract, these are bifurcated fram the insurance contracts and accoumed for as derivatives.

Benefits and cfaims
Insurance contract benefits reflect the cost of all maturitles, surrenders, withdrawals and clalms arising during the year, as
witll aa palicyhalder dividends acorued i anticipation of dividend declarations.

Accident and health claims incerrad include il losses ocourring during the year, whether reported ornot, related handling
costs, areduction for recoverios. and any adjustments to claims outstanding from provious years.

Claims handling costs include internal and eaternal costs incurred in connection with the negotiation and settlement of
claims, and ane included in operating expenses,

Irsurancs eontract abilitles (ineluding liabilities in respact of investmenl eontraets with DPF)
Insurance contract liabdlities represent the estimated future policyholder benefit liability for life insurance policies:

Future policy benefits for life insurarce policies are calculated using & nat level premium valustion mathod which
Iepresents the present valus of estimated future policy benelits to be paid, less the present value of estimated future net
premiums 1o be collected from policyholders.

For contracts with an explicit account balance, such as universal life and unit-linked contracts. insurance gontract liabelidies
ame equal 1o the acournulation value, which represanis premiums recelved and investmant raturns cradited 1o the palicy
lzss deductions for mortality and morbidity costs and oxpense charges.

Sattlerment options are accounted for as an integrsd component of the underlying instrance or investment contract unless
they provige ennuitisation benelits, in which case an additional Mability is established to the extent that the present value
of expected anmultisation payments at the espocted anmuitisation date exceeds the expected account balance a1 that
date. Whara settlement sptions have bean issuad with guarantesd rates less than markel intarest rates. the insurance
or investment comract liability does not refiect any. provision for subsequent declings in market interest rotes unkess a
deficiency i identifisd through lability edequacy testing
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2. SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES omeusn

2.4 Insurance and Invesiment contracts (cestnved)

2.4.1 Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF jcontimisd

ingurance contract (fabilities (including Habilities in respect of investment confracts with DPF) iomeus)

The Group accounts lor insurance contract liabilities for participating business written in pasticipating funds by
establishing a lisbility fer the present value of guarantead benefits less estimated future net premiums to be cotlected
from policyholders. In addition, an insurance Bability is recorded for the proportion of the net assets of the participating
funds that would be allocaied to policyholders assuming all relevant surplus at the date of the consolldaiad statement of
financial pagition ware to ba declared as a policyholder divicand basad upon applicabls regulations. The Group sccounts
{or other participating business by establizhing a bgbility for the present value of guarantesd benefits and non-guerantesd
participation, less estimated futune net premivms to be collected from policyholders,

Liability adequacy testing

The adequacy of lisbilitles |s assessed by porifolio of contracts, in accordance with the Group's manner of acquiring.
servicing Bnd meRsuring the profitakdlity of its insurance contracts Lisbility adequacy testing is performed lor pach
reportable segmant

For traditional [ife insurance contracts; insurance contract liabilities reduced by deferved acquisition costs and walus of
bissiness aequired on scquined ingurance contracts, e companid 1o the Gress premium valuation calculatid on & best
estimate basis; as of the valuation date If there is a deficiency, the unamortised balance of deferned acquisition cast
and valug af business acquired on acquined NEUrRNCE contricts ar written down 1o the axtont of the deficiancy. i, atar
writing down the unamortised balance for the specific portfolio of contracts to nd, a deficiency still sxists, the net lability
i3 increaged by the amount of the remaining deficiency.

FINAHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

For universal life and irvestment contracis, deferred scquisition costs, net ol unearmed revenue liabillties, are compaied 1o
estimated gross profits: Ifa deliclency exists. deferred acqulsition costs ame written down.

CORPONETE GOVENANCE

Financial guarantesas
Financial guarantees are regarded as instrance coniracts. Lisbilities in respect of such contracts are recognized as loss iz
incurred by a holder.

2,42 Investment contracts

Investmant contyacts o nat contan sutlicient insurence rizk 10 be considared insurance comiacis and are accoumtsd
for as & financial liability, ather than investmant contracts with DPF which are excludaed from the scope of 145 39 and amn
accounted for ag insurance contracta

Revenue lrom these contracts consists of various charges (policy fees. handling fees. managerment fees and surrender
charges) made against the contract for the cost of insurance, expenses and early swrrendes. Fust yoar chages s
amortised over the lfe of the contract a3 the services are provided.

FINANCIAL STATEMINTS

Investment contract fee revenue

Customars are charged feas for policy administration, invastment managemant, surrendars or othes contract sorvices. The
fezs may be fixed amounts or vary with the amounts being managead, and will generaily ba charged as an adjustment to
the policyholder's account balance. The fees are recognised &s revenus in the period in which they ame received unless
they relate 1o services to be provided in future periods. in which case they are deferred and recognised &s the senice (s
pravidhid,

Originaticn and other “upfron” foes (fees that aro assessed against tha account balanca as consideration for arigination of
thi comtract] ane charged on some nan-participating investment and pension contracts. Where the investmeant contract is
recorded al amortised cost, these fees am amoitised and recognised ovei the expected term of the policy a5 an adjustment
1o the effective yield, Wherne 1he investment contract is measuned at fair value, the front-end fees that relate to the provision
af immstmant management sarvices ane amortised and recogrizad &g the sennices am provided
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (senimen)

2.4 Insurance and investment contracts essou)

2.6.2 Investment contracts icentinusd)

Deferred origination costs

The costs of acguining Investment contracts with investment managemant sarvices, including commissions and cihar
incremental expenses directly related 1o the [ssue of each new contract, are deferred and amortised over the period that
services are provided. Deferred origination costs are tested for recoverability at each reporiing dats.

Tha costs of acquiring now [mestmant contracts without investment managermant servicas am included as part of the
effective interest rate used 1o caloulate the amortisad cost of the related investment contract lebilities.

Investment contract fabilities

Deposits recelved in respect of investmeant contracts are nat sccounted for throigh the consalidated income statement,
wacapt for the invesiment income and fees attributable 1o those comtracts, but are accounted for directly through the
consolidated siatement of finencial position as an adiustment to the investment contract liability, which reflects the
mccount batanca.

The majority af the Group's contracts classified as investment contracts are unit-linked cantracts. with messurement
directly linked to the underlying investment essets These represent invesiment portfolica maintained to meet specific
Investment objectives of policyhoelders who generally bear the ceedit and market rishs on those investments. The liabilities
e carmed at fair value determined with refenence 10 the accumulation valuee (ourrent unit valee ) with changes recognised
in prafit or lnss The costs af policy administration, fnvestmant managemeant, surrender charges and certain policyholder
taxes assessed against cugtomers’ pccount balances re included in revenus, and accounted for a8 described undor
“Irvasament coniract foe revenua” above:

Man unit-dinked investmant contract liabilities are carried ot amartised cost, being the fair value of consideration teceived
0 the dateof initial recognition, less the neteffect of principal paymants such ag transaction costs and (ront-end fees, phus
or minus the cumulative amortisation wsing the etective interest method of any ditherence batween that initial amount
and the maturity valus, end less any write-down for surrendeér payments. The elfective inberest rzte equates the discounted
cash paymants o the initial amount. At cach reparting date, tho uneamaed revenee lishility i dotermined as the valee of
the fulume best estimate cash llows discounted at the aflective interest rate, Any adjustment is immediately recognised as
incoma or axpanse in the consolidated income statemant.

The-amartisad costof the financial liability s nevar recorded at loss than the:amount pavable on surrender, discounted for
the time vatue of money where spplicable, If the investment condract is subject fo 4 sufrender option

Daferred fee income liability

Deferred fee income liability represents upfront fees snd other non-level chemges that have been collocted and released
i the consolidated income staiement over the estimated [ife of ihe business. A saparaie liability for acocumulation value
is established.
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2. SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES omeusn

2.4 Insurance and Invesiment contracts (cestnved)

2.4.3 Insurance and invastment contracts

Reingurance

The Group cades meinsuranca in the narmal course of business, with mtentions varying by line of business. The cost of
reinausance is accounted for over the life of the undefying reingured policies; using assumptions congistent with those
wsed o account for such policies.

Pramiufis ceded and claims mimbursed e prasented on 4 gross Basis in the consolidated income statomand and
statermnent of financial position.

Reinsurance asseiz congist ol amounts: receivable in respect of eeded insurance llabdlities. Amounts recaverable from
reinsunors are estimated in & manner consiztent with the reinsured insurance or investment contract liabilities or benafits
pakd and in accordance with the relevant resnsurancs contract.

FINSHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

To the axtent that reinsurance contracis principally transfer financial risk {as opposed to insurance risk) they ame accounted
for directly through the consolidated staternont of finpncial position and are not included in minsurance sssats ar liabiitios:
A deposit asset or llability is recognizsed, based on the consideration paid or received less any esplicitly identified premioms
or fees to be retalned by the relnsured.

If & redngurance assel is impained, the Group reduces the carmying amownt accordimply and recogeises 1het mpairment (oss
in the consolidated income statement. A relinsurance gsset s impaired if there is objective evidence. as a result of an event
that securmid alter initial roeognition of tha reinsurancs assel, that the Groun may not receiee ol amaunts dee to 1t ander
the terms of the contract, and the impact on 1he amounts that the Groug will recaive from the reinsurer can be reliably
measured

Valuve of business reauired (VOBA)

The VOBA in respect of a portfolio of long-term inswrance and invesiment contracis, aither directly or through the purchase
of a subsidiary, is recopnised as an assel Il this results from the acquisition ol an investment in 8 joint veniure oF an
aszociain, the VOBA iz held within the carrying amount of that investmant. In all cases. the VOBA is amartised aver the
estimated life of the contracts in the ncquired portfolio on asysamatic basis, The rata of amortiaation reflects the profile of
iz walue of in-ferce business acoudred, The carrying valus of VOBA is reviewad annually for impaiemend and any reduction
&5 chargad 1o thi consolkdated Income statemeant.

Shadow accounting

Shadow accounting |s applied to Insurance and certain investment contracts with discretionary participation featune
whare financisl asssts backing Insurance end investment contract liabilities are classified o3 available for sale, Shadow
accounting ks applied to deferred acquisition costs, VOBA, defered ongination costs and the contract liabilities for
knvestment contracts with DPF 1o 1ake Into account the effect of unrealised gains or losses on insurance liabilkies or
assels that are recognised in ciher comprehensive income in the same way as for a realized gain or loss recognized in the
congolidated incoma statement. Such assets or Linbilites are adjusted with corresponding charges or criding recognised
directly in shareholders' equity as a companent of the related wnrealised gains and losses.

C

CORFOHETH GOV ITNARN

FINANCIAL STRATUMINTS

Other assessments and lewes

The Group is potentially subject 1o various periodic insurance-related assessments or guarantes fund lavies. Related
pravisions are egtablishad whers thers |5 a present abligation (lagal er constructive) a5 a result of & past svant, Such
amounts ane not Included in insurance or [rvestment contract lishilities but are included under “Provigions” in the
consofidated statement of financisl position.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foaniimusd)

2.5 Financial instruments

‘2.5.1 Classification of and designation of financial instrumants

Financinl assets and labilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and liabilitas at fair value through profit or loss comprise twe catagories:

+ financial assets or linbilites designated at fair valus through profit or loss upon initial recognition; and
+ financial zssets or labilithes classilied as held for trading.

Managenet designates financial assets and labdities at far ealue through orofit or oss if this aliminates A measuremant
inconsistency or if the related assets and labilities are actively managed on a fair value basis, including:

+ financial aszets hald to back unit-linked contracts and participating funds:

+ ather financial assels managed on a lair value basis; consisting of the ﬁmrp’séqullv partfolio and investments held by
this Group's lully corsolidmed investmant fonds: and

»  compound instruments containing an embedded denvative, where the embeddad dervative would otherwise mouine
bifwrcation:

Financial assets and liabilites classified as held for trading incfude financial assets acguired principally for the purposs
of setling them in thi near future and those thet form part of & portfolio of findncis] assets in which there is evidencs of
shart-term profit taking, as well as derivative assets and liahilities.

Dividend income from equity instruments designated at fair value through profit or oss is recognized i investment income
in the consolidated Income statement. generally when the security becomes ex-dividend. Interest income is recognised on
an accrued basis. For all financial assets designated at fair valse through peofit or loss. changes in fair valus am recognised
in iMVESTMant expeience

Transaction costs in respact of financial asseis and lihilties &t falr value through proflt or loss are expensed as they sre
incurred,

Avaflable for sale financial assets
Financial assats, other than thase at (aic value thraugh profit or leas, and loans and receivables, are classitied s avallahile
for 5ala,

The available for sala categary is usad whers the ralevant investments backing insurance and investment cantract liabilities
and sharsholders” equity are not managed on a fair value besis These principelly eonzizst of the Group's debt securities
{other than those backing participating funds ond unit-finked contracts), Available for sale financial assets ano initial by
recognised at fair value plus attributable rransaction costs. For avallable for sale debt securities, the ditference between
their cost and par value is ansrtised. Svailable for sale financial assms are subseguently measured ot fair value, Interest
income from debt securities ciassified 25 avadable for sale is recognised in investment (ncome in the consolidated income
statement using the effective interest method,

Unrealised gaing and loeses on socuritios classified as availablo for sale are analyéod batween differences resulting from
foreign currency translation, and ather fair value changes. Fareign currency transiation differences on monetary available
for salé imvestrments, such as debt securities are calculsted as if they were carriod i smortised cost and 30 ans recognksed
in he consolidated income statement &3 investment experience. For impairments of available for sale financial assets,
reference is made to the saction “Impairmant of financial assets”

Charsges in tha falr value of securithes classifiod as available lor gale, except for impairment losses and ralovant loraign
sachange gains and [nsses, are rmcognized in athar comprehensive income and accumulated in & separate fair value resarve
within equity. Impairment losses and relevant foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised In tha income statement.

Realised gains and losses on financial assets
Realised gains and ioszes omavaslable for sale finenciel assets are determined as the difference between the sale procesds
and amortized cost, Amartised cost |5 determined by specilic identilication.
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OVIRTIEW

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES omeum

2.5 Financial Instruments jceanie

2.5.1 Classification of and designation of financial instruments (sntimsd)

Recognition of financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial msiruments are recognised on the trade date. which iz the date at which the Group
comimits 19 purchase or sell the assels,

Derecognition and offset of financial sssets

Financial assets are derocognised whin the rights to rocalve cash flows fram the nancial assts ke sxpinad or whers
the Group has transferred substantiadly all risks and rewsards of ownership | the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rowards of ownership of a financial asset, it derecognises the financisl asset if it no longer
has conirod over the asset, In transfers where control evier the asset is retalned, the Group contlmees to recogrise the asset
1o the extent of its continuing involvament. The extent of continuing invelwerment is detarmined by the axtent 1o which the
Group |5 exposed 1o changes in the fair value of the asset.

Financial assets and liabilities ars offset and the net amount reported In the consolidated statement of fimancial position
only when thore is a legally enforceable right to offset tha recognised amauwnts and thana s an intention 1o sattls on anot
basis, or realise the asset and settie the lisbility simultanecusly,

Loans and recefvables

Loans and receivables ane non-dervative financial assets with fised or determinable payments that are not guoted in
an active market. Thay are nitially recognizsed st falr value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are camied at
amortised cost uging the effective interest mothod less any impalrmant losses. Interedt incoma from loans and recoivables
t= recognisad in investmant incoms in the consolidoted income statement using the offective interest method.

Term deposits

Deposits include time de posits with financial institutions which do not meat the dedinition of cash gnd cash equivalents as
thedr maturity at acquisition exceeds three months: Certain of these balances are subject to regulatory or other restriction
a2k disclosed Innote 19 Loans and depesits. Deposits are siated at amertised cosi using the effective intarest method,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents Indude cash in hand, deposits hebd at call with banks and other shor-term highly lguid
bruesimants with maturitles st acguisition of thrée manths of less, which are held for cash managament purpeses, Cash and
cash equivalants also include cash mﬂ a5 collateral for devivative transactions, sacurities lending transactions, and
repo and reverse repo transactions, 85 well a5 cash and cash equivabents held for the benefit of policyholders in cannection
with unit-linked products. Cash and cash eguivalents are measuied ot amartised cost using the effective interest mathod:

2.5.2 Fair values of non-derivative financial instruments

Thee fadr value of a linancial instrument 15 the amount thst would be recelved 1o sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a [ability in
an afdarly trangaction batwean market partscipants af the measurement data, having régard 1o the specilic charactonstics
of the asser or liability concerned, assuming that the transler takes place in the most advestageous market to which
the Group has access. The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markots (such as financial instruments
&t fair vales throwgh prafit o loss and available far sale secunitias) are based on guoted market prices at the date of the
consobidated statemant of financial position, The auoted market price used for financiasl assets hatd by the Group is the
eurrent bid price, which i considersd to be the pece within the bid-ask speead that s most regresent B of the fakr valoe
i the circumstances. Tha fair valoes of financial instrumants 1hat are not traded (n active markets are determined using
waluation techniques: Tha Group uses a varety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
at the dates of each conselidated statement of financial position The chjective of using a valuntion techniqua s to estimate
ihe price at which an erderly. transactioh would fake place between market participants at the date of the consolidsted
statarment af financial position

CORPONETE GOVENANCE FINAHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

FINANCIAL STATEMINTS

ADDITIOMAL INFORMATIDN

Financial instruments carried at falr value ane measured using a fair value hierarchy dessribed in note 21.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (menimn)

2.5 Financial instruments icomeued)

2.5.3 Impairment of financial assats

Ganeral

Financial assets am assessod lor impalrment on a regular basis. The Group assesses at gach reporting dats whathar thare
s ohiective avidence thata financial asset or group of financial agsets is impaired. A financial asset, ar group of financial
assuts, 15 impoired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as & msult of one or
mane events that have ccourred after the inltial recognition of the as=et {a boss event) and that |oss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated fulure cash Nows al th inancial asse or group of financial assats that can ba reliably estimated,

For |oans and receivablos, the Group first assesses whathar objettive evidance of impairment edists for financial assots
that are individually significant. M the Group determines that objective evidence of impalrment does not exdst for an
individually ssseszod firancial as<el, whether significant or not, it includes tha asset in & group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for imparment. Assets that are Individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impaicment loss is o continues to be recognised ans not insluded (0 collective assessment
of Impalrmani.

Available for sale financial instruments

When adecling in the fair value of an available for sale ass0t has been recagnised inother comarehensive incom &nd thers
18 obiective evidence that the assat is impaired. the cumulative loss already secognised directly in other comprehensive
inEama i recogned in currant poriod prefit on loss

If ahve fair value of & debtinstrumant classified a8 availablo for sale increnses in a subsequent period. and the increase can
be objoctvaly reloted to an ovant occurring after the impairmant loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impoirment loss
15 reversed through prefit or loss. Whers, following the recagnition of an Impalrment loss in respect of an avallable lor sale
debt security, the assat sulters further falls invalue. such further falis ara recognisad as an impairment anly in the case
whien objacties modencs ensts of & further impairment svant 1o which tha losses can be atnbetsg.

Loans and receivables

For lpans and receivables impairment is considerad to have taken place if it is probable that tha Group will not ba abla to
collect principal and/or intereat dug according to the contractual terms af the mstrument. When impairment is determined
to hawve occurred, the carrying amount 15 decreased through & charge to profit or loss. The carryving amaunt of morigage
loans or recelvables i reduced through the uss of an allowance account, and the amaunt of any allowance is recognised
s an mpawrment [0ss in profit or loss.

2,54 Dorivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments primarly include forergn exchange contracts and interest rate swaps that derive (haeir
value mainly from underlving foreign exchange rates and Interest rates: All desivatives are nitially recognised in the
cansolidatad statement of financial postion at their fair value, which represents their cost excluding iransaction eosts,
which ame expensed, giving risa to a day one loss. They are subseguently remeasured at thelr fair value, with movemaents
in this value recognised in profit of bosg. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices or, if these are not available,
by uzing valuation techmigues such as discounted cash llaw models or optian pricing madats. All derivatives are carried as
Besats when the falr values are positive and as lakslities when the fair values are negative.

Derivative ingtruments for economic hedging

Whiilst thie Group enters into dervative transactions to provide economic hedges under the Growp's risk managament
framawork, it adopts hedge accounting to these transaotions only in limited circumstances. This is either because the
transactions would nat maet the specific IFRS rules to be eligible for hedge accounting or the documentation nequirements
1o meet hedge accounting criteria would be unduly onerous. Where fiedge eccolnting does not apply, these transactions
e treated a5 hald for rading and fair value movements ane recogrised immedistely in investment experisnce.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES womeust

2.5 Financilal Instrumenis oo

‘2.5.4 Derivative financial instruments icomisued)

Embedded derivatives

Embedded derivatives are derivatives ambedded within other nan-derivative host financial instrumants 1o create bybrid
ingtrumants. Where the econamic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives ere not closely related 1o the
economic characteristics and risks of the hast instrument, and whare the hybrid instrument is not meesured at fair value
with changes in fair value recopnized in profit or loss; the embedded dervative is bifurcated and carried at fair value as a
daorivative in sceardance with 145 39

2.6 Segmant reporting

An oparating segmont is & componant of the Group that engages in busiress activity from which it eams revenues and
incurs expenses-and, for which, discrete finencial information is available, and whoss operating resulis are regulardy
rirwlmwed by the Groun’s chief operating decision-maker considersd 1o be the Executive Comminee of the Group (ExCa).

FINSHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

2.7 Foreign currency transiation

Income statements and cash llows of foreign entities are translated into the Group's preseéntation currency a1 average
exchange rates for the year as this approximates to the exchange rates prevalling &t the transaction date. Thair statemants
of financial position are transiated a8 year or period end exchangs rates. Exchange differences arising from the Iranslation
of the net investment in fareign cperations. are taken ta the currency translaton reserve within eguity. On disposal of 2
foraign operation; such exchange differences are transhanmed it of this resarva and are recoanised in the consolidatid
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

C

Foreign curmency transactions are accounted lor @ the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Galns
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions. and frorm the translation of monatary assels and [abilites
denaminatad in foreign curmencies inta functional currency, are recognized in the consolidated income statement

Translation differances on financial assets designated at falr value through profit or loss are included in investment
enperience. For monetary financial nssets classified as available for sale; transiation differences are caloulated g if thay
were carried af amartised cost and 5o are ecognised in the consolidated income statement. Foreign exchange movements
on ner-monetary eguibies thist are scocunted for as avisilabli lor sale pre included in the lalr value reserve.

CORFOHETH GOV ITNARN

2.8 Proparty, plant and equipmant

Proparty held for own use ls-carried at fale value a1 last valuation date less accumulsted depreciation, When an asset is
adjusted for the latest fair value, any accumuiated depreciation at the date of valuation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset The movement of fair values is generally recognised in other comprehensive incoms. When
such properties are seld, the amounts accumuiated In other cemprehensive income are transferred 1o retalned earmkngs.

FINANCIAL STRATUMINTS

The Group records its mterest n leasehold land and land use nghts associated with proparty hald for own use separately
as operating leases or finance leases depending on whather substantially adl the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the land ars trangfarred 1o the Group. Thoss intemsts classifled as finance loases are roported as a cormponant of the
property hald for own uze and carred &1 fair value at last veluation date. The prepayments to. scquire lzasehold (and
classifivd as operating leases are mcordied a1 orgingl cost within “Other assets” and amortised over the term of the lease
{see note 2.19).

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost [ess accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loszes.
Historical cost includes expenditure thai is directly attributable to the acquisition of the loms.

ADDITIOMAL INFORMATIDN
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foaniimusd)
2.8 Properiy, plant and eguipment (corseues)
Depreciation i calculated using the straight-line mazhod to allocate cost less any residual value over the estimated usaful

[ife. generally:

Fimtureg, fittngs and alfice oquipment S yeara
Buildings 20-40 yeurs
Computgr hardware and otfvir 255615 J-Gyears
Frechold land Ho depreciation

Subsequent costs ane includedin the carmying amount oF FEcognised 05 3 sEparale Bssel. as appropriste, when it is probable
that future economic benafits will fiow 1o the Group. Repairs and makntenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the linancial period in which they ane incured.

Residual values and usaful lives are reviewed and adjusted, If applicable, at each reporting date. An asset is writtan down
to its recoverable amount if the earrying valug is greater than the estimated recoverable amount.

Any gain and [oss arising on disposal of property, plant and equipment IS measured as the difference betvasan the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset. and is recognesed in the consolidated income statement.

2.9 Investmant proparty

Property held for long-term rental or capital appreciation or both that is not occupied by the Group (s clasaified as
investment property, investment property, including land and buildings, is initially recognised at cost with changes in fair
values in subsequent periods recognised In the censolidated income statement.

If 2 investment property becomes held for own use; it is reclassified as proparty, plant and equipment. Where & proparty
is partly used 88 an investmont properly and parily for the use by the Group, thasa elomants are recordod soparataly within
investment property and property, plant and equipment respectively, whara the component wsed as imvestment proparny
would be capabie of separate sale or finance lsase.

2,10 Goodwill and other intangible assats

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess o the cost of an acguisition over the falr value of the Group's share of the net identiliable
naseta of the acquired subsidiary, psociate or joint venture ot the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions prior to 1
December 2006 {the date of transition to IFRS) is camied at book value (original cos! less curmulative amorisation) on that
dote, less any Impalrment subsequently Incurred. Goodwill aising on the Group's imestment in subsidisries since that
date is shown as a separale asset and is caried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, whilst that on assoniates
and joing ventures is included within the carrying value of those invesiments. Al acquisition-related costs are espensed
a5 Inturred,

Other intangible assets

Orher intanpible assets consist primarily of acquired comgputer software and contractual reltinnships, such as access
to distribution networks, and ae amortised over their eshmated useful lives. Tha amortisation charge for rights ta
acoess digtribution networks & included in the congolidated incoma statemant under “Commaggion and other acquigition
expenaeg”.

Acouired computer softwane licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific soltware. Costs directly associated with the internal production of identifiable and unigue software by the Group
that will generata economic benefits exceeding those costs over a period greater than a year, ame recognised as intangible
asaEta All athar coats essociated with develnping or maintaining computer soltwis programmes are cecognied Bl &n
oxpanae a5 incurmed. Costs of acquining computer softwars licences and incurred in the internal production of compiter
software are amortised using the straight-line method over the estimated wseful life of the software. which does not
generally exceed a pariod of 3 to 15 years. The amortisation charge for the vear s included in the consolidated incoimia
statement under "Operating sxpensss”.
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2. SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES romeusn

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Proparty, plant and equipment, goodwill and other non-financial assets are reviewed for impairmant whenaver events or
changes in cwcumstancas indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment |oss is recognised to
{ha mxtent that the carrying amount of the asset axceads its recoverabls amount, which s the highar of the tair value of the
aszel less eost 1o-sail and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped into cash-genarating
units at tha level of the Group's opavating segments. the [owest level for which separately-identifiable cash Aows s
reporied, The carrying values of gocdwill and intanglble assers with indelinlte useful lives are reviewed at least annually
or when circumsiances o svents indicate that thees may be uncartainty ower this valua.

The Group assesses at the end of sach reporting periad whether thare & any cbjoctive avidenca that its investments
bn essocistes and jolnt ventures are impaired. Such objective evidence includes whether there has bean any signiflicant
adwerse changes in the technological, market, economic or legal ervironment in wiich the associatesand joint ventures
operate or whether thare has been a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. If there s an indication that
an inberest in an asiociate o a joint veniure s impaled, the Goup assesses whether the entire earndng amount of the
rvestmant (including goodwill) i3 recoverable. An impairment logs is recognized in profit or lees Tor the amount by which
tha carrying amount is lower than the higher of tha investment's tair value leas costs to sell or volug in use, Any mvergal of
such impairmant loss n subzequent periods ts reversed throwgh profit or loss.

Inthe statement of financial positicn of the Company, iImpairment tesking of the investments n subsidianes associaes and
jodnt vantunes is mquined upn recaiving dividends from these investments if the dividond excaeds the total compobangive
ncoime of the subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures in ithie pariod the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the relevant investment in tho Company's statoment of financial pogition exceeds its carrying amount in the congolidatod
financial statements of the Investess' net assets including goodwill

FINSHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

C

CORFOHETH GOV ITNARN

2.12 Securities lending including repurchase agreements

The Group has been a party to various securities lending agreements under which securities are loaned to third parties on a
shori-term basis. The loened securities are not derecognised and so they continue to be recognlzad within the appropd ste
rvastmant classification,

Assents sold under repurchase agregmenis fhm,l_

Agsits sold under repurchage sgresmonts continue to be recoanised gnd a [Rability is establishad for the condideration
recaived, The Group may b required to provide additional collateral based an the fair vatue of the undarying assets, and
such collateral assats remain on the conselidated statement of financlal pesiton,

Assets purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repos)

The Growp enters into purchases of assets undor agreomants to resell (reverss repos ), Reverse repos. are indtiakly recorded
at the cost of the loan or collateral advanced within the caption "Loans and depozits™ In the consalidated statement of
financial pasition. In the event of fallure by the counterparty to repay the loan, the Group has the right to the underlying
A5S01S,

FINANCIAL STRATUMINTS
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (menimn)

2.13 Collateral

The Group receives and pledges collateral in the farm of cash or non-cash assets in respect of dervative transactions,
securities lending transactions, and repo and reverse repo transections, in order to reduce the credit risk of these
trangactions. The amountand type of collstersl dapends on an assessmant of the cradit risk of the countarparty. Collataral
recaived in the form of cash, which ks nat legally segeegated from the Groug, i recognised as an gsset inthe consolidated
statement of financial position with a corresponding liakility for the repayment Mon-cash collateral received & not
recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position unless the Group elther sells or repledges these assets in
th shsence of dataule, st which point the sbligation 1o return this collateral is recognised as a liability, To further minmisa
credit risk, the finenciel condition of countarperties s monitored on a regular basis.

Collateral pladged in the form of cash which |2 legally segregated lram the Group is derecognised from the consslidaied
staterment of financial position and a corresponding receivable established for it return. Non-cash collateral pledged is
et derecognised (encept In the event of default) and therefore continues to be recognised in the consolidated statement
of Hinancial poasibion within the approgpate financial instrument clissihicatien

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings arne recagnised initially at their l3sue procesds |ess transaction costs incurred. Subsequently, barrtwings sre
staled al amortised cost, and any difference batween net proceeds and redemption value is recognised in the consoiidated
incoma statement over the pericd of tha barmewings using the etfective intorest method. All bormwing costs are aupansed
s they araincumed sxcent for bormwing eosts directly attributabbe to the developmant of investment properties and other
qualifving assets. which an capiialised as part of the cost of tha asget.

2.15 Incoma taxes
The current tax expanse is based an the texabie profits for the vear. including any sdjustments in respect of prior years, Tax
15 allocated to profit or [oss bafore taxation and amounts chamed or credited io equity as appropriste.

Defarred tax is recognised in respact of temparary differénces belwean the tax hases of assets ard liabilities and thair
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statemants, except &9 described below.

The principal temparary differences arise from the basis of recognition ol Insurance and investment contract llabdlities,
revasliation of cartain financial assets and liabilities including derivative comracts. deferred acaufsition costs and the future
LAxES Arging on the surplus in life funds where the relevant |ocal tax regime is distributions-based. The rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position are used to determing defered tax.

Deforred tax assots are recognised ta the extant that it s probable that future taxable profit will be mailable agoinst which
the temparary differences can be utilised. In countries where there is a history of tax losses, deferred tex assets e only
recagnised in excess of defarred tax liabilities [ there s evidencs that future profits will be available.

Datarred taxes an not provided in respect of temporary differances aresing from the initkal mcogpnition of goodwill or from
goadwill for which amortisation js not deduetible for tax purposaes, or from the inltial recognition of an asset o lishility in
o bransactian which i not o busingss combination and which atfacts noithor agcouwnting nor taxable profil or loss at the
time of the transaction.

Deferred tax related o falr value iemessurement of available for szle irvestments and other amounts taken directly to
aquity, is recognised initially within 1he applicable component of squity, It is subsequently recognised in tha consabidated
incom statement, logethar with the gain or loss arsing on the underlying itam,

In addition to paying tax on shareholders® profits. certain of the Group's life insurance businesses pay tax on policyholders’
imeestment returns (policyholder tax) at policyhoider tax rates. Policyholder tax is accounted for &5 &n income tax and is
includied in the total tax expense and disclosed separataly,
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2. SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES omeusn

2.16 Revenue

fnwastment raturn

Investment income consists of dividends, Interest and rents receiveble for the reporting period, Investment experience
comprises realised gains and losses, impairments and unrealised gains and losses on investments held at fair value
through prefit or loss, Interest Income is recognised as it socrues, taking Into account the effective yield o the Investmaent.
Rental income on investmeant property is recognised on an accrual basis. investment return consists of investment income
and investment experignce.

The realized gain or loss on disposal of @n mvestment ks 1he difference between the proceeds recefved, net of transactian
costs, and its origing] cost or amortised cost as appropriate, Unnoakised gains and losses represent the differance betwoon
the carrylng valus at the yaar end and the carrying value et the previous year end or purchase price if purchased during the
iz, boss the reversal of proviously recognised unrealised gains and lossosin nespect of disposals made during the year.

Other fee and commission income

hher fee and commission income cansists primarily of fund managament feas, incama fram any incidental non-instrance
activitios; distribution fees from mutuad funds, commissicns on reinsurance coded and commission rvanus from the sake
of mutual fund shares. Relnsurance commissions receivable are defarred in the same way as acquisition costs. All othar
foe and commigsion intame s recognised as the services arg provided.

FINAHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

2,17 Employee benefits

Annual leave and long secvice leave

Employee entitiemants to annual leave and long service |eave are recognizad when they acorue to employess, A provision
i= made for the estimated linbility for arnual lesve end lang service leave as a result of servicas rendered by employess up
io the reporting date.

Post-retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a number of funded and enfunded post-retiiement emaloves benelit schemes, whose members recelve
benafits on aither a dafined benefit basis (ganerally rel ated to zatary and length of sarvica) or a defined contribution basis
{ganerally related 1o the amount invested, investment returm and annuity rates), the assats of which ace generally held
bn separate trusiee-administered funds. The defined benefit plans provide lile and medical benefits Tor employess alter
ratirement and a lump sum benefiton cessaion of amploymen. and tha delined contribiltion plans provide post-redrement
pension benefits.

CORPONETE GOVENANCE

For defined benefit plans, the costs are assetsed using tha projected unit credit method. Under this mathod, the cost of
providing benefits is charged to the consolldated income statement 30 85 to spraad the regular cost over the sarvice [hes
of employees, in accordance with the advice of gualified actuanies. The obligation is measured as the present value of the
estimated futire cash outflows, using & discount rate based on market yields for high-guality eorporate bonds that are
danaminated in tha curmency in which this benafits will be paid and that have terms 10 maturity appooairmating 10 the 1enms
of the refated ability. The resulting scheme surplus or daficit appears as an assat or liability inthe consolidated statement
ol financial pesition

FINANCIAL STATEMINTS

Remeasurements arising Trom defined benelit plans comprise actuarial gains and logses; the meiurn on plan assels
{encluding Intarest) and the effect of the asset cailing (if any, excluding interest), The Group recagnises them Immediately
i attir comprelensia inceme and all othar expanses miated to delined banefil plirs in stalf costs in the ennsolidated
incomea statement.

Whan the benefits of & plan are changed, or when & plan |s curtailed, the portion of the changed benafil related to past
sirvicn by employess, of the aain or lods en cunailment, |8 recoanised immedistely in consolidated ntome slalemant
when the plan amendment or. curtal ment oecurs.

For defined cantribution plans, the Group pays contributions to pubdicly or privately administered pension plans. Once
tha contributions hove beon paid, the Group, as omployer, deos not have any further paymant obligations. The Groups
contributions are charged o the consolidatad income statement in the: reporing perod 1o which they relate and ane
included in staff costs.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (menimn)

2.17 Employes benefits comeues

Share-based compensation and cash incantive plans

The Group l2enched & number of share-based compensation plans, under which the Group recelves services from the
employees. dirsctors, officers and agenis as considefation for the shares and/or share opticns of the Company. These
share-based compensation plang comprige the Share Option Scheme (50 Scheme), the Restrictad Share Unit Scheme
(RSU Schame), the Employes Share Purchase Plan (ESPP) and the Agancy Share Purchase Plan (ASPF).

The Groug's shars-based compansation plans am predominantly equity-settled plans. Under sguity-settled share-based
compeansaticn plan, the fair valus of the employee services received in exchange for the sward of shares and/or share
options is mcognised as an axpenss i profit or loss ower the vesting paried with a corresponding amount recordad in
equity.

The intal amount 1o be expensed over the vesting period is deermined by reference (o the lair value of the shere and/or
share options awarded. Mon-market yvesting conditions ane Included In assumptions about the number of shares and/or
share opticns that are expected to be vested. At each pariod end, the Groun revises its estimates of the numbar of shanes
andifor share options that ar axpacted to be vested, Any impact of the rivision to original estimates is recognisad in profit
of loss with a corresponding adjustment to equity, Where ewards of share-based payment arrangements have graded
vigsting terma. ebch tranche is recognised &S a separate award, and tharelore the falr value of aach tranche is recognised
over the applicable vesting period.

The Group estimates the fair value of share options using a binomial lattice model. This model requires inputs such as
‘share price. implied volatility, rigk-inse imorest rate. expectod dividend rato and the expactod lifa of the shane optian.

Where madification or cancellation of an equity-settied share-based compensation plan eocurs, the grant date fair
value codtinues to be recognised, together with any cremental value arising on the daie of modification if non-market
Canditions are metL.

For cash-sentied share-based compensation plans, the fair value of the employee services in exchange for the sward of
cash-zotibod award & recognised as an aupense in profit or loss, with a corresponding amount recognisad in liability. At the
end of gach reporting perod, ey unaetiled award o remessured based on the change in fair walue of the underlying asset
and the lability and expense are adjusted accordingiy.

2.18 Frovisions and contingencies

Prowisions are recognised when the Groun has a present legal or construciive cbligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an eutflow of acenomic regources will be required to asttls the abligation, and a relistle estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made, Where the Group: expects 8 provision to be reimbarsed, for example under an
insurance contract held, the relmbuesernent is recognised as a separate asset only whin ihe reimbursament |3 viceelly
cartain,

The Group recognises a provision for enerous contracts when the expected benafits to be denved from a contract are less
than the enavaidable costs of mesting the obligations under the contract

Contingencies are disclosed if material and if there i 8 possible future obdigation as a result of & past event, or if there
16 @ present obligation 45 a result of & past event but either & peyment is oot prebeble er the amount cannot bi reliably
estimated.
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2. SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES omeusn

2,19 Leases

Leases; whem a significant partion of the risks and rewards of ownarship is rotained by the Group as a lessor. arn classified
a3 operating leases. Assats subject to such leases are included in property, plant &nd equipment or vestmant property,
and ara deprociated io thedr residual values over thair estimated usatul [ves. Rentals from such laases ase cradited to the
consolidated incoma siatament on a stradght-line basis over the peried of the relevant leass.

Payments made by the Group as leasss ynder operating leases are classifted elther 8 an operating leass prepayment
or 4% A companant of investment proparty desending on whether thi property Inamest is uted a8 Investment propany.
Operating kzases held for long-term rental or capital appreciation or both that are not occupled by the Group are classified
a5 imeestmant property, Thay are initially recoanised at cost with changes in fair values in subsaguent periods recognisod
bn the consolldsted incame statement, The Group clessifies amounts paid to acqulie leasehold |land which are held for the
Group's own DCCURANCY &5 BN operating lease prepayment or as 8 companent of progerty, plent and equipment depending
on whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidantal to the ownership of the land are transferred to the Group.
Prepayments for land use rights under oparating nnses thit are hidd for the Groun's own oecupancy (et of any incentiis
recelvad from the lassor) are included ‘within “Other agsets” and charged to the consclidated incomne slatement on &
atraight-line bases over the penod of the relevant lease. There sre not any freeheld land interests in Hong Kong,

FINSHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

2.20 Share capital
Ordinary shares ame classified in eguity whan there is not any obligation to travesfer cash or other assets o tha holders.

C

Share igsue costs
Incramental external costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares ane shown in equity as a deduction, net of tas,
fram the procesds of the issue.

Dividends
Interim dividends on ordinary shares are recognised when they have been paid. Final dividends on ordinary shares are
recopnised when they have been approved by shareholders

CORFOHETH GOV ITNARN

2.21 Presentation of the consolidated statement of financial position

The Group's insurance and investment contract iabilities and related assets are realised and setiled cver periods of several
years, reflacting the long-term naturs of the Group's products: Accordingly, the Group presents the assets and lisbilities
in |18 consolidated statament of financipl position in approxmate order of loudity, rather than distinguishing current and
nan-current assets and liabilities. The Group regands its intangible assets investments in associates and joint veniures,
property, plant and aqulpment, imdstment property ond defenod seguisition and erginalion costs &8 NONR-Curfent aESE1s
a3 these are hald for the longer-term use of the Group

2.22 Earnings per share
Basic earmnengs per sham i5 calculated by dividing net profit avaitable to ordinary shareholders by the waighted average
number of ordinary sheres (m issue during the year,

Easnings per share has also been esleulated on the opornting prafit before adjosting items, attributable o ordinary
shameholders, as the Directors believe this figue provides a bottor indication of operating performance.

FINANCIAL STRATUMINTS

For diluted sarnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issub is adjusted to assume canversion
af all dilutive patantial ordinary shares, such as ahare oplions awarded to employess

Paotential or comingent share ssuances are treated as dilutive when their conwersion o shanes would decreasz net earnings
por share,
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES foaniimusd)

2.23 Fiduciary activities

Astats and inceme arising from fiduciary activitios. togethor with reiated undertakings 1o roturn Such assets bo CUSOMTS,
ane excluded from these consolidated fnancial statements where the Growp does not have contraciual rights (o the assets
e acts in & fiduciary capacity such as nominee, trustee or agant.

2.24 Consolidated statement of cash flow
The consolidated statement of cash llow presents movernents in cash and cash equivalenis snd bank overdralts as shown
in the consolidatad statement of finaneial position,

Punchases and sal_.q: of financlal investments are included in operating cash flows as the purchases are funded from
cash flows associatod with the arigination of ingurance and vestment cantracts, nol of payments of related bonefits and
claims: Purchases and sales of ivestment property ane included within cash flows frem investing activities.

2.25 Related party transactions
Transactions with ralated parties ame recorded &t amounts mutually agreed and transacted between the parties o the
arrangarment,

3, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimiates and a=sumptions that aftect the reported amounts of assets, labilities, and revenue and
dxpenses. All asumates are based on management's knowlsdae of curcenl lacts and Sircumatances. assumplions based
on that knowledge and predictions of future everis and actions. &ctual resulis can always differ fram those estimates,
possibly significantly.

Iterms that are considered particularly sensitive 1o changes in estimates and assumptions, mnd the relevant accounting
policies ane those which relate to' product classification, insurance contract labilities (including Habilities in respect
of [meesiment contracts with DPF), deferred acouisiiion and origination cosis, lability adequacy testing, fair vilue
maasurement, impairment of financial assets and impairment of goodwill and other intangibie assets.

3.1 Product classification

The Geowrp issues contracts that transfar insurance risk or financial risk or both, Insurance contracts are thosa contracls
that transfer significant insurance risk, while investiment contracts are those contracts withowt significant insurance rigk,
The Group exercises significant judgement fo determine whathar there is a scenario (ather than thesa lacking commancial
substancel in which an insured event would require the Group to pay significant additional benefits 1o k5 customers.
In the event the Group has to pay significant additional benefits to its customers. the contract is accounted for s an
insurance contract. The judgements exercised In determining the level of insurance risk in product claasilication allact the
smourds recognised in the consolideted financisl statements s insurance and imvestment condract Babilities and delerred
BCOQUISIION and originetion costs. The accounting policy on product clessification is described in note 2.4,

3.2 Insurance contract liabilities (including liabilities in respoct of investmeont contracts with DPF)

The Group cojculates the insurance contract labilities for traditiongl life insurance using a net level premium valuation
maethod, whereby the llabidity represents the present value of estimated future policy benelits to be paid, less the present
value of estimated future net premiums 1o be collected from policyholders. This method uses best estmate aSsumptions
m inception afjusted for a provision for the risk of adversa deviation for mortality, morbédity, axpected mvestmeant yialds,
policyholder dividends (for other panicipating business), surrenders and expenses et at the policy Inception date. Thege
asgumpkisng romain [Behed in thoroalter, unless a doliciency anses on liability sdoquacy testing. Interest rite aEaumptions
can vary by geographical markat, vear of Issuanca and product. Mortality, surrender and expense assumptions are basad
on actual mperience by cach geographical market, modified to allow for variations in policy form. The Group exercises
significant judgement in making appropeiate assumptions,
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (et

3.2 Insurance contract labilities (including liabilities in respect of investment contracis with DPF) covnue
For contracts withian explicit account bplance, such as universai life and unit-linked contracts. insurance contract liabilities
represent the accumulation vatue, which represents premiums recedved and investment réturns credited to the policy
bess deductions fer mortality and merbéidity costs and expanse charges. Significant judgemant is exercisad in making
appropriate estimates of gross profits which are based on historical and anticipated future expetiences. these estimates
are regularly reviewed by the Group.

The Geoup accouris lor IFburancs conlract llabillties for participating business written In participating funds by
establishing a lishility. for the present value of guarantesd benefits less estimated future net premiums o be collected
from policyhalders. In addition, an insurance Eability is recorded for the proportion of the nat assats of the participating
funds that would be alloested to policyholders assuming all relevant surplus st the date of the consolidaied statement of
financial pasition were to be declared as a policyholder dividend besed upon applicable regulations, Establishing these
lizbilitkes requires the enarcise of significant judgement. In addition, the assumption that all relevant parformance s
declirad as m policyhalder devidend may na: be borne oul in practics. The Group accounts for ather participating business
by establizhing & lahility for the present valuve of guaranteed benefitz-and non-guaramieed participation, lass ectimated
futurs nat promisms o bo collectod from pelicyheldors.

The judg erments exercised in the valuation of insurancs contract liabilities (including {nvestmant contracts with DPF) alfeet
the amcunts recognised in the consolidated financial statements as insurance contract benefiis and inswrance contract
fibitities. Furthar datails of the rolated accounting palicy, key sk and variablos, and the sensitivities of assurmptions to the
key variables in respect of iInsurance contract Babilities are provided in notes 2.4, 25 and 27,

FINSHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

C

3.3 Deferred acquisition and origination costs

The judgements sxercesed I the delerral and amoritsation of acquisition and oniginatfon costs affect amounts recognised
in the congolidatad financial statemants as deferred acgquigition and origination CoBts and MSUFANCE &0 INVESCMENt
contract benafits.

CORFOHETH GOV ITNARN

Az noted in note 2.4.1, deferred acquisition costs for traditional life Insurance and annuity palicies are amortised over
the expected life of the contracts a3 a conatant percentage of expected premivms. Expected premiums gre estimated ot
hiz date of policy issue and are applied consistently throughout the life of the contract uniess a deliciency ocours whan
performing lability adeauacy esting.

Az nated innate 2.6,1, deferred acquisition costs for universal life and unit-linked contracts are pmartisged aver the expected
life of tha coniracis based an a constant percentage of tha presand value of estimated gross profits expected to be realised
over the lifs of the contract or on a8 straight-line basia As noted in nete 3.2, significant judgement is exercised in making
appropriale estimates ol gross profits. The expensing of scquisition costs is accelerated foliowing adverse investment
performance. Likewise. In periods of favoursble invesiment performance, previously expensed acgulsivon costs ane
rowsrsed, mot excaading the amaunt initislly daferred,

FINANCIAL STRATUMINTS

Additional details of deferred acquisition and origination costs ane provided in notes 2.4 and 18,
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMEMNTS (oo

3.4 Liability adequacy testing

The Group ewalustes the adeguacy ol its insurance and investment contract liabilities with DPF at leagt annually.
Signilicant judgement i exarcised in detarmining the leval of aggregation at which liability adequacy testing is performed
and in selecting best estimate assumptions. Liability adequacy is assessed by portfalic of contraces n accordance with
the Group’s manner of acquiring, servicing and maasuring the prafitability of its insurance contracts. The Group perloems
liability adeguacy testing separately for each reportable segment,

Tha judgemernts axarcised in lability adeguacy testing aliect amaounts recognised in the consolidated financal slatements
-5 commi=sion and other acquisition eipenses, deferred acquisition costs, insurance contract banefits and insurance and
investmant contract Habilities.

3.5 Fair value measurement

3.5.1 Fair valug of financial assets

The Group determines the fair valses of financial assals traded in attive markets using quoted bid prices as of each
reporting date. The fair valuss of financial assats that are not traded in active markets are typically dotermined using a
vargty of ather valuation techniques, such as prices observed in recent transactions and values obiained from current bid
prices of comparable investments. Mare jadgement is used in measuring the fair value of financial assets for which market
uhserveble prices are notavellable or are available oty infreguently,

The degres af judgement used in maasuring the fair value of financial assets generally correlates with the level of pricing
obsarvability. Pricing obsarvability = alfected by & numbser ol lactors, including tha type af financial instrumant, wisethis:
the financial instrumant is naw 1o the market and not yet established, 1he characteristics specific o the transaction and
general market conditions.

Chamnges & the fair vidue of financial assets held by the Group's paricipating furids affeet nod only the value of linancisl
assats: but are also reflected in corresponding movements ininsurance and investment contract liabilities, This s due o
an insurance |lability being recorded for the propartion of the net asseis of the participating funds that would be allacated
to policyheldars if all relevant swrplus at the date of the consolidated statemant of financial position wera to be declared as
a policyhodder dividend based on current [ocel reguiations. Both of the foregoing changes are reflected in the consolidated
income stasmeant.

Changes in tha fair value of financial assats hold 1o back the Group's unit-linked contracts result ina correspanding change
in insurance and investment contract Liabslities. Both af the foregoing changes are adso reflected i the congolidated
incoma statamant.

Further details of the fair value of financial assets and the sensitivity analysis to interest rates and aquity prices are
provided in notes 2 and 34
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS et

3.5 Falr value measurement (coneued)

3.5.2 Fair value of property hald for own use and investment proparty

The Growp uses independant professional valuers 1o determine the fair velue of properties on the basis of the highest and
bast use ol the properties that is physically possible, lsgally parmissible and financially feasible, In mast cages, curmnt
use of the properties is considered to be the highest and best use for determining the faie value. Different valuation
technigues may be adopted to reach the fair value of the properties: Under the market data approach, records of recent
sales and offerings of similar property are analysad and comparisons are made for faciors such as size. location, quality
and prospactive use. For investment proparties; the discounted cazh flow approsch may be used by refarence to net rental
income allowing for reversionary income potentiel to estimate the fair value of the properties. On some occasions, the cost
appreach is used as well o caloulate the falr value which reflects the cost that would be required o replace the service
capacity of the proparty.

Further details of the fair value of property held for own use and investment property are provided in note 21,

FINSHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

3.6 Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at talr value through profit or loss, are assessed for impairment regularhy. This reguies
ihe exercise of significant judgement. The Group essdsses at each reparting date whether theme is objective evidence that
2 financlal asset or a growp of linancial assets is impaired. Obpective evidence that a financial asset, or group of assets. is
impaired includes ooservable data that cormes to the anention of the Group about the following evenis:

C

= gigndicant financial difficulty af the issunr or delitar;

+=. abrasch of contract, such as a default or delinquency in payments:

= it bepemas probable that the Bsver of dablor will amar bankrupiey of other Hnaneial resrganisstion;
= ihe disappearance of an active market for thias financial gsset because of financial ditficulties; or

CORFOHETH GOV ITNARN

»  obaervable data, imeluding madet poces, ndieating that thene = & potential decreate (n the estimated futuie cagh
flows since the initial recognition of those assets, ncluding:

= adversa changes in the payment status of issuars; or
= national or local economic conditions that cormelate with increased default risk

Far logng and recevables, impaimment loss is datermined wsing an analytical method based on knawladge of sach ban
grewp of recedable The method is wsually bazed oo historical statistics, adjusted for trends in the group of financial asses
ar individual accounts.

Further details of the impairment of financial assets during the year sie provided in note 23

FINANCIAL STRATUMINTS
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5. OPERATING PROFIT AFTER TAX g‘
Opprnting prollt alter tax may be réconciled to net prodit as follows:
Yoar srded Y anged
30 Mowemhor 0 hovambsr
2096 015
uEm tial iAs susted) E
Operating profit after tax 7 4,013 3,585 =
Hon-operating items, net of related changas ininsurance and E
inwestment contract liabilities: E
Short-term fluctuations in inwestment return related o equities and E
real estate (nat of tax.of 201 A USHGNm; 2015 USHTTm) a7 (M7 £
Othar non-oparateng invesiment return and othor Rems &
(ret of tax of 2016 SSE169m; 20158 LSS 36m) 102 {76} E
Mat profit 6,212 2792 =
Operating profit after tas atfribuiable to:
Sharsholders of AlA Group Limited a.581 3556
MNan-contralling interests 32 29
Net profit attributable to; ;
Shareholders of AlA Group Limited 4,164 2,765 E
Non-commlling interests 3 a7 g
Operating profit is determined using. ameng others, expected long-term investmaent refurns for equities and real estate, §
Shari-term luctuations between axpectéd long-term investmend return and actual ivvestment return for these agset E
clagses are exciuded from operating profit. The iInvestment réturn assumpiions applied to datanming expacted long-temm =,
iuestment neturms ars based on the same assumpations applied by the Group in datermining its embaddod value and ane
digelosed In the Supplementary Embedded Value Inlormation.
6. TOTAL WEIGHTED PREMIUM INCOME AND ANNUALISED NEW PREMIUMS
For misnsgemant decislon-making and internal performance management purposes:the Group messures business volumes
during the year using & performance measure referred to as 101al weighted premium incoma (TWPI). The Group measures =E
new business activity using a perdormance measure relerred 1o as annualised new premiums (ANP), The presentation of E
thie note 8 consistant with aur reportabls sagment presentation in note 7. =
TWP congists of 100 per cent of renewal premiums, 100 per cent of first year premiums and 10 per cent of single :I:II:.
premiums, before rednsurance ceded, and includes deposits and contributions lor contracts thst are accounted for as E
depasits in accormence with the Group's accounting policies. =
Managemant considers that TWPI provides an indicatve voluma measure of transactions undertakan in the reparting
pafiod that kv the potential 1o genarata peofits lor shareholders. This amaunts ghawn sre not intended 1o be indicative of
premiums and fee income recordad in the consolidated income statament.
5
2
:
z
e
g
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=
&
&, TOTAL WEIGHTED PREMIUM INCOME AND ANNUALISED NEW PREMIUMS ool g'
Yaar seced Wear ancod
MNP 10 Mevember 30 Novamesr
UEtm Mt 1016
ANP by geography E
Hong Kong 2,294 1253 E
Thailand 471 520 B
Singapors 427 &M z
Malaysia 341 292 E
Chifia 621 438 £
Oither Markets 969 1007 2
Total 5,123 39N x
=
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group's operating segments, based an the reporis received by the ExCo, are each ol the geegraphical markets (n
which the Group operates. Each of the reportable segmants, other than the “Group Corporata Cantre™ segmant, wriles
lite ingurance business, providing e insurance, eccident and health insurance and sevings plens o cuslomers in ks =
focal market, and distributes related investment and other financial services products, The reportable segments are Hong E
Kaong (Including Macau), Thailland, Singapode (ncluding Brunad), Malayasia China, Other Markels and Group Coeporate ;
Centra: Othar Markets mcludes the Group's oporations i Austrabia, Indonesia. Korea, New Zealand, the Phlippines. Sn 2
Lanka, Tahwan, Vietnam and India. The activities of the Group Corperate Centre segment consist of the Group's corporate 5
functions, shared services and eliminations of intragroup transactions E
=
For the year ended 30 Novernber 2016, Korea is no longer disclosed separately as.a roportable segment. 2
As each rapartable segment sther than the Group Corporstle Centre segment fotuses on serving th lile [REurance neads
of its local market, there are Uimited ransactions betwesn reportable segments. The key performance indicators reparted
in respect of each segment ara:
*  ANP
* TWPL i
+  inVESimAant e =
o
s OpOrAting aYpenses, ;
+  operating profit after tax attributable to sharsholdeérs of AR Group Limited: E
=
= wxpense ratlo, measuned a8 operating expanses divided by TWPL =
*  gpOFAtinG margin meagursd as operating profit alter o expressed a5 A percentage of TWPE and
*  operating return on shareholders’ allocated squity measured as operating profit after tax attributable to sharholders
of AlA Group Limited expressed as a percantaga of the simpls average of opening and closing sharehalders” allocated
segment equity (being the segment assots: less segment lisbilities in respect of each reportable segmant less .
non-cantralling interasts and lair value reserve]. £
-
In prasanting net capital in/{out) flows 10 repartable segmients. capital autflows consist of dividends and prafit distibutions g
1o the Group Corporate Centre segment and capital inflows consist of capital injections into reportable sagmants by the =
Emm_:urpumla Centre segment. For the Group, net capital inf(out) flows reflect the nat amount recelved from sharoholders L
by way of capetal contributions less amounts destributed by way of dividends. =
Busingss volumes in resgect of the Group's live Largest customers are less than 30 per cent of premiums and fee income. E
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (soctowen

Group
Oiker  Corporate

I.ES&m Hang Kong Thailand Slngapoes Maiss China M arkatn Casir Total
Yoar ended 30 Novamber 2016
AMP 2,294 41 &7 341 621 69 - 5,123
TWPI 6,873 3337 237 1,795 2384 5478 - 231433
Nt primbsimg, fee incams and

other operaling revenue

(et of reinsurance coded) TAT2 32N 2.659 14621 2,267 3,655 (4) 20,681
Irwestment return 1,788 1056 1024 541 663 1,025 azz 6,624
Tatal revenua B.760 5,327 3,683 2,162 21,520 4,680 323 27,065
Met insurance and Investment

contract benatis 6,311 2,567 2672 1474 1.837 1,588 (11} 17.512
Commission and other acquisition

expnses 790 609 303 183 146 BES - 2,686
Dperaling expenses 3o 184 161 163 235 515 184 1,752
Finphoo cosis and other expensos 104 8 16 1 12 43 110 334
Total expanses 7,515 3372 3152 1831 2330 3801 283 22284
Share of losses fram asseciates

and joint venture - - - - - (%) ki 163}
Dparating profit before tax 1,445 955 531 an &00 B74 &0 4,776
Tax on oparating prafit befors tas {101} {187) (78) (64) (131} {192) (10} {753)
Operating profit after tax 1,344 748 653 187 469 682 0 4013
Cparaning profit after rax

Brteitnurable o

Shareholders of ALS Group

Limited 1,334 Ta8 453 265 &hY [ 1¥ ] 3,981

Men-eontralling intrests 10 - - 2 - 0 - 12
Key operating ratios:
Exprse ratio 4.5% 55% T.1% 2.1% 2.9% A% - 1.9%
Dperating margin 19.6% DWIE 19.9% 14.9% 19.7% 12.4% - 18.1%
Operating return on shareholders’

allocated aquity 22.9% 'I‘i'.lh'-_ 19.1% 19.7% 17.0% 13.5% - 16.91%
Operating profit belore tax includes:
Finange cosis 8 5 7 i 19 a 86 149
Depracistion and amartization 3 9 13 17 13 a7 15 127 |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION {comined)

OVERVIEW

G
Dihar  Comoonate
LS Hong Heng Thalsnd Singepors  Malayela Chims Murksty Cenire Tedal
30 Novembar 2016 =
Total assots 53916 26800 31087 1240F 18,672 33011 10,979 185074 g
Total liabilities a5166 21,063 28345 11079 15064 25881 3,066 149764 B
Total equity 7.750 5,637 2742 1330 3608 7130 7113 35310 Z
Sharsholders’ allocated aquity 5,935 5,600 2,502 1.3 1E64 5,369 7.231 29,532 B
et capital {out)/in flows (1.034) (411} (209) (186) (56) 175 G608 (1,103) E
Total assets include -~
Insestments in essociates and E
joint venturne - - 1 & - B3 - 450 -
Segment information may be reconciled 1o the consolidated income statemant as shown below:
Ehori-izrm
fhsstustions in .
Inssrutrrmsi :é
metutn related Ohar Conalidated C
Rsgmant o eguities and  nen-aperatdg AT -]
UsEm infermaton real entale itama sistemant =
-
¥anr endad 30 November 1076 z
Mat pramiuma, Mot pramiums, fee ingame E
feg incoma and other and ather aperaling .
OpPEraLing revenus 20,641 = = 20,661 TEYEMLE =
Investmant return 6,424 &2 1,089 7,555 | Invesiment roturn
Total revenue 27,065 42 1,089 28,196  Total revenue
Net insurance and Investmeant Mt insurance and investment
cantract benelits 17.512 {591 758 18,221 contract benefits
Oihar expanses 4772 - 326 5098 Other xpensas "
Total expences 22,284 (59} 1,094 23,319  Total expenses =
x
Share of losses from Share of losses from £
BLsociates and associnies =~
{oint ventune (5 - = (5  and jolmt venture :&‘
Operating profit belors tax 4774 101 (5] 4872 Prafit befors tax z
=
ot -
1) Encliade umt-dinbed conlracis
.
=
a
2
:
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10. INCOME TAX (conimed)
The moverment in net deferred tx lisbilites in the perlod may be analysed as set out below,

I Bl Credimes! [¢harged) 8o ety
Hﬂm suseli  [chargad) tn ot et e “ﬂuﬂm
flakility} sl e Income Falr value Feruign itakslity)
E? 1 Decarmin wlalersier resarye™  erchange DOifwin al punf wid
A0 Novembar 2014
Revaluation of financlal instruments (1.429) 6 14 2 - (1.387)
Doferred acquisition costs {2.409) 196 - 17 - (2.194)
Insurance and investmeant contract Bzbilities 1477 {392) = 9 = 1,094
‘Withholdirg taxes {148) {1 = 17 - {132y
Prowision for axpenses 139 [2%) = {1} 1 10
Lozses available for offset againgt future
taxable incomie 23 47 - {13 - &9
Life surplust (525) (26) - 15 - (534)
Others i228) (%) = 5 (86) (293)
Tatal (3.100) (181) 14 =3 [65) {3,26%)
A0 Nowemper 2015 - As adjushed
Revaluation of financial instruments {1.552) 128 (48) a1 - (1.429)
Deferred Scquisition costs (2417 {183) = 19 - {2.409)
Iresurance and investmant contract liabilites 1.574 33 - {1300 - 1477
Withholding taves (145} {3} - = = (1a8)
Prowision far oxpenses 137 7 - {10 5 13%
Losses available for offze against future
taxabie income 18 8 = ) = 23
Lite surplust! (615} 0 - 70 - {525)
Others ) (30) = 15 i (223
Tatal (R ] {20) {ad) 174 2 {3,100}
Hotex

113 Lite srphus rilates 1o the lempemry dilhitence which ndsos wham tha losabie prafits sfe based on actual dstributions Frem the loag-term
Tund. This prirmary relaces s Singopate and Malaysls : '

(20 O e Ll vmluos posarvs disheerisd tam (credifl/eharse of USSE1G)m {2015 US546m) loe 2016, LSS(E1m (2015 USS45m) rolates b talr vakis
galra ard [eaves on avallable jor sale finaneial sssets and USS(8)m {2015 USS{Tm) relwtes b fair valise gaine and locuss on synilable for
sk {irancisl sssuts transinrped 1o imcome o disposal and npalmant.

Deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the axtent that sufficient future taxable profits will ba available for realisation. The
Group has not recopnised deferred thx sasets of USS59m (2016 USS40m]) on tax losses and the temparery difference on
insurance and smvestment contract lisbilities arising from different accounting and statutory/tax resarving methodology
for cerain branches and subssdianies on the Dasis that they have hiswries of tax tosses and there is insulficlent evidence
that future profits will be available.

Tha Growp has not provided defermad tax liabilitios of USS156m (2015 USE110m) in respect of whremitted sarnings of
oporations in three jurisdictions from which & withbalding tax charge would be incurred ugon distribution as the Group
does nol consider it probakble that this portion of accumulated eamings will oo remitted in the foreseeable future.

The Group has unused income tax [ceses carried fonward in Hong Kong, Macau. Thailand, Malaysia, China, Konea, New
Zealand, the Philippines. S Lanka and Tarwan. The tax losses of Hong Kong, Malayaia, Hew Zealand and Sri Lanka can
e carried forward indefinitety. The tax losses of remaining branches and subsidiaries are due to eipine within the periods
ending 2019 (Macau and the Philippines), 2021 (Thadand mnd China), 2025 { Talwan) and 2024 (Karea).

162 | AlA GROUP LIMITED
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;
11. EARNINGS PER SHARE g‘
Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing tha net profit attributable to shareholders of AlA Group Limited by the
weighted average numbar of ordinary shanes in issue during the year, The shares held by employee share-based trusts ame
ot considared 1o be cutstanding from the date of the purchase for purposes of computing basic and diluted earmings par x
ghare. z
¥iar andad Yt anded é
30 Novermker 3 Howemnbaer =
2018 015 =
(A sdjosted) E
Het profit sttributable 10 sharehalders of A1A Group Limited (LUSSm) &,k 2,765 g
Weighted average nuimiber of ondinasy shares in Bsug {million) 11972 11,970 E'
Basie earnings par shara (US cents per shara) 34.78 23.30 E
Diluted
Diluted eamnings per shane is caleutsted by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shases outstanding to
assume comversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. As of 30 Novernber 2014 and 2015, the Group has potentially
dilutive instruments which ame the share options, restrizied share units, restricted stock purchase unlts and restricted stock .
subscription units awarded to eligible directors. officers, employees and agenis undar various share-based compensation £
plans a5 described innote 38 £
Yoarnnded  Yoat onoed 3
30 Mowverr ke 30 Hiwamessr 4
2014 2015 =
{83 eedpustad) .
=
o
Met profit attribitabla 1o sharehalders of AlA Group Limited (USSm) 4164 2765 b
Weighted average number of omdimary shares in issus {million) 11872 e
Adjusiment for share opsions. restricTed share units. restrictad stock purchase units
and restricted stock subseriplion units awarded under share-based compensation
plans (million) 34 37
Weighted awerage number of ordinary shares for diluted eamings pier shere (million) 12,004 12,007
Diluted sarnings por share (US esnts per shars) 3468 23.03 -
=
X
AL 30 Movember 2016, 14,937,248 share options (2015: 5899,14%) were excluded from the diluted weightad average =
nimbir of ordinary shianes calculation as thelr effect would have been anti-dilutive. ’f_
ol
Operating profit after tax per share E
Oparating profit atter tax (see note 5) per share ks calculated by dividing the operating peofit after tax attributable to z
shareholdors of ALA Group Limited by the weightod average numbar of erdingry shares in issuo during the yeor Az of
30 November 2016 and 2016, the Group has potentially dilutive instruments which are 1he share options, restricted
share undls, restricied stock purchase unlis and restricted stock subscription unils awsrded to eligible directors, officers,
emplovess and aganis undar varicus share-based compansation plans 38 described Inmote 38
Year unded Yeut onowd
30 Nowsmbar | 30 Nowambsr -
08 015 =
_(fa ataecy :
=
Basic (US cents per share) 3325 29.71 :
Dilited [US cents per ahare) 116 967 4
g
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13, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Dextribitsan
Camplter and othar

U ol it T igtls Tetsl

Cost

A1 Decomber 2014 1,135 326 §33 2393
Agditong - 124 - 124
Disposals - (16} )] {193
Disposal of a subsidiary L] - - (10}
Forglan exchangd mosvisments (317 28y (600 (405}

Ak 30 November 2015 S08 s E70 2.083
Additions - 3] 2 -2
Disposals - (&) {1} (5
Fareign axchangs movemants and others (33} (&) (57) {94)

At 30 November 20156 775 458 B15 2,048

Accumulated amarisation

At 1 Decornber 2014 {8) {201} i34) {241
Amartization change for the year - (22) (200 (52)
Disposals = 15 3 18
Foreign exchange mavements 2 e _ & _

At 30 Novernber 2015 (&) {199} (&) (249)
Amartisation chame for the year - (36) {27 (433
Disposals = 2 1 3
Foredgn exchange movemants - 1 3 &

A1 30 November 2016 (4) (232) (69) (305)

Met book value

At 30 Movember 2015 B0 206 B4 1.834

At 30 November 2016 m 226 Tab 1.743

Of the abouve, LSS 680m (2015 LSS, 782m) is expected to be recoverad mare than 12 menths after tha end of the
reparting periad:

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill arises primarily in respect of the Group's inswrance business in Malaysia. Goadwdll s tested for Impairment
by companng e carmying amount of the cash-generating unit, including gocdwill 1o the mcoverable amount of thst
cash-generating unit. i the recoverable amount of the unit exceeds the carrying amount of the unit, the goadwill allocated
1o thit unit shall be regarded as not impaired. The recovarable amaunt s the value in vae of the cash-generating wnit
uniess otherwise stated, The valus in use is determined by calculating the present value of expected future cash flows plus
& multiple of the present value of the rew busingss gingsed

Value in use is calculated a3 an actuarnnlly determinod appraisal value. based on the embedded vaiue of the bueiness and
the value from future new business.

Thett by aszumptions wsed in the embedded value calculations include ivestiment returns, mortality, morbidity, porsestency,
expenses and inflation. The value from future new business is calculsted based on & combination of indicatars which
include, ameng othars. a multiple of the projected one-year value of new business (VOMB), taking Intd account recent
production mix business sirmtegy and market irends. The Group may apply eismathve meihod to estimate the value ol
future new buginess if the described mothod is not appropriate under the circumstances.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

UEEm

Cost or revaluation
At 1 Decomber 2014 — As praviously reported
Effect of change In accounting policles
A1 1 Decombar 2014 — As adjusted
Additions
Disposals
Met transfers from investment property
Forelgn eachange mavements
At 30 November 2015 - As adiusted
Acditions
Disposals
Nat transfers from investment proparty
Ingraasa from valuation
Forelan eachange movementa
At 30 Novembar 3016

Accumulated deprociation
At 1 December 2074 - As previously reported
Effect of changa in accounting policies
At 1 Decomnber 2014 - Az adjusted
Deprecistion charge for the year
Dinpasals
Net transfers frem investment proparty
Foredgn eschange movements
At 30 Movember 2015 - As adjusted
Depreciation charga far the year
Disposals
Revaluation adjustment
Formign exchangs mowamants
At 30 November 2014

Het boak value
At 30 November 2015 - As adjusted
At 30 Hovember 2016

EDINETOOOO
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Proparty Fialunes and
Fusled frie Camputer Filtinga and
AT hardwamn athery Total
b5 224 370 1,151
L] - - [ 1]
&1 124 270 1215
14 18 iy 18
= (18) (38) [(56)
a9 - - 9
149 (L] Lt {873
515 207 3587 1179
3 19 13 153
{34) (38) Rk (83}
19 = - 19
312 - - 312
{10} (2) {11} {23}
P08 188 Gk 1.857
(194) (181) {233) {610}
(" - - ¢ 8
{203) (181} (233} {6173
(n (24) 137 (78}
- 17 25 43
i1 = - i
2 16 1t 5
{200) 172) (2328) {600}
15} (19} (&5) [Fa ]
n 28 - k]
209 - - 200
(5) 3 ] b
- {160} {285) (625)
418 a5 129 579
Q05 28 199 1.132

Properties held for own use are carmad at fair valus at the reporting date less accumulated depreciation, The falr value
at the reporting date is determined by independent professional valuers. Detalls of valualion technigues &nd process ane

disclosed in notes 3 and 21.

During the reparting period, no expenditure (2015 nil) recognised in thie carrying amownt of property held for own use was
i the eourse of I8 constructian. Increases from revaluation on property held for own use of USS521m (2015 nil) wene

takan to othier comprafanse incoma

i property held for own use ware stated on & historical cost basis the carmng valus would be USE393m (2015
USE415m). The Group holds property, plant and equipment for its ong-term use and, aecordingly. the anncal dapreciation
chsrge approximnles to the amount expected (o be recovered through consumption within 12 months after the end of the

reparting pefiod.
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19. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

The lollowirg lobles snalyse the Group's Mnancial investiments by type and nature. The Group mansges its linancial
investmants in two distinet categaries: Uinit-linked Investments and Policyholder and Sharoholder Investments. The
investment risk in respect of Unit-linked Investments is genarally wholly borme by our customers, and dpes not directly
alfect the profit for the vear befora tax, Furthermors, unit-linked contract halders are responsible lor allocation of thair
pelicy values amangst investment options affered by the Group, Alihough prafit for the year before tax is not affected by
Unit-linked Investments, the investmeant return from such finangial investments is included in the Group's pofit for the
year baiore tax, as the Group has elected the falr value apthon for all Unit-linked Investments with corresponding changes
in insurance and investment contract iabdities for unit-linked comtracis. Palicyhwdder and Shasholder |meestrments
inglude all financial investments other than Unit-linked (nvestments. The investment risk in respect of Policyholder and
Sharehaolder Investments is partially ar wholly bame by the Group.

Palicyholder and Shareholdes Invéstmants are further calegorised as Parficipating Funds and Other Policytolder and
Shareholder. The Group has elected to separately analyse financial investments held by Partcipating Funds within
Policyhalder and Sharshalder Invesiments as they are sibject to local mgulations thal genermlly prescibe s minimum
proportion of palieyholder participation in dectared dividends. The Group has elected the fair value option for debt and
oquity securttics of Participating Funds. The Group's accounting policy is 16 record an insurance liabslity lor the proportion
of net assets of the Participating Funds that would be allocated to policyholders assuming all performance would be
decinrad as a dividend Based upon local regulations a5 at the date of the statemaent of lingncial position. As 8 result the
Group's net profit far the year hefors tax s impacted by the proportion of investment return that would be allocated to
shareholders as described above,

Other Policyholder and Sharghalder Investments are distinct from Unit-linked inveéstments ond Participating Funds ag
there &5 not any direct contractual or reguiatony requirement gaverning the amount. if any, for allocation to policyholders.
The Group hes elected to apply the feir value option for sguity securities in this category and the mvailable for sale
clagsification in respect of the majority of debt securnties in this category. The investment risk from investmants in this
category directly impacts the Group’s linancial statements. Although a proportion of investment return may be allocated to
policyhelders through pelicyholdar dividends. the Group’s accounting policy for insurance and certain investment contract
ligkilities utilises & net level premium methodology that includes best estimates a3 st the date of issue for nan-guarantesd
participation: To the extent investiment return from these vesuments eithes ks nol allocated to participating contracts or
varies from the best estimates, it will impact the Group's peofit before 1ax

In the following tables, "FVTPL" indicates financial investments classified at fair value through profit or ioss and "AFS™
indicates financial investments classified as available for sale.

Debt securities

In compiling the tables, external ratings have been used whero available. Where external ratings are not roadily avallable
an'intermnal rating methodology has been adopied. External ratings for government bonds are based on ssuers a5 well as
currencies of issuances. The following convantions have been adopted 1o conform the various ratinge.

Exturnsl mtings imiaraal retings Peported s
Standard and Foor's Moady's
AR Aag 1 ARA
A+ to MR- Aat to Aad T+t 2 A
A to A Alio Al A+l 3- A
BHE+ 13 BER- Baal to Baad & 00 &= HHH
BB+ and below Bat and below 5+ and balow Below invastment grada'"

Huote: _
115 Undess atherane ideatified Individually,
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=
19. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS romound) E
Debl securities (i,
Dabt securities by type comprise the Tollowing:
Poieyholdar and sharehaites Pp—
Parlicipating Gther policy®obde: and rsesimant f
Tusds sharehalder Uil linked Punds * =
UsgEm Bsting FUTFL FWTPL AFE Sibitntal FVTPL FWTFL Tetal 51
=
30 Kovambar 3014 i
Gavernmont bonds E
= izsued in local currancy &
Thailand A - - N33 1 - - 1A =
China BA 1.635 - 6,510 B.1&S 19 - B64 g
Koren Al - = #1711 &171 280 - 651 f
Singapare ARA 1,552 - 950 4,502 a7 - 2,88%
Philippines BEB - s 25327 2,527 68 = 2595
Malaysia A 1,185 - 414 1,599 2 - 1621
United States AR 16 - 1,587 1,603 2 - 1,605 .
Inclorsia BB 57 10 87 454 a7 - M E
Othes" = - 639 639 2 - 641 E
Subtotal 4,445 10 28498 32953 817 - Bm B
Gavernment bands x
~ foreign currency &
A/A - - - - k] - 3 ;
AR 25 - 713 738 26 - T84
A 73 - 576 By 17 - [-1.1.]
BAB 10 8 710 T8 126 - BT4
Balow Investmaont grade 7 29 M7 823 50 - ar3
Subiotal 185 57 2,716 2,958 22 = 3,180
Gavernment agency £
bands'™ X
BAA 1107 - 782 1,889 105 a5 2,028 E
Al 45 = 5327 6,272 75 182 6,529 ;
A &98 3 1,245 2,146 26 15 2,187 g
[T 230 9 1265 1474 6 - 1480 :
Balow investmant grade a0 - 121 151 3 - 154
Mot rated = = = = ] = B
Subtotal 3,200 12 8710 11932 223 Py 12,386
Hotes
(1) @ ihe incal povemmssnit bonds lsued in locsl eubiency lisied as "Onhee” ot 30 Novambar 201649 par cent an rated &8 \nvesimont grade and
& luzthar 35 pae cent e rabed BE- and above The rermaining s rabed bafow BE- ;
{7} Governmaont sgepoy bonds comprise bonds issesd by gmemment-sponsomd nsfitutions awch m nstionsl, povincial asd municipsd -
aulbortiew govemment-related anites; mulilaternl develcoment barks and supranations] orpsnision -
{3} Cormaldaied investment funds reflact 100 per cant of assety and linbdnies held by such funds. g
o
-
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OVERVIEW

20, DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conteuss)

Foreign exchange coniracts

Fomaign exchange forwand and futures conlracts reprasent agresments to exchange the currency of ane cauntry for the
currency af another country at an agreed price and setttement date. Currency options ane egreements that give the buyer
the right 1o exchange the currancy of one country for the currancy of another country at dgreed prices and settlement
dates. Currency swaps are contractual agreaments that invelve the exchanga of both periodic and final amounts in twe
different currencies. Exposure to gains and losses on the foreign exchange contracts will increase or decrease over their
respective lives as a function of maturity dates. intzrest and forelgn exchange retes, iImplied volatilivies ol the underlying
ndices and tha timing of paymants.

Interast rate swaps

Interast rate swaps are contractual agreaments botween two parties to exchange perisdic payments in the same curmency,
each of which is-computed on a differens interest rate basis, on a specilied notional amount. Most mierest rale swaps
frvolve the net echange of payrments calculated as the diffedence between the fiaed and (koating rate nlsfest phymeanis.

FINAHCIAL ARD OFENMATING WEVIDW

Other derivatives
Warramis and options are option agreements that give the owner the right to buy or sell securities st an agreed price and
settiement date.

C

Hetting adjustment
The netling adjustment is related to futures contracts executed through elearing houss whare the settiemeant arrangement
satiefiod the natting criterin under [FRS.

Collateral under derivative transactions

At 30 Novernber 2006, the Group had posted cash collaversl of US3188m (2015 USH189m] and pledged debit securities
with carrying value of USE4a0m (2015, USH43%m) for liabilities and held cash collateral of USS6m (2015 US5Em), debt
securtles eollalessl with earrying valse of USEEm (3015 USE2m) for assets in respect of dechative transactions. The
Growup did not sall or repladge the collateral recesved. These transactions are conducted under tarms that are wsual and
customary to collateralised transactions Including, where relevant, standard securities lending and repurchaze sgreemants.

CORFOHATE GOVERWAN

FINANCIAL STRATUMINTS
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21, FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (i)

Fair value measuremenis on a recurring basis

Thie Goowup measuwnes at fair value property hedd for own use, investment property, financial instruments classified at fair
valug throwugh profit or loss, avallable for sale securities portfolics, dervative assets and Habilities imeestments held by
investmant funds which are consolidated, investments in pen-consalidated investmant funds and certain imvastment
cantract lahilives on a reeurring basis:

The fair value of 8 financial instrument is the amuunt that would be recaived on gale of & essetor pald 1o ransfer a liakdlity
in an ordafly ransacton between market participants at the measufemant date.

The degres of judgement used in measuring the fair value of inancial instruments generally cormtatoes with the level of
pricing obsarvability. Financfal instrumpnts with guoted prices in active markets ganerally have more pricing observability
and less judgement is used in measuring fair value. Conversely, financial instruments fraded in other than active markets
o1 thal do not have quoted prices have l2ss observability and are measured at fair value using valuation medets or other
pricing technigues tha require more judgement. An active market is ong in which transactions for the assa1 or liability
being valued ocour with sufficient frequency and valuma 1o provide pricing information on an ongoing basi.

#n other then active merket is one in which there are few transactions. the prices ane not current, price quotations vary
substantinlly either over time or amang market makers, or in which little infarmation is released publicly for the Bssot or
liakility being vatued. Pricing observability is alfected by a number of factors, including the type of linancial instrument,
whether the financial instrument is new 1o the market and not yet established. the charactenstics specific 1o the transaction
and general market conditions.

Fair velue of properties is based on valuation by independent professional valuers.

The Group does nat hawwe assets or liabilities measured af falr value on & non-recurring basis during the vear ended 30
Navember 2016, '

This fallowing mathads and assumptions wene used by the Groun 1o estimate the Tair value of financial instrumants and
properties.

Determination of fair value

Loans and receivables

For lngns and advances that are repeiced frequently and have not had any significent changes in coedit risk; carrying
amaunts epresant & reasonabla estimate of fair values. The fair values of other loans are estimated by discounting
expecied luture cash llows using Interest rates offered for similar loans to barrowers with similar credit ratings.

The tair values of mortgage loans are gstimated by discountsng future cash flows usivg interest rates currently being
offered in respect of similar loans 1o bomowes with similar credit ratings. The fair values of fised rate policy loans are
estimated by discounting cash flows at the interest rates charged on policy loans of simitar policies currently baing issued.
Loans with similar characterisiscs am aggragated for purposas of the calculmtions. The carrying values of policy loans with
variabila rates aparoximate to thair fair values.

Delbt securitios and equity sscurities

The fair values of squity securities are based on guoted market prices or, if unguoted, on estimated market values generally
based on guoted prices for similar securities. Falr valuas for fxed Imerest securitles are based on quoted market prices,
whare svailable. For thoss securities not activaly traded. fair valuss are estimatod wsing waluss obtained from brokors,
jprivate pricing services or by discounting expected fulune cash flows vsing & current market rate applicable 1o the yisld,
credit quality and maturity of the invesiment. Pricrity is given 1o values from independent sources when available, but
overall the source af pricing and/or valuation technigue s chosen with the objective ol arriving at the price at which an
omderly transaction would take place betwean markot participants on the measurement date. The inouts 1o dotermining
fair value that are relevant 1o fixed interest securities include, but not limited to risk-free nterest rates, the obllgor's
cridit spraads, forsign éxchange rates and cmdit default rates. Far holdings in hadge funds and Uimited partnershing, fak
values are determined based on tha ret asset velues provided by the general partner or manager of each investment, the
accounts of which are generally sudited on an annual basls. The transaction price i used as the best estimate of fair value
ol incepiion.

152 1 Al GROUP LIMITED
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AVERWIEW

21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT izoisiuss)

Determination of falr value (contnues

Darivative financial instruments

The Group values its derivative financial assets and liabilities using market transactions and other market evidence
whenaver passible. including market-based inpuis 1o madals, model calibration to market clearing transictions, broker ar
dealer quodations ar alternstive pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transpammncy. When madels are usad, the
setection of a particular model 1o value o derivative depends on the contract terms of, and specific risks inheoent in, the
knstrument as well as the avallability of pricing Information In the market. The Group generally uses simliar models o value
similar instruments. Valuation models requine & variety of inputs, including contractusl terms. market prices and rates
yield curves, credit curves, measures of volatility. prepayment raies and corralations of such inputs. For derivatives that
trade n liguid markets. such as generic farwards, swaps and options, model inputs can generally be verified and madel
selection doss not Inwelve significant managemant judgement. Examples af Inpuls that are generally observable Include
foreign exchange sool and forward rates. benchmark menest rate curves and volatilities for commonly traded option
products. Examples of inputs that may be unotservable include volatilities for less commanly traded option products and
carmalations batwean market factors.

FINSHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

Whan the Group holds a group of derivatve asacts and dervative liabilities entered into with & particular counterparty,
the Group takes into account the arrangements that mitigate cradit risk sxpasure In the event of default {e.g. Intermatianal
Swap and Darivatives Assgciation (IS0A) Master Agresments and Credit Support Annex (CSA) that requine the exchange of
collateral an the basés of each party's net gradit nsk exposure). The Group meassures the fair value of the group of financial
asseis and financial liabllities on the basis of (15 net exposure to the credit sk of that counterparty or the counterparty’s
net expasure to our credit risk that reflects market participants’ axpectations about the likalihood that such an arrsngement
would be legally enforosable in the svent of defaull,

Property held for own use and investment property

The Group engaged external, indepandent and gualified valuers to determing the fair value of the Group's properties at least
on an annual bases The valuation on open market value Bagis by independent professional valuer for certain investment
properties was calculated by reference to net matal income allowing for reversicnary incoma patential. The fair values of
other properties were derived using the Market Data Approach. In this approach, the values are based on sales and listing
of comparable proparty registered in the vicinity,

C

CORFOHETH GOV ITNARN

The propérties held tor own use and investment properties ane valusd en the basis of tha highast and bastuse of the properties
that is physically possible, legally permissible and fingncislly fessible. The curment use of the properties ane conaldersd to
be its highest and best use; records of recent sales and offerings of similar property are analysed and comparison made for
sich faciors as size, [ncation, quality and prospective use. On limited occeslona. potentlal redevelopment of the properties
in use would be taken inlo account when they would maximise the fair vabue of the propertses; the Group s occupying
these progerties lor operational purposes.

Cath and eash squivalents
The carrying amount of cash approximates its fair value

Reinsurance receivables
The carrying amount of amounts receivable from reinsurers is not considered materially dilferent to their fair value.

Fair value of securities sold under repurchase agreamants and the azsociated payables
Tha contract valuees of pavables under repurchase dgreemants approcimale their falr value a5 theso obligations aie
short-term In nature.

FINANCIAL STRATUMINTS

Other assets

Thet carrying amount of athar financial assers is not msterially different to thair fair valus. The fair values of deposits with
banks are generally based on quated market prices or, IF unguoted, on estimates based on discounting future cash flaws
using available markot interest rates oflered for recrivables with similar chasacteristics.

ADDITIOMAL INFORMATIDN
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21, FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT i)

Determination of fair value coenie

Investment contract liabilities

For investment contract liabllities, the feir values have bean estimated using a discoented cash flow epprosch based on
interest rates curmantly being offarad far similar contracts with maturities conssstant with those remaining for the cantracts
being valued. Faor invesiment coniracts where the Investment rizh is borna by the polizyhelder, the fair value geremily
approximates fo the fair value of the underdying assets.

Irwastmient contracts with DPF anable the contract holder to recalve additional banelits a8 & supplement to guarantoed
benefits. These are refarmed 1o a5 participating business and are measured and clessified according to the Group practice
for Ingurance cantract llabilities and honce ane disclosed within rate 26, Thiese are not measured at fair value as there is
currently not an sgreed definition of Tk value for investimeant and insurance contracis with DPF under IFRS. Inthe ahsance
of any agreed methodology, it is not pessble to provide a range of estimates within which fair value is likaby to Rall The
IASE |5 expecting 10 address this issue in Phase |l of its insurance contracts project.

Borrawings
The fasr values of borrowings with stated maturities hava beon estimated besed on discouning future cash fiows useng the
Interest rates currently appdicable 1o deposits of similar maturities or prices obtained from brokers.

Other liabilities

The fair values of other ungquoted fimanciad Hebilities is estimated by discounting expected Tutune cash flows using current
markat rates applicable o their yield, credit quality and maturity, except for those without stated maturity, whera the
carying value apgroximates ta falr value

Fair value higrarchy for fair value measurement on a recurring basis

Agsmts snd [iakelities recorded 8t falr value in the congolidated statement of linsncial pesition ans messured and classifisd
in‘@ Merarchy for disciosure purpeses conaisting of three “levels” based on the observability of inputs available in the
marketplace used to measure their falr values as discussed below:

+  Lovel 1: Fair velug mensurements that pre guoted prices (unadjusted ) in active markets for identical assets or Liabditics
that the Group has the ability to access as of the measurement date. Market price data is genevally abtained from
exchange or dealer markets, The Group does not adjust the gueted price for such Instruments. Assets meesured at fair
value on a recurring basks and classified as Level 1 are actively traded equities. The Group considers that government
debt secunties issued by G7 countries (the United States. Canada, France, Germany, Italy, Japan, the Linited Kingdom)
and traded In a dealer market to be Leval 1, until they no longer trade with suilicient freguency and wvolume to ba
considered actively traded.

+  Level 2 Fair value measurements based on inputs other thien guoted prices included in Level 1 that are obiserable for
the assat or lability, either directly {as prices) or indirectly (darived from orices). Level 2 inputs include guoted prices
for similar assets and labitities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or imilar assets or linbilities in markets
that are not active and inputs other than quated prices that are observable for tha asset and lability, such as interest
rates and yleld curves that are observable at commanly quoted intervals. Assets and liabilities measured ot falr velus
o & recurring basis and classified as Level 2 generally include government securities issued by non-G7 countries, most
Investment grade corpomts bonds, hedge fund Investments and derivative contracts.

+  Laval 3: Fair valie maasurements basad on valuation technigues that use significant inpats that are unobservable
Unobservable inputs ar only used 1o measun fair vakus 10 the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available,
allowing for circumstances in which there s litle, i any. market activity for the asset or liabillty. Assets and liabilities
igasured ol fair valug an 8 fecuriing bagis ehd classified a8 Level 3 include properties held far ovwn usi, imastment
properties. certain classes of structured securities. ceriain derivetive contracts; private equity and real estaie. fund
invastmants. and dimct private sauity imestments.

184 1 AlA GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

=
21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT isoimiuea E‘
Fair value hierarchy for fair value measurement on a recurring basis copnesd)
In certain cases. the inputs used to measwre Tair value may fall into different lovels of the fair value hierarchy, In such
casas, the level m the fair value higrarchy within which the tair valug measurement in s entirety falls is detarmined
based on the lewest leval nput that is significant to 1he fair value messurdment in s entirety, The Group's assessmant x
of the significance of o particular Input 1o the fair value measurement In its entirety requires judgament. ln making the _E'
assessment, the Group considers factors specific to the asset or liability E
A suminary of assets and labilities carrod al fair vislue o6 a recurming basis aceording 1o 1akr valus Faerarchy is grvan bakw: Z
F-mhllr.ln:h\g E’
U Lervel 1 Level 2 Lavenl Total 5
30 Kouembar 2014 g
Recurring fair value measuremants %
Mon-financial assets
Property held for ovwen use = . 05 905
Inwestmant property - - 1510 3510
Financial assats N
Auailsbie for sale -
Debt securities .0 88,819 1,249 90,092 E
At fair value through profit or loss B
Debt securities :
Participating funds - 18,368 361 18,707 5
Unit=-linked and consolideted investment funds - %, 239 nr 450 E
Diher policyhatder and shargholder - 223 140 363
Enuity gecurities
Participating funds & 856 324 m 545
Unit-lmked and consalidsted investment funds 15,434 .13 - 15,498
Othar palicyholder and shareholder 8117 728 §17 9.262
Derivative linancial instruments a
Farmign sxchangs contracts - .11 - &4 E
Intarest rate contracts - a0 = L E
Other confracts 12 1 - 13 E
Total assets on & recurring fair valua z
measurement basis 28,443 112,858 7,450 148,751 =
% of Total HR 789 A0 1000 S
Financial liabilities
Inwestmant contract liabilites - - 6.49% 6,499
Derivative financial instruments
Forelgn exchange coniracis = 573 = 573
Interest rate contracts - 35 - s .
Other contracts - 36 - s E
Oather linbilites - 1,239 - 1,239 x
Total liabilities on a recurring fair value P
measurament basis = 1883 5,499 8382 :
% af Total - 225 775 1aoo 5
g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

=
;
21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT o =
Fair value hierarchy for fair value measurement on a recurring basis conseed)
The tables below set oul a summary of changes in the Group's Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring bases for the year ended 30 Movember 2016 and 2015 The tables reflect gains and losses, including gaing and
bosses on mseets and liabilities categorised as Leviel 3 as at 30 November 2016 and 2015, x
Lovel 3 assets and liabilitios Z
Oerivalive :%
Property Fruarscial -
hald far invastrmert Daid Equily nasein’ Investemerd =
'-I?!‘-s‘h Ll G R propeiy sl itiny -t [ ] cuntiacty I;
At 1 December 2015 - As adjusted 415 3659 1780 674 - 16573 3
Ket movemant on iivestment -
caniract liabilities - - - - - 4 -
Total gains/{losses) 7
Reported under invesiment returm and
ather expenses in the consolidated
Income staterment (15) 188 5 (45) i =
Reported under fair vilue resarve. o
foraign currency transiation reserve 1
snd proparly revaluation reserve E
in the consolidated stmement of g
eamprahansive incomae 5056 (38) (49] (8) - - 2
Transfer to other assets - (40} - - - - E
Transfer from investment property 19 L] - - - - &
Purchases 3 &0 539 119 - - 8
Sales {23} {3) {165) {43} = =
Settlements - - (B&) - - -
Transfer into Level 3 = = - " = -
Transler out of Level 3 - - {79 (20) - =
At 30 Mavemnber 2018 905 3910 1.947 4EE = (6,499)
Change in unrealised gains er losses =
included in the consolidated incomas E
statomant for assets and Habilities =
held at the end of the reporting pariod, -:_‘
under investment return {15} 288 {25} (26) ot = =
:
=
5
2
B
2
2
g
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AVERIEW

21, FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (comiurs)

Significant unobservable inputs for level 3 fair value measurements

As af 30 Movember 2016 amd 2015, the valuation technigues and applicable unobsarvable inputs vsed to measwre the
Growp's Level 3 financial ingtruments are summarksed as follows:

Fair walus 8
Descriplion 30 Hovambar 2016 (UGS  Walustion iechnigues Usptsarvatis inpats Range

Dabt sacurities BA1 Discounted cash flows Discount rate for liquidity  &.07% - 17.58%

Fuir yalua af
Descirption ¥ Hommbar 10156 (53m] ks imn bee hiigus Unobdarvble mpuls Rargn

Dobt securities BO% Discounted cash fiows  Discount mte for liguidity  430% - 1561%

FINSHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

Feir value of the Groug’s properties sre determined based on appropnate veluation technigues which may consider amang
athors incoma prajoction, valua of comparable property and adjustmants for factors such as size, Incation, quality and
prospective use, Thesa valuation inputs are deemed unobservable.

Valuation processes

The Group has the valuation policies, procedures and analyses in place to govern the valuation of financial assats
required for financial reporting purposes. including Leval 3 fair vaues: In detarmining the fair values of linancial assets,
the Group in generel uses third-party pricing providers and, only in rare cases when third-party prices do nat exist, will
use pricea derived from indernal models. The Chiel Invesimaent Officers of each of the bisiness units are required 1o
review the reasonableness of the prices used and report price exceptions, if any. The Group Investment team analyses
reported price excepbons and reviows price challenge responses from third-party pocing proveders and provides the final
recommendation on the appropriate price to be used. Any changes in valuation policies ane reviewed and approved by the
Growp Pricing Committoe (GPC) which is part of the Group's wider finangial risk governance processes. Changes in Lavel
2 and 3 fadr velues are anplysed at each reporiing date.

C

CORFOHETH GOV ITNARN

The main Level 3 input used by the Group pertains o the discount rate for the flxed Income securlties and Investment
contracts. Tha unobzervabbe inputs for determining the fair value of thase mnstomentsinciudae the ohligor's cradil sproad
andfar the iguidity spread. A significant increasa/{decrease) in any of the unobservable input may resulf in a significantly
bower/higher) fair value measurement The Group has subscriptions te privale pricing services for gathering such
infermation. If the informatien from private pricing services is not avadlabke, the Group uses the proxy pricing mathod based
on internally-developed valuation inputs

FINANCIAL STRATUMINTS

ADDITIOMAL INFORMATIDN
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21. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (uomimend)
Fair value lor assels and liabilities for which the falr value Is disclosed at reporting date
Asummary of fair valua hisranchy of assets and linbilities not carmed &t fair valoe but far which the fair value is disclosed
as at 30 November 2016 and 20115 is given balow
Fair walue Bisranchy
rsEm Lirwul 1 Ll Lirwurl 3 Testal

A0 Mowember 2006
Assots for which the fair value is disclosed

Financial assets

Laans and deposits Thi 817 3505 7.066

Romsurnnce recaivablen - 335 - 335

Other receivablas - 1,885 &9 1.934

Accrued investmeant income T3 1,310 - 1,383

Caeh and cash equivalonts 1,843 - - 1,642

Total assets for which the fair value s disclosed 2459 6,347 3,556 12,360

Linbilitios for which the fair value is disclosed

Financial liabilities

It meint contract liabalithes - - 529 529

Borrowings 3478 = 1 2479

Obligations under repurchags Agroe s - 1.984 - 1.984

Other labilines 313 =R L L] 3484

Total liabilities for which the fair value is disclosed 3,790 5,110 576 F4TE
Fair wuiluin Bhsrunchy

1= Lovel 1 Ll 2 Lirviil 3 Tatal

A0 Nowembar 2015

Aszets for which tha fair value is disclosed

Financial assots

Loans and deposits 552 a145 3535 1223

Roinsuronce necelvables = 257 - 257

Other receivables = 1,207 25 1.731

Accrued investment income 19 1331 - 1,350

Cash and cash aquivalents 1,992 - - 1992

Proparty held for own use

Property hield for own use (including tand) . = = 1,495 1.495

Total assets for which the fair value is disclosed 2563 &40 5,044 14047

Liabilitias for which the fair value ia disclosed

Financial liabilities

Investment contract liabilities - - 543 543

Bormowings 2,894 323 - any

Dbligations under repurchase agresments - 3085 - 3,085

Other labilities ; 4132 2870 61 4463

Total lisbilities for which the fair value is disclosad 3,306 6378 604 10,288

%0 | AlA GROUP LIMITED
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=
£
22, OTHER ASSETS g‘
Hs A
10 Mevembor 30 Nowambsr
FivH 016
UESm (s sijtad]
=
Accrued invostment incami 1,383 1350 -
Pension scheme gssets E
Dofinad banetit pansion scheme surpluses 24 26 =
Insurance recaivablas due from insurance and investment confract holders 1,004 1023 E
Othess 1.578 1277 a
Total 3,989 3678 S
All amounts other than cerfain prepayments are generally expected to be recovered within 12 months after the end of the E
reporting period. =
23. IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
In sccordance with the Group's accounting policies, impairmeant reviews were parformed for available for sale securities -
and loang and receivables. 5
Available for sale debt securities g
During the year ended 30 November 2016, impairment losses of US523m (2015 nil) were recognised in respect of :
aiailabla for sale dabt sacuritias =
The carrying ameounis of avallabie for salo debt secunities that ane individuslly determined o be impaired ot 30 Novermber E
2016 was USS18m (2015 USEI1m),
Loans and receivables
The Group's primary potential credit risk exposure n respect of loans and receivables arises in respect of policy loans and
a portfolia of mortgage loans on residential and commercial mal estato {see note 19 Financial investments: for furthar
details). The Group's credit exposure on policy ioans ks mitigated becavse, if and when the total indebiedmess on amy palicy,
includsng intemest due and accrued, ekceeds the cash surrender value, the policy terminates and becames woid. The Group ,E
hes & lrst lien on afl policies whieh are subject to policy loans. -
-
The carrying amounts of loans and receivalbdes 1hat are individually determined o be imosred at 30 November 2016 was 2
USE18m (2015: USE2Dm). -'E:F‘
The Group has-a partfolio of residential and commercial morgage loans which it oniginatos. To the extent thot any swch i
loans are past thelr due dates specific allowance is made, togeihes with a collective allowance, based on historkcal -
delinguency. insurance recalvables ane shod-tarm in nature and cover 'm0l provided if consideration is not recehved. An
ageing of accounts receivable is not provided as all amounts ane due within one year and cover & cancelled if consideration
% not received.
z
2
:
X
2
g
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360% - 7.11%
207% - 575%
1.75% - 6.50%
7.10% - 10.78%
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=
;
28, BORROWINGS g‘
His af Av
10 Mevember 30 Novamesr
UEtm Mt 1016
Hank and other loans 1 323 E
Hadium torm nates 3459 2872 :
Total 3,480 3195 B
5
A1 30 Novermnber 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have assets pledped as security with respect to amounts disciosed as E
bank loans above. Interest expanse on borrowings it shown in note 9. Furiher information relating to interest rates and the g
maturity profile of bormowings is presented in note 36 -
The foflowing table summarises the Group's cutstanding medium term notes at 30 November 20184 ;
lusia dato Moreiea) wmaunt Intnret rase Terar .
13 March 200137 USS500m 1.760% & years
13 March 20137 USE500m 3125 10 years
11 March 2014 US5500m 2.250% 5§ years -
11 March 20141 US$500m 4875% 30 years H
11 March 20151 55750m J:200% 10 yegrs =
16 March 2016 USE750m & 5000 30 yoars a
Mate: 5
{43 Thisse mediue larm noies are Ussed en The Siuck Eschasgs of Horg Hong Lamiled E
The net proceeds (rom issuance duning the yoar ended 30 Novembaor 3016 are used lor general corporabe purposes,
The Group has access to an aggrogate of USEZ 050m vnsecured committed credit facilities, which includes a USS300m
revoliing thres-year credit facility axpiring in 2019 and a US51,750m five-year credit facility axpiring in 2021 The cradit
facilitios will be used for general corporate purpases. There wars nil outstanding borrowings undar thase cradit facilities
as of 30 November 2014 (2015 nil). u
£
29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMEMNTS E
The Group has emared imo rapurchase agresmonts whanaly securities are 20id 1o third perties with a concurrent sgreement ’f
to repurchase the securities s a specified date. z
3
The securities related to these agreements are not de-recognised from the Group's consolidated statemient of financial E
position, butan retained within the aporoprinte financial asset classification During the tarm of the repurchase sgreemaonts.
the Group is restricted from selling or pledging the tranafermed debt securities. Tha following table specifies the amounts
included within finencial imestments subject to repurchase sgreements which de not qualily for de-recognition ot each
wear end:
A pt Ar st
36 Mowember i Mirvermbeer -
e 11 e = LU 2
-
Debt securities — AFS 2,045 2522 z
Debt securities = FYTPRL 98 677 X
Total 2143 1199 :
g
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OVERVIEW

30, OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES jmensn
Offsetting, enforceable master netting agreements and similar agreements coriised)
The following table shows the liabilities that are subject 1o eifsetting. enforceabls master netting agreements and similar

arrgngements at each year end:
[ f
s ol Mt amazisd =
recognised o Fancial AT E
financial I.I.l.t:ll.li.luI it st et i i 2
Greas utulmTrb: nthe X i E
amaut sl Tt ki ol financisl pasilion E
2= d fod Cash =]
LA ozl et dellasy Pty A o
Ly Ll.lhlll_l.l:rl p-Hmnﬂ pomition mlln.l'r_l:lrrll 1 phw:ld ml C
30 November 2016 2
Firancial labilities: =
Derivative liabilities .12 - ity (G400 (188 16
Repurchase-agraements - 1.984 - 1,984 (1.984) - -
Total 2,628 - 2,628 (2.624) (188} 16
Crose g
o o et amound =
Apenpnid af fnancisd E
tmancial finkitien g i 5
Ll ] LADES R o ]
Gross et ol in the R i et -
mmount al lidatorl  Coenotidited - = a
i statemeen  slalemeri of Cash B
finmneiat of financial Niruaneisl Finaneist colistaml tien £
LEEm llabiinien petilinn eI INAsLETas pindged -] e
30 Movemnbar 2015
Financial lakidlities:
Berivative liabilities 595 - 695 (&39) (189) &7
Repurchase sgreements 3,085 = 2085 (3,085) = =
Total 3.780 - 3.780 (1.524) [18%) &7
w
I 4
The Group entered into enforceable master netting agreements for derivative transactions, as well as the repurchase E
agreaments for debt instruments with various counterparties. Escept for ceraln futures contracts exacuted through =
cleanng house mechanim wherns the settlemant arrangement satisfied the IFRS netting criterin, the Irinsactions undar ;
i enforceable master netting agreements and similar sgreemenms svalving the exchange of financisl instrurnents er cash g
a5 collateral do not satesfy the IFRS natting criteria. Thi proviglen in the master natting agresmant and &imilar agreemonts z
enables a party o tesminate transactions early and settle at a net amaunt if 8 defacll or eemination event occurs. -
E
2
X
5
X
2
g
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33, SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES E
Share capital
£i5 a1 30 Nevamber 2018 A4 01 0 Novembss 015
Miifize: ghares U5Sm Misien thar. Ur5m
=
At beginning af the financial year 12,048 13971 12,065 13,962 -
Shares issued under share option scheme -
and agency share purchase plan & 27 : q E
At end of the financial year 12,056 131998 12,068 1381 E’
a
The Compary lszued 7,174 665 shares (nder share option scheme (2015 2,190,404 shares) and 927,042 shares under -
agency share purchase plan (2015 1,061,690 shares) during the year ended 30 Novemnber 2016 g'
=
The Company and its subsidianes have not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's shares during the vear ended z
30 Movember 20006 with the exceplion of 16,849 376 shares (2015: 16 867 524 shares] of the Company purchased by and 2
276,401 shares {201 5: 204,395 shares) of the Company sold by the employes share-based trusts. These purchases were
made by the relevant scheme trustees on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. These shares are hedd on trust for participants
of the relevant schemas and themefore wane nod cancelled,
Druring thie year ended 30 Novembar 2076, 13666506 shores (2015; 16,734,751 shanas) were ransfermed to sligibie ;
directors, cfficers and employees of the Graup from the employes share-based trusts under share-based campansation =
plans a8 & result ol visting Az at 30 Movember 2016, 78,056,013 ghares (2015 75,147 538 sharos) of the Campany wiie g
heid by the employes share-baced trusts. =
-
Resarvies %
Fair value reserve =
The tasr valun resarve comprises the cumulative nat change in the fair valus of availablo far gale sacarities hold at the and
of the reparting period.
Foralgn curroncy translation ressrve
The forelgn currency translation reserve comprises all foreign currency exchange differences arising fiom the translation
af the financial sratements of forelgn operations.
.3
Employes shars-based trusts E
Trusts have bean established to acquire shares ol the Comparny for distribution to participants in future pericds through =
the share-based compensation plana: Those shames acquired by the trissts, to the extent not transferred to the participants =1
upen voating, are reported as “Employes share-based frusta”, "5'
3
Property revaluation reserve z
Proparty revaliastion reserve comprses the cumulative net change in tha revalued amount of proparty hald for own -
use at the end of the reporting period. Property revaluation surplus is not congidarad 1o be a realised profit avallable for
distribution to shameholders.
Other reserves
Other resarves maindy include the Impact of menger sccounting for business combinations under commen control and
share-bazed compansation, z
E
5
x
2
g
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34, NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

LEF ] Aa ot
0 10 Kt

016 2018
USSm A8 btljunted)
Equity sharos in subsidiarics 59 59
Shere of eamnings 57 Fral
Shara of othar reservas 10 N
Tatal bl 303
35, GROUP CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Capital Managemant Approach

Tha Group's capital managemant obisctives focus on maintaining & strong capital base 1o support tha developmant of its
‘business, maintaining the ability to move capital freely and satisfying rogulatory capital requiremanis at afl times.

TheGroup's caplial management function oversees all capital -rel sted sctivities of the Group and assisis senlormanagement
in making cepital decizions. The capital management funclion DRTTICIDATOS: In decisipns concerning asset-liabiliny
management, strategic asset allocation and ongaing salvency management. This includes ensuring capital considerations
B st ount in tha strategy and business planning processes and when detarminkng tha ALA's capacily to pay dividends
to sharhalders.

Regulatory Solvency

The Group i5 in complisnce with the solvency and capital adequacy requirements aoplied by its reguiators. The Groun's
primary inaurance requlator at the AlA Company Limited {408 Co) and A1A International Limied (A1A Intarmational} levels
is the Hong Kong Gifica of the Commissionar of Insurance { HKOCT), which reguiras that AlA Coo and AlA Intemational
mgat the solvency margin requiremants of the Hong Kong ingurance Companies Ordinancs (HKICO). The HKICO (among
other matters) sets minimum sofvency margin requiremants that an insurer must meet in order to be authorised to camy
on Insurance business in of from Hong Kong, AIA has given a revised undartaking to the HKOC! to malniain an excess
of assets over liabilities for branches other than Hong Kang &1 no (ess than 100% of this Hong Kong statutory minimum
solvency margin requirement {previously 150%) in each of AlA Co, and AlA International. For clarity there is no change in
the undertaking i respect of the Hong Kang business or the Hang Kong statutory minkmum soleoncy margin roquimment

for AlA
The cagital positions of the Growp's 1wa principal operating companies as of 30 November 2016 and 2015 are as follows
30 Novarsbee 2018 B Novamber 2015

Totsl  HReguistary Toral  Fsquistory

aksl Ini Sobuncy llath minimum Sohvency
UsEm zapital Zapta i capirat capial e
AMACe 6,609 1,659 404% 5761 1579 A28%
Al International 6,237 2,072 301% 388 1,794 I54%

For these purposes, the Group defines total avaslable capital as the amaunt of assets in excess of |iabilities measired in
accordance with the HKICO and “regulatory minimum capital® as the required minimium margin of selvency calculated in
necordance with the HEICDL The solvency ratio ig the ratio of total svailable capital 1o regulatory minimum cagiinl,

The Group's individusl branches and subskdiaries are slzo subject to the supervision of government regulators in the
Jurigdictions in which those branches and subbsidiarias and their parant entity operate and. in relation 1o subsidiarkes; in
which they ang incorporated. The varous regulstors oversesing the Group actively mondtor our [ocal solventcy positions.
Al& Co.and AIA Intarnational subimit annual filings to the HKOCH of thalr salvency margin position based on their annual
miditad fingnecial statements, and the Graup's ather operating undts perlorm similar annaad filings with thelr respective
local reguimtoss.

303 1 AlA GROUP LIMITED

592/642



EDINETOOOO
000000000000 0O(E24847)
Oooooooa

OVIRTIEW

35, GROUP CAPITAL STRUCTURE oomonem)

Regulatory Solvency o

The ability of the Company 1o pay dividends 1o shareholders and 10 meet other abligations depends ultimately on dividends
and other payments being received from its operating subsidiaries and branches, which are subject to contraciual
regulatery and other limitations. The various ragulators ovarseaing the indhidual branches and subsidiaries of tha Group
have the discration 1o impose additional restriciions on the ability of those regulated subsidiares and branches to make
payment of dividends or other distributions and payments (o AlA Co, including increasing the required margin of sclvency
1hat an operating unit must malmain. For example, capital may not ba ramitted without the corsent from regulators for
eeriain individual branches or subsidisries of the Group The payment of dividends. distributions and other pavmaents to
shareholders is subject to the oversight of the HKOCL

Capital and Regulatory Orders Specific to the Group
As of 30 Hoyember 2016, ihe requiremenis and restrictions summarised below may be considered material 1o the Group
and remain in elfect unless otherwise stated,

FINAHCIAL ARD OPENATING WEVIEW

Hong Kong Office of the Commissionar of Insurance
AlA Growp Limited has given to the Insurance Authority an undertaking that AlA Group Limited will:

(i} ensure that {a) sach of AlA Co! and AlA International will at all timas maintain an excess of assets over Habilities of
nol less than the sggregete of 150% of 1 Hong Kong statulory minimum solvency margin requirgment in respect
of the Hong Kong branch and ne less than 100% of the Hong Kong statutory minimum solvency margin requirement
(proviously 150%) for branches aihes than Hong Kong (“minkmiem amount”™); (B) 1t will nat withdraw capital or transter
any funds or aszets oul of AIA Co. or AlA International that will causze the solvency ratio to fall below the minimum
amoums specified in (a), except with, in sither caze, 1the prior written congent of the Insurance Authority, and (c) sheuld
the solvency ratio of sither AIA Co; er ALA Intematienal fall below the respective mintmiim amounts, ALA Growp Limited
will takee S1eps A% 500N 85 pOSSIDIe 10 resioee it 10-88 [nast the respeCctive MInimum amounts in & manngr acceptabis 1o
the Insurance Autharity;

CORPONETE GOVENANCE

(i} motify tha Insurance Authority in writing as soon az tha Company bacomes aware of any person (a) bacoming a controdlar
{withan the meaning of Section 3(1)(c)iij of the HKICO) of ALA Co, and ALA Internstional through the acquisition of our
shares traded on the HKSE or (b) ceasing (o be a contraller (within the nseaning of Section 901 ){cHE) of the HKICO) of
AlA Co. and AlA Internagional theough the disposal of our shades traded on the HKSE: '

{ili)be subject to the supervision of the Inscrance Authority &nd ALA Group Limited will be required to continually comply
with the Insurance Autharity's guidance on the *fit and proper” standards of a controller pursuant 1o Saction 8{2) of the
HKICO, The Insurance Authonty is emptwered by the HKICD 1o raise objection If it appeass to it that any persan & not
fit wnd proper {0 be & controlier or director of an authonsed insurer. These standards include the sufficiency of a halding
company’s financial resounces; the viability of & holding company’s business plan for its insurance subsidiaries which
are ragulsted by the [rsurance Authority; the clarty of the Group's lagal. managorial snd oparational structures: (e
identities of any other holding companies or major regulated subssdiaries; whether the halding company, i directors
ar controllers is subject (o receivership, administration, lauldation or other similar proceedings or failed 1o satisfy any
judgeament debt under a court order or the subject of any eriminal earvictions or in breach of any statutary or regulatory
reguingments; the soundness of the Group's corporate governance; e soundness of the Group's risk Management
framisveork; the receipt af infarmation from its insurance subsidiades which ame reguiated by the Insurance Authority to
ansurg that they am managed in compliancs with applcabla laws, rulas and regulation; and its rola in ouerseaing and
managing the operatipns of its insurance subsidianies which are regulated by the Insuranca Autharity; and

(hv}fulilall enhancements or improvements io the guldance referred to in subparagraph (ill) above, a5 well as administrative
Mmsasunts issued from time 1o time by the Insurance Authority or requinemeants that may be orescribed by the Insurance
Authority in accordance with the HKICO, regulations wnder tha HRICO or guidance notes issued by the Insurance
Authority lrom time 10 tme

FINANCIAL STATEMINTS

ADDITIOMAL INFORMATIDN
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36, RISK MANAGEMENT (iomieusa) g‘
Investment and linancial risks (coraue
Foraign exchange rate risk
The Group's foreign exchange rate risk arises mainly from the Group's operations in multiple geographical markets in the
Asia-Pacific region and tha translstion of multiple curmencies 1o LS dollars for financial reperting purpasas. The balance x
sheet values of our operating units gnd subskdiaries are not hadged to the Group's reparting currency, the US dollar. =
Howver, assets, liabillties and local regulatory and stress cepital in each buginess unit are generally currency miatched B
with the exception of holdings of sguities denaminated in currencies othar than the funclional currency, ar any expected Z
capital movements due within ong year which may be hedged. Bands denominated in currencies athar than the functianal E
clrrency any commanty hedged with cross-currency swags or foreign exchange forward confracts g
Foreign exchange rata net exposure &
Urnied Stabes Hiceg Bong Thal e O E Halaysian China E
ussm ! Dllar Doliar Ba Datlar Fingsi Resniminbi -
30 Nuvember 2018
Equity analysed by ariginal currency 20429 1,208 2,502 (2.786) 1.93% 4098
Het notional amounts of curroncy
dervative positions (7,104} &01 2,010 2,881 {187} {122) "
Curroncy axpasure 13,325 2,809 %512 75 1,752 3,974 5
5% strengthening of original currency g
Impact on pralit before tax 159 11 n as {6 14 3
Impact gn other comiprahansive inoemae (184} a9 252 (31} i 185 E
Impact on total equity (15} 110 245 & B8 199 g
5% strongthening of the US dollar
Impact on profit before tag 169 21 (&) (20} 7 (1)
Impact on other comprehensive income {184} {131} (239} 18 195} 1189}
Impact an total equity [15) {110) (245) &) [BE) (199
Unitec Sty o Kong Thal  Singepor  Milsynian China “
LUEgm [icstar Distar Fail Diodar Reeagt Banminhi 3
x
30 Novembor 2015 — As ad|usted =
Equity analysed by ariginal currency 18058 4070 228 {2.789) 1913 2,539 ;
Net notional amounts of currency g
derivative pogitions {8,617 a01 1818 2,698 (17 (21) =
Currency expasure 12,341 2671 4098 {31} 1736 3518 =
5% strongthening of original currency
Impact on profit bafore tax 136 10 5 25 {n n
Impact on other comprehensive incema {157} ‘28 200 (30} R 185
impact on total equity (23} 108 205 15 87 176
£
5% strangthening of the US dollar ;
Impact on profit before tax 134 24 (&) g li] ) (15) T
Impact gn other comprehensive incoeme 1157} {132 (201 15 (96} {161} ;
Impact on total equity {23) {108) (205) 5 (87} {176} 3
:
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6. RISK MANAGEMENT [

Investment and financial risks (oo

Liguidity risk

Alpidentifies Hguidity risk a5 occurring in two wiys, finencial liguidity risk and investment liguldity risk Financial lquidity
rish Is the risk that insullicient cash is avallable to meet paymant obligations 1o counterparties as they fall dus. One arsa
of particular focus in the management of linancial lkguidity is collateral. AlA manages this exposure by detarmining limits
e its activities in the dertvatives and repurchase agreement markets based on the collateral svailable within the relevant
fund or subsidiary 1o withstand extreme market events, More broadly AlA suppons its liguldity through commitied bank
tagilitios use of 1% bond repurchase markets and maintsining scosss 10 debd markets vin the Groug’s Glabal Medium Tarm
Note programme.

Irewestrment liguldity risk occurs In relation 1o the Group's ability to buy and sell investments. This i a function of the sze of
the Group's holdings relative 1o the availability of counterparties willing to buy or sell these holdings & any given time. in
times of stress, market losses will generally be compounded by forced selters seaking unwilling buyers.

‘While tife insurance companies are characterised by a relativaly low raad for liguldity to eover those of their liabdities
which arg directly linked 1o mortality and morbidity, this risk is nevertheless consfully managed by contsnuously assessing
the relative iguidity of the Group's assets and managing the size of individeal holdings through Hmits.

Dun aftar Dus aftar
Dumin one yaar five yomrs
ohayest  thrsugh through  Dus sller Mo flsd
L Totall orbmm e years o ey BN years mturiby
30 Novermbar 2016
Financind pesais {Policyholder and
shameholdor invesstmaents)
Loans and depasits G806 Big 1095 %8 2,204 2,457
Other recevabies 1,678 1.558 T8 [ - 34
Debt securities 109,162 3008 16,341 28,291 51,432 -
Equity securities: 16,713 - - - - 16,713
Reinsurance recaivables 335 335 - - - -
Accrued vestmant incoma 1,341 1,333 1 - - T
Cash and cash squivalents 1,137 1,137 - - - -
Derivative financlal instruments 104 53 12 265 13 =
Subtotal 135,334 8,332 17.527 28,621 63,647 17,205
Financisl assats {Unit-linked contracts and
consolidated investment funds) 20.757 St - e o 20,757
Tatal 156,091 B,332 17,527 28,621 53,649 37,962
Finanelal and insurancs contract lisbilities
(Pelicyhclder and shamholder inwestments)
Insursnce and invastment contract labilittes
(mat of deferred acquisition and origination
coste and reinsurancel 95,007 2,725 9.799 10,529 71,954 =
Borrowings 3460 - SR 1,241 1,221 -
Ol gations under repu fehase agreements 1,984 1984 - - - -
Caher liabititles 3,379 2.354 &7 2 13 953
Darivative fimanelal instruments b42 93 208 113 1] -
Subrotal 106,472 7.056 11052 12,085 73,216 953
Financial ghd insuranoe contract lHabiles
(Unit-linked contracts and conaolidated
Investrment fupds) 20,743 - - - - 20,743
Total 125215 7156 11.052 12,085 7216 21,706

Houe:
113 Inchodes smesints ef US3408m lalling Sus sher 7 years through 5 year

3101 AlA GROUP LIMITED
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37. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Delined benalit plans

The Group operates funded and unfunded defined benefit plans that pravide life and madical benefits for participating
employvees after retirement and a lump sum benefil on cessation of employment. The locations covered by these plang
includa Heng Kong. Singasore, Malaysia, Thaitand, Talwan, Indonesia. Korea, the Philippines, S Lanka and Vietnam,
The Iatest indapandent actuarial valuations of tha plans were at 30 Movember 2016 and ware prepared by credantipled
nctuaries, All the actuaries are qualifisd members. of professional actuarial crganisations (o render the aciuarial opinions,
The actuarial valuations [ndicate that the Group's obligations under these defined benefit retirement plans are 33 par cent
(20152 47 por cont) covared by tha plan assats hedd by tha trustess. Tha fair vabus of planassels as a2 year and at the date
of valuation wes LIS$6Im {2015: 15543m). The toial expenses relating 1o these plans recognised jn the consolidated
income statement was USE1 1m (2015: USSEm).

Defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pensian plans, The total expence relating 10 these plans in the current
e wis LSESIm (2015 USE60m). Emplovess and the emplayer are required 15 make monthly contributions eqguil to
1 par cent o 22 per eent of the emploveas” monthly basie salaries, depending on years of service and subject 1o anmy
applicable caps of monthly relovant income in differont jurisdictions. For dafined contribution pension plans with vesting
canditlans, amy forlelied contributions by employers on behall of emplovess who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
‘suchconributions ars uged by the emplover to réduce any future comnributions. The amount of forleited contributions used
o reduce the existing |evel of contributions (5 not matesial

38. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Share-based compensation plans

Durlng the year ended 30 November 2018, the Group made further awards of share oplions, restricted shere units (RSUS)
and restricted stock porchase units (RSPUS) 1o certain dingctors, officers and employees of the Groop under the Shara
Dption Scheme (S0 Scheme), the Restricted Share Unit Scheme (RSU Scheme) and the Employee Share Purchase Plan
[ESPP). In additlon, the Growp mede further mwards of restricted siock subserlption uniis (RS5US) fo eliglbde sgents under
the Agency Share Purchase Plan (ASPP)L

R5U Scheme

Under the ASL Schame the vesting of the swarded RSUSs s conditional upan the eligible participants remakning In
employment with the Groun during the respective vesting penods. RSU awards are vested aither entiraly after a specific
periad of time or in ranches over the vesting periad, For RSL awards that are vested In tranches. sach vesting tranche
i5 acoourted for as a separate award for the purposes of meeognising the expenso over the vesting pericd, For certain
RSUs. performance conditions are also attached which include both market and non-market conditions. RSUs subject
to parformance conditions are released to the participants at the and of the vesting perlod depending on the actual
schievement of the performance condibions. During the vesting pericd. the participants are not entitied to dividends of
the underiying shares. Except in juricdictions whera restrictions apply, the awarded R5Us are expacted to be settled in
equity; awards that the Group has the legal or conatructive obligation to setile in cash are insignificent 1o the Group. The
maximum number of shares that can be awarded under this scheme is 301,100,000 {2015 301,100.000), representing
approximately 2.5 per cent (2015; 2.5 per cant) of the nuember of shares inigsue at 30 November 2016,

313 1 AlA GROUP LIMITED
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38. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION ironisn) E
Share-based compensation plans coweue)
RSU Schema comised)
Year ercied Your anded
30 Mewembar 30 NovernBar =
208 211_1!_ E
Numiber of shares é
Restricted Share Units 5
Outstanding at baginning of financial yaar 53,650,778 GAS90419 E
Awarded 18964,022 17933566 g
Forfeited (10,150,721} (8, 785462) i
Visted (13.126,777) {14,087 745) z
Outstanding at end of financial year 49,337,302 53850778 z
50 Scheme
Th: alsectivas of thie S0 Schsme ao 1o align siigikle paricipants’ ntanests wilh thase ol the shasshalders ol the Company
by allowing eligible participants to share in the vaiue created at the point they exercise their options. Share oplion (S0)
awards are vested sithar entirely atter a specific period of time or in tranches over the vesting period approximately three ;
1o five years, during which, the eligible participants ame requined to remaln in employment with the Group. For 50 awards E
vested in tranches, egch vesting tranche is accounted for 28 a separate award for the purposes of recognising the expense z
over tha vesting period. The awarded share options expire 10 years from tha date of grant and each share option entitles .
the eligible particlpant o subscribe for one ordinary share. Except in jurisdictions where restrictions apply, the awarded 5
sham options arg expecied to be sattled in equity; awards that the Group has the legal or constructive obligation to sattle i
in cash are ingignificant 1o the Group: The total number of shares under options that can be awarded under the scheme is 2
301,100,000 {201 5; 301,100,000}, reprasaniing approximately 2.5 per cent (2015 25 per cent) of the number of shares
in izsue at 30 Movember 2016
Information about share options outstanding and share options exercisable by the Group's employees and directors as at
tha and of the mporting paricd is as foliows:
it denided Weor ondod
30 Hoveener 2018 _ Hitowmberzots 2
Waighned Wegtring z
aEETEQY msvTage [
Mumbssr ol annielss price Humbar of aRBICISE pricE =
share optians (HKS) share options {HEE) -
Share opthons E
Outstanding at baginning of financil war &0.458,104 3329 Ir0h99 a7 T
Awardad 9,550,232 £1.50 BR3ITEN 4773
Enerciged (7,174,665) 28.58 (2.190.204) 2768
Forfeited or aipired {1._2‘%2.#?5] 3991 ___{_!]'?5,‘25‘1} ABAH
Outstznding at end of linancial vesr 41,581,033 3588 0458104 3329
Share optiors mxercisable a1 end of financial yesr 20,5592, 646 29.44 17817579 211 .
-
At the date tha share option was ewercised, the weighted average share price of the Company was HKS$49.43 for the vear E
ended 30 Nevambar 2016 (2015 HKE48.32). ;
2
g

AMMUAL REFOAT 28141 313
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38, SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION [mmwed

Share-based compensation plans jconboed

50 Scheme |cntirced)

The range of exercise prices for the shane options gutstanding as of 30 Novenber 2016-and 2015 is summarised in the

table balow.
Yomr andeg Yaar anced
30 Hevembar D16 30 Nowermiaee 2015
WegFited Wiighied
average mwrage
remadning remaining
Biarmibser of contractual Himmbar ol covirasbaal
ahasn gptione lila hare opten lita
i fyuara) ek [remil
Range of oxercise price
HKE26 - HHE35 20,575,507 5.14 28,008,527 609
HEE3E - HEKBLS 15,689,143 B.4B E5E0.408 B27
HKE66 — HKEES 5.516.383 B.28 5899149 9.28
Dutstanding at end of financial year 41,581,033 6,80 40,458,104 L
ESPP

Under the pian, #ligible employess of the Group can purchase ordinary sheres of the Company with gualified emgloyee
contributions and the Compary will award one matching restricted stock purchase unit to them at the end of the vesting
period for each two shares purchased theough the qualified emploves contributions (contribution shares). Contribution
shares are purchased from the open markar. Duting the vesting period, the eligitle emplovees must hold he contribution
shares purchased during the plan cycle and remain employed by the Groug The level of qualltied emplayes contribution
i limited to not more than & por cent of the annual basic salary subject 1o a maximum of HKE1 17,000 per annum. The
awarded matching restricted stock purchase units ane expected 1o be settled in equity. For the year ended 30 November
2016, eligible employees paid USS14m (201 5: USE! 2m) to plrchase 2636497 ordinary shares (2015 1,962,088 ordinary
sharas) of the Company.

ASPP

The strscture of this ASPP genarally follows that of the ESPP the key difference baing that the eligible aponts are required
to pay a subscription price of US$1 to subscriba for sach new sharm in the Company at tha end of the vesting period. Under
the plan, sligible agents of the Growp can purchase ordinary shares of the Company with qualifiod agent contributions
and the Company will award one matching restrictad stock subscription unit to them at the end of the vesting period
1o¢ sach two ahares purchased theough the gualified agent contrnbutions (spent contribution shans). Each restrcted
stock subscription unit entitles eligible agants to subscribe for one new shase of the Company, Agent contribution shares
are purchasad from the open market. Ouring the vesting perod, the sligible agents must hold the contribution shares
purchased during the plan cycle and maintain thelr agent contracts with the Groun, The awarded matching restricted stock
subscription units are expected 1o be settled in equity, The teved of gualified agent contribution is subject to & maxmum of
US515,000 per annum. For the year ended 30 November 2014, eligibla agents pald USS17m (2015 US$14m} 10 purchase
2,792 549 ordinary shares (2015: 2, 3581 B32 ordinery shares) of the Company.

Valuation methodology

The Group utilises a binomial Lattice model 1o calculate the (air value of the share option ewards, a Monte-Carlo simulation
model and/for distounted cash Mow lechnigue to calculiste the fair value of the RSU, ESPP and ASPP awards, taking into
aecount the terms and conditions upan which the wwards wers made. The prce volatility is estimated on the basis of
implied volatility of the Company's shares which is based on an analysis of historical data since they are traded in the
Hang Kong Stock Exchange. Tha expected life of the share pptions i3 darved from the outpue of the valuation model and
15 calculoted based on en analysis of expected exercise behavicur of the Company's employees, The estimate of market
cancition lor performance-based RSUS (s besed on one-year historcal data preceding the grant date. An allowance for
forfaiture prior to vesting s nat mcluded in the valuation of the awards.

314 1 Al GROUP LIMITED
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Remunération ol direciors and key mansgement personnel s disclosed In note 39.

41, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments undor operating loases
Total future apgregate minimum fease payments under ngn-cancellabie cperating leeses are as follows:

A s Aual
M Howembar J0 Hovesnbier
Edm L
Proparties and others oxpiring
Mot later than one year 120 a7
Later than one and nat laster than fiva years 178 121
Later than five years 94 “2
Total 392 260

The Growp is the lsses in respect of a number of proparties and iters of office eguipment held under operating leases,
The leases tyoically rin for an initial period of one 1o ten years. with an option 1o renew the [sasa when all terms are
renggolisted. Lease payments are usually reviewsd gt the end of the leass tarm to refiect market rates. None of the [eases
inelude contingent rentals.

Investment and capital commitments

s At
0 Mevmmbar an

ustm w1 015,
Mat baiar than ome yomr 682 523
Later than ane and nat later than live years LU
Total 692 526

Irwestment and capital commiimanis consist of commitments to invest In privabe eguity partnerships and othar azsats.

Contingencies

The Group ks subject to regulation in each of the gecgraphical markets in which it cperates from Insurance, securities,
capital markets, pension, data privacy and other regulators and is exposed to the risk of reguistory actions in response
o parceived or actual non-complignce with regulations relating to- suitalality, sales or underwrinng practices. clams
payments and procedures. product design, disclosure, administration, denial or delay of benalits and breaches of fiduciary
or othar dutios. The Group beliovos that those matiers hava Boen adoquatoly provided for in thass financial statomaents.

The Group is exposed 1o legal procesdings, complaints and other actions from its activities including those arising fram
commercis] aciivilies, sales practices, sultabilily of products, poliches and claims. The Group believes that these matiers
e acdequetely provided for in these financial statemenis

The Grodp Is the reinsirer in a residential morinsge credit reinsurance agreement covering residential morigages in
Auttralia; The Group is exposad to the rigk af lossas in the evant of the failure of the retrocessionaire, a subsidiary of
Amencan Imernational Group Inc, to honour 13 outstanding obligations which s mitigated by & trust agreement The
principal balante ocutstanding of morigage loans to which the rensurance agreement relales were approsimately
USSE16m at 30 November 2018 (2015 USS&84m). The Labilities and refated relnsurance sssats. which totatied US$3m
[2015: USS&m), respectively, srising from thesa agreamanits are reflected and presented on a gross basis in thase financial
statements in accordance with the Group's accounting palicies. The Group expacista fully recover amaunts cutstanding at
thiz reparting date wnder the terms of this agreement from the retrocessionakm, '

2201 AlA GROUP LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AIA GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financia statements of AIA Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “ Group”) set out on pages 128
to 239, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 November 2017;

the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financia position of the Group as at
30 November 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and with International Financial Reporting Standards (“I1FRSS”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“1ASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financia statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit
matters identified relate to the valuation of insurance contract liabilities and the amortisation of deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”).
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

a) Vauation of insurance contract liabilities

Refer to the following notes in the consolidated financial statements: Note 2.4 for related accounting policies, Note 3 for
critical accounting estimates and judgements, Note 25 and Note 27.

As at 30 November 2017 the Group has insurance contract

liabilities of US$148,897 million.

The Director’s valuation of these insurance contract
liabilities involves significant judgement about uncertain
future outcomes, including mortality, morbidity,
persistency, expense, investment return, valuation interest
rates and provision for adverse deviation, aswell as
complex valuation methodol ogies.

The liabilities for traditional participating life assurance
policies with discretionary participation features and non-
participating life assurance policies, annuities and policies
related to other protection products are determined by a
net level premium valuation method using best estimate
assumptions at policy inception adjusted for adverse
deviation. These assumptions remain locked in thereafter,
subject to meeting aliability adequacy test which
compares the liabilities with a valuation on current best
estimate assumptions.

Insurance contract liabilities for universal life and unit-
linked policies are based on the value of the account
balance together with liabilities for unearned revenue and
additional insurance benefits which are dependent upon
operating assumptions and future investment return
assumptions that are reassessed at each reporting period.

As part of our consideration of assumptions, we have
focused on those insurance contracts where the
assumptions are reassessed at each reporting date as well
as how assumptions are set at policy inception dates.

We have, in relation to valuation methodol ogies used,
focused on changes in methodol ogies from the previous
valuation as well as methodol ogies applied to material
new product types (as applicable).

We performed the following audit procedures to address
this matter:

We assessed the valuation methodol ogies used,
identified changes in methodol ogies from previous
valuation and assessed the reasonableness and impact
for material changes identified, by applying our
industry knowledge and experience to compare
whether the methodol ogies and changes to those are
consistent with recognised actuaria practices and
expectation derived from market experience.

We assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions including those for mortality, morbidity,
persistency, expense, investment return and valuation
interest rates as well as provision for adverse
deviation. Our assessment of the assumptions
included:

Obtaining an understanding of, and testing, the
controlsin place to determine the assumptions;

Examining the approach used by management to
derive the assumptions by applying our industry
knowledge and experience;

Challenging the key assumptions used by
management against past experience, market
observable data (as applicable) and our experience of
market practice.

We checked the calculation of the liability adequacy
test and assessed the related results in order to
ascertain whether the insurance contract liabilities
used for the in-force business are adequate in the
context of avaluation on current best estimate
assumptions.

Based upon the work performed, we found the
methodol ogies and assumptions used by management to
be appropriate, including those used in the liability
adequacy test.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

b) Amortisation of DAC

Refer to the following notes in the consolidated financial statements: Note 2.4.1 for related accounting policies, Note
3.3 for critical accounting estimates and judgements and Note 18.

As at 30 November 2017, the Group has reported DAC of  We performed the following audit procedures to address

US$21,847 million. this matter:

The amortisation of DAC for traditional life insurance Reviewed and challenged the basis of amortisation of
policies and annuities are amortised over the expected life DAC in the context of the Group’s accounting policy
of the policies as a constant percentage of premiums and and the appropriateness of the assumptions used in
involve less judgement by the Directors compared to determining the estimated gross profits used for
universal life and unit-linked policies. Expected premiums amortisation for universal life and unit-linked

are estimated at the date of policy issue. policies. Thisincluded those for mortality, morbidity,

persistency, expense and investment returns by
comparing against past experience, market
observable data (as applicable) and our experience of
market practice.

The amortisation of DAC for universal life and unit-linked Based upon the work performed, we found the
policiesinvolves greater judgement by the Directors. For ~ assumptions used in relation to the amortisation of DAC
these contracts, DAC is amortised over the expected life for universal life and unit-linked policies to be

of the contracts based on a constant percentage of the appropriate.

present value of estimated gross profits expected to be

realised over the life of the contract or on a straight-line

basis. Estimated gross profits are revised regularly and

significant judgement is exercised in making appropriate

estimates of gross profits.

As part of our audit we have focused on DAC related to
universal life and unit-linked policies where the
assumptions are reassessed at each reporting date.

Other Information

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Group Chief Executive
and President’s Report, Financial Review, Business Review, Regulatory and International Developments, Supplementary Embedded
Value Information and our auditor’s report thereon and Glossary (but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the Financial Highlights, Chairman’s
Statement, Risk Management, Our People, Corporate Social Responsibility, Statement of Directors Responsibilities, Board of
Directors, Executive Committee, Report of the Directors, Corporate Governance Report, Remuneration Report, Information for
Shareholders and Corporate I nformation, which are expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we

conclude that there is amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in thisregard.

When we read the Financial Highlights, Chairman’s Statement, Risk Management, Our People, Corporate Social Responsihility,
Statement of Directors Responsibilities, Board of Directors, Executive Committee, Report of the Directors, Corporate Governance
Report, Remuneration Report, Information for Shareholders and Corporate Information, if we conclude that thereis a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action
considering our legal rights and obligations.

Other Matter

The Group has prepared Supplementary Embedded Value Information as at and for the year ended 30 November 2017 in accordance
with the embedded value basis of preparation set out in Sections 4 and 5 of the Supplementary Embedded Value Information, on
which we issued a separate auditor’s report to the Board of Directors of the Company dated 27 February 2018.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financia Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statementsthat give atrue and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no redlistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financiad Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financia statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether amaterial uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesininternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
mattersin our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’'s report is Lars Christian Jordy Nielsen.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 February 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AIA GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AIA Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 115 to
228, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 November 2016, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors' responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
and with the International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financia statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give atrue and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as
at 30 November 2016 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with both Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards and with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 February 2017
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